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Item 1. Business

Century Aluminum Company is a Delaware corporawith our principal executive offices locatert?®11
Garden Road, Building A, Suite 200, Monterey, Cahfa 93940.

Throughout this Form 10-K, and unless expyestslted otherwise or as the context otherwiseiresyu
"Century Aluminum Company," "Century Aluminum,” "Giry," "we," "us," and "our" refer to Century Alunum
Company and its subsidiaries.

Available Information

Additional information about Century may beaibed from our website, which is located at
www.centuryaluminum.com. Our website provides asde filings we have made through the SEC's ED@KR)
system, including our annual, quarterly and curreports filed on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K, respety, and
ownership reports filed on Forms 3, 4 and 5 aftecénber 16, 2002 by our directors, executive afieed beneficial
owners of more than 10% of our outstanding comntocks These filings are also available on the SEDsite at
www.sec.gov. In addition, we will make availabted of charge copies of our Forms 10-K, Forms 1@s@,Forms 8-
K upon request. Requests for these documentsecamalde by contacting our Investor Relations Depamtrby malil
at: 2511 Garden Road, Building A, Suite 200, Mogye CA 93940, or phone at: (831) 642-9300. Infdrara
contained in our website is not incorporated bemefce in, and should not be considered a pathisfAnnual Report
on Form 10-K.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwarddimg statements. We have based these forwardAgok
statements on current expectations and projecsibost future events. Many of these statementshragentified by the
use of forward-looking words such as “expects,ti@pates,” “plans,” “believes,” “projects,” “estiates,” “intends,”
“should,” “could,” “may,” “would,” “will,” “scheduled,” “potential” and similar words. These forwaabking statements
are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumpimahsding, among other things, those discusse@ulidm 1, “Business,”
Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” Item 7, “Management’s Dission and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resof
Operations,” and Item 8, “Financial Statements &ugplementary Data,” including;

« Declines in aluminum prices have adversely affectadfinancial position and results of operatiams i
the recent past and future declines in aluminumegror an increase in our operating costs couldtres
further curtailment of operations at one or morewf facilities if alternate sources of liquidityeanot
available.

« As part of our operational restructuring, we hawvdailed and may continue to curtail operationersg
or more of our facilities, which has required usnour and may require us to further incur subsahnt
costs and subject us to substantial risks in thedu The failure to successfully implement our
operational restructuring or to achieve its intehbdenefits could have a material adverse effedurn
business, financial condition, results of operatiand liquidity.

« A continuation or worsening of global financial aecbnomic conditions could adversely impact our
financial position and results of operations.

« Our ability to access the credit and capital market acceptable terms to obtain funding for our
operations and capital projects may be limitedtdusur credit ratings, our financial condition bet
deterioration of these markets.

« Poor performance in the financial markets and/erocomtailment actions could have significant and
adverse effects on our pension funding obligations.

« The cyclical nature of the aluminum industry causasability in our earnings and cash flows.
« International operations expose us to politicajutatory, currency and other related risks.

 If economic and political conditions in Iceland el@rate further, our financial position and reswt
operations could be adversely impacted.
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« Any future reductions in the duty on primary aluommimports into the European Union (the “EU”)
would decrease our revenues at our smelter in Grtaxapi, Iceland (“Grundartangi”).

« Substantial additional delays in the completiothef Nordural Helguvik ehf smelter (“Helguvik projex
may increase its cost, lower the project’s finah@&urns and impose other risks to completion #rat
not foreseeable today.

« Our power supply agreements for the Helguvik prtogee subject to fulfillment of certain conditiorad
there can be no assurance that these conditiohsenmhet or that the cost required to meet the itiond
makes the project impracticable or less attradtime a financial standpoint.

« Changes in the relative cost and availability otaie raw materials and energy compared to theeic
primary aluminum could adversely affect our opegtiesults.

« Many of our contracts for raw materials, includoggtain contracts for alumina and electrical power,
require us to take-or-pay for fixed quantities o€ls materials that may limit our ability to curtail
unprofitable production capacity.

« Further consolidation within the metals industryicoprovide advantages to our competitors.
« Disruptions in our power supplies could adverséigc our operations.

« Union disputes or our inability to extend any of enisting collective bargaining agreements coalde
our production costs or impair our production ofierss.

« We are subject to a variety of environmental land @gulations that could result in significanttsosr
liabilities to us.

« Climate change legislation or regulations restigttertain types of emission of “greenhouse gases”
could result in increased operating costs andafostmpliance for our business.

« We may be required to write down the book valueasfain assets.

« We require significant cash flow to meet our debt/e requirements, which increases our vulnetgbil
to adverse economic and industry conditions, reslaash available for other purposes and limits our
operational flexibility.

« Despite our substantial level of debt, we may iramdtitional debt in the future.

« We depend upon intercompany transfers from ourigiaibees to meet our debt service obligations and
any limitations on the ability of our subsidiartesdo so may adversely affect our ability to meataebt
service obligations.

« We have implemented a Tax Benefit Preservation 8fahtaken other efforts to protect against a
possible limitation on our ability to use net ogerg losses (“NOLS”"), tax credits and other taxedss
however, there can be no assurance that thesaswtith be effective or that the Tax Benefit
Preservation Plan will remain in place.

Many of these factors are beyond our control. Webe the expectations reflected in our forwardkiog
statements are reasonable, based on informatidialaleato us on the date of this Form 10-K. Howeggven the
described uncertainties and risks, we cannot gtegaour future performance or results of operatiand you should not
place undue reliance on these forv-looking statements. Although we undertake nogattion to revise or update any
forward-looking statements, whether as a resutteod information, future events or otherwise, ex@ptequired by law,
you are advised to consult any additional discleswve make in our quarterly reports on Form 10#@ual report on
Form 10-K and current reports on Form 8-K filedhnihe SEC. See Item 1, “Business - Available Imiation.”

-2-
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Overview

We produce primary aluminum. Aluminum is an intgronally traded commaodity, and its price is effesly
determined on the London Metal Exchange (the “LMEQur primary aluminum facilities produce valuedad and
standardgrade primary aluminum products. Our current prineduminum production capacity is 785,000 metoics pel
year (“mtpy”), of which approximately 219,000 mtpas curtailed as of February 28, 2010. We prodagguioximately
605,000 mtpy of primary aluminum in 2009.

Our primary aluminum capacity includes our faciltyGrundartangi, Iceland with capacity of 260,006{py; our
facility in Hawesville, Kentucky (“Hawesville”) wit capacity of 244,000 mtpy; a facility in Ravenswp@/est Virginia
(“Ravenswood”), currently curtailed, with capacitiy1 70,000 mtpy; and a 49.7% interest in a facilityt. Holly, South
Carolina (“Mt. Holly”) that provides us with cap#&giof 111,000 mtpy. We are also developing a 380 @tpy primary
aluminum facility in Helguvik, Iceland. In additido our primary aluminum assets, we have a 40%estaBaise Haohai
Carbon Co., Ltd. (“BHH"), a carbon anode and cathfatility located in China. The BHH facility has annual anode
production capacity of up to 180,000 mtpy and amuahcathode graphitization capacity of up to 20,6@py anc
supplies a portion of the anodes used in our Gnaadgi facility.

In light of global economic conditions and our higlative operating cost structure, as of Decer3tie2009, all
operations at Ravenswood and one potline at Halleesgimain curtailed. We have also significantguced spending «
the Helguvik project. With the curtailment actiangplemented, our annualized production rate ahpriy aluminum is
approximately 566,000 mtpy. During 2009, we impdetied several restructuring activities and we nomsier
implementing further restructuring activities iretfuture. See Item 7, "Management’s Discussionfemalysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations —@penal Restructuring.”

Primary Aluminum Facilities:

Active
Operating
Capacity Capacity Ownership
Facility Location Operational (mtpy) (mtpy) Percentage
Grundartangi Grundartangi, Iceland 1998 260,000 260,000 100%
Hawesville (1)  Hawesville, Kentucky, USA 1970 244,000 195,000 100%
Ravenswood(2) Ravenswood, West Virginia 1957 170,000 — 100%
USA
Mt. Holly (3) Mt. Holly, South Carolina, 1980 224,000 111,000 49.7%
USA

() In March 2009, we curtailed one potline at the Hswilee facility. We are currently operating four
potlines with a capacity of 195,000 mtpy. We mestart the curtailed potline if economic conditions
improve.

(2) In February 2009, we curtailed all operations atRavenswood facility. We may restart the curthile
operations if economic conditions improve.

(3) Alcoa holds the remaining 50.3% ownership inteaest is the operator. Century’s share of Mt. Hally’
capacity is approximately 111,000 mtpy.
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Joint Venture Facilities:

Ownership
Facility Location Type Capacity Percentage
Baise Haohai Guangxi Zhuang, Carbon anode and 180,000 mtpy anode; 40%

Carbon Co., Ltd (1) China cathode 20,000 mtpy cathode

(1) Guangxi Qianggiang Carbon Co., Ltd. holds the ramgi60% ownership interest and is the operator.

Our current long-term strategic objectives are (8): expand our primary aluminum business by coosirg,
investing in or acquiring additional capacity tloffiers favorable returns and lowers our per unsidpiction costs; (b)
further diversify our geographic presence; andp{osue low-cost upstream opportunities in bauxiteimy, alumina
refining and the production of other key raw matksti The following table shows our primary alummghipment
volumes since 2004.

Century's Primary Aluminum Shipments
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Recent Developments

Information on our recent developments is availablikem 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analygis o
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” uried herein.

Competition

The market for primary aluminum is global, and dachéor aluminum varies widely from region to regiowe
compete with U.S. and international companies énaluminum industry primarily in the areas of prigaality and
service. In addition, aluminum competes with matsrsuch as steel, copper, carbon fiber, compmgastic and
glass, which may be substituted for aluminum inaterapplications.
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Our Hawesville plant is located adjacent to itgéemt customer. This location allows Hawesvillelétiver a
portion of their production in molten form, at astsavings to both parties, providing a competiidgantage ove
other potential suppliers. We believe that Hawéswlso has a competitive advantage in that itenly is the largest
producer of high purity aluminum in North Ameri

Customer Base

In 2009, we derived approximately 70% of our comaied sales from our three major customers: Satghw
Company (“Southwire”), Glencore International A@déether with its subsidiaries, “Glencore”) and BHP
Billiton. Additional information about the reversiand percentage of sales to these major custesn@vailable in
Note 23 Business Segments of the Consolidated Eimagdtatements included herein. We currently Hame-term
primary aluminum sales or tolling contracts witltcle®af these customers. More information abouteloestracts i:
available under “Forward Physical Delivery Agreemséim Note 19 Forward Delivery Contracts of thenSolidated

Financial Statements included herein.
Financial Information about Segments and Geographigeas

We operate in one reportable segment, primary aumi Additional information about our primary alunmm
segment and certain geographic information is aféelin Note 23 Business Segments to the Consetidahancial
Statements included herein. For a descriptioredb risks attendant to our operations, see tAnf'Risk Factors.”

Energy, Key Supplies and Raw Materials

We consume the following key supplies and raw nmtein the primary aluminum reduction process:

e electricity e carbon anodes e liquid pitch
e alumina e cathode blocks e calcined petroleum coke
e aluminum fluoride e natural gas e silicon carbide

Electrical power, alumina, carbon anodes and lab®the principal components of cost of goods sdliese
components together represented over 75% of ol 20§t of goods sold. We have long-term contriactgtempt to
ensure the future availability of many of our costponents. For a description of certain risksratant to our raw
material supplies and labor, see Iltem 1A, “Risktéac”

Long-term Supply Contracts
Alumina Supply Agreements
A summary of our alumina supply agreements is pieibelow. Grundartangi does not have aluminalgupp

agreements because this facility tolls alumina jged by BHP Billiton, Norsk Hydro ASA (“Hydro”) anGlencore
into primary aluminum.

Facility Supplier Term Pricing
Mt. Holly Trafigura AG  Through December 31, 2013 Variable, LME-based
Hawesville (1) Gramercy  September 1, 2009 through Fixed Price/ Variable,
Alumina December 31, 2010 LME-based
Various Glencore January 1, 2010 through Decembe Variable, LME-based
31,2014

(1) Pricing under the new contract is fixed for thetfit25,000 metric tons (“MT”) delivered and LME-
based for the remaining 65,500 MT (subject to aertanditions for floor pricing).

-5-
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Electrical Power Supply Agreements

We use significant amounts of electricity in themainum production process. We have entered imtg-term
power supply agreements to provide power for thigiliek project. These contracts, described in Ni@do the
Consolidated Financial Statements included heegasubject to various conditions. A summary aflong-term
power supply agreements is provided bel

Facility Supplier Term Pricing
Ravenswood (1) Appalachian Power Compan Through September Based on published tariff, with
30, 2010 provisions for pricing based on
the LME price for primary
aluminum
Mt. Holly South Carolina Public Servic Through December 3. Fixed price, with fuel cost
Authority 2015 adjustment clause through

2010; subject to a new fixed
price schedule after 2010

Hawesville (2) Big Rivers Energy Corporatio Through December 3. Cost-based

(“Big Rivers”) 2023
Grundartangi Landsvirkjun Through 2019 - 202¢€ Variable rate based on the LME
Orkuveita Reykjavikur price for primary aluminum
HS Orka hf
Helguvik (3) Orkuveita Reykjavikur Through December Variable rate based on the LME
HS Orka hf 2036 price for primary aluminum

(1) In February 2009, we curtailed all operations atRavenswood facility. Appalachian Power supplies
all of Ravenswood’s power requirements. We wilsbéject to minimum demand charges associated
with this contract and these costs are includemlimcurtailment costs. Effective July 28, 200&, th
Public Service Commission of the State of West Mieyapproved an experimental rate design in
connection with an increase in the applicableftaaies. Under the experimental rate, Ravenswood
may be excused from or may defer the payment ofitrease in the tariff rate if aluminum prices as
quoted on the LME fall below pre-determined levdis.September 2009, the West Virginia Public
Service Commission (the “PSC”) extended the expemiad rate design through September 30, 2010.

(2) OnJuly 16, 2009, Century Aluminum of Kentucky r eholly owned subsidiary, (“CAKY”) along
with E.ON U.S. (“E.ON”") and Big Rivers , agreedao “unwind” of the former contractual
arrangement between Big Rivers and E.ON and eniste@ new arrangement (“Big Rivers
Agreement”). The Big Rivers Agreement provides aee power for Hawesville’s full production
capacity requirements (approximately 482 megawau#sVv”)) with pricing based on the provider’'s
cost of production. The Big Rivers Agreement ketar-pay for Hawesville’s energy requirements at
full production. Under the terms of the Big Rivérgreement, any power not required by Hawesville
will be made available for sale and we will receivedits for actual power sales up to our costtHat
power.

(3) The agreements are subject to the satisfactioertdia material conditions including, among other
things, approval by the boards of directors ofghe/er companies and environmental agency
approval. See Item 1A, “Risk Factors — If we analle to procure a reliable source of power the
Helguvik project will not be feasible.”
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Labor Agreements

Our labor costs at Ravenswood and Hawesville dsgesuto the terms of labor contracts with the EdiSteel,
Paper and Forestry, Rubber, Manufacturing, Enektiigd Industrial and Service Workers Internatiokadion
(“USWA”) which generally have provisions for anndixled increases in hourly wages and benefits aajests. The
five labor unions represented at Grundartangi adpamader a labor contract that establishes wagésvark rules for
covered employees. The employees at Mt. Hollyeanployed by Alcoa and are not unionized. A sumnodikey
labor agreements is provided below.

Facility Organization Term
Hawesville (1) USWA Through March 31, 2010
Ravenswood USWA Through August 31, 2010
Grundartangi (2) Icelandic labor unions Through December 31, 2009

(1) We are currently in discussions with the USWA relyag this labor contract, but are unable to pretiie
outcome of such negotiations at this time.

(2) We are currently in discussions with the Grundagitéetbor unions regarding this labor contracthds
been our experience that discussions past theamrtxpiration are not unusual in Iceland. The tpies
continued to operate normally during these extemaggbtiations. See Iltem 1A, “Risk Factors — Union
disputes could raise our production cost or impairproduction operations.”

Pricing

Our operating results are highly sensitive to cleang the price of primary aluminum, power andrdng materials
used in its production. As a result, we try toigate the effects of fluctuations in primary aluomm, power and raw
material prices through the use of various fixedg@rommitments and financial instruments.

Generally, we price our products at an indexedarket” price, in which the customer pays an aggsoh
premium over the LME price or other market indic

Grundartangi derives substantially all of its rewes from tolling arrangements whereby it conveumaa
provided by its customers into primary aluminumddee based on the LME price for prim;
aluminum. Grundartangi's revenues are subjectaidken price risk associated with the LME price jamary
aluminum; however, because Grundartangi tolls atanfor its customers it is not exposed to fluctuadiin the price
of alumina. Grundartangi’s tolling revenues indwpremium based on the EU import duty for primary
aluminum. In May 2007, the EU members agreed\evethe three percent duty after three years. #nther
decreases in the duty could have a negative inggaGrundartangi’s revenues.

Primary Aluminum Facilities
Grundartangi

The Grundartangi facility located in Grundartarngeland, is owned and operated by our subsidiagydiyral
Grundartangi ehf. Grundartangi is our most mo@erh lowest cost facility. Operations began in 1888 production
capacity was expanded in 2001, 2006 and 2007.fadiégy has a production capacity of 260,000 mtpy.

-7-
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Grundartangi operates under various long-term ageeés with the Government of Iceland, local murattyes,
and Faxafloahafnir sf (which operates the harb@randartangi and is jointly owned by several
municipalities). These agreements include: (apaestment agreement which establishes Grundatsatiagi status
and the Government's obligations to grant certaimits; (b) a reduction plant site agreement bycwi@rundartangi
leases the property; and (c) a harbor agreemewhih Grundartangi is granted access to the pddrahdartangi
through 2020, subject to renewal at its option.

Tolling Agreements.Grundartangi has long-term tolling agreementsafbof its production capacity with BHP
Billiton, Glencore and Hydro. The tolling countarpes provide alumina and receive primary aluminameturn for
tolling fees that are based on the LME price ofnany aluminum. See Note 19 Forward Delivery Cartgran the
Consolidated Financial Statements included heimiore information about these agreements.

Power.Grundartangi purchases power from Landsvirkjundiagr company jointly owned by the Republic of lcela
and two Icelandic municipal governments), HS Orkarid Orkuveita Reykjavikur (“OR”) under variouspterm
contracts due to expire between 2019 and 2029pdtwer delivered to Grundartangi is priced at ratesed on the LME
price for primary aluminum and is produced from toglectric and geothermal sourc

Employees Our employees at Grundartangi are representdiddiabor unions that operate under a labor @mtr
that established wages and work rules for covengal@yees for the period through December 31, 200@. are currently
in extended discussions with the unions and thet jplas continued to operate normally during sucjotiations.

Hawesville

Hawesville is owned by Century Aluminum of Kentuckyur wholly owned subsidiary . Hawesville isd¢ed
adjacent to the Ohio River near Hawesville, Kenyualkd began operations in 1970. Hawesville hasraduction
potlines with an annual rated production capadit®43!,000 metric tons

In March 2009, CAKY completed the curtailment okeguotline at its Hawesville, Kentucky aluminum steel The
action reduced primary aluminum production by agjpnately 49,000 metric tons per year and impaciga@imately
120 employees.

Hawesville's four operating potlines are speciatinfigured and operated to produce high purity prim
aluminum and have an annual capacity of approximna&5,000 metric tons, making it the largest prehof high
purity primary aluminum in North America. The aage purity level of primary aluminum produced bgdé potline:
is 99.9%, compared to standard-purity aluminum Wincapproximately 99.7%. High purity primary alaem is
sold at a premium to standard-purity aluminum. HEswille’s specially configured plant provides thgh
conductivity metal required by Hawesville’s largeastomer, Southwire, for its electrical wire ardble products as
well as for certain aerospace applications. Thle ¢urtailed potline has an annual capacity ofrappnately 49,000
metric tons of standard-purity aluminum.

Metal Sales AgreementHawesville has an aluminum sales contract withtBwire (the “Southwire Metal
Agreement”). The Southwire Metal Agreement wilpegr March 31, 2011. The price for the molten alwumn
delivered to Southwire is variable and is determibg reference to the U.S. Midwest Market Pricedélnthe contract,
Hawesville supplies 240 million pounds (approxinhatd9,000 metric tons) of high-conductivity molteluminum
annually to Southwire’s adjacent wire and cable ufiacturing facility. Under this contract, Southaviwill also
purchase 60 million pounds (approximately 27,00@rimé&ons) of standa-grade molten aluminum each year through
December 2010. In addition, we have a contrastticto Glencore all primary aluminum we producé¢he U.S., less
existing agreements and high purity sales througtember 31, 2010 (the “Glencore Sweep Agreemeiitie
Glencore Sweep Agreement provides for variablamgidetermined by reference to the U.S. Midwestikdar
Price. More information on the Southwire Metal Agment and Glencore Sweep Agreement is availalolerun
“Forward Physical Delivery Agreements” in Note 18Wward Delivery Contracts of the Consolidated Fmah
Statements included herein.
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Alumina. In 2009, Hawesville received essentially all ofatsmina supply from Gramercy Alumina LLC
(“Gramercy”) . In 2010, Hawesville will receive its alumina supply from @rarcy and Glencore.

Power. On July 16, 2009, CAKY, along with E.ON and Big Big , agreed to an “unwind” of the former contrattu
arrangement between Big Rivers and E.ON and enietedhe Big Rivers Agreement to provide long-tezost-based
power to CAKY.The term of the Big Rivers Agreement is through &eber 31, 2023 and provides adequate power for
Hawesville’s full production capacity requiremeapproximately 482 MW) with pricing based on thepder’s cost of
production. The Big Rivers Agreement is t-or-pay for Hawesville’s energy requirements ak fjubduction. Under the
terms of the agreement, any power not required &yédsville will be made available for sale and w# receive credits
for actual power sales up to our cost for that powiée current market price of electrical powethis region is less than
Big Rivers’ forecasted cost.

E.ON has agreed to mitigate a significant portibths near-term risk through December 2010. Dgitims time, to
the extent Hawesville does not use all the powedeuthe take-or-pay contract, E.ON will, with sohn@tations, assume
Hawesville's obligations. As part of this arrangem) E.ON will pay up to approximately $81 millicm CAKY in the
form of direct payments to Big Rivers under the Bigers Agreement to compensate CAKY for the failue of the
previous contract and to compensate CAKY for powaxcess of CAK"s current demand. At Hawesville's current
production rate, Hawesville would receive the etyirof these economic benefits over the term ofijreement. To tF
extent the aggregate payments made by E.ON exbeapproximately $81 million commitment, Haweswvilleuld repay
this excess to E.ON over time, but only if the LidiEmary aluminum price were to exceed certain thoéds. See Note 3
Long-term Power Contract for Hawesville in the Gaidated Financial Statements included herein.

Employees. The bargaining unit employees at Hawesville apragsented by the USWA. Century’s collective
bargaining agreement, which covers all of the regméed hourly employees at Hawesville, expires Madg
2010. We are currently in discussions with the U§\WWut are unable to predict the outcome of suaohations at
this time.

Mt. Holly

Mt. Holly, located in Mt. Holly, South Carolina, wépuilt in 1980 and is the most recently constiei@minum
reduction facility in the United States. The fagitonsists of two potlines with a total annuakhproduction
capacity of 224,000 metric tons and casting equigraseed to cast molten aluminum into standard-gnagiat,
extrusion billet and other value-added primary atumm products. Value-added primary aluminum proslace sold at
a premium to standard-grade primary aluminum. 43u7% interest represents approximately 111,000iertens of
the facility’s annual production capacity.

Our interest in Mt. Holly is held through our sutiary, Berkeley Aluminum, Inc. (“Berkeley”). Undére Mt.
Holly ownership structure, we hold an undivided748.interest in the property, plant and equipmentmasing the
aluminum reduction operations at Mt. Holly and guigalent share in the general partnership resptgr the
operation and maintenance of the facility. Alceae the remaining 50.3% interest in Mt. Holly amdemuivalent
share of the operating partnership. Under thegerhthe operating partnership, Alcoa is respoedit operating and
maintaining the facility. Each owner suppliesaten alumina for conversion to primary aluminum @hdesponsible
for its proportionate share of operational and rtesiance costs.

Metal Sales AgreementdVe have a contract to sell Glencore 20,400 metris per year of primary aluminum
produced at Mt. Holly or Hawesville at a price detamed by reference to the U.S. Midwest marketeggrsuibject to a
agreed cap and floor as applied to the U.S. Mid®Resinium (the “Glencore Metal Agreement”). Under Glencore
Sweep Agreement, any additional primary aluminuodpced in the U.S. (including Mt. Holly), less ding
agreements and high purity sales, will be soldlen€ore at variable pricing determined by refereiocthe U.S.
Midwest Market Price. More information on the Glere Metal Agreement and Glencore Sweep Agreersent i
available under “Forward Physical Delivery Agreemséim Note 19 Forward Delivery Contracts of thenSolidated
Financial Statements included herein.
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Alumina. Substantially all of our alumina requirementsNtir Holly will be provided by Trafigura AG undena
agreement that extends through 2013. The pri@ngltimina under our contract with Trafigura isighle and based
on the LME price for primary aluminum.

Power. Mt. Holly purchases all of its power requiremeintsn the South Carolina Public Service Authority
(“Santee Cooper”) under a contract that runs thnd2@15. Power delivered through 2010 will be priaedates fixed
under currently published schedules, subject tostfjents to cover Santee Cooper’s fuel costs. sRatehe period
2011 through 2015 will be as provided under thepliegble schedules. We are currently in discussisith Santee
Cooper regarding rates for these years.

Employees The employees at Mt. Holly are employed by Aleod are not unionized.
Ravenswood

The Ravenswood facility is owned and operated bysabsidiary, Century Aluminum of West Virginiacln Built
in 1957, Ravenswood has four potlines with a prtidnccapacity of 170,000 metric tons. The facilgyocated
adjacent to the Ohio River near Ravenswood, WesfiMa.

In February 2009, we conducted an orderly curtailnoé the plant operations at Ravenswood. Laykifshe
majority of Ravenswood's employees were compleyelddbruary 20, 2009. We expect that Ravenswoqaisations
will remain curtailed until economic conditions weant restarting. Such conditions would includesaabling power
and labor contracts and a sustainable and suipaldgd LME environment

Metal Sales Agreementrior to the Ravenswood curtailment in February20@@ sold 10,200 metric tons per
year of primary aluminum produced at Ravenswooctutite Glencore Metal Agreement. Following the é&eswood
curtailment, we assigned Ravenswood productionirespents under this contract to Mt. Holly and
Hawesville. However, curtailing operations at Reswood does not relieve us of our contractual alibgs. We may
continue to incur costs under these contracts &t m& contractual obligations, including poteryialecuring other
aluminum to satisfy our obligations to Glencora.May 2009, we agreed with Alcan to terminate athaining
obligations under an agreement pursuant to whicaihad previously agreed to purchase 14 milliamgs of
primary aluminum per month through August 31, 2866 paid Alcan $0.6 million to settle the remaindaivery
obligations. For a description of certain riskeatlant to these agreements, see Item 1A, “RistoFat

Alumina. On April 21, 2009, we agreed with Glencore to ameva alumina purchase agreements dated April 14,
2008 and April 26, 2006, respectively (collectivdlye “Amendments”). The Amendments reduce theuarnof alumina
Glencore will supply to Century from 330,000 metoas to 110,368 metric tons in 2009 and from 200 fetric tons to
229,632 metric tons in 2010, for an overall alunsogply reduction of 280,000 metric tons.

Glencore supplied the alumina used at Ravenswoddruam contract that expired on December 31, 2088.a resu
of the Ravenswood curtailment, we incurred cashde®f approximately $7.5 million in 2009 assodatéth the sale ¢
excess alumina that was received under this alusipply agreementFor a description of material risks attendar
these agreements, see Item 1A, “Risk Factors.”

Power. Appalachian Power Company (“APC0o”) supplies &lRavenswood’s power requirements under an
agreement at prices set forth in published tanftsich are subject to change. Under the spedialaantract, Ravenswo:
may be excused from or may defer the payment oihitrease in the tariff rate if aluminum pricesgasted on the LME
fall below pre-determined levels. In March 2082,Co filed a request for a rate increase to recanescovered fuel
costs and to cover the increased cost of fuel anchpsed power as well as capital improvementsSelstember 2009, tt
PSC agreed to extend the special rate contracktefithe existing agreement for one year and ateibapproximately
$16 million of the unrecovered fuel costs to Ravesd. This amount will be factored into the spease provision
which excuses or defers payments above set tatégrdepending on aluminum prices. We are revigoptions to
further extend the term of the existing agreemieatt ¢stablishes the LME-based cap on the tarikrat
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Employees. The bargaining unit employees at Ravenswoodegesented by the USWA. In 2009, w e reached an
agreement with the USWA to extend the labor contm&avenswood to August 31, 2010.

Helguvik project

The Helguvik project site is located approximatglymiles from the city of Reykjavik and is ownedlamould be
operated through our Nordural Helguvik ehf subsididhis site provides a flat location and existimgbor, as well as
proximity to the international airport, the capigald other industry

We are currently evaluating the Helguvik projectst, scope and schedule in light of the curreahemic climate
and commaodity prices. During this evaluation pss;eve have significantly reduced spending on tbgept. See Item
1A, “Risk Factors — Construction at our Helguvikedtar site is under review” and Item 7, “Manager&m@tiscussion an
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems — Cost Reduction Actions” for additionalarrhation.

We have made and continue making capital expemditior the construction and development of our Helguvik
smelter project. In 2009, we expended cash ofcxpmiately $22 million in capital expenditures fbetHelguvik project,
and, from inception through December 31, 2009, aptalized approximately $108 million for HelguvikiVe expect the
capital expenditures on this project during 2010 g in the range of $40 to $45 million until actk@on is made to reste
major construction and engineering activities.

Power Supply AgreementdNordural Helguvik has signed electrical powergymgreements with HS Orka and OR,
for the proposed Helguvik smelter. We are culydimalizing the timing and delivery arrangemenmti$h the power
suppliers based on the residual scope of the griojecfour 90,000 MT phases. The agreements, vaiie subject to the
satisfaction of certain material conditions, pra&vidr additional power, as available, to supparb@plete smelter of
360,000 mtpy. See Item 1A, “Risk Factors — If we anable to procure a reliable source of powerHhblguvik project
will not be feasible”

Helguvik Investment Agreemenfn Enabling Act for an Investment Agreement witk tRovernment of Iceland for
Helguvik, which governs certain meaningful aspeétthe construction of a primary aluminum facilityHelguvik,
Iceland such as the fiscal regime, was approvégpni 2009 by the Icelandic Parliament. In July020the Investment
Agreement was approved by the European SurveillAntigority and in August 2009 the agreement wasetesl by
Nordural Helguvik ehf and the Icelandic Ministerloflustry. Among other things, the Investment Aggnent includes
commitment by the Government of Iceland to assshwbtaining necessary regulatory approvals éongetion of the
Helguvik project.

Environmental Impact Assessmerih October 2007, Nordural received a positivenigm from the Icelandic Plannir
Agency on the Environmental Impact Assessment (“[Efér the proposed Helguvik smelter. In Januadyt @,
the Ministry for the Environment confirmed the apim of the National Planning Agency that a joinAEbr south west
(“SW”) power transmission lines and related prggastnot necessary.

Transmission Agreementn October 2007, Nordural Helguvik signed a trarssioin agreement, which was
subsequently amended in February and July 200B,haimdsnet hf (“Landsnet”) to provide an electrigalver
transmission system to the Helguvik project. Laredss the company responsible for operating andagiag Iceland’s
transmission system. As a result of delays in tanson of the Helguvik project, the parties aterently in discussions
with respect to the timeline for construction of thansmission system.

Operating License.On September 10, 2008, the Environmental Agendgeddnd issued an Operating License fol
Helguvik smelter project. The license authorizexdpction of up 250,000 mtpy through December 8242

Other agreements.We have also entered into a site and harbor agreewith respect to the Helguvik project.
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Joint Venture Facilities
Baise Haohai Carbon Company, Ltd.

In 2008, we entered into a joint venture agreemdrgreby we acquired a 40% stake in Baise HaohdidbaCo., Ltd.
a carbon anode and cathode facility located irGhangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region of south Chinae BHH facility
has annual anode production capacity of 180,00@icrtens and an annual cathode baking and graplidiz capacity of
20,000 metric tons. Construction on the facilitgsicompleted in 2008.

We paid $27.6 million for the investment and loaBétH an additional $9.4 million. Through DecemBé09, BHH
has repaid $3.6 million on the loan. Our investhierhe joint venture is accounted for using theigy method of
accounting with results of operations reported ame-quarter lag.

Anode agreementBHH provides anodes to Grundartangi under a longr-greement through 2012, renewable
through December 31, 2015.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to various environmental laws agdlegions. We have spent, and expect to spenaifisant
amounts for compliance with those laws and regaiati In addition, some of our past manufacturictgyaies have
resulted in environmental consequences which regaimedial measures. Under certain environmestad,lwhich
may impose liability regardless of fault, we mayliaéle for the costs of remediation of contamidgbeoperty,
including our current and formerly owned or opedgteoperties or adjacent areas, or for the ameimraf damage to
natural resources. We believe, based on currendljadle information, that our current environmetitebilities are
not likely to have a material adverse effect ontGgn However, we cannot predict the requirementsiture
environmental laws and future requirements at otiwe formerly owned or operated properties or el
areas. Such future requirements may result intisipated costs or liabilities which may have a eniatl adverse
effect on our financial condition, results of operas or liquidity. More information concerning roenvironmental
contingencies can be found in Item 3, "Legal Prdoegs" and in Note 18 Commitments and Contingentti¢ke
Consolidated Financial Statements included herein.

Intellectual Property

We own or have rights to use a number of patenpatant applications relating to various aspectsuof
operations. We do not consider our business todtenmally dependent on any of these patents onpafglications.

Employees

As of December 31, 2009, we employed a work fofcgpproximately 1,260 employees.
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Item 1A . Risk Factors

The following describes certain of the risks andartainties we face that could cause our futurelteso differ
materially from our current results and from thasécipated in our forwartboking statements. These risk factors shi
be considered together with the other risks an@uainties described in Item 7, “Management’s Déston and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsd @lsewhere herein.

This list of significant risk factors is not all-iolusive or necessarily in order of importance.

We face substantial risks relating to our operat@irestructuring and our failure to successfully ipiement such
plan could have a material adverse effect on oursiness, financial condition, results of operatioasid liquidity.

Our operational restructuring plan entails previand possible additional capacity curtailment atfaailities, the
renegotiation of long-term commercial contracts, aduction of other operating costs, the reduatiorapital
expenditures, the possible financing of our Helgdacility and potential asset sales, among othieigs. See Iltem 7
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€@ahdition and Results of Operations.” We face sswisks related
to the implementation of the operational restruntyrincluding our ability to successfully complétese actions as
planned and to continue to successfully operatdosiness following such restructuring. In additiore may be expose
to liabilities as a result of our operational rasturing. For additional risks relating to the mpi@nal restructuring, see
“—Construction at our Helguvik smelter site is undeview. Substantial delay in the completionto$ fproject may
increase its cost and impose other risks to comopléhat are not foreseeable today,” A-majority of our aluminum sale
at Hawesville are subject to contracts which liout ability to curtail capacity and create depergeon a major
customer,” “—We would be required to incur substmdosts in order to curtail unprofitable alumingpmoduction,” “—
Changes or disruptions to our current alumina d@hdraaw material supply arrangements could inereas raw material
costs,” “—Certain of our contracts for raw mategjahcluding certain contracts for alumina and ieity, require us to
take-or-pay for fixed quantities of such materialgen if we curtail unprofitable production capgtand “—Union
disputes could raise our production costs or impairproduction operations.As a result of the above, we cannot pro
assurance that we will be successful in implemeritie operational restructuring as planned or vecttie benefits we a
seeking from its implementation.

In connection with our operational restructurindnether as a consequence of its actual implementatithe
difficulty in realizing the intended benefits oktloperational restructuring, we may have to seekr@tcy protection for
some or all of our U.S. subsidiaries and/or majobeed to divest some or all of our U.S. subsidigriIf we were to seek
bankruptcy protection for these subsidiaries, welddace additional risks. Such action could caum®cern among our
customers and suppliers generally, distract ouragament and our other employees and subject usrieased risks of
lawsuits. Other negative consequences could iechegjative publicity, which could have a materegative impact on
the trading price of our securities and negatiadfgct our ability to raise capital in the future.

The failure to successfully implement the operatlarstructuring or to achieve its intended bereftuld have a
material adverse effect on our business, finarmaadition, results of operations and liquidity. e&uvf we successfully
complete the operational restructuring, factorsonelyour control, such as LME prices, global sugig demand for
aluminum and our competitive position, among otheosild have a material adverse effect on our lessinfinancial
condition, results of operations and liquidity.

A continuation or worsening of global financial anéconomic conditions could adversely impact ourdncial
position and results of operation

Following the global financial and credit markesmiptions in 2008 and 2009, we have experienceduwéction in the
availability of liquidity and credit generally. €lgeneral slowdown in economic activity causednieydomestic recession
and difficult international financial and econornsenditions continues to adversely affect our bussnénancial conditiol
results of operations and liquidity as the demamgfimary aluminum has been reduced and the pficair products has
fallen. A continuation or worsening of the curréinancial and economic conditions could adverséfgch our customers’
ability to meet the terms of sale and could haweaterial adverse impact on our business, finamaiatition, results of
operations and liquidity.
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Our ability to access the credit and capital marketn acceptable terms to obtain funding for our spgons and
capital projects may be limited due to our creditings, our financial condition or the deterioratioof these markets.

Our revolving credit facility will mature in Septérar 2010. In addition, our availability under eavolving credit
facility has been negatively impacted by the clrtant of production capacity at Ravenswood andptiréial curtailment
of production capacity at Hawesville, which haveéueed the amount of our domestic accounts recesvaaind
inventory. Further curtailments of production aapawould incrementally reduce domestic accouateivable and
inventory, further reducing availability under aewrolving credit facility. See Item 7 “Managemenbiscussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gqtems.” In addition, the lenders under our reuajvcredit facility
have the ability to modify the reserve criterighe facility, which could further reduce our boriag base. As a result,
liquidity available to us under the revolving citefdicility could be reduced. In addition, the haklef the approximately
$47 million aggregate principal amount of our 1.7866fvertible senior notes due 2024 (the “1.75% Bljtdhat remain
outstanding have an option to require us to re@sgelall or any portion of these securities at paugust 2011 and to
require us to settle in cash at market prices updaggregate principal amount of the 1.75% Nopes conversion,
which may occur at any time. Each of these ewsntdd increase our liquidity needs. See Item 7 filsigement’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Reses.”

Provisions in our charter documents and state lavayrmake it difficult for others to obtain controlfdCentury
Aluminum, even though some stockholders may consithem to be beneficial

Certain provisions of our restated certificaterwfarporation, amended and restated bylaws and auB&nefit
Preservation Plan, as well as provisions of the®ate General Corporation Law, may have the effedelaying,
deferring or preventing a change in control of @Qentincluding transactions in which our stockhatdmight otherwise
have received a substantial premium for their shaver then current market prices. For exampleetipeovisions:

« give authority to our board of directors to issueferred stock and to determine the price, rigptsference:
privileges and restrictions of those shares wittamyt stockholder vote

« provide for a board of directors consisting of thodasses, each of which serves for a differeee-year term:

« require stockholders to give advance notice prmrstibmitting proposals for consideration at stoddd
meetings or to nominate persons for election ascthrs; anc

« restrict certain business combinations betweennas any person who beneficially owns 10% or moreooi
outstanding voting stocl

Our Tax Benefit Preservation Plan would also caudsstantial dilution to any person or group wheratits to acquil
a significant interest in us without advance appldrom our board of directors.

While these provisions have the effect of encoungg@iersons seeking to acquire control of our compamegotiate
with our board of directors, they could enableltbard of directors to hinder or frustrate a tratisadhat some, or a
majority, of the stockholders might believe to beheir best interests and, in that case, may ptemediscourage attem
to remove and replace incumbent directors.

Our relationship with Glencore may also deter @baler. As of December 31, 2009, we believe thahGlee
beneficially owned, through its common stock, apprately 39.1% of our issued and outstanding comstook and,
through its ownership of common and preferred staokoverall 44.1% economic ownership of Centu8ge Note 9
Shareholders’ Equity in the Consolidated FinanStatements included herein.
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Declines in aluminum prices have adversely affectad financial position and results of operationand further
declines or an increase in our operating costs abuésult in further curtailment of operations at anor more of our
facilities if alternate sources of liquidity are navailable.

The price of primary aluminum is frequently volatdnd fluctuates in response to general economidittons,
expectations for supply and demand growth or cotitia and the level of global inventories. Thesiin financial and
credit markets has led to a pronounced downtugiabhal economic activity, which is expected to bed in
duration. The global market for commodities haederated in line with the decline in the globabaomy. Declining
demand for aluminum products in developed and dgwved) nations, increasing stocks on the LME andraegal lack of
confidence in future economic conditions combinethte 2008 and 2009 to produce an unprecedentditeé the LME
price for aluminum. The LME price for primary alumam fell 62% from its high on July 11, 2008 ($322%8r metric
ton), to a low of $1,254 per metric ton on Febru24y 2009, before rising to $2,216 per metric tarMarch 12,

2010. This represents one of the most substartilapid declines in the history of recorded LMIEgs. The decline in
aluminum prices in 2008 and 2009 adversely impagatedperations, particularly in our U.S. facilgjesince our
operating costs did not fall to the degree thatahum prices dropped.

Any decline in aluminum prices adversely affects lousiness, financial position, results of operatiand
liquidity. Sustained depressed prices for aluminuoolld have a material adverse impact on our bssirfemancial
condition, results of operations and liquidity.th& price we realize for our products falls belmuv cost of production, w
will have to rely on other sources of liquidityeiatify additional cash reductions or further curtgierations to fund our
operations. Potential other sources of liquidituldanclude additional issuances of equity, eqliitked securities, debt
issuances, prepaid aluminum sales, asset salesabesdof minority interests in our operations. Aunyire equity or
equity-linked security issuance may be dilutive@tw existing stockholders, and any future debtiirence would increase
our leverage and interest expense and would lig@htain restrictive covenants. We cannot provgRieance that any of
these financing alternatives will be availableibayvailable, that they would be successfully coetedl. There can be no
assurances that we will be able to secure the nedjaiternative sources of liquidity to fund ouecgtions or to take
actions necessary to curtail additional operatidribese steps are required.

We could require substantial resources to fund azapital expenditures

If we are unable to generate funds from our opamatio pay our operating expenses and fund outat@xpenditures
and other obligations, our ability to continue teehthese cash requirements in the future coufzerténg upon the futu
price of aluminum (over which we have no contraiyl @ur future capital programs, require substahtaldity and
access to sources of funds, including from capital credit markets. Changes in global economiditons, including
material cost increases and decreases in econatiiityg and the success of plans to manage cwstsntory and other
important elements of our business, may signifiganmpact our ability to generate funds from opemas. If, among
other factors, (1) primary aluminum prices wereléaline, (2) our costs are higher than contemp|g&dve suffer
unexpected production outages, or (4) Icelandislaange and either increase our tax obligatioismdrour access to
cash flow from our Icelandic operations, we wouded to identify additional sources of liquidity.uiing 2008 and 2009,
credit market conditions made and could continumade, it difficult to obtain new funding from tloeedit and capital
markets for our operating and capital needs. Aifocredit availability has improved, the costaiting money in the
debt and equity capital markets has increasedfgigntly, while the availability of funds from thesnarkets has
diminished. Also, as a result of concern aboutstaeility of financial markets generally and tlodvency of
counterparties specifically, the cost of obtainimgding from the credit markets has increased 8aamtly as many
lenders and institutional investors have increasttest rates, enacted tighter lending standardseduced and, in some
cases, ceased to provide funding to borrowersadthtion, our credit ratings were downgraded in@@hd further
negative actions the credit agencies may take awegatively affect our ability to access the cradid capital markets in
the future and could lead to worsened trade teimaggasing our liquidity needs. An inability tocaess capital and credit
markets could have a material adverse effect orbosiness, financial condition, results of operagiand liquidity.
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In light of the global economic climate, we contnto review our future capital plans and have redudeferred or
halted most normritical capital expenditures at our existing smedtand have reduced capital expenditures at dguki&
project. Se¢Construction at our Helguvik smelter site is und&riew.” If funding is not available when neededjs
available only on unacceptable terms, we may bélarta respond to competitive pressures or fundaijmas, capital
expenditure or other obligations, any of which coldve a material adverse effect on our busingegsdial condition,
results of operations and liquidity.

Our business and growth prospects may be negatiiralyacted by reductions in our capital expenditurasd other
responses to unfavorable economic conditions.

In response to the global economic downturn aratedldisruptions in the financial markets, in réd¢egnes we have
curtailed significant production capacity and geegduced capital expenditures, including develeptrof our Helguvik
smelter. If demand for aluminum improves, ourigpbtb take advantage of improved market conditiores/ be
constrained by these earlier curtailments, capitpkenditure restrictions and other similar acti@am] the long-term value
of our business could be adversely impacted. ©sitipn in relation to our competitors may alsoedierate. We may
also be required to address commercial and pdligsaes in relation to our reductions in capitgdenditures or
operational curtailment in certain of the juristhas in which we operate. Any of the foregoing Idduave a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiegults of operations and liquidity.

Future declines in the financial markets and/or owurtailment actions could have significant and aehse effects
on our pension funding obligations.

We maintain two qualified defined benefit plansg @ontribute to a third, on behalf of our employe@s a result of
poor investment returns due to the global financisis, the benefit plans we maintain were undetéd as of Decemb
31, 2009. If capital markets experience furthgnigicant losses, pension fund balances would remeduced and
additional cash contributions to the pension furmldd be required. Additionally, as a result of ourtailment actions,
we may be required to make additional significamitabutions to the pension funds earlier thancipaited.

International operations expose us to political,gelatory, currency and other related risks.

We receive a significant portion of our revenuesfrour international operations. Internationalragiens expose us
to risks, including unexpected changes in foreayasl and regulations, political and economic insitgbchallenges in
managing foreign operations, increased cost totamapsystems and practices to those used in fo@gntries, export
duties, tariffs and other trade barriers, and theléns of complying with a wide variety of foreilgnvs. For example,
recent changes in Icelandic tax law and agreemvatiighe Icelandic Ministers of Finance and Indystill significantly
increase our Icelandic tax liabilities in 2010 tigh 2012. Changes in foreign laws and regulatawasyenerally beyond
our ability to control, influence or predict andther adverse changes in these laws in the futwkldhave a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiesults of operations and liquidity.

In addition, we may be exposed to fluctuationsurrency exchange rates and, as a result, an irciedise value of
foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar cbicrease our operating expenses which are dematediand payable in
those currencies. As we continue to explore otppodunities outside the U.S., including the Helgueacility, our
currency risk with respect to the ISK and otheefgn currencies will significantly increase.
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If economic and political conditions in Iceland caimue to deteriorate, our financial position and selts of
operations could be adversely impacted.

Iceland is important to our business. Recent tilrimdceland’s financial and political systems t@eated concern
for the stability of Iceland’s financial marketsdtamade cash management activities in Iceland muakenging. For
example, the Icelandic government and the CentakB®f Iceland are restricting the free transfefuofds outside of
Iceland and, specifically, foreign currency witlsind outside of Iceland. By letter dated January2PB89, we were
notified that our Icelandic operations are exemptfthese foreign currency rules. However, we caoaotrol further
actions by the Central Bank of Iceland, which migdstrict our ability to transfer funds through thelandic banking
system and outside of Iceland. While we currentiyntain essentially all of our Icelandic operatfogds in accounts
outside of Iceland, and are receiving substantallpf our customer payments in such accountsragm of our funds
remain in the Icelandic banks to meet local workiagital requirements. In addition, as payablesimecdue in Iceland,
we must transfer funds through the Icelandic bamkystem. If economic and financial conditionsdeland deteriorate,
or if counterparties and lenders become unwillmgrigage in normal banking relations with and witlseland, our
ability to pay vendors, process payroll and receagments could be adversely impacted. In additlmacollapse of the
Icelandic banking system, combined with other fegsthas resulted in a significant deterioratiothim general economic
conditions in the country. While our businessdeldnd is currently operating without significarftidulties, further
impacts, if any, of these developments are unceanad cannot be estimated at this time.

Construction at our Helguvik smelter site is undegview. Substantial delay in the completion of thgsoject may
increase its cost and impose other risks to complethat are not foreseeable today.

Nordural Helguvik ehf is currently evaluating thelguvik project’s cost, scope and schedule in lfithe global
economic crisis and current commodity prices. Duyitims evaluation process, Nordural Helguvik ehd hedesigned the
scope of this project into four 90,000 MT phases significantly reduced spending on the projecttddoal Helguvik ehf
cannot be certain when or if it will restart maganstruction and engineering activities or ultinhatomplete the
Helguvik project or, if completed, that the Helgkigmelter would operate in a profitable manner.Wilenot realize any
return on our significant investment in the Helduproject until we are able to commence Helguvikmions in a
profitable manner. If we fail to achieve operatione may have to recognize a loss on our investmdnth would have
an adverse impact on our future earnings.

If Nordural Helguvik ehf decides to proceed witle tHelguvik project, this project is subject to wais contractual
approvals and conditions. Many of the contractmedngements related to the Helguvik project hawe periods for
performance. The delay in restoring major consimacand completing the Helguvik project has caudeddural
Helguvik ehf to renegotiate and extend, or undertakrenegotiate and extend, existing contractoiansitments,
including with respect to power, transmission, texthgy and raw materials. There can be no assertduat the
contractual approvals and conditions, includinggegitons, necessary to proceed with constructiagheoHelguvik smelte
will be obtained or satisfied on a timely basisball. In addition, such approvals or extensiassre received may be
subject to conditions that are unfavorable or nthkeproject impracticable or less attractive frofimancial standpoint.
Even if we receive the necessary approvals anchgixites on terms that we determine are acceptdgesanstruction of
this project is a complex undertaking. There candassurance that we will be able to completetbgect within our
projected budget and schedule. To successfullgut&ehis project, we will also need to arrangeitatthl financing anc
either enter into tolling arrangements or secwsaply of alumina. In addition, unforeseen techhdfficulties could
increase the cost of the project, delay the praecénder the project not feasible. Any delayhi@ tompletion of the
project or increased costs could have a matenadrad effect on our business, financial conditresults of operatior
and liquidity.

We intend to finance our future capital expendgurem future capital raising, available cash aashcflow from
operations. We may be unable to raise additiomital, or do so on attractive terms, due to a remolb factors including
a lack of demand, poor economic conditions, unfablar interest rates or our financial condition i@dat rating at the
time. If additional capital resources are unaldé, we may further curtail construction and depeient activities.
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If we are unable to procure a reliable source ofyer, the Helguvik project will not be feasible.

The Helguvik project will require generation andnsmission of a substantial amount of electri@tpawer the
smelter. Our indirect, wholly owned Iceland subsiglj Nordural Helguvik ehf, has entered into agreets with two
providers of geothermal power in Iceland for a sasal portion of this power. These two power agnents are subje
to certain conditions for each stage of deliverpofver. These conditions include approvals bybiterds of directors of
the power companies, as well as environmental ggapgrovals for the power producing assets. Gilieruncertainty
surrounding power generation, there may be a deléye completion of the necessary power infrastmgcto serve the
Helguvik project. In addition, generation of theatical power contracted for the Helguvik smeltdf require successft
development of new geothermal energy sources witbgignated areas in Iceland. If there are construdelays or
technical difficulties in developing these new destnal fields, power may be delayed or may notvadable.
Development of the generation and transmissiomstifucture is expensive and requires significasdueces from the
power and transmission providers. Factors whialiccdelay or impede the generation and deliverglettric power ar:
substantially beyond our ability to control, infhee or predict, including the power providers’ apito finance the
development of new geothermal energy sourcesdditian, we and the power providers have agreexktend the time
periods for satisfying certain of the conditiongtieg to the power commitment due to delays instarction of the
Helguvik project and the power plants resultingrrthe financial crisis in 2008 and 2009. There lsamo assurance that
we and the power providers will continue to extémeltime periods for satisfaction of these condgiolf we are unable
to continue to agree with the power providers teed the time periods for satisfaction of thesed@wns to coincide
with the resumption of major construction acti\stier operation of the smelter, we may have to cdrtorpurchase powe
prior to our preferred time period, risk losing f@ver commitments or become subject to other esten risks relatir
thereto.

In October 2007, Nordural Helguvik ehf signed asraission agreement with Landsnet to provide actradal power
transmission system to the Helguvik smelter. If dNwal Helguvik ehf is unable to proceed with theject, it may have t
reimburse Landsnet for certain significant expamés under the transmission agreement.

Any reduction in the duty on primary aluminum imp&s into the European Union decreases our revenues a
Grundartangi.

Certain of Grundartangi’tolling agreements include a premium based oieth@nport duty for primary aluminum.
May 2007, the EU members reduced the import dutpfisnary aluminum to three percent and agreeévwew the new
duty after three years. This decrease in the Elitrguty for primary aluminum has adversely impdater revenues
from Grundartangi, and further decreases would lada@ an adverse impact on our revenues.

A majority of our aluminum sales at Hawesville agibject to contracts which limit our ability to ctail capacity
and create dependence on a major customer.

Our primary aluminum supply agreement with Soutbwwill expire in March 2011. Approximately 26% airo
consolidated net sales for 2009 were derived fral@ssto Southwire. We may be unable to exteneémlace our contract
with Southwire when it terminates. Due to Southisigroximity to Hawesville, we are able to deliveolten aluminum ti
Southwire, thereby eliminating our casting and c&aly our sales and marketing costs. Our contrébt 8outhwire
obligates us to deliver quantities of molten alumnm which limits our ability to cut costs by cutiag operations.
Curtailing operations at this facility would notiexe us of our contractual obligations.

If we are unable to renew this contract on sattsfgaderms when it expires or if Southwire sigrafintly reduces its
purchases under this contract, we would incur highsting and shipping costs and potentially higlades and marketir
costs.
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We could be required to incur substantial costsarder to curtail unprofitable aluminum production.

Curtailing unprofitable production to reduce oueggting costs requires us to incur substantial esg@eboth at the
time of the curtailment and on an ongoing basig. f@cilities are subject to contractual and otlveed costs that continue
even if we curtail operations at these facilitiesese costs reduce the cost saving advantagestailiog unprofitable
aluminum production. In addition, the prospecthade costs and our joint ownership of certain ofoperations limit our
flexibility to curtail all of our unprofitable pragttion.

Losses caused by disruptions in the supply of poweuld adversely affect our operations.

We use large amounts of electricity to produce arimaluminum. Any loss of power which reduces timparage to
our equipment or causes an equipment shutdown wesldt in a reduction in the volume of molten aioum produced,
and sudden losses of power may result in the hargem “freezing” of molten aluminum in the pots & it is produced.
Interruptions in the supply of electrical powermiar facilities can be caused by a number of cir¢dantes, including
unusually high demand, blackouts, equipment osfamer failure, human error, natural disasterstber catastrophic
events. If such a condition were to occur, we neag Iproduction for a prolonged period of time aralr significant
losses. We operate our plants at close to peakragpgpe Accordingly, even partial failures of trasrsfiers, such as our
recent issues at Grundartangi, will affect our pidtbn. For example, we expect the repair at Gauadhgi will result in
loss of production of approximately 2,600 MT. Waintain property and business interruption insueaieamitigate
losses resulting from catastrophic events, butegaired to pay significant amounts under the deldiecprovisions of
those insurance policies. In addition, the coveragter those policies may not be sufficient to calklosses, or may not
cover certain events. Certain of our insurancecpsdido not cover any losses that may be incufregrisuppliers are
unable to provide power during periods of unusuliggh demand. Certain losses or prolonged inteiwoptin our
operations may trigger a default under our revgjwredit facility.

Changes or disruptions to our current alumina, otheaw material supply and electricity arrangementsuld
increase our production costs even if we curtailpnofitable production capacity.

We depend on a limited number of suppliers for aham Disruptions to our supply of alumina couldwicfor a
variety of reasons, including disruptions of praitut at a particular supplier’s alumina refinefihese disruptions may
require us to purchase alumina on the spot marké&ss favorable terms than under our current aggaes. Because we
sell our products based on the LME price for pryrgluminum, we will not be able to pass on thesedased costs to our
customers. Our business also depends upon theateéexppply of other raw materials, including alowam fluoride,
calcined petroleum coke, pitch, finished carbondascand cathodes, at competitive prices. Althdbghe remain
multiple sources for these raw materials worldwimbmnsolidation among suppliers has globally redubechumber of
available suppliers in this industry. A disruptionour raw materials supply from our existing sligns due to a labor
dispute, shortage of their raw materials, curtailtred operations or other unforeseen factors mégcabur operating
results if we are unable to secure alternate seppli these materials at comparable prices.

In addition, we have obligations under certain cacts to take-or-pay for specified quantities oinaiha and
electricity over the term of those contracts, rdtgss of our operating requirements. Thereforefioancial position and
results of operations may be affected by the maykee for electric power, even if we curtail unfitable production
capacity because we will continue to incur costdeurthese contracts to meet or settle our conthohligations. If we
are unable to use such raw materials in our omerar sell them at prices consistent with or gneitan our contract
costs, we could incur significant losses underalamtracts. In addition, these commitments mgag kit our ability to
take advantage of favorable changes in the marieggfor primary aluminum or raw materials and rhaye a material
adverse effect our financial position, results pé@tions and liquidity.
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Electricity represents our single largest operatiost. As a result, the availability of electricayyeconomic prices is
critical to the profitability of our operations.oRions of the contracted cost of the electriciipglied to Mt. Holly and all
of Hawesuville’s electricity costs vary with the @lipr's costs. An increase in these costs wouldease the price these
facilities pay for electricity. Costs under the Miplly electricity contract have substantially ieesed in recent years with
rising fuel prices. As these contracts have takpayrtype provisions, the financial position, réswalf operations and cash
flows of Hawesville and Mt. Holly may be affected the price for electric power even if we curtailpnofitable
production capacity. Significant increases in &ieity costs at any of our operations may haveatemal adverse effe
our business, financial condition, results of opers and liquidity.

We may be required to write down the book valueeiftain assets.

We are required to perform various analyses relatéde carrying value of various tangible andmgiale assets
annually or whenever events or circumstances itgliteat their net carrying amount may not be retaive. Given the
recent lack of profitability of certain of our praction facilities and recent global economic coiodis, which in part drive
assumptions for the future in such analyses, wéldwave significant adjustments in the carryinguedior certain assets.
For example, in our results for the quarter endeddinber 31, 2009, we determined that an impairetearge to reduce
the carrying value of a portion of our long-livessats was not currently required under Financialbfating Standards
Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codificatio®ASC”) 360-10-35 (formerly Statement of Financialcdanting
Standards No. (“SFAS”) 144, “Accounting for the lamment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”). In tiueure, we will
continue to evaluate our tangible and intangibgetssfor impairments and valuation allowance, wicichld be
significant. Any such adjustments would be infibren of a non-cash charge which would reduce oumiegs and reduce
our balance of retained earnings.

The cyclical nature of the aluminum industry causeariability in our earnings and cash flows.

Our operating results depend on the market for gmyraluminum, which is a highly cyclical commodityth prices
that are affected by global demand and supply fa@nd other conditions. Historically, aluminumces have been
volatile, and we expect such volatility to contin@airing 2008 and 2009, we experienced unfavorglaleal economic
conditions and a decline in worldwide demand famgary aluminum. Declines in primary aluminum peaeduce our
earnings and cash flows. A further downturn in ahumm prices may significantly reduce the amountah available to
meet our obligations and fund our long-term busretsategies.

Union disputes could raise our production costsiorpair our production operations.

The bargaining unit employees at Hawesville andeRawood are represented by the USWA. Century’s U3&dAr
contracts at Hawesville and Ravenswood expire inch2010 and August 2010, respectively. Our barggianit
employees at Grundartangi are represented by filana under a collective bargaining agreementdRpired on
December 31, 2009. If we fail to maintain satisbagtrelations with any labor union representing emnployees, our labi
contracts may not prevent a strike or work stopgmny of these facilities in the future. Any tened or actual work
stoppage in the future or inability to renegotiabe collective bargaining agreements could preweesignificantly impair
our ability to conduct production operations at oaionized facilities, which could have a mateadVerse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations and idjty.
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Climate change, climate change legislation or regtibns and greenhouse effects may adversely impact
operations.

Climate change and greenhouse gas emissions asalifeet of significant attention in the countriesvhich we
operate and a number of governments or governmieotéés in these countries have introduced or @néemplating
legislative and regulatory change in responseéa@titential impacts of climate change. For exangdea member of the
European Economic Area and a signatory to the Kipotdocol, Iceland has implemented legislationtisl@ by the Kyot
Protocol and prepare to abide by Directive 200E&76f the European Parliament which establishesap and trade”
scheme for greenhouse gas emission allowance gra@iacause Iceland was granted emissions allowganuger the
Kyoto Protocol through 2012, Iceland has not ygilemented Directive 2003/87/EC, but it is anticgzhthat Iceland will
begin complying with the Directive in 2013. In azh, we are aware of potential U.S. legislatibattif enacted, among
other things, would implement a “cap and trade'tesysof allowances and credits in the United States.

Implementation of these potential regulatory changeothers is uncertain and may be either volyrdgategislated
and may impact our operations directly or indingtirough customers or our supply chain. As alteduhe foregoing,
we may incur increased capital expenditures reguftom required compliance with such regulatorgrayes, increased
energy costs, costs to purchase or profits fromssail, allowances or credits under a “cap and tregltem, increased
insurance premiums and deductibles, a change ipetitiwe position relative to industry peers andrges to profit or
loss arising from increased or decreased demargbfmts produced by us and indirectly, from chamgessts of goods
sold. In addition, the potential physical impaatslimate change on our operations are highly ttageand will be
particular to the geographic circumstances. Thesgintlude changes in rainfall patterns, shortajegater or othe
natural resources, changing sea levels, changing giatterns and intensities, and changing temyperétvels. Any
adverse regulatory and physical changes may haveterial adverse effect on our business, finammaabition, results of
operations and liquidity.

We are subject to a variety of environmental lawsdaegulations that could result in costs or lialiies.

We are obligated to comply with various federajetand other environmental laws and regulatiowtdding the
environmental laws and regulations of the Uniteate&¥, Iceland and the EU. Environmental laws agdlagions may
expose us to costs or liabilities relating to o@nenfacturing operations or property ownership. Weir operating costs
and capital expenditures on an ongoing basis tggowith applicable environmental laws and reguas. In addition,
we are currently and may in the future be respdaé$dy the cleanup of contamination at some of@urent and former
facilities or for the amelioration of damage tourat resources. If more stringent complianceleamrup standards under
environmental laws or regulations are imposed,iptesly unknown environmental conditions or damagesatural
resources are discovered or alleged, or if cortioha from other responsible parties with respedites for which we
have cleanup responsibilities are not availablemag be subject to additional liability, which miagve a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiesults of operations and liquidity. Further, iiddal environmental
matters for which we may be liable may arise infthare at our present sites where no problemiigeatly known, with
respect to sites previously owned or operated bpwselated corporate entities or by our predemss®r at sites that we
may acquire in the future. In addition, overallguotion costs may become prohibitively expensiwe anevent us from
effectively competing in price sensitive marketfuiure capital expenditures and costs for envirental compliance or
cleanup are significantly greater than currentrojgeted expenditures and costs.
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Acquisitions may present difficulties.

We have a history of making acquisitions and wesekfpo make acquisitions in the future based oersgv¥actors,
including whether primary aluminum prices in theltdl market improve. We are subject to numeroks @s a result of
our acquisition strategy, including the following:

« we may spend time and money pursuing target at¢quisithat do not close;

« acquired companies may have contingent or unidedtifabilities;

« it may be challenging for us to manage our existinginess as we integrate acquired operations;
« We may not achieve the anticipated benefits fromaaqguisitions; ani

« management of acquisitions will require continuevelopment of financial controls and informatiorsteyms
which may prove to be expensive, t-consuming and difficult to maintai

Accordingly, our past or future acquisitions miglt ultimately improve our competitive position dmasiness
prospects as anticipate

We require significant cash flow to meet our delgtrgice requirements, which increases our vulneratyilto adverse
economic and industry conditions, reduces cash #afalie for other purposes and limits our operationgxibility.

As of December 31, 2009, we had an aggregate abaippately $307 million principal amount of outstiing
debt. We may incur additional debt in the future.

The level of our debt could have important consageas, including:

« increasing our vulnerability to adverse economid swalustry conditions

« reducing cash flow available for other purposesluding capital expenditures, acquisitions, dividenworking
capital and other general corporate purposes, Beasubstantial portion of our cash flow from agiens must t
dedicated to servicing our debt; €

« limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, competitive and other changes in our busireesd th
industry in which we operate

We have various obligations to make payments ih taet will reduce the amount of cash availableéke interest
payments required on our outstanding debt andtf@raises. Holders of our 1.75% Notes have thg t@yconvert thei
notes at any time, which would require us to deloash up to the aggregate principal amount ofsmtéde converted. In
addition, in August 2011, the holders of our 1.78%ies have an option to require us to repurchdse ahy portion of
these securities at par. Our industrial revenua®@tiRBs”) and any future borrowings on our crdditility are at
variable interest rates, and future borrowings ireguto fund working capital at Grundartangi or tmastruction of the
Helguvik facility may be at variable rates. An iease in interest rates would increase our debicgeobligations under
these instruments, further limiting cash flow aahie for other uses. In addition to our debt, weehliabilities and other
obligations which could reduce cash available theopurposes and could limit our operational fdity.
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Our ability to pay interest on and to repay ormafice our debt, and to satisfy other commitmentsdepend upon
our future operating performance, which is subje@eneral economic, financial, competitive, legfisie, regulatory,
business and other factors, including market prficeprimary aluminum, that are beyond our contaslwell as our
access to additional sources of liquidity. Accogly, there can be no assurance that our busindsgewerate sufficient
cash flow from operations or that future borrowimgh be available to us in an amount sufficienetmable us to pay debt
service obligations, or to fund our other liquiditgeds. If we are unable to meet our debt senbtgations or fund our
other liquidity needs, we could attempt to resutetor refinance our debt or seek additional equitglebt capital. There
can be no assurance that we would be able to adsbntipose actions on satisfactory terms or aqadl if we are unable
to ultimately meet our debt service obligations &mdl our other liquidity needs it may have a matexdverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of opers and liquidity.

Despite our substantial level of debt, we may incnore debt, which could exacerbate any or all oéthisks
described above.

We may incur substantial additional debt in theifet Although the loan and security agreement gomgrour
revolving credit facility and the indenture govergithe 8.0% Senior Secured Notes due 2014 (th86'8l6tes”) limits
our ability and the ability of certain of our suhisiries to incur additional debt, these restrictiane subject to a number
qualifications and exceptions and, under certaituonstances, debt incurred in compliance with thestictions could k
substantial. For example, as of December 31, 2@@o0ximately $41 million would be available tofas borrowing
under our revolving credit facility. In additiotie loan and security agreement governing our vavglcredit facility and
the indenture governing the 8.0% Notes do not preus from incurring certain obligations that dd oonstitute debt. T
the extent that we incur additional debt or sudtepbbligations, the risks associated with our wutigl debt described
above, including our possible inability to servarg debt, would increase.

Our debt instruments subject us to covenants anstrietions

Our revolving credit facility and the indenture goning our 8.0% Notes each contain various covertaiat restrict
the way we conduct our business and limit our gkt incur debt, pay dividends and engage in fatigns such as
acquisitions and investments, among other thingg;twmay impair our ability to obtain additionajuiidity and grow our
business. Any failure to comply with those covasamould likely constitute a breach under the rewva credit facility o
the indenture governing the 8.0% Notes, which nesylt in the acceleration of all or a substantaatipn of our
outstanding indebtedness and termination of comamitewunder our revolving credit facility. If ourdabtedness is
accelerated, we may be unable to repay the reqairexints and our secured lenders could foreclosapmrollateral
securing our secured debt.

Further consolidation within the metals industry atd provide competitive advantages to our compesito

The metals industry has experienced consolidatien the past several years and there may be mosokdation
transactions in the future. Consolidation by ounpetitors may enhance their capacity and theirssctieresources, low
their cost structure and put us at a competitigadirantage. Continued consolidation may limitahility to implement
our strategic objectives effectively. We cannoiatdly predict the impact on us of further consdiidia in the metals
industry.
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We depend upon intercompany transfers from our sulisries to meet our debt service obligations.

We are a holding company and conduct all of ouratmns through our subsidiaries. Our ability toetneur debt
service obligations depends upon the receipt eftaimpany transfers from our subsidiaries. Sultgettte restrictions
contained in our revolving credit facility and timelenture governing our 8.0% Notes, future borr@siby our
subsidiaries could contain restrictions or proliois on intercompany transfers by those subsidiarie addition, under
applicable law, our subsidiaries could be limitedhie amounts that they are permitted to pay dadetids on their capital
stock. For example, the Icelandic government ard@ntral Bank of Iceland are restricting the fraesfer of funds
outside of Iceland. In furtherance of this, on Nober 28, 2008, the Central Bank of Iceland adoptézs regarding the
movement of foreign currency within and outsidéoafland. The rules are broad and impose many castis on the
movement of foreign currencies outside of IcelandJanuary 2009, we were notified that our Iceiammgerations are
exempt from these foreign currency rules. Howewercannot control further actions by the CentratiBaf Iceland,
which might restrict our ability to transfer funtisough the Icelandic banking system and outsidealand.

Our ability to utilize certain net operating lossetax credits and other tax assets to offset futtagable income may
be significantly limited if we experience an “owngtip change” under the Internal Revenue Code.

As of December 31, 2009, we had net operating $p$ag credits and other tax assets of approxim&tkl700,000,
after adjusting for losses carried back to previaxsyears, which could offset future taxable ineon®ur ability to utilize
our deferred tax assets to offset future taxalderime may be significantly limited if we experienegs“ownership
change” as defined in Section 382 of the Interrealdhue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).nergé an
ownership change would occur if our “five—percemareholders,” as defined under the Code, colldgtimerease their
ownership in us by more than 50 percentage powdgs @ rolling three—year period.

In September 2009, we adopted a Tax Benefits Rrasen Plan. The Tax Benefits Preservation Plauigect to
shareholders’ approval at our 2010 Annual Meefirige purpose of the Plan is to minimize the liketid@f an ownership
change occurring for Section 382 purposes. Desgplioption of the Tax Benefits Preservation Planyriitransactions in
our stock that may not be in our control may cais® experience an ownership change and thusdumiability to
utilize net operating losses, tax credits and otfveassets to offset future taxable income. Swme M Shareholders’
Equity to our Consolidated Financial Statementtuthed herein.

Item 1B . Unresolved Staff Comment:

We have no unresolved comments from the staff@fS#curities and Exchange Commission.
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Iltem 2. Properties

We own the property on which our Hawesville and &ewood facilities are located. The site on wiiteh
Grundartangi facility is situated is leased fronx&foahafnir sf under a long-term lease that rimsugh 2020,
renewable at our option. The site for our Helguyigject is leased from Reykjaneshofn, an indepetnpoleblic
authority owned by the Municipality of Reykjaneshaender a long-term lease expected to run thr@@§o, with an
automatic extension provision. Our corporate eiare subject to an operating lease that expird&gne 2010. We
hold a 49.7% interest in a partnership which ogargtte Mt. Holly facility and a 49.7% undividedeargst in the
property on which the Mt. Holly facility is located’he remaining interest in the undivided propeaittjt. Holly is
owned by Alumax of South Carolina, Inc., a subsidat Alcoa.

Except for our Ravenswood facility, which was futlyrtailed in February 2009, and Hawesville, wiere potline
was curtailed in March 2009, all of our facilitiase operating at or near their productive capadite believe all of
our facilities are suitable and adequate for ourenu operations. Additional information about #ge, location, and
productive capacity of our facilities is availalmethe“Overview” section of Item 1, “Business.”

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

We have pending against us or may be subject tousatawsuits, claims and proceedings related priyni@
employment, commercial, environmental, safety asalth matters. Although it is not presently possiiol determine
the outcome of these matters, management belieeadtimate disposition will not have a materiavaide effect on
our financial condition, results of operations|iquidity.

In July 2005, the Environmental Protection Ager®&HRA”) began an initiative to perform an oversigigpection
of all Secondary Maximum Achievable Control Teclogy (“MACT”) facilities which deal with casting faaces,
including Hawesville. Partial inspections wereoatenducted at co-located Primary MACT facilitiesigh deal with
potlines, including Hawesville. In April 2008, tlEPA sent CAKY requests under the Clean Air Actdopies of
certain records dating back to 2000. In Noveml@&92the EPA sent CAKY a Notice of Violation (“NO)alleging
12 violations relating to the Clean Air Act incladi, among other things, violations of the MACT esioss standards
and the prevention of significant deteriorationgyeon for unpermitted major modifications.

The matter is under investigation. An initial hagrwith the EPA occurred in January 2010 at wigegkKY
agreed to provide the EPA with additional inforroatregarding the alleged violations. CAKY providaath
information in February 2010. We cannot reasonabtimate the liabilities with respect to this ragtbut they are not
expected to be material. We expect to resolverthier in 2010. For descriptions of certain envinental matters
involving Century, see Note 18 Contingencies antch@dments to the Consolidated Financial Statemiectaded
herein.

In March 2009, four purported stockholder classastwere filed against us in the United Statedr@isCourt for the
Northern District of California. The actions argided Petzschke v. Century Aluminum Co., et Abrams v. Century
Aluminum Co., et a, McClellan v. Century Aluminum Co., et andHilyard v. Century Aluminum Co., et al These
actions have been consolidated and a lead plaagfoeen confirmed. These cases allege that prep@rly accounted
for cash flows associated with the terminationert&in forward financial sales contracts which actmg allegedly
resulted in artificial inflation of our stock pri@nd investor losses. These actions seek restigbmur February 2009
common stock offering, unspecified compensatoryatges, including interest thereon, costs and exgearse counsel
fees. Management intends to vigorously defendetlaetions, but at the date of this report, it ispussible to predict the
ultimate outcome of these actions or to estimatnge of possible damage awards.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserved
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Our Executive Officers

Executive officers are appointed by and serveattbcretion of the Board of Directors. The follog/table
details certain information about our executiveceffs as of March 16, 2010.

Name Age Position and Duration
Logan W. Kruger 59 President and Chief Executive Officer since Decan2065.
Michael A. Bless 44  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offisece January
2006.
Wayne R. Hale 54  Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Off&iace March
2007.
Steve Schneider 54  Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer aahtroller since

June 2006, Vice President and Corporate Contrivtben April 2002
through May 2006.

Michelle M. Lair 34  Vice President and Treasurer since February 20@astrer since
June 2006, Assistant Treasurer from November 20Q0%ihe 2006,
Corporate Financial Analyst from May 2000 to Octob@05.

William J. Leatherberry 39 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and &agrsince
January 2010. Senior Vice President, General Gamgl Assistant
Secretary from April 2009 to December 2009. Vicesiient,
Assistant General Counsel and Assistant Secratany January 2008
to March 2009. Assistant General Counsel and fs#iSecretary
from July 2007 to December 2007, Corporate CousselAssistant
Secretary from May 2007 to June 2007 and Corp@&atensel from
January 2005 to April 2007.

Jerry E. Reed 46 Vice President of Commercial Management and Busines
Development since May 2009. Vice President of Bess
Development from June 2007 to April 2009.

Prior to joining Century, Mr. Kruger served as Rient, Asia/Pacific for Inco Limited, from Septeml2805 to
November 2005; and Executive Vice President, Teii8ervices from September 2003 to September .

Prior to joining Century, Mr. Bless served as mangglirector of M. Safra & Co., Inc., from Febru&05 to
January 2006 and Executive Vice President and Cieincial Officer of Maxtor Corporation from Auguz004 to
October 2004.

Prior to joining Century, Mr. Hale served as Seniare President of Sual-Holding from April 2004Fkebruary
2007.

Prior to joining Century, Mr. Reed served as Sgatélarketing Director for Alcoa Primary Productsr July
2004 to May 2007, and various senior managemeirtigus for Alcoa, including Commercial Manager fdicoa
Australia and Alumina Market Manager for Alcoa WbAlumina from 2001 through 2004.

Prior to joining Century, Mr. Leatherberry servexdSenior Transactions Counsel of VarTec Telecomfiom
September 2003 to January 2005.

Ms. Lair and Mr. Schneider joined Century in 200@ 2001, respectively. Their respective biograghic
information is set forth in the table above.
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PART Il

Iltem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

Market Information

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Matketer the symbol: CENX. The following table sets
forth, on a quarterly basis, the high and low spheses of the common stock during the two mosemédiscal
years. Our common stock reached a record intraaigyof $80.52 on May 19, 2008 and reached a deicdra-day
low of $1.04 on March 9, 2009.

Year 2009 2008
High Low High Low
sales sales sales sales
price price price price
First quarter $ 1280 $ 104 $ 7089 $ 3892
Second quarter $ 839 $ 190 $ 8052 $ 6340
Third quarter $ 1218 $ 470 $ 66.66 $ 25.09
Fourth quarter $ 1690 $ 800 $ 2738 $ 435

Holders

As of February 28, 2010, there were 17 holdergodrd of our common stock, which does not inclderhuch
larger number of beneficial owners whose commoaksteas held in street name or through fiduciaries.

Dividend Information

We did not declare dividends in 2009 or 2008 onamummon stock. We do not currently anticipate pgyiash
dividends in the foreseeable future.

Our revolving credit facility and the indenture goring the 8.0% Notes contain restrictions whiafmtliour ability
to pay dividends. Additional information about tieems of our long-term borrowing agreements islalike at Note 8
Debt to the consolidated financial statements ohetlherein.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

Equity for debt exchanges

In September, October and November 2009, we isatethl of 11,365,693 shares of our common stoexahange
for $127,933,000 principal amount of our 1.75% NotAdditional information about the terms of oquity for debt
exchange is available at Note 8 Debt to the codatdd financial statements included herein. Tegasce of common
stock in connection with the 1.75% Note ExchangieiBfwas made by us pursuant to an exemption fremdgistration
requirements of the Securities Act contained intised(a)(9) of the Securities Act.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following table presents selected consolidétexhcial data for each of the last five fiscal geedal'he selected
consolidated historical balance sheet data asabf ebthe years ended December 31, 2009 and 2@D&harselected
consolidated statement of operations data for eatie years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 andig@®fived from
our consolidated financial statements audited bipiDe & Touche LLP included herein. The seleatedsolidated
historical balance sheet data as of each of thesygaled December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 ane: leted
consolidated statement of operations data for e&tie years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005iiddrom our
consolidated financial statements audited by Del@t Touche LLP which are not included herein.

Our selected historical results of operations idelu

« the curtailment of operations of our 170,000 mt@v&swood smelter which became fully curtailed in
the first quarter of 2009;

« the curtailment of one potline at our 244,000 nifawesville smelter in the first quarter of 2009;
« our equity in the earnings and related losses spogition of our 50% joint venture investments in

Gramercy Alumina LLC and St. Ann Bauxite Ltd. prtordivesting our interest in those companies in
August 2009;

« the results of operations from our 130,000 mtpyaggon of Grundartangi which became operational in
the fourth quarter of 2006;

« the results of operations from our 40,000 mtpy espan of Grundartangi which became operational in
the fourth quarter of 2007; and,

« our equity in the earnings of our 40% joint ventumeestments in Baise Haohai Carbon Co. since we
acquired an interest in that company in April 2008.

Our results for these periods and prior periodshatdully comparable to our results of operatifmsfiscal year
2009 and may not be indicative of our future finahposition or results of operations. The infotima set forth below
should be read in conjunction with Item 7, “Manageit's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conaitaond Results of
Operations” and Item 8, “Financial Statements amppfementary Data” and notes thereto.

Year Ended December 31,
2009 (1) 2008 (2) 2007 (3) 2006 (4) 2005 (5)

Net sales $ 899,25: $1,970,77¢ $1,798,16: $1,558,56( $1,132,36.
Gross profit (loss) (65,66%) 311,62« 363,46 348,52: 161,67
Operating income (loss) (97,45¢€) 168,557 303,54 309,15¢ 126,90¢
Net loss (205,987)  (895,187)  (105,58¢) (44,97€¢) (119,990
Loss per share:

Basic and diluted $ (2.73) $ (20.00) $ (2.84) $ (1.3) $ (3.79)
Dividends per common share $ 0.0C $ 0.0C $ 0.0C $ 0.0C $ 0.0C
Total assets 1,861,75( 2,035,35¢ 2,566,80¢ 2,171,03t 1,660,67:
Total debt (6) 298,67¢ 435,51¢ 402,92 735,28t 628,35
Long-term debt obligations (7) 247,624 275,00( 250,00( 559,33: 488,50¢
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Year Ended December 31,
2009 (1) 2008 (2) 2007 (3) 2006 (4) 2005 (5)

Other information:

Shipments — Primary aluminum:
Direct shipment pounds (000) 726,04C 1,173,56: 1,171,88¢ 1,152,61° 1,153,73:
Toll shipment pounds (000) 608,03! 598,44¢ 518,94t 346,39( 203,96

Average realized price per pound:

Direct shipments $ 078 % 123 $ 112 $ 1.0¢ $ 0.8€
Toll shipments $ 054 % 0.8¢ $ 091 % 0.8¢ $ 0.67
Average LME price per pound $ 0758 $ 1167 $ 1197 $ 1166 $ 0.861
Average Midwest premium perpound $ 0.047 $ 004z $ 0031 $ 005t $ 0.05€

(1) Netloss includes an after-tax charge of $73.2ionilfor loss on disposition of our equity investrtgeim
Gramercy and St. Ann, an after-tax charge of $4iillfon of curtailment costs for our U.S. smelteas,
after-tax benefit of $57.8 million for gains reldt® the termination of a power contract and a
replacement power contract at Hawesville and afiiesfe$14.3 million for discrete tax adjustments.

(2) Netloss includes an after-tax charge of $742.1lioninet of gain on settlement) for mark-to-market
losses on forward contracts that do not qualifycish flow hedge accounting, a $515.1 million tax
adjustment to establish reserves on deferred setgasa $94.9 million charge for goodwill impairrhen
and an inventory write down to market value of $5%illion.

(3) Net loss includes an after-tax charge of $328.83anifor mark-to-market losses on forward contracts
that do not qualify for cash flow hedge accounting.

(4) Netloss includes an after-tax charge of $241.Tionifor mark-to-market losses on forward contracts
that do not qualify for cash flow hedge accountimgl by a gain on the sale of surplus land.

(5) Net loss includes an after-tax charge of $198.8anifor mark-to-market losses on forward contracts
that do not qualify for cash flow hedge accounting.

(6) Total debt includes all long-term debt obligati@m&l any debt classified as short-term obligatiaes of
any debt discounts, including current portion afgeterm debt, the IRBs and the 1.75% Notes.

(7) Long-term debt obligations are all payment obligasi under long-term borrowing arrangements,
excluding the current portion of long-term debt aed of any debt discounts.
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Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

Overview

We produce primary aluminum. The aluminum indusggrgyclical and the price of primary aluminum (/i
trades as a commodity) is determined by global lsugrpd demand. The key determinants of our residltgerations
and cash flow from operations are as follows:

. Our selling price is based on the LME price of @ignaluminum and is influenced by regional premiwand a
certain times by fixed price sales contra

. In normal circumstances, our facilities operateratear capacity, and fluctuations in volume, othan through
curtailments, acquisitions or expansion, genelaiy/small

. The principal components of cost of goods soldadwenina, electrical power, labor and carbon proslushich
in aggregate were in excess of 75% of the 2009afagbods sold. Many of these costs are govergddrig-
term contracts

Shipment volumes, average realized price and dagtads sold per metric ton shipped are our kefjoperance
indicators. Revenue can vary significantly fromipe to period due to fluctuations in the LME anddiest price of
primary aluminum. Any adverse changes in the dents that affect shipment volumes or the marketepof primary
aluminum could have a material adverse effect onresults of operations and cash flows. Fluctumstio working
capital are influenced by shipments, the LME andwist price of primary aluminum and by the timirigash
receipts from major customers and disbursemeragsitsuppliers.

Historical LME and Midwest Transaction Price
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Our operating results vary significantly with chaegn the price of primary aluminum and the rawemats used
in its production, including electrical power, alima, aluminum fluoride, calcined petroleum cokecipj finished
carbon anodes and cathodes. Because we sell alugisdased on the LME price for primary aluminwa,cannot
pass on increased costs to our customers. Althaegdittempt to mitigate the effects of price flutio@as through th
use of various fixed-price commitments, financretruments and by pricing some of our raw matedats energy
contracts based on LME prices, these efforts @isib dur ability to take advantage of favorable as in the market
prices for primary aluminum or raw materials andyratfect our financial position, results of opeoat and cas
flows if we curtail unprofitable production capaci
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Electricity represents our single largest operatiogt. As a result, the availability of electricéycompetitive
prices is critical to the profitability of our oions. Portions of the contracted cost of thetalgty supplied to Mt
Holly and all of Hawesville’s electricity costs yawith the supplier’s costs. An increase in thesgt€would increase
the price these facilities pay for electricity. @sgnder the Mt. Holly electricity contract havéstantially increased in
recent years, partially caused by rising fuel widss these contracts have take-or-pay type panssithe financial
position, results of operations and cash flows afvelsville and Mt. Holly may be affected by the prior electric
power even if we curtail unprofitable productiorpaaity.

The crisis in financial and credit markets in 2@@&l 2009 led to a pronounced downturn in globaheroc
activity. The global market for commodities hasedi@rated in line with the decline in the globabaomy. Declining
demand for aluminum products in developed and dgwed nations, increasing stocks on the LME andraegal lack of
confidence in future economic conditions combine@009 to produce an unprecedented decline in Wb price for
aluminum. The average LME price for primary aluominfell 62% from its high on July 11, 2008 ($3,28# metric ton),
to a low of $1,254 per metric ton on February 0%, before rising to $2,216 per metric ton on Mat2, 2010. The
movement in 2008 and 2009 represents one of thésuabstantial and rapid declines in the historyeabrded LME
prices. The decline in aluminum prices in 2008 2009 has adversely impacted our operations, péatly in our U.S
facilities, since our operating costs did not falthe degree that aluminum prices dropped.

Operational Restructuring

In response to the conditions in our industry, \&eehtaken steps and are evaluating taking furtie@sgo reduce o
costs to withstand weak LME prices and improvefmancial condition and liquidity in the future. &\6ummarize these
steps below and refer to them as the “operatiasfucturing.”

Reduce Capacity

Production capacity and operations have been tdtat two facilities that have been unprofitableg recent
aluminum prices.

« Ravenswoo. Between December 2008 and February 2009, owidiaby, Century Aluminum of West Virgini
Inc. (“CAWV") curtailed the entire operations of Ravenswood,esgmting 170,000 mtpy of production capa
due to the plans high operating costs. As of December 31, 20@9M® had incurred cash costs related to
curtailed Ravenswood facility of approximately $#iflion. Such costs relate to (a) contractual pagita due t
employees and other costs directly related to tietaidment; (b) ongoing costs such as insurance afoa
maintenance of the facility; and (c) losses frora Hatisfaction or termination of commercial consacAs o
December 31, 2009, CAWV'’s forecast for the aggregahount of such costs remaining for then2diath perior
following curtailment is approximately $23 milliorCAWYV intends to continue discussions with the US\9
reduce the labor expenses associated with thelloustd.
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. Hawesville. In March 2009, our subsidiary CAKY curtailed oofethe five potlines at Hawesville, reducing
production rate from approximately 244,000 mtpy @%,000 mtpy. In connection with this action, CAKad off
approximately 120 out of a total of approximatel$p57employees. Hawesville is currently operatin
approximately 80% of its capacity, and CAKY is dantng to evaluate its operating level in light @cen
economic conditions. We recently purchased alumiput options and entered into collar contractsnfzioatior
of a put and a call option) for approximately 60%Hawesville’s current production level through 2010 wi
strike price around the facility’s cash breaken price. These options were purchased to [hantigtigate the risl
of a future decline in aluminum prices, and we roapsider purchasing additional put options or otteaging
vehicles in the future

o Gramercy and St. An. In September 2009, we completed the dispositibour 50% ownership position
Gramercy and St. Ann to Noranda. After the digjpmsiNoranda assumed 100% ownership of GramercyS
Ann. In connection with this transaction, we mad®5 million cash payment during the third quadae2009 an
an additional $5 million cash payment in the fougtmarter of 2009 to settle amounts owed to Gramerw
recorded a loss on disposition of our equity investt of approximately $73 million. We entered irdc
agreement with Noranda under which we will purchesenina from Gramercy for a limited period of tifoe oul
aluminum smelter in Hawesville, Kentuct

« Helguvik. We are currently evaluating the Helguvik projeatbst, scope and schedule. During this evaluatve
have significantly reduced spending on the proj®¢e cannot be certain when or if we will restarajor
construction and engineering activities or ultinlhatmmplete the Helguvik projectWe are evaluating a variety
potential financing alternatives which could be éypd to fund the first phase (90,000 mtpy) of ¢omdion
including project financing alternative

We continue to monitor global economic conditiccmnmodity prices and our operations. Subject éselfactors,
we will evaluate further options to reduce domeséipacity, including a partial or complete curtahmhand/or a
permanent exit of all of our domestic operatic

Renegotiate Long-Term Commercial Contracts

We have renegotiated and amended certain longgepply and customer contracts that have been utegyiaf and
are evaluating others on an ongoing basis.

» Alumina Contract Amendmer. Following CAWV's curtailment of Ravenswood, we had agreementsiichps
quantities of alumina in excess of our requiremeiits address this situation, in April 2009, we aohed tw(
alumina purchase agreements with Glencore. Thesadments reduced the amount of alumina Glencqgisu
to us from 330,000 to 110,368 metric tons in 2008 will reduce the amount of alumina Glencore siggpio u:
from 290,000 to 229,632 metric tons in 20

. Big Rivers AgreemenTo secure a new, lo-term power contract for the Hawesville facility, daly 16, 200¢
CAKY, along with E.ON and Big Rivers, agreed to“amwind” of the former contractual arrangement betv
Big Rivers and E.ON and entered into the Big RivAgreement to provide long-term cdsised power -
CAKY. The term of the Big Rivers Agreement ruhsough 2023 and provides adequate power for HaWesvi
full production capacity requirements (approximatéB2 MW) with pricing based on the providertost o
production. Se*"- Long-term power contract for Hawesville sign”

« Other ContractsWe continue to review all of our outstanding comerarcontracts with the objective of seek
improved commercial terms. In furtherance of thiigective, we have approached various countergadie ou
significant contracts to determine what, if any,difications might be appropriate to provide us watthditiona
flexibility given the current market for our prodac We cannot predict whether these discussiotisle®d tc
favorable changes, as any changes would requireotigent of the counterpar
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Reduce Other Operating Costs

« We have made progress over the past year towanmdcireg operating costs at our production facilitidg
Hawesville, during the peak declines in the LME,KCAdelayed the reconstruction of reduction cellefedrec
non-essential maintenance activities and reducedetsyed major nosafety related maintenance items
addition to these cost savings, the reduction adpction during these price declines reduced ojpeyddsses. |
addition to cost deferrals, we have received impdopricing terms for anode production materialsir Subsidiar
Berkeley is not the operating partner for the Mollfd facility; however, we are analyzing the cosusture at Mt
Holly to ensure that appropriate measures are takencontinue to optimize performance and re
costs. Berkeley is in discussions with the opegapartner relating to such cost improvement messand othe
alternatives. Finally, through continued focusaperational controls, we have improved operati@ifatiencies
controlled consumption of supplies and raw materéald reduced utilization of overtime. Recently, al& hav
taken steps to address our other mwsployment benefits, specifically medical benefitspugh adjustments
plan designs and benefits delivered. We contimuevialuate additional potential operation cost mrpments
although we believe we have captured the majofith@se opportunitie:

Potential Asset Sales

We will continue to evaluate the potential divestt of all or a portion of our owned and jointly-4o@d domestic
assets. Any decision to divest any of these assmikl be based on a range of factors, includiegéinms of any such
divestiture, the terms of certain indentures gowveyur debt, its operational impact to our busshéscluding how the
assets fit into our long-range strategy, and theadlves of the Operational Restructuring.

Recent Developments
Additional 7.5% Notes Exchanges in January and Mar2010

We completed debt for debt exchanges in Januaryvimndh 2010. Investors received $950 worth of 80étes for
every $1,000 principal amount tendered of our 7se¥ior notes due 2014 (the “7.5% Notes”) . In toldj these
investors received the accrued interest for thé&®/Notes, net of interest that has accrued o®.08 notes since the
original issuance date. Through March 15, 20108 $4illion of 7.5% Notes were exchanged for $4.1liom of 8.0%
Notes. As of March 16, 2010, we had $2.6 milliowl 249.6 million of aggregate principal amountstading of the
7.5% Notes and 8.0% Notes, respectively.

LME approves Century as a high grade primary alunaim brand

In February 2010, the LME approved the listing eh@iry as a high grade primary aluminum brand.s @iows our
Hawesville smelter and its customers to sell pringdominum to any LME warehouse at any time anéikecthe LME
cash price for the Century metal. We expect thigaval to provide our Hawesville smelter readyesscto a terminal
market and reduce liquidity risk in slow or deatigimarket conditions.

Helguvik Transmission Lines

The Ministry for the Environment has confirmed tpnion of the National Planning Agency that a jdihA for
power transmission lines and certain projectsirgab the Helguvik project is not necessa

Exchange Offer and Consent Solicitation Relatedthe 7.5% senior notes due 2014 and Consent Solictafor the
1.75% senior convertible notes due 2024

In the fourth quarter of 2009, we completed (agachange offer and consent solicitation relatingun7.5% Notes
and (b) a consent solicitation relating to our %/Notes. See Note 8 Debt in the consolidated @izstatements
included herein for additional information.
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Convertible debt for equity exchange transactions

In a series of transactions in September, OctaheéNovember 2009, we issued a total of 11,365,688es of our
common stock in exchange for $127.9 million primtipmount of our 1.75% Notes. Upon completiorhef¢onvertible
debt-for-equity exchanges, approximately $47.liamlprincipal amount of our 1.75% Notes outstanding
remained. Holders of the outstanding 1.75% Notag raquire us to purchase for cash all or pareflt.75% Notes then
outstanding at par on August 1, 2011.

Ravenswood Retiree Medical Benefits changes

CAWYV amended its post retirement medical benefinplanuary 1, 2010 for all current and former ssdaemployee:
their dependents and all bargaining unit employe®s retired before June 1, 2006, and their depdaaden

The principal change to the plan is that, uponratiant of age 65, all CAWV provided retiree medioahefits will
cease for retirees and dependents. In additi@6prbargaining unit retirees and pre-65 dependeifiteow be covered
by the salary retiree medical plan which requirglsad pocket payments for premiums, co-pays andididales by
participants

We recorded the impact of these changes for ouectiand former salaried retirees and their depgsde the fourth
quarter of 2009. We have not recognized the impatitese changes for our bargaining unit retiseebtheir dependents,
subject to pending litigation. If we had recoguizbese changes, our net periodic benefit cosb@® 2vould be $0.8
million lower and the amounts recognized in accatad other comprehensive income as of Decemb&C8B, would
decrease by $38.5 million. See Note 14 Pensiorotrer postemployment benefits in the Consolid&tiedncial
Statements included herein for additional informaibn this matter.

There were no changes to the retiree medical dsrfefisalaried retirees or retirees who retired 8argaining unit
employee from our Hawesville facility.

Disposition of Gramercy and St. Ann Bauxite joineatures

In September 2009, we completed the dispositiamuo0% ownership positions in Gramercy and St. fnn
Noranda. At closing, we divested our entire intee these businesses and Noranda assumed 100&tstwymnof
Gramercy and St. Ann. In connection with this s@stion, we made a $5 million cash payment dutieghird quarter of
2009 and an additional $5 million cash paymenhafourth quarter of 2009 to settle amounts owe@rmercy.

Loss on disposition of our equity investments

In August 2009, upon signing an agreement to tear@ir equity investment in Gramercy and St. AnNéeoanda, we
undertook an evaluation to determine the impathefiransaction, if any, on the carrying amourthefequity
investments in the joint venture assets. We caleduhat the terms of the asset transfer agregonevided an indication
that the carrying amount of the equity investmamtkie joint ventures exceeded the recoverablesvaluhese assets. As
a result, we recorded an approximate $73.2 milbss. The approximate $73.2 million loss consistithe following
amounts:
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Loss related to
disposition of
equity
investments
(in thousands

Equity investments in Gramercy and St. Ann, equitthe earnings of Gramercy and

Ann and intercompany profit elimination, net of amts owed to Gramercy and St. A $ (74,789
Pension and OPEB obligations © Gramercy and St. An 1,54¢
Total $ (73,239

The loss was recorded on the consolidated statsmépperations in equity in earnings (lossespuoftjventures. On
the consolidated balance sheets, the adjustmehé@&quity investments carrying amount was recondether
assets. The pension and OPEB obligations of th&yeigvestments were recorded in other comprelvensicome.
Amounts due to Gramercy under our previous alurnordract were recorded under due to affiliatesughoSeptember 1,
2009; amounts due under the new alumina contraat@w recorded in accounts payable.

Long-term power contract for Hawesville signed

To secure a new, long-term power contract for taevébville facility, on July 16, 2009, CAKY , alomgth E.ONanc
Big Rivers , agreed to an “unwindf the former contractual arrangement between BigfR and E.ON and entered int
new arrangement (“Big Rivers Agreement”) to provideg-term cost-based power to CAKYThe term of the Big Rive
Agreement is through 2023 and provides power farétville’s full production capacity requirements (approxehaé 8z
MW) with pricing based on the provider’'s cost obguction. The Big Rivers Agreement is take-or-fayHawesvilles
energy requirements at full production. Under térens of the agreement, any power not required awedgville will be
available for sale and we will receive credits dotual power sales up to our cost for that powdére current market pri
of electrical power in this region is less than Bigrers’ forecasted cost. See Note 3 Laoegn power contract fi
Hawesville in Consolidated Financial Statementtughed herein for additional information about thageeements.

Helguvik Investment Agreement

An Enabling Act for an Investment Agreement witk thovernment of Iceland for Helguvik, which govecestain
meaningful aspects of the construction of a pringuwyninum facility in Helguvik, Iceland such as figcal regime, was
approved in April 2009 by the Icelandic Parliameint.July 2009, the Investment Agreement was apguidyy the
European Surveillance Authority and in August 2@@®agreement was signed by Nordural Helguvik elfthe
Icelandic Minister of Industry. Among other thindlse Investment Agreement includes a commitmerthbyGovernmer
of Iceland to assist us in obtaining necessarylatgry approvals for completion of the Helguvik jerc.

Recent Changes in Icelandic Tax Law

In the fourth quarter of 2009, we, along with sevether industrial companies operating in Icelaedched
agreement with the Icelandic Ministers of Finaned lndustry to make advance payments in respemtiio?2010, 2011
and 2012 tax years of certain prospective corp@matkother taxes that would have otherwise beenndiae years 2013
through 2018. In addition, Iceland has also im@etad an additional temporary tax on electricitggesapplicable to our
2010, 2011 and 2012 tax years. This agreementhenadditional taxes on electricity are expectesigaificantly
increase our Icelandic tax liabilities in our 202011 and 2012 tax years.
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Alcan Metal Agreement terminated

In April 2009, Alcan and CAWV agreed to terminateramaining obligations under the Alcan Metal
Agreement. CAWYV paid Alcan $0.6 million to settlee remaining delivery obligations.

IRS Tax Refunds received

In the first quarter of 2009, we received a fedarabme tax refund of $79.7 million related to arghack of a portion
of the December 31, 2008 taxable loss to tax yeaded December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2007itigxadly, we
received a $10.1 million federal income tax refuekted to overpayments of December 31, 2008 ethtax payments.

Curtailment of Operations at Ravenswood and Hawdsvi

In February 2009, Century Aluminum of West Virgimanounced the curtailment of the remaining plaerations at
Ravenswood. Layoffs for the majority of Ravenswea@mployees were completed by the end of Feb2@09. The
decision to curtail operations was due to the inadht high operating cost at Ravenswood and theetsed global price
for primary aluminum.

In March 2009, our subsidiary, CAKY announced thideoly curtailment of one potline at Hawesvilleawksville ha:
production capacity of approximately 244,000 mtppmmary aluminum from five potlines. The potlioartailment wa
completed in March 2009. The action reduced prynaduminum production by approximately 49,000 neetons per
year and impacted approximately 120 employees. atlien was taken to reduce the continuing casdebas a result of
the depressed global price for primary aluminum.

Credit Rating Downgrade

In April 2009, Moody’s further downgraded our crediting to “Caa3” from “B2.” The downgrade reftec
Moody’s concerns regarding the level of cash comption, and the potential for liquidity challengdssant a
significant recovery in the aluminum markets. Mgs has stated the Caa3 corporate family ratiriggipates that
operating cash flow generated from Grundartangnigely to be sufficient to support ongoing op@as across
Century on a sustained basis. According to Mogdybigations rated “Caa3” are judged to be of pgtanding and
are subject to very high credit risk, and have rextely poor credit quality.”

Equity Offering

In February 2009, we completed a public offerin@4f500,000 shares of common stock at a price &0bder shar
raising approximately $110.2 million before offegircosts. The offering costs were approximately2 $illion,
representing underwriting discounts and commissamsoffering expenses.

Alumina and bauxite contract amendments

In April 2009, we agreed with Glencore to amend dkamnina purchase agreements (collectively, the
“Amendments”).

The Amendments reduce the amount of alumina Glenedl supply to Century from 330,000 metric tonsit10,368
metric tons in 2009 and from 290,000 metric ton226,632 metric tons in 2010, for an overall aluansnipply reduction
of 280,000 metric tons.
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In conjunction with these alumina supply reductiddis Ann agreed to reduce the amount of bauxiuallisupply to
Glencore in 2009 by 775,000 dry metric tons, wil®, 800 dry metric tons being cancelled and 125¢i§0netric tons
being deferred to 2010. As part of this transactwe agreed to pay St. Ann $6.0 million in compeios for the reduced
bauxite sales.

Impact of the adoption of ASC 470-20 (formerly FASRaff Position (“FSP”) APB 14-1)

We adopted ASC 470-20 (formerly FSP APB 14Atc¢ounting for Convertible Debt Instruments ThatyMge Settlec
in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cashi&eent)” ) effective January 1, 2009 and retrosipely applied the
changes under this new accounting principle tdfioancial statements. Retrospective applicatioaltperiods presented
is required. Accordingly, we have adjusted ounvasly issued financial statements to reflectechanges that resulted
from the adoption of the guidance to give effecA®C 470-20, as applicable.

Extension of labor contract at Ravenswood

We reached an agreement with the USWA to extenthtie contract at Ravenswood to August 31, 2010.

APCo Rate filing

APCo supplies all of Ravenswood’s power requirem@nider an agreement at prices set forth in pudaisariffs,
which are subject to change. Under the specialaamtract, Ravenswood may be excused from or reggy the payment
of the increase in the tariff rate if aluminum gscas quoted on the LME fall below pre-determimeels. In March
2009, APCo filed a request for a rate increasetover unrecovered fuel costs and to cover theased cost of fuel and
purchased power as well as capital improvememtsSeptember 2009, the PSC agreed to extend theakgse contrac
terms of the existing agreement for one year atnithated approximately $16 million of the unrecos@fuel costs to
Ravenswood. This amount will be factored intogpecial rate provision which excuses or defers magsabove set
tariff rates depending on aluminum prices. Werawewing options to further extend the term of éxésting agreement
that establishes the LME-based cap on the tatékra

Results of Operations

The following discussion reflects our historicasuéts of operations, which do not include resuibsr:

« the 40,000 mtpy expansion of Grundartangi untas completed in the fourth quarter of 2007;
« the curtailment of operations of one potline at &ewood until it was completed in December 2008;

« the curtailments of operations of Ravenswood’s ieing three potlines and one potline at Hawesville
until they were completed in February 2009 and M&@09, respectively;

« the transfer of our 50% ownership positions in Greay and St. Ann to Noranda on September 1, 2009;
and,

« Our equity in the earnings of our 40% joint ventimegestments in Baise Haohai Carbon Co. until we
acquired an interest in April 2008.

Accordingly, the results for fiscal years 2008 2087 are not fully comparable to the results ofrapens for fiscal

year 2009. Our historical results are not indieabtf our current business. You should read tHeviing discussion in
conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statataencluded herein.
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The following table sets forth, for the years iradéd, the percentage relationship to net salesrtdio items
included in our Statements of Operations.

Percentage of Net Sale

2009 2008 2007

Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of goods sol (107.9) (84.2) (79.€)
Gross profit (loss (7.9 15.¢ 20.2
Other operating incomr- net 1.8 — —
Selling, general and administrative exper (5.9 (2.9 3.9
Goodwill impairment — (4.8 —
Operating income (los! (20.9) 8.€ 16.€
Interest expens (3.9) (1.6 (2.2
Interest income (expens- related partie 0.1 (0.2) —
Interest incom: 0.2 0.4 0.€
Loss on early extinguishment of de (0.9 — (0.2
Other expens (0.2) (0.2 —
Net loss on forward contra (2.2) (37.9) (28.9)
Loss before income taxes and equity in earningsés) of joint

ventures (16.7) (30.6) (13.2
Income tax (expense) benefit 1.4 (15.7) 6.5
Loss before equity in earnings (losses) of joimttuess (15.9) (46.%) (6.7)
Equity in earnings (losses) of joint ventures (7.€) 0.6 0.6
Net loss (22.9% (45.9)% (5.8%

The following table sets forth, for the periodsicaded, the shipment volumes and the average patesper
pound shippec

Primary Aluminum shipments

Direct (1)
Metric Pounds
tons (000) $/pound
2009 329,32 726,04( $ 0.7¢
2008 532,32( 1,173,56. $ 1.2
2007 531,56: 1,171,88' $ 1.1z
Toll (2)
Metric Pounds
tons (000) $/pound
2009 275,79¢ 608,03: $ 0.5¢
2008 271,45: 598,44t $ 0.8¢
2007 235,39( 518,94 $ 0.91

Q) Direct shipments do not include toll shipments fr@mundartangi.
(2) Annual capacity of 260,000 mtpy was reached infolieth quarter of 2007.
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Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2008

Net sales: Net sales for the year ended December 31, 200thddc$1,071.5 million to $899.3 million. Lower
price realizations for primary aluminum in the yeaded December 31, 2009, contributed $535.8 mitticthe sale
decline. The monthly average LME cash price f@2®&as down 35% from the monthly average LME cagiepn
2008. Lower net sales volume contributed $535I1lanito the sales decline. Direct shipments dexdi447.5 million
pounds from the same period in 2008 due to capaaitgilments in the U.S. Toll shipments increa8ddmillion pound:
from the same period in 2008 due to productiorcedficies at the Grundartangi facility.

Gross profit (loss) During 2009, lower price realizations, net of ENdbased alumina cost and LME-based power
cost decreases, reduced gross profit by $445.8millLower shipment volume, due to capacity clrtants, resulted in a
$64.9 million decrease in gross profit. Offsettthgse declines were $44.0 million in net cost eases comprised of:
reduced costs for maintenance, supplies and miste$E3.0 million; reduced costs for our non-LNd&sed alumina, $23
million; reduced net amortization and depreciatibarges, primarily at Hawesville, $11.9 millionhet cost reductions,
$13.0 million; and increased power cost at our Wrielters, $17.8 million.

Due to the turnover of inventory during 2009 anctéased market prices as of December 31, 2009rédwiously
recognized lower of cost or market inventory resemas adjusted to reflect the lower of cost or raavialue of our
December 31, 2009 ending inventory. These adjugsrfavorably impacted cost of goods sold by $3&il6on during
2009 and represent an $89.5 million swing in 260&fthe $55.9 million charge required in 2008 tpom our inventorie
on a lower of cost or market basis.

Other operating income — netDuring 2009, the expenses associated with the jpi#ithes at our Ravenswood and
Hawesuville facilities were $41.7 million. This ammauncludes expenses incurred to curtail operataorsto maintain the
Ravenswood facility in an idled state. See No@utailment of Operations — Ravenswood and Hawleswil
Consolidated Financial Statements included herein.

During 2009, we recorded a gain of $81.6 milliolated to our agreement with E.ON that was consumdat
concurrently with the new long term power contfactHawesville. In addition, we wrote off the reimiag carrying valu
of the intangible asset associated with the prevpawer contract that was terminated July 16, 200% amount of the
write-off was $23.8 million. See Note 3 Long-tepower contract for Hawesville in the ConsolidatéabRcial
Statements included herein for additional informaibout this contract.

Interest income — third party:Interest income for the year ended December @19 Becreased by $6.2 million as a
result of lower average cash and short-term investrbnalances and lower interest rates during 2009.

Net loss on forward contractsfor the year ended December 31, 2009, the neblogorward contracts was $19.4
million compared to a net loss on forward contradt$744.4 million for 2008. Over half of the ress reported for the
year ended December 31, 2009 relates to the markat&et of options that were put in place to prevsdme downside
price protection for our Hawesville facility. Themainder of the loss relates to the discontinnatiocash flow hedg
accounting treatment for our natural gas finantekard contracts associated with our investmer@iamercy, recognit
of previously settled ISK hedges associated wighHlelguvik project and losses on derivatives assediwith the
Hawesville and Ravenswood power contracts.

The loss reported for the year ended December(®I8 @as primarily the result of mark-to-market Esassociated
with our long term financial sales contracts witleli@ore that did not qualify for cash flow hedgeamting. In July
2008, we terminated these contracts, recording gaie of $162.0 million ($172.4 million, net of @4 million in
transaction costs).
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In 2008, cash settlement of the financial salegraots that did not qualify for cash flow hedgeatreent accounted
for $115.0 million of the net loss. In additiongwecorded a net loss on forward contracts of $a#ll&n on the
ineffective portion of our ISK cash flow hedges andet gain on forward contracts of $2.2 milliotated to the LME
component of our power contract at the Ravenswaottiti. The remaining $778.6 million in net losere unrealized
losses as of the date our outstanding financiaksabntracts that did not qualify for cash flow ¢ie@ccounting were
terminated. These amounts were offset by a $0l®mgain in 2008 for non-cash settlements of ptglsdelivery sales
contracts that are accounted for as derivativesraartted-to-market.

Tax provision: The changes in income tax (expense) benefit @ 2bm 2008 are primarily the result of benefits
from the release of ASC 740-10-30 income tax ressefgr uncertain tax positions due to statuternittitions expiration
and additional NOLs carry back claims due to rdgesmiacted U.S. tax law offset by increased Icel@xdrates.

Equity in earnings (losses) of joint venturds: August 2009, we signed an agreement to tramsfeownership
interests in Gramercy and St. Ann to our joint veatpartner, Noranda resulting in a loss on digjposof $73.2
million. See Note 10 Gramercy and St. Ann transfehe Consolidated Financial Statements incluaksein for
additional information about this transaction.

Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2007

Net sales Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2098ased $172.6 million to $1,970.8 million. Highe
price realizations for primary aluminum in the yeaded December 31, 2008, contributed $97.1 mitliotme sale
increase. The monthly average LME cash price2@8 were down 3% from the monthly average LME gasgtes in
2007. Despite this decline, we averaged higheemealizations in 2008 because our cash flow redgeich were in a
loss position and lowered our realized prices, rexpin January 2008. Additional net sales voluo@ibuted $75.5
million to the sales increase. Direct shipmentseased 1.7 million pounds from the same peridDipi7 and toll
shipments increased 79.5 million pounds from tmeesperiod in 2007 due to the Grundartangi expansipacity that
came on-stream during 2007.

Gross Profit: For the year ended December 31, 2008, gros# deafreased $51.8 million to $311.6
million. Improved price realizations, net of LMEB4$ed alumina and LME-based power contract costases, improved
gross profit by $75.5 million. Increased shipmersitime contributed $29.9 million in additional gsqwrofit. Offsetting
these gains were $157.2 million in net cost ina@ea®mprised of: increased power and natural g@sts at our U.S.
smelters, $19.9 million; increased costs for maiatee, supplies and materials, $39.1 million; iase&l costs for our non-
LME-based alumina, $29.2 million; increased net dination and depreciation charges, primarily ati@&tartangi, $5.9
million; and other cost increases, $7.2 millionuelxo the rapid drop in LME prices in the fourthager of 2008, the
market value of our inventory at December 31, 20@8 significantly below its cost basis, resultingicharge to
inventory and thus a reduction in gross profit 858 million.

Selling, general and administrative expenseelling, general and administrative expenseshieryear ended
December 31, 2008 decreased $11.7 million to $4@IBn. Most of the decrease in 2008 was duénwabsence of non-
capitalized expenses related to the Helguvik ptdfet occurred in 2007.

Goodwill impairment As a result of the goodwill impairment test penfied at December 31, 2008, the entire
balance of goodwill associated with the 2004 pusehat the Grundartangi facility, $94.8 million, wastten off.

Interest expense- third partylnterest expense for the year ended Decembe2(8B decreased $7.9 million to
$31.8 million. The decrease in interest expenseduado the retirement of Nordural’s outstandingtde 2007.

Interest income- third party Interest income for the year ended Decembe2B08 decreased by $3.3 million to
$7.8 million. The decrease in interest incomeriesallt of lower interest rates and average cadrshart-term investment
balances during 2008.
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Net loss on forward contractsFor the year ended December 31, 2008, the sstdo forward contracts was $744.4
million compared to a net loss on forward contraét$508.9 million for 2007. The losses reportedtfe years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007 were primarily a regutiark-tomarket losses associated with our long term firsdrszle:
contracts with Glencore that did not qualify fosbdlow hedge accounting. In July, 2008, we teated these contracts,
recording a net gain of $162.0 million ($172.4 ioill, net of $10.4 million in transaction costs).

In 2008, cash settlement of the financial salegraots that did not qualify for cash flow hedgeatreent accounted
for $115.0 million of the net loss. In additiongwecorded a net loss on forward contracts of $a#ll&n on the
ineffective portion of our ISK cash flow hedges andet gain on forward contracts of $2.2 milliotated to the LME
component of our power contract at the Ravenswaottiti. The remaining $778.6 million in net losere unrealized
losses as of the date our outstanding financiaksabntracts that did not qualify for cash flow gie@ccounting were
terminated. These amounts were offset by a $0l®mgain in 2008 for non-cash settlements of ptglsdelivery sales
contracts that are accounted for as derivativesraatted-to-market.

In 2007, cash settlement of the financial salesraots that did not qualify for cash flow hedgeatreent accounted
for $98.3 million of the net loss. The remainirgll$.0 million in net loss were unrealized losséateel to our outstandi
financial sales contracts that did not qualify dash flow hedge accounting that were due for se#id in 2008 through
2015. These amounts were offset by a $0.4 mitliain for non-cash settlements of physical delisalgs contracts that
are accounted for as derivatives and marked-to-etark

Tax provision The changes in the income tax provision weresalt of changes in the level of earnings and ksse
within the various tax jurisdictions in which weeypte, changes in the current year’s effectivedtxand a change in the
West Virginia tax law. In addition, we recordetha charge of $536.3 million in 2008 as a valuaatlowance against
certain deferred tax assets. A significant portbthese deferred tax assets were created bps$ises on our long term
financial sales contracts with Glencore. A valoiatallowance was required because our current atggmof future U.S.
taxable income do not support the utilization & treferred tax assets.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity are availableskacash flow from operations and available borngwiunder our
revolving credit facility. We have also raised itajthrough public offerings of our common stookegach of the last
three years and in 2004 we accessed the publicnafiiets. We are continuously exploring variongaficing
alternatives. Our principal uses of cash are thdiflg of operating costs (including post-employnigmefits),
maintenance of curtailed production facilities, pents of principal and interest on our outstandielgt, the funding
of capital expenditures, investments in our alumirgrowth activities and in related businesses, wmgrkapital and
other general corporate requirements. We areaupiired to make a contribution in 2010 to any dedibenefit plan
which we sponsor, but may choose to make a volymtmtribution of up to $10 million.

Our financial position and liquidity were matenaldversely affected by weak aluminum prices re¢atd our
operating costs in 2009. Our consolidated castéinical at December 31, 2009 was $198 million compar&d29 million
at December 31, 2008. The increase in cash reaedrily to proceeds from a public equity offegjrworking capital
reductions and significant tax refunds receivedd9, partially offset by operating losses. A®etember 31, 2009, we
had no amounts outstanding, approximately $11.bomiissued but undrawn letters of credit and apinately $41
million of net availability under our revolving at# facility. This availability has been negatiyeinpacted by the
curtailment of production capacity at Ravenswood e partial curtailment of production capacityHatwvesville, which
have reduced the amount of our domestic accouogsviable and inventory, which comprise the borrgndase of such
facility. Further curtailments of production cafevould incrementally reduce domestic accounteieable and
inventory, further reducing availability under aewrolving credit facility. In addition, our currerevolving credit facility
due to expire in September 2010. We currently eixfmehave a new revolving credit facility in plasefore that time.
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Recently enacted legislation would allow Centurgaoryback our NOLs for 2008 for up to five yedveop years long
than the law previously allowed. Under the new, lex@ expect to receive a tax refund of approxinya$dlé million by
carrying back losses to our 2005 tax year. Ouer@dax returns for the years 2005 through 20@&arrently under auc
which may delay the receipt of the tax refund.

Convertible Debt for Exchanges

During the third and fourth quarters of 2009, wsued approximately 11.4 million shares of our comrsimck in
exchange for approximately $128 million aggregaieqgipal amount of our 1.75% Notes. After conchglihese
convertible debt-for-equity exchanges, we have @pprately $47 million aggregate principal amountlof5% Notes
outstanding. Current holders of the 1.75% Noteg regquire us to purchase for cash all or part efltlvy5% Notes then
outstanding at par on August 1, 2011. In additw@ have received consents to certain amendmemsdifications to
the indenture governing the 1.75% Notes.

7.5% Notes Exchange Offer and Consent Solicitation

In December 2009, we completed an exchange offécansent solicitation relating to our 7.5% Note¥®Ve issued
approximately $245 million 8.0% Notes in exchangedpproximately $243 million of principal amouritaur 7.5%
Notes and received consents to modify certain pions of the indenture governing the 7.5% Noteduding eliminating
most restrictive covenants and certain events fafutlein the 7.5% Notes, for which we paid a congEyment consisting
of $2.4 million of cash and $2.4 million of prinalpamount of 8.0% Notes. In January and MarctD2@% completed
additional exchanges of approximately $4.3 milladrour 7.5% Notes for approximately $4.1 millionafr 8.0%

Notes. These investors received the accrued sitByetheir 7.5% Notes, net of interest that ha@ed on the 8.0¢
Notes since the original issuance date. As of Ma&, 2009, we had $2.6 million and $249.6 milladraggregatt
principal amount outstanding of the 7.5% Notes &086 Notes, respectivel

The amendment to the indenture for the 7.5% Nategiges Century with incremental flexibility to mure financing
for current and future growth opportunities, inchgl

« Our foreign subsidiaries will be permitted to incyrto $125 million of debt to finance constructmmexpansion of
the Grundartangi facilities provided that such debt is not guaranteed by aspiof the guarantors of the 8.0%
Notes.

« We will be allowed to incur up to $500 million ofsecured debt, which will be effectively juniorttee 8.0% Notes
with respect to the value of the assets securi@egiprovided that such debt has a stated matutey the maturity
of the 8.0% Notes and a cash interest rate no hiphe that of the 8.0% Notes.

« Proceeds from any such unsecured debt issuancéenayested into our unrestricted subsidiariedustiog
Helguvik, and joint ventures.

Capital Resources

We intend to finance our future recurring capitgd@nditures from available cash and our cash flomf
operations. For major investment projects, sudhaslelguvik project, we would seek financing frgarious capital an
loan markets and may potentially pursue the foromadif strategic alliances. We may be unable toeisglditional debt or
equity securities, or to issue these securitieattvactive terms, due to a number of factors indga lack of demand,
unfavorable pricing, poor economic conditions, wofable interest rates, or our financial conditireredit rating at the
time. Continued turbulence in the U.S. and inteomal markets and economies may adversely affechiquidity, our
ability to access the capital markets and our frercondition.

Capital expenditures for 2009 were $38.9 milliop2® million of which was related to the Helguvitoject, with



the balance principally related to upgrading praidumcequipment, improving facilities and complyingh
environmental requirements. We believe capitahdpeg in 2010, excluding the activity on the Helduproject, will
be approximately $15 million compared to $16.9 imnillin 2009.
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In light of current global financial and economanditions, we continue to review our capital plansl, where
possible, reduce, stop or defer most-critical capital expenditures in our existing staed. We have made and
continue making capital expenditures for the carwdton and development of our Helguvik projectorrinception
through December 31, 2009, we capitalized approtaly&108 million for Helguvik and we have substahfuture
contractual commitments for the Helguvik projetftwe were to cancel the Helguvik project, we woakpect to incur
an additional $25 to $35 million for contract cafat#on costs. We continue to evaluate the Helgyrbject’s cost,
scope and schedule in light of the global econamisgis and recent commodity prices. In addition,ase working to
complete the activities required for a full rest#rtonstruction activity at Helguvik, includingetiinalization of the
contracts with the power suppliers and the confiromeathat they will be in a firm position to fina@@and deliver the
power per an agreed schedule. We expect thaiottiemp of capital expenditures for this projectttixee will fund from
our existing cash and operating cash flow will ppraximately $40 million during 2010; this estimatesumes the
balance of the capital required for the first phasthe Helguvik project will be raised from varmfinancing sources.
See Item 1A, “Risk Factors — Construction at oulgdeik smelter site is under review” included herei

Historical

Our Statements of Cash Flows for the years endeéleer 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 are summarized below

2009 2008 2007
(dollars in thousands)
Net cash provided by (used in ) operating actisitie $ 39,39¢ $(665,43() $ (5,75%)
Net cash used in investing activities (46,217 (159,737) (108,57)
Net cash provided by financing activities 75,64¢ 893,60’ 78,92
Net change in cash $ 68,83« $ 68,43t $ (35,407)

Net cash provided by operating activities in 20@&W839.4 million. Our net cash from operations diaes to tax
refunds offset by operating losses and costs déibed operations in 2009.

Net cash used in operating activities in 2008 wg&b# million, which included a net $266.5 millisaurce of cash
for the sale of short-term investments and a usd.(§15.3 million as payment for the terminatiorfieéd price forward
financial sales contracts. This was partially efffisy increased cash from operations due to imgrpviee realizations
and the additional shipment volume from Grundarntaogpared to the same period in 2007.

Net cash used in operating activities in 2007 wa8 $illion, which included a net $280.2 millioneusf cash for th
purchase of shc-term investments. Such investments generallyyieiher returns than cash or other money market
instruments. If we had not used cash to purchassetinvestments, our net cash from operationsduaaNe increased
due to improved price realizations and the additiehipment volume from Grundartangi compared torgreriods.

Net cash used in investing activities in 2009 w&s.3 million, a decrease of $113.5 million from 800T his
decrease was due primarily to reduced expendifarake Helguvik project and the reduction, defeoracancellation of
all non-critical capital expenditures at our otharelters.

Net cash used in investing activities in 2008 whs957 million, an increase of $51.1 million fromQ0 This
increase was due primarily to higher expendituoedtfe Helguvik project and investments in and adea made to joint
ventures.

Net cash used in investing activities in 2007 wh3836 million, a decrease of $103.4 million fronD80 This
decrease was due primarily to lower expenditureshi® Grundartangi expansion project.
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Net cash provided by financing activities durin@2@vas $75.6 million. We received $103.1 milliomiet
proceeds from the issuance of common stock fromequity offering in February 2009. We repaid $2®i0ion on
our revolving line of credit borrowed in 2008 aralgfinancing fees of $2.4 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities durin@8@vas $893.6 million. We received $929.5 milliomet
proceeds from the issuance of preferred stockmmection with the settlement of fixed price primatyminum
financial sales contracts. We received $443.7ianilin net proceeds from the issuance of commockgtom our
equity offering in July 2008 and the exercise ot&toptions. We used the proceeds of the equigriafy and
available cash to pay $505.2 million to a relatadypfor a deferred settlement associated withtehmination of
financial sales contracts. In addition, we borrd#85.0 million and repaid $10.0 million from oewplving line of
credit and recognized a $0.6 million tax benefinirour share-based compensation programs.

Net cash provided by financing activities durin@2@vas $78.9 million. We received $417.8 milliomiet
proceeds from the issuance of common stock fromequity offering in June 2007 and the exercisaadls
options. We borrowed an additional $30.0 million the Grundartangi expansion project. This amead offset by
principal payments of $369.4 million on Nordurabtevhich included $200.0 million from the proceedshe equity
offering in June 2007.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Our significant accounting policies are discusseNote 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statemefitse
preparation of the financial statements requirasitienagement make judgments, assumptions andagssim
applying these accounting policies. Those judgsarg normally based on knowledge and experienoet glast and
current events and on assumptions about futureggveéritical accounting estimates require managecemake
assumptions about matters that are highly unceatdine time of the estimate and a change in thsts@ates may
have a material impact on the presentation of imantial position or results of operations. Siguaift judgments and
estimates made by our management include expenddmhilities related to pensions and other pogleyment
benefits, deferred tax assets and property, plasheguipment. Our management has discussed tle¢ogevent and
selection of these critical accounting estimatds wie audit committee of our board of directord #re audit
committee has reviewed our disclosure.

Pension and Other Postemployment Benefit Liabilgie

We sponsor several pension and other postemploybesetit plans. Our liabilities under these ddibenefit
plans are determined using methodologies that weveéveral actuarial assumptions, the most sigmfiof which are
the discount rate, health care inflation rate ddldng-term rate of return on plan assets.

Discount Rate Selection

It is our policy to select a discount rate for pases of measuring obligations under defined bepkdiis by
matching cash flows separately for each plan tlwgien zero coupon bonds. We use the CitigrougiBeriLiability
Index for determining these yields.

The Citigroup Pension Liability Index was specifigaleveloped to meet the criteria set forth in BASSC 715
(formerly SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting fBostretirement Benefits Other than Pensions”). giigished
information at the end of each calendar month ohetuspot rate yields (zero coupon bond yield estighan half year
increments for use in tailoring a discount rata fmarticular plan's projected benefit cash flowke Citigroup Pension
Liability Index rate represents the discount rageadoped from these spot rate yields, based opatiern and duration of
the benefit payments of a typical, large, somewfetiure pension plan.
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The individual characteristics of each plan, inahgdprojected cash flow patterns and payment dumafihave been
taken into account, since discount rates are daterhon a plan-by-plan basis. We will generalliesea discount rate
rounded to the nearest 0.25%, unless specificroistances provide for a more appropriate non-rounalecto be
used. We believe the projected cash flows usegtermine the Citigroup Pension Liability Indexergrovide a good
approximation of the timing and amounts of our dedi benefits payments under our plans and no adfnstto the
Citigroup Pension Liability Index rate has been mad

Therefore, as of December 31, 2009, we selecteeighted-average discount rate of 5.75% for allprnsion plans
and a weighted-average discount rate of 5.89%uoother postemployment benefit plans.

A change of a half percentage point in the discoat® for our defined benefit plans would haveftil®wing effects
on our obligations under these plans in 2009:

50 basis 50 basis

Effect of changes in the discount rates on the Pregted Benefit Obligations point point
for: increase  decrease
(dollars in millions)
Pension plans $ (6.3) $ 7.0
Other postemployment benefit (“OPEB”) plans $ (110 % 12.2

Century provides postemployment benefit plans phatide health care and life insurance benefitafportion
of the retired employees of our U.S. based operatidASC 715 requires the accrual of the estimedsti of providing
postretirement benefits during the working careéithose employees who could become eligible feahdaenefits
when they retire. We fund these benefits as theeest submit claims.

Measurement of our postretirement benefit obligeticequires the use of several assumptions abctot$athat
will affect the amount and timing of future bengfédyments. The assumed health care cost trendanatéise most
critical estimates for measurement of the posteetent benefits obligation. Changes in the healtk cost trend rates
have a significant effect on the amounts reportedife health care benefit obligations.

Century assumes medical inflation is initially 108éclining to 5% over six years and thereafteronk-
percentag-point change in the assumed health care cost tegad would have the following effects in 2009:

1% 1%
Increase Decrease
(dollars in millions)
Effect on total of service and interest cost congmis $ 24 $ (2.0)
Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit ohiloga $ 26.2 $ (224

Long-term Rate of Return on Plan assets assumption

We are currently using an 8.0% long-term rate tfrreon plan assets for the development of thepeebddic
cost for the defined benefit pension plans. The was selected by taking into account our expez$sdt mix and is
based on historical performance as well as expdatace rates of return on plan assets.
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Deferred Income Tax Assets

We regularly assess the likelihood that deferre&datsets will be recovered from future taxable imeo To the
extent we believe that it is more likely than riwdtta deferred tax asset will or may not be redliaevaluation
allowance is established. When a valuation all@meds established or increased, an income tax ehaigcluded in
the consolidated financial statements and net aefdax assets are adjusted accordingly. Changée itax laws,
statutory tax rates and future taxable income teweulld result in actual realization of the deféri@x assets being
materially different from the amounts provided iothe consolidated financial statements. If tbal recovery
amount of the deferred tax asset is less thanipatex, we would be required to write-off the reniag deferred tax
asset and increase the tax provision, resultirgreduction of net income and shareholders’ equity.

The amount of a valuation allowance is based upmrbest estimate of our ability to realize the defierred tax
assets. A valuation allowance can subsequentigu®rsed when we believe that the assets areabldipn a more
likely than not basis. We have a valuation alloeeanf $681.1 million against all of our U.S. deéettax assets and a
portion of our Icelandic deferred tax assets d3exfember 31, 2009, due to our assessment thanitris likely thar
not that these assets will not be realized basezlocumulative net losses and unfavorable futuseket conditions.

Property, Plant and Equipment Impairment

We review our property, plant and equipment whenevents or circumstances indicate that the cagrgmount
of these assets (asset group) may not be recoeerdbk carrying amount of the assets (asset gisugt recoverable
if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cashdlexpected to result from the use and eventuabsdispn of the
asset (asset group). In that case, an impairroestwould be recognized for the amount the carrgmgunt exceeds
the fair value of the assets (asset group), wighfdlir value determined using a discounted cash d@iculation. These
estimates of future cash flows include managemeasssimptions about the expected use of the asset @oup), the
remaining useful life, expenditures to maintains#svice potential, market and cost assumptions.

Determination as to whether and how much an assetgaired involves significant management judgment
involving highly uncertain matters, including estitimg the future success of product lines, futatesvolumes,
future selling prices and cost, alternative useshHe assets, and estimated proceeds from thesdispbthe
assets. However, the impairment reviews and cations are based on estimates and assumptionskieanto
account our business plans and long-term investdemisions at the time of such impairment reviews.

We are currently evaluating the Helguvik projecist, scope and schedule, in light of the globahemic crisis
and weakening commodity prices. The aggregataatapipenditures through December 31, 2009 relatédice
Helguvik project were $108 million. In evaluatitige construction in progress at Helguvik, we cossd the costs to
complete the construction and the estimated undiged future cash flows over the estimated usé&ibf Helguvik
and concluded that the undiscounted future casVsflexceed the expected cost of constructing thguwed
project. If we were to not restart constructio, would recognize a loss on our investment atithe that a decisio
were made to abandon the project.

In February 2009, we curtailed the operations efRlavenswood facility. The net carrying valuehaf asset
group at the Ravenswood facility was $73.8 milledrDecember 31, 2009. If the carrying value ofdbget group
were to exceed the fair value of the asset grogpdan the estimated future undiscounted cash fbowsir
assumptions for the use of this facility were tamfe, we would recognize a loss on all or a poxtictme assets at the
time. The estimated future undiscounted cash flasgsime that the operations at the Ravenswoodyaeduld
resume once LME prices for primary aluminum inceeasd are sustained and upon the successful nigotad
execution of certain critical enabling agreemeatgbower and labor.
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Environmental Expenditures

We have incurred and in the future will continuentcur capital expenditures and operating expefganatters
relating to environmental control, remediation, ibamng and compliance.

The aggregate environmental related accrued lisgsilvere $0.8 million and $0.8 million at DecemB#&r 2009
and December 31, 2008, respectively. We beliexedbmpliance with current environmental laws agglitations is
not likely to have a material adverse effect onfonancial condition, results of operations or ligjty; however,
environmental laws and regulations may changewanthay become subject to more stringent environahéaavs and
regulations in the future.

We expect to incur operating expenses relatingntarenmental matters of $10 to $11 million in 201IDhese
amounts do not include any projected capital experes or operating expenses for our joint ventur&ee Item 3 and
Note 18 Commitments and Contingencies to the Cateteld Financial Statements included her

Other Contingencies

We are a defendant in several actions relatin@tmus aspects of our business. While it is impmedd predict the
ultimate disposition of any litigation, we do nadlieve that any of these lawsuits, either indivijuar in the aggregate,
will have a material adverse effect on our finahcandition, results of operations or liquidity.eSkem 3, “Legal
Proceedings” and Note 18 Commitments and Contirigenic the Consolidated Financial Statements irsdutkrein for
additional information.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards Update

Information regarding recently issued accountimgpuncements is included in Note 1 of the Constdia
Financial Statements included herein.

Contractual Obligations

In the normal course of business, we have entetedsarious contractual obligations that will bétleel in cash.
These obligations consist primarily of long-ternibtdebligations and purchase obligations. The etquefuture cash
flows required to meet these obligations are shiovthe table below. More information is availablgout these
contractual obligations in the notes to the Constéid Financial Statements included herein.

Payments Due by Period
Total 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Thereafter
(dollars in millions)

Long-term debt

(1) $ 307 $ — $ 47 $ — $ — $ 252 $ 8
Estimated

interest

payments (2) 101 21 21 21 21 9 8
Purchase

obligations (3) 2,84¢ 557 383 372 311 326 900
OPEB

obligations (4) 121 9 10 11 11 12 68
Other liabilities

(5) 25C 84 67 65 3 3 28
Total $ 3628 % 671 $ 528 $ 469 $ 346 $ 602 $ 1,012
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(1) Long-term debt includes principal repayments on/s86 Notes, the 8.0% Notes, the 1.75% Notes and
the IRBs. Payments are based on the assumptigreitapt for the 1.75% Notes that have an option t
require us to repurchase all or any portion ofersescurities at par in August 2011 , all outstagdiebt
instruments will remain outstanding until theirpestive due dates.

(2) Estimated interest payments on our long-term debbased on several assumptions, including an
assumption that all outstanding debt instrumentsegt the 1.75% Notes, will remain outstandinglunti
their respective due dates. Our estimated futuszaest payments for any debt with a variable aate
based on the assumption that the December 31,r208%or that debt continues until the respective d
date.

(3) Purchase obligations include long-term alumina, grogontracts and anode contracts. Our CAKY power
contract contains a 12 month cancellation causeaiods us to receive credits for unused power that
Big Rivers is able to sell to other parties. Wegumsed that during the contract period, CAKY would
maintain their current production levels and we ldaeceive credits for 50% of the unused power. We
do not include any credits for E.ON contractuakreables. For contracts with LME-based pricing
provisions, including our alumina contracts anddNwal’'s power contracts, we assumed an LME price
consistent with the LME forward market at Decenkir2009.

(4) Includes the estimated benefit payments for our ®BEligations through 2019, which are unfunded.

(5) Other liabilities include our expected remainingtcior the Ravenswood curtailment, SERB benefit
payments, workers' compensation benefit paymesset aetirement obligations and contractual
commitments for the Helguvik project. Expecteddf@rpayments for the SERB plans, which are
unfunded, are included for 2010 through 2019. Asst@ement obligations are estimated disposaiscos
for the potliner in service. Our contractual cortments for the Helguvik projects consist of various
contracts for equipment and services associatddthet project. As of December 31, 2009, the gross
liability for uncertain tax positions under ASC 740-30 (formerly, FIN No. 48) is approximately
$21.2 million. We have not included the uncertaix position obligations in the contractual obligas
table as we cannot provide a reasonable estimakes @iming of future settlements.
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Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Maket Risk

Commodity Price Sensitivity

We are exposed to price risk for primary aluminise manage our exposure to fluctuations in the pfce
primary aluminum by selling aluminum at fixed psder future delivery and through financial instremts. In
addition, we manage our exposure to fluctuatiorsuincosts by purchasing certain of our aluminaEmaler
requirements under supply contracts with pricedtitethe same indices as our aluminum sales castfte LME
price of primary aluminum). Our risk managemeniéots do not include any trading or speculatirensactions

Forward Physical Delivery Agreements

Primary Aluminum Sales Contracts

Contract Customer Volume Term Pricing
Glencore Metal Glencore 20,400 mtpy Through December Variable, based
Agreement (1) 31, 2013 on U.S. Midwest

market
Glencore Sweep Glencore 24,000 mtpy minimum  Through December Variable, based
Agreement (2) 31, 2010 on U.S. Midwest
market
Southwire Metal Southwire 240 million pounds per ye: Through March 31, Variable, based
Agreement (high conductivity molten 2011 on U.S. Midwest
aluminum) market
Southwire Metal Southwire 60 million pounds per yea Through December Variable, based
Agreement (standard-grade molten 31, 2010 on U.S. Midwest
aluminum) market

(1) We account for the Glencore Metal Agreement asiaate/e instrument under ASC 815 (formerly,
SFAS No. 133). Under the Glencore Metal Agreem@mtjng is based on then-current market prices,
adjusted by a negotiated U.S. Midwest premium wittap and a floor as applied to the current U.S.
Midwest premium.

(2) The Glencore Sweep Agreement is for all metal pcedun the U.S. in 2010, less existing sales
agreements and high-purity metal sales. The téritmeocontract may be extended for one year upon
mutual agreement.

Tolling Contracts

Contract Customer Volume Term Pricing
Billiton Tolling Agreement  BHP Billiton 130,000 Through December 31, 201 LME-based
1) mtpy
Glencore Toll Agreement (. Glencore 90,000 mtpy Through July 31, 2016 LME-based

2)
Glencore Toll Agreement (. Glencore 40,000 mtpy Through December 31, 201 LME-based

(1) Grundartangi’s tolling revenues include a premiuasdd on the EU import duty for primary
aluminum. In May 2007, the EU members reducedetiemport duty for primary aluminum from six
percent to three percent and agreed to reviewdtheduty after three years. This decrease in the E
import duty for primary aluminum negatively impa@&sundartangi’s revenues and further decreases



would also have a negative impact on Grundartamgvenues , but it is not expected to have a nateri
effect on our financial position and results of gtiens.

(2) Glencore assigned 50% of its tolling rights undies agreement to Hydro Aluminum through December
31, 2010.
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Apart from the Glencore Metal Agreement, the Gleaceweep Agreement and the Southwire Metal
Agreements, we had forward delivery contracts 26140 metric tons and 84,047 metric tons ofrfany aluminum
at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, regglgctOf these forward delivery contracts, we Hfiadd price
commitments to sell 1,559 metric tons and 330 mébms of primary aluminum at December 31, 2009 @edember
31, 2008, respectively, of which none were withr@tme at December 31, 2009 and 319 metric tons wighe
Glencore at December 31, 2008.

Forwards and Financial Purchase Agreement
Financial Sales Agreement
As of December 31, 2009, we had no fixed pricerfaia primary aluminum sales contracts outstanding.

In September and October 2009, we entered intogoyiraluminum put option and collar contracts tletls
monthly from October 2009 through December 201@tas the LME prices. Our counterparties includenGore, a
related party, and a non-related third party. \@@anted for the put options and collar contrastdexivative
financial instruments with gains and losses inféievalue of the contracts recorded on the codatéid statements of
operations in net gains losses on forward contratke following table shows the primary aluminuat pption
contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2009.

Primary Aluminum option contracts as of December 312009 (in metric tons):

Other
Glencore counterpartie:
Put option contracts, settle monthly through Deoen#®10 60,00( 30,00(
Collar contracts, settle monthly through Decemifsr2(1) — 30,00(

(1) The collar contracts include 30,000 MT of put optanntracts and 30,000 MT of call option contracts.

Financial Purchase Agreement
Natural Gas

To mitigate the volatility of the natural gas maskeve enter into fixed-price financial purchasatcacts,
accounted for as cash flow hedges, which settbtagh in the period corresponding to the intendegeisf natural gas.

We had no forward natural gas financial purchasgraots outstanding at December 31, 2009.
Foreign Currency

We are exposed to foreign currency risk due tadlaions in the value of the U.S. dollar as comgaoethe euro,
the ISK and the Chinese yuan. Grundartangi’'s labets, part of the maintenance costs and othal $eevices are
denominated in ISK and a portion of its anode castsdenominated in euros. As a result, an inereagdecrease in the
value of those currencies relative to the U.S.atollould affect Grundartangi’s operating margihsaddition, we expect
to incur capital expenditures for the constructidthe Helguvik project, although we are curremaluating the
Helguvik project’s cost, scope and schedule intlgftthe global credit crisis and commaodity pricéssignificant portion
of the capital expenditures for the Helguvik projace forecasted to be denominated in currenclesr ¢lhan the U.S.
dollar with a significant portion in ISK.

We may manage our foreign currency exposure byiegteto foreign currency forward contracts. Adecembe
31, 2009, we had no foreign currency forward cangrautstanding.
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Natural Economic Hedges

This quantification of our exposure to the commpgitice of aluminum is necessarily limited, asoed not take
into consideration our inventory or forward deliyeontracts, or the offsetting impact on the salése of primary
aluminum products. Because all of our alumina r@ats$, except for a portion of Hawesville’s alumauatract with
Gramercy, are indexed to the LME price for primalyminum, they act as a natural hedge for approeind4% of our
production. As of February 28, 2010, approxima8496 of our production for 2010 was hedged by ddE-based
alumina contracts and by Grundartangi’s electpealer and tolling contracts.

Risk Management

Our metals, foreign currency and natural gas rigkagement activities are subject to the controldirettion of
senior management. These activities are regulepgrted to Century’s board of directors.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Ggrdluminum Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgimeets of Century Aluminum Company and subsedigthe
"Company") as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, amdetlated consolidated statements of operatioasebkblders'
equity, and cash flows for each of the three yeatise period ended December 31, 2009. Thesediabstatements are
the responsibility of the Company's managementt r€sponsibility is to express an opinion on thiasancial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstias of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBiqUnited
States). Those standards require that we plaparidrm the audit to obtain reasonable assuranoetathether the
financial statements are free of material misstatemAn audit includes examining, on a test basiglence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statesn An audit also includes assessing the acomuptinciples used
and significant estimates made by management, hasvevaluating the overall financial statememsantation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable Basizur opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetag@resent fairly, in all material respects, tinaricial position of
Century Aluminum Company and subsidiaries as ofebdzer 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of tipeirations and
their cash flows for each of the three years inpis@od ended December 31, 2009, in conformity \&itbounting
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsda# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@nited
States), the Company's internal control over fingneporting as of December 31, 2009, based owrtriteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatofrise Treadway
Commission and our report dated March 16, 2010esgad an unqualified opinion on the Company'snaterontrol ove
financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte and Touche LLP

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
March 16, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Ggrdluminum Company:

We have audited the internal control over finangéglorting of Century Aluminum Company and subsid&(the
"Company") as of December 31, 2009, based on exigstablished itnternal Control — Integrated Frameworssued b
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of trea@lwvay Commission. The Company's managementgsenstble fot
maintaining effective internal control over finaakieporting and for its assessment of the effeatss of internal control
over financial reporting, included in the accompagyitem 9A, Internal Control over Financial Repogt Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Canys internal control over financial reporting &a®n our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statedof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@q&nited
States). Those standards require that we plaparidrm the audit to obtain reasonable assuranoetathether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. Our audit includbthining an
understanding of internal control over financigloging, assessing the risk that a material weakagsts, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectivenéss@rnal control based on the assessed riskparfdrming such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the gtanoes. We believe that our audit provides aoredse basis for ot
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed by, or under the supenvigi the company's
principal executive and principal financial offiseor persons performing similar functions, aneéetd by the company
board of directors, management, and other persaomebvide reasonable assurance regarding trebily of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsiéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted
accounting principles. A company's internal colndrcer financial reporting includes those policaasl procedures that |
pertain to the maintenance of records that, inoregsle detail, accurately and fairly reflect thengsactions an
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) idexweasonable assurance that transactions anelegcas necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in adaoce with generally accepted accounting princj@ed that receipt
and expenditures of the company are being madei@gcordance with authorizations of managemedtdarectors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurageeding prevention or timely detection of unauittext acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets thdtldmve a material effect on the financial statetfie

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcolnover financial reporting, including the pogstip of collusion or
improper management override of controls, mateniastatements due to error or fraud may not begorterd or detected
on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evabraof the effectiveness of the internal contreéofinancial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that therodsimay become inadequate because of changesidtitions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedunay deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over fisal reporting as of
December 31, 2009, based on the criteria estallishHaternal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd®ommission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@nited
States), the consolidated financial statementdiaadcial statement schedule as of and for the gaded December 31,
2009 of the Company and our reports dated Marcl2@8) expressed an unqualified opinion on thosnfiral statemen
and financial statement schedule.

/s/ Deloitte and Touche LLP

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
March 16, 2010
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands, except share date
December 31

2009 2008
ASSETS
Cash $ 198,23 $ 129,40(
Restricted cas 8,87¢ 86%
Shor-term investment — 13,68¢
Accounts receivabl— net 37,70¢ 60,85¢
Due from affiliates 19,25t 39,06:
Inventories 131,47: 138,11:
Prepaid and other current ass 93,92: 99,86:
Deferred taxes — current portion — 32,29(
Total current asse 489,46¢ 514,13¢
Property, plant and equipme— net 1,298,28! 1,340,03
Intangible asse— net — 32,52
Due from affiliate< less current portio 5,85¢ 7,59¢
Other assets 68,13 141,06:
TOTAL $ 1,861,750 $ 2,035,35!
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable, trac $ 77,300 $ 102,14
Due to affiliates 32,70¢ 70,95°
Accrued and other current liabilitic 38,59¢ 58,77
Accrued employee benefits co— current portior 12,99; 12,07(
Convertible senior note 43,23¢ 152,70(
Industrial revenue bonc 7,81°% 7,81¢
Total current liabilities 212,65¢ 404,46:
Senior notes payab 247,62¢ 250,00(
Revolving credit facility — 25,00(
Accrued pension benefits co— less current portio 43,28: 50,00¢
Accrued postretirement benefits cc— less current portio 177,23: 219,53¢
Other liabilities 31,60¢ 33,46¢
Deferred taxes 81,62: 71,80¢
Total noncurrent liabilitie: 581,36: 649,81t

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (NOTE 18

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Series A Preferred stock (one cent par value, 500@0shares authorized; 83,45

and 155,787 shares issued and outstanding at Dec&hp2009 and 2008,

respectively’ 1 2
Common stock (one cent par value, 195,000,000 slzarthorized; 92,530,0¢

shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 200900,000 shares

authorized; 49,052,692 shares issued and outstaatiibecember 31, 200 92t 491
Additional paic-in capital 2,501,38! 2,272,12
Accumulated other comprehensive i (74,27 (137,209
Accumulated defici (1,360,31) (1,154,33)
Total shareholde’ equity 1,067,73I 981,08(
TOTAL $ 1,861,750 $ 2,035,35:

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amount:
Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
NET SALES:
Third-party customer $ 668,34« $1,474,81' $1,449,75!
Related parties 230,90¢ 495,96 348,41:
899,25! 1,970,771 1,798,16:
Cost of goods sold 964,91¢ 1,659,15. 1,434,70!
Gross profit (loss (65,667 311,62 363,46
Other operating incom-net (16,089 — —
Selling, general and administrative exper 47,87¢ 48,22: 59,92(
Goodwill impairment — 94,84« _
Operating income (los! (97,456 168,55 303,54
Interest expens- third party (30,390 (31,830 (39,71)
Interest expens- related partie — (1,14 —
Interest incom¢ related partie 572 31¢ —
Interest income third party 1,297 7,481 10,79(
Net loss on forward contrac (19,41Y (744,449 (508,87
Loss on early extinguishment of de (4,71)) — (2,46))
Other expens— net (40) (2,179%) (841)
Loss before income taxes and equity in earningsés) of join
ventures (150,14) (603,24 (237,55
Income tax benefit (expens 12,357 (308,84)  116,32:
Loss before equity in earnings (losses) of joimttuees (137,780 (912,09 (121,23)
Equity in earnings (losses) of joint ventu (68,196 16,90¢ 15,64¢
Net loss $ (205,987 $ (895,18") $ (105,58¢)
LOSS PER COMMON SHARE
Basic and Dilutec $ (279 $ (20.00 % (2.89)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(Dollars in thousands)

Accumulated Retained
Additional Other Earnings Total
Comprehensive Preferred Common Paid-in Comprehensive (Accumulated Shareholders’
Income (Loss) Stock Stock Capital Loss Deficit) Equity

Balance, December
31, 2006 $ — $ 325 $ 464,38: $ (166,572) $ (145,66() $ 152,477
Comprehensive
income (loss) —
2007
Net loss — 2007 $ (105,58¢) (105,58¢) (105,58¢)
Other
comprehensive
income (loss):
Net unrealized
loss on
financial
instruments,
net of $448 ta 7,73C
Net amount
reclassified to
income, net of
$(57,773) tax 82,512
Defined
benefit plans
and other
postretirement
benefits:
Net gain
arising
during the
period, net
of $(15,424)
tax 20,73C
Prior service
cost arising
during the
period, net
of $2 tax 3)
Amortization
of net loss,
net of
$(2,643) tax 3,552
Amortization
of prior
service cost,
net of $612
tax (822)
Change in
equity in
investee other
comprehensivi
income, net of
$(2,229) tax: 1,341
Other
comprehensive
income 115,041 115,041 115,041

Total
comprehensive
income $ 9,45t

Adjustment to



retained earnings
upon adoption of
ASC 740-10-50
(formerly, FIN No.
48) (7,900) (7,900)
Excess tax benefit
from share-based
compensation 588 588
Share-based
compensation
expense 5,962 5,962
Issuance of
common stock —
compensation plar 2 4,904 4,90€
Issuance of
common stock —
equity offering, net 83 414,06 414,14¢
Balance, December
31, 2007 $ — 410 $ 889,90 $ (51,531) $ (259,14¢) $ 579,63¢

Comprehensive
income (loss) —
2008
Net loss — 2008 $ (895,187) (895,187) (895,187)
Other
comprehensive
income (loss):
Net unrealized
loss on
financial
instruments,
net of $0 tax (34,33¢)
Net gain
reclassified to
income, net of
$(2,206) tax (3,442)
Net amount of
foreign
currency cash
flow hedges
reclassified as
income, net of
$0 tax 18,892
Defined
benefit plans
and other
postretirement
benefits:
Net loss
arising
during the
period, net
of $0 tax (62,842)
Amortization
of net loss,
net of
$(1,215) tax 2,17C
Amortization
of prior
service cost,
net of $429
tax (766)

Change in
equity in
investee other
comprehensivi
income, net of



$0 tax:
Other
comprehensive
loss

Total

Excess tax benefit
from share-based
compensation
Share-based
compensation
expense
Issuance of
common stock —
compensation plar
Issuance of
preferred stock
Conversion of
preferred stock to
common stock
Issuance of
common stock —
equity offering, net
Balance, December

31, 2008

(5,35E)

(85,677)

comprehensive los $ (980,86¢)

2

75

657

4,381

6,544

929,47¢

(4)

441,171

(85,677) (85,677)

657

4,381

6,54¢€

929,48(

441,24¢

491 $2,272,12t

(137,208 $ (1,154,33) $ 981,08(
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY (CO NTINUED)
(Dollars in thousands)

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY

Preferred Common

Stock

Additional
Paid-in

Stock Capital

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss

Retained
Earnings

(Accumulated Shareholders

Deficit)

Total

Equity

Balance, December
31, 2008

Comprehensive
income (loss) —
2009
Net loss — 2009 $
Other
comprehensive
income (loss):
Net unrealized
loss on
financial
instruments,
net of $0 tax
Net gain
reclassified to
income, net of
$0 tax
Net amount of
foreign
currency cash
flow hedges
reclassified as
income, net of
$(920) tax
Defined
benefit plans
and other
postretirement
benefits:
Net gain
arising
during the
period, net
of $0 tax
Prior service
cost arising
during the
period, net
of $(0) tax
Amortization
of net loss,
net of $(414
tax
Amortization
of prior
service cost,
net of $121
tax
Change in
equity in
investee other
comprehensivi
income, net of
$0 tax:

(205,987)

(4,31¢)

14,44¢

6,79¢€

36,79¢

9,152

4,17¢

(1,217)

(2,89€)

2

$

491 $2,272,12¢

$ (137,20¢) $ (1,154,33) $

(205,98:)

981,08(

(205,98:)



Other

comprehensive

income 62,93t 62,93¢ 62,93¢
Total
comprehensive los $ (143,04¢)

Issuance of

common stock —

compensation plar 4 607 611
Share-based

compensation

expense 3,942 3,942
Issuance of

common stock in

debt exchange

offering 113 120,981 121,10(
Conversion of

preferred stock to

common stock Q) 72 (71) —
Issuance of
common stock —
equity offering, net 245 103,79¢ 104,041
Balance, December
31, 2009 $ 1 9% 925 $2,501,38¢ $ (74,270) $ (1,360,31Y) $ 1,067,73(

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in thousands)

Year Ended December 3.,

2009 2008 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $ (205,98) $ (895,18 $ (105,58¢)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexviby (used in)
operating activities
Unrealized net loss on forward contra 11,95¢ 602,38¢ 411,02
Unrealized gain on contractual receiva (81,5579 — —
Realized benefit of contractual receiva 26,02t — —
Goodwill impairment — 94,84: —
Write-off of intangible asse 23,75¢ — —
Accrued and other plant curtailment cc— net 9,94( — —
Lower of cost or market inventory adjustm (47,157 55,86¢ —
Depreciation and amortizatic 72,62¢ 84,26¢ 78,06(
Debt discount amortizatic 7,022 7,592 7,071
Deferred income taxe 44,95; 319,060 (134,29
Pension and other post retirement ben 12,95: 16,43( 12,68¢
Stocl-based compensatic 3,33¢ 11,75: 5,96
Non-cash loss on early extinguish and modificationetdft 2,32¢ — 2,461
Non-cash loss from disposition of equity investme 73,23¢ — —
Undistributed earnings of joint ventur (5,03¢) (16,90¢) (15,64%)
Change in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl— net 23,15« 32,59: 19,92(
Purchase of shc-term trading securitie — (106,53) (721,27)
Sale of sho-term trading securitie 13,68¢ 373,01! 441,10:
Due from affiliates 21,62¢ (12,369 10,85(
Inventories 35,76¢ (18,839 (26,080
Prepaid and other current ass 44,84 11,50: (12,540()
Accounts payable, trac (17,59¢) (1,519 18,21:
Due to affiliates (11,967 (1,153,34) 13,18¢
Accrued and other current liabiliti (15,449 (69,729 (16,917
Other— net (3,072) (327) 6,03
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 39,39¢ (665,43) (5,755
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant, and equipn (16,93 (44,209 (23,545
Nordural expansio (21,98) (80,319 (88,764
Investments in and advances to joint vent (1,049 (36,979 —
Payment received on advances from joint vent 1,761 1,75¢ —
Restricted and other cash deposits (8,019 8 3,73¢
Net cash used in investing activiti (46,219  (159,73) (108,57
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings of lon-term debr — — 30,00(
Repayment of lor-term debr — — (369,431
Repayment of lor-term deb+ related part — (505,199 —
Borrowings under revolving credit facili — 35,00( —
Repayment under revolving credit facil (25,000 (20,000 —
Financing fee: (2,429 — —
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic 657 58¢
Issuance of preferred sto — 929,48 —
Issuance of common stock, net 103,07 443,66¢ 417,77:
Net cash provided by financing activiti 75,64¢ 893,60 78,92




CHANGE IN CASH 68,83 68,43¢  (35,40)
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 129,40 60,96, 96,36
CASH, END OF YEAR $ 19823 $ 129,40( $ 60,96

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sharerounts)

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

Organization and Basis of PresentationGentury Aluminum Company (“Century Aluminum,” “Cemy,” “we”,
“us”, “our” or “ours”) is a holding company, whosgeincipal subsidiaries are Century Kentucky, IiNoydural ehf
(“Nordural”), Berkeley Aluminum, Inc. (“Berkeley”and Century Aluminum of West Virginia, Inc. (“Ceny of West
Virginia”). Century Kentucky, Inc. operates a pam aluminum reduction facility in Hawesville, Ketcky
(“Hawesville”). Nordural Grundartangi ehf operateprimary aluminum reduction facility in Grundartg, Iceland
(“Grundartangi”). Century of West Virginia operata primary aluminum reduction facility in RavensdpWest
Virginia (“Ravenswood”). Berkeley holds a 49.7%eirest in a partnership which operates a primamnadum reduction
facility in Mt. Holly, South Carolina (“Mt. Holly”)and a 49.7% undivided interest in the propertgnpland equipment
comprising Mt. Holly. The remaining interest irethartnership and the remaining undivided intarebtt. Holly are
owned by Alumax of South Carolina, Inc., a subsidaf Alcoa. Alumax of South Carolina manages apdrates Mt.
Holly pursuant to an Owners Agreement, prohibiting disposal of the interest held by any of the ensnwithout the
consent of the other owners and providing for eentights of first refusal. Pursuant to the Ownaggeement, each own
furnishes their own alumina, for conversion to alwm, and is responsible for their pro rata shdit® operating and
conversion costs.

We also own a 40% stake in Baise Haohai Carbonl@a. (“BHH"), a carbon anode and cathode facilagated in
the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region of south ChBIdH, in addition to its Chinese customers, sigganodes to
Grundartangi.

In August 2009, we divested our joint venture iagts in the Gramercy alumina refinery, located iar@ercy,
Louisiana (“Gramercy”) and St. Ann Bauxite Limit€&®t. Ann”), a related bauxite mining operationJiamaica.

Prior to our initial public offering, we were andinect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Glencore Intdroaal AG
(together with its subsidiaries, “Glencore”). Ae&mber 31, 2009, Glencore owned 39.1% of Centoytstanding
common stock and all of our outstanding Series Av@dible Preferred stock convertible in certaircemstances into
8,345,200 common shares. Century and Glencore iatevarious transactions such as the purchadeale of primary
aluminum, purchase of alumina, tolling agreements@imary aluminum put option contracts.

Principles of Consolidation —Fhe consolidated financial statements include to®ants of Century Aluminum
Company and our subsidiaries, after eliminatioalb$ignificant intercompany transactions and aoteu Berkeley’'s
interest in the Mt. Holly partnership and our ietgrin the BHH joint venture and our past inteneshe Gramercy and St.
Ann Bauxite joint ventures are accounted for uriderequity method. Our equity in the earningstoA8n Bauxite was
recorded net of Jamaican taxes.

Revenue recognition-Revenue is recognized when title and risk of lassgo customers in accordance with contrac
terms. In some instances, we invoice our custopros to physical shipment of goods. In suchanses, revenue is
recognized only when the customer has specificatiyiested such treatment and has made a commitongmtchase the
product. The goods must be complete, ready f@ansént and physically separated from other invematly risk of
ownership passing to the customer. We must ret@iperformance obligations and a delivery schedulst be obtained.

-060-




Table of Content:

Cash and Cash Equivalents Gash equivalents are comprised of cash, money triankes and short-term
investments having maturities of less than 90 @dayke time of purchase. The carrying amount of eaglivalents
approximates fair value.

Short-term investmentsWe account for short-term investment securitiesdcordance with Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Qodifon (“ASC”) 320 (formerly, Statement of Financial Account
Standard (“SFAS”) No. 115, “Accounting for Certdnvestments in Debt and Equity Securities”). Thesestments
were classified as trading securities and recoatdair value with unrealized holding gains andskssincluded in interest
income.

Accounts Receivable Fhe accounts receivable are net of an allowancerfoollectible accounts of $734 and $1,000
at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Inventories —Our inventories are stated at the lower of cogh@uthe first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method) or mieet.

Property, Plant and Equipment Property, plant and equipment is stated at ¢afditions, renewals and
improvements are capitalized. Asset and accumutigpdeciation accounts are relieved for disposstiwith resulting
gains or losses included in other income (expenSBintenance and repairs are expensed as incWedapitalize
interest for the construction of qualifying asseepreciation of plant and equipment is provideddy the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 14 to 45 year
Machinery and equipment 5to 22 year

We periodically evaluate the carrying value of ldivgd assets to be held and used when eventsianohstances
warrant such a review. The carrying value of a ssply identifiable, long-lived asset is considemagaired when the
anticipated undiscounted cash flow from such asdess than its carrying value. In that evengss lis recognized based
on the amount by which the carrying value excekddgair value of the lontived asset. Fair value is determined prime
using the anticipated cash flows discounted ateaa@ammensurate with the risk involved. We recpgdino impairment
losses on our long-lived fixed assets during 2@098 or 2007.

Goodwill and Intangible AssetAs of December 31, 2009, we had no goodwill orngtale assets.We recorded
$94,844 of goodwill as a result of the acquisitidiNordural in 2004. In the fourth quarter of 200& tested our
goodwill and determined that the goodwill was inmpdi For this analysis, we estimated the fair valiuthe reporting unit
using a discounted cash flow model. Inputs to thadlel include various estimates, such as futuregry aluminum
prices, operating costs, discount rates and cashdbsumptions. Based on our analysis, the imjdiedralue of goodwil
was less than its carry value and a non-cash imeair charge of $94,844 was recorded on the statesheperations in
the fourth quarter of 2008.

Our intangible asset consisted of the power cohtreguired in connection with our acquisition Hawks. We
entered into a new power agreement at Hawesvilllellyy 2009 and wrote-off the remaining $23,759 gaidfithe
intangible asset at that time. As of Decembe2BD8, the gross carrying amount of the intangibkeawas $155,986
with accumulated amortization of $123,459.
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For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 ard a6tbrtization expense for the intangible asgated $8,769,
$15,076 and $13,991, respectively.

Other Assets -Other assets consist primarily of Century’s investirin the Mt. Holly partnership, investments in
joint ventures, deferred financing costs, casheswder value of life insurance policies and opegatiraintenance supplit
not expected to be consumed within the year. Ouitgghare of the undistributed earnings (lossjaases (decreases)
investment in the joint ventures. Deferred finagaosts are amortized on a straight-line basés tw life of the related
financial instrument.

We account for our 49.7% interest in the Mt. Hgdbrtnership using the equity method of accountiadditionally,
our 49.7% undivided interest in certain propertgnpand equipment of Mt. Holly is held outsidetioé partnership and
the undivided interest in these assets of theifiagsl accounted for in accordance with the FASBCASL0-10-45-14
(formerly, EITF Issue No. 00-01, “Investor Balarfsieeet and Income Statement Display under the Elethhod for
Investments in Certain Partnerships and Other \festy Accordingly, the undivided interest in thesssets and the
related depreciation are being accounted for oropgutionate gross basis.

In 2009, we transferred our joint venture investta@ém Gramercy and St. Ann Bauxite to Noranda Alwmia Holding
Corporation (together with its consolidated sulzsids, “Noranda”) .See Note 10 Gramercy and St. Ann Bauxite Tra
for additional information.

Income Taxes -We account for income taxes using the liability noet, whereby deferred income taxes reflect thi
tax effect of temporary differences between theywag amounts of assets and liabilities for finaheceporting purposes
and the amounts used for income tax purposes.diuating our ability to realize deferred tax assets use judgment in
considering the relative impact of negative andtp@sevidence. The weight given to the potentifée of negative and
positive evidence is commensurate with the extemttich it can be objectively verified. Based be tveight of
evidence, both negative and positive, if it is mideely than not that some portion or all of a dedel tax asset will not be
realized, a valuation allowance is established. hatee a valuation allowance of $651,489 and $53e@inst a portion
of our federal and state deferred tax assets Beaémber 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, duertb@lief that it is mor:
likely than not that these assets will not be meali We recorded a valuation allowance of $29845$19,206 against a
portion of our Icelandic and Hong Kong NOL defertad assets as of December 31, 2009 and Decemp20@3,
respectively, due to our belief that it is moreslikthan not that these assets will not be realized

We have removed our election to permanently reinfiaesign earnings for 2009 and 2008. We did atnge the
election in place for years prior to December 3072 The cumulative amount of foreign undistrilouteet earnings for
which no deferred taxes have been provided was,$80%t December 31, 2009. Management has no faatistribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. See Nbtacome Taxes for additional information.

Postemployment Benefits We provide certain postemployment benefits to forarel inactive employees and their
dependents during the period following employmbnt,before retirement. These benefits include galantinuance,
supplemental unemployment and disability healthddostemployment benefits are accounted for inrdecwe with AS(
712 (formerly, SFAS No. 112, “Employers’ Accountiftg Postemployment Benefits”). The statement iregu
recognition of the estimated future cost of pravgdpostemployment benefits on an accrual basistbeeactive service
life of the employee.

Forward Contracts and Financial InstrumentsWe routinely enter into fixed and market pricedtcacts for the sale
of primary aluminum and the purchase of raw malemafuture periods. We also enter into fixedcprfinancial sales
contracts, put option and collar contracts to liegkin cash to manage our exposure to changiimggpy aluminum
prices. We have also entered into financial pureltastracts for natural gas to be settled in cashanage our exposu
to changing natural gas prices. See Note 19 foitiadal information about these contracts.

Certain physical delivery and financial sales cactis for primary aluminum that are not designatshdlow hedges
or do not qualify for cash flow hedge treatmentrmgrked-to-market quarterly. Fluctuations in tlmdon Metal
Exchange (“LME”) price of primary aluminum may haaeignificant impact on gains and losses includesir financial
statements from period to period. We recognizeutirealized and realized gains and losses assowidtie these
contracts in net gain (loss) on forward contra@se Note 19 for additional information about anafficial sales contrac



for primary aluminum
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Foreign Currency -We are exposed to foreign currency risk due tadlatons in the value of the U.S. dollar as
compared to the euro, the Icelandic krona (“ISKi)ldhe Chinese yuan. Nordural ehf uses the U l&ardss its
functional currency, however a portion of the ofiagaexpenses of the Nordural facility at Grundiagisare
denominated and payable in currencies other that8. dollar. Grundartangi’s labor and certalmeotocal costs are
denominated in ISK and a portion of its anode castsdenominated in euros. Transactions denondgimateurrencies
other than the functional currency are recorde@das exchange rates at the time such transaci@esand any
transaction gains and losses are reflected in atkeme (expense) in the Consolidated StatemerDpefations. In
addition, our joint venture investment in BHH u#ies Chinese yuan as its functional currency. BEllddcounted for
under the equity method and gains and losses assdavith foreign currency exchange rates are dezlun equity in
earnings of joint ventures.

Financial Instruments —-Our receivables, payables and debt related to indusevenue bonds (“IRBs”) are carried at
amounts that approximate fair value. The followiagle provides the carrying amounts and approxrfet value (base
the last available trading data) of our 8.0% senaies due 2014 (the “8.0% Notes”), our 7.5% semnsecured notes due
2014 (the “7.5% Notes”) and our 1.75% convertildrisr notes due 2024 (the “1.75% Notes”). The 8N8tes were
issued in December 2009.

December 31, 20C December 31, 20C
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value  amount Fair value

8.0% senior notes due 20 $ 240,67¢ $ 237,19 $ — $ —
7.5% senior unsecured notes due 2 6,94¢ 6,94¢ 250,00( 145,00(
1.75% convertible senior notes due 2| 43,23¢ 45,00¢ 152,70( 94,62

Concentration of Credit Risk Financial instruments, which potentially expos@aisoncentrations of credit risk,
consist principally of trade receivables and shemnn investments. Our limited customer base irsge@ur concentratio
of credit risk with respect to trade receivable® kutinely assess the financial strength of ostamers. At December
31, 2008, we had approximately $13,686 investezhort-term investments of highly-rated municipahtt®. The risk
associated with these investments is a defaulhéyhderlying issuer. As of December 31, 2009haeno short-term
investments.

Use of Estimates —Fhe preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requirasagement to make estimates and assumptions téeit thie reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosufesmatingent assets and liabilities at the datitheffinancial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expeunseg the reporting period. Actual results coultfetifrom those
estimates.

Stock-Based Compensation\We use the Black-Scholes option-pricing model toreste the fair value of our stock
option grants and servidesed share awards on the grant date of the shard.alnformation about our assumptions t
to determine the fair value of the grants in 2038 and 2007 is available in Note 15 Share-bassdp&nsation.

Recently Issued Accounting Standard&/e-evaluate the impact of FASB accounting standapdstes (“ASUS”)
issued. When the adoption or planned adoptioea#ntly issued ASUs will potentially have a matdrigact on our
consolidated financial position, results of openasi, and cash flows, we disclose the quantitatieecpalitative effects of
the adoption in our consolidated financial statetsien
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Recently Adopted Accounting Standards— ASC 4700 .January 1, 2009 we adopted ASC 200dormerly, FASE
Staff Position (“FSP”) APB 14-1Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments ThatyMBe Settled in Cash up
Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement)hich fundamentally changes the accounting for eotible dekb
instruments within its scope. Upon adopting AS©O-20, we separately accounted for the liability aqdigy componen
of the convertible debt instruments in a mannet tégects the entitys hypothetical nonconvertible borrowing rate wi
required retrospective application to prior perio@ur Form 8K filed on October 21, 2009 gave effect to
retrospective application of this accounting stadda

ASC 715-20 (formerly FSP FAS 132(R)-1) December 2008, the FASB issued FSP 132(Rghployers’
Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit Plan ASsehich was included in the FASB Codification aS®@ 715-
20. ASC 715-20 amends general accounting prirgifgleretirement benefits to provide guidance orelployer’s
disclosures about plan assets of a defined bgregigion or other postretirement plan. This guidaaéntended to ensure
that an employer meets the objectives of the dsscks about plan assets in an emplaydefined benefit pension or otl
postretirement plan to provide users of finandialesnents with an understanding of the followiri)) how investmen
allocation decisions are made; (2) the major categ®f plan assets; (3) the inputs and valuatehrniques used to
measure the fair value of plan assets; (4) theeffefair value measurements using significanthssovable inputs on
change in plan assets, and; (5) significant comaBahs of risk within the plan assets. ASC 71520omes effective for
Century on December 31, 2009. ASC 715-20 reqenésnced disclosures, which are provided in NotBdrakion and
Other Postretirement Benefits.

ASU 2010-09The FASB has amended its guidance on subsequemtisdeeremove the requirement for SEC filers (as
defined in ASU 2010-09) to disclose the date thiowdpich an entity has evaluated subsequent evditiis. change
alleviates potential conflicts with current SECdpance. ASU 2010-09 addresses financial disclosareswe have
determined that ASU 2010-09 will not have any intfgacour financial position, results of operatiansash flows.

2. Managemen’s plan

We have incurred net losses each year since 2@DBathan accumulated deficit of $1,360,315 as akebder 31,
2009. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2002007, we sustained net losses of $205,982, $8B%and
$105,586, respectively. Our financial position déigdidity have been and may continue to be matgraaversely
affected by low aluminum prices as compared toomgt of production.

Our principal sources of liquidity are availableskacash flow from operations and available borngwiunder our
revolving credit facility. We will continue to elgre alternative or supplementary financing arranegets to the revolvin
credit facility. Our principal uses of cash arading of operating costs (including postemploynteerefits), maintenanc
of idled production facilities, payments of prinai@nd interest on our outstanding debt, the fundincapital
expenditures, working capital and other genergba@te requirements.

We believe our cost reduction actions, when contbimigh available cash at December 31, 2009, provglith
adequate liquidity for 2010.

3. Long-term power contract for Hawesville

To secure a new, long-term power contract for primary aluminum smelter in Hawesville, Kentucky &uly 16,
2009, our wholly owned subsidiary, Century AluminofrKentucky (* CAKY”) along with E.ON U.S. (“‘E.ON"and Big
Rivers Energy Corporation (“Big Rivers”) , agreedan “unwind” of the former contractual arrangemiegiiween Big
Rivers and E.ON and entered into a new arrange(tiigt Rivers Agreement”) to provide long-term cdsdsed power to
CAKY. The term of the Big Rivers Agreement is thgbu2023 and provides adequate power for Haweswifidl
production capacity requirements (approximately dfyawatts“MW”)) with pricing based on the provider’s cost of
production. The Big Rivers Agreement is t-or-pay for Hawesville’s energy requirements ak fjubduction. Under the
terms of the agreement, any power not required &yesville would be available for sale and we waelckive credits fc
actual power sales up to our cost for that power.
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E.ON has agreed to mitigate a significant portibths near-term risk through December 2010. Dgitims time, to
the extent Hawesville does not use all the powedeuthe take-or-pay contract, E.ON will, with sohn@tations, assume
CAKY's obligations. As part of this arrangementQHE will pay up to approximately $81,500 to CAKY time form of
direct payments to Big Rivers under the Big Rivégseement to provide price protection which effeely results in
CAKY paying prices which approximate the previoosttact prices and volume protection which effegjrresults in
CAKY having the ability to receive credits for quiies of power without sustaining a loss. At Hawie's current
production rate, Hawesville would receive the etyirof these economic benefits during 2010. Tcetktent the aggrege
payments made by E.ON exceed the approximately6®8Ilcommitment, Hawesville would repay this exdeds.ON
over time, but only if the LME aluminum price wdmeexceed certain thresholds.

As the previous power contract was designatedrasraal contract under ASC 815 (formerly SFAS Nd3,13
“Accounting for Derivatives), in the third quartet 2009 when it became no longer probable that weldvcontinue to
take physical delivery of the power under the prasicontract, we recorded approximately $80,722 foontractual
receivable from E.ON representing the net presaluevof the consideration provided to CAKY from Bl@ net
settle the previous contract, wrote off a $23, 88ngible asset associated with the former powetract and
recorded a $56,964 net gain on this transactioounrtonsolidated statements of operations in atperating income
- net.

The new power contract has been designated asvahpurchase contract under ASC 815. Unlike tleeipus
power contract that was a fixed price contract whbke purchase price of power was below markeegnathout ar
explicit net settlement provision, the Big RivergrBement is a cost-based contract that is not ¢éagéc have any
significant value and is with a regulated poweregator. While the Big Rivers Agreement is a takgay contract,
where we may net settle any unused power with BigiRR, we would only receive credits up to our dostsuch
power sales and would not profit on any sales nadxd®e our cost for such power under the curretiele made
under the Big Rivers Agreement.

4. Curtailment of operations — Ravenswood and Hawesuvills

In December 2008, our subsidiary, Century AlumimfriVest Virginia, Inc. (‘CAWV"), issued a conditiahWorker
Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act (“WARNT)otice at its Ravenswood, West Virginia smeltéatesl to a
curtailment of plant operations in 60 days. Simatausly with the issuance of the WARN, CAWV bedaa immediate
curtailment of one of its four potlines which wasmpleted by December 20, 2008. In 2008, we incucrgtailment cost
of $1,667 for this partial curtailment at CAWV.

In February 2009, we announced the curtailment®fémaining plant operations at Ravenswood. lfayof the
majority of Ravenswood's employees were also cammgle February 2009. The decision to curtail afiens was due to
the relatively high operating cost at Ravenswoatithe depressed global price for primary aluminum.

In March 2009, CAKY announced the curtailment oé gotline at Hawesville. Hawesville has productapacity of
approximately 244,000 metric tons per year (“mtpyf’primary aluminum from five potlines. The potlioartailment wa:
completed in March 2009. The action reduced pynaéuminum production by approximately 49,000 ntetons per
year.
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We incurred curtailment charges of $41,710 duri@@®and reported these charges in other operataugyie - net in
the consolidated statements of operations. Thenapf the curtailment charges related to Ravesmiv The
components of the curtailment costs for the 20@%arfollows:

Year

ended
Decembel
31, 2009
Severance/employ-related cos $ 22,04¢
Alumina contrac- spot sales net loss 1,44¢
Alumina contract amendment cc 6,00(
Power/other contract termination co 6,332
Ongoing site cost 18,23:
Pension plan curtailment adjustm: 2,47¢
OPEB plan curtailment adjustme (14,830
Net expens: $ 41,71

Cash curtailment expenditures to date

Cash
payments

through
Decembel
31, 2009
Curtailment of operations at Ravenswood and Kent $ 22,30(
Ongoing idling costs at Ravenswo 9,30(
Contract termination and amendment ct 15,10(
Total $ 46,70(

5. Equity offerings
February 2009 Offering

In February 2009, we completed a public offerin@4f500,000 shares of common stock at a price &0Bder share,
raising $110,250 before offering costs. The offgrtosts were approximately $6,209, representimigwriting discount
and commissions and offering expenses.

July 2008 Offering

In July 2008, we completed a public equity offerafdg/,475,000 shares of common stock, which inauidthe exercise
of the over-allotment option of 975,000 sharesarhmon stock, at a price of $62.25 per share, i$#65,319 before
offering costs. The offering costs were approxehea$24,073, representing underwriting discount$ @mmissions and
offering expenses.

6. Fair value measurements

ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosur@srimerly, SFAS No. 157) defines fair value, efisdies a
framework for measuring fair value, and expandsldsires about fair value measurements. This procement applies
to a broad range of other existing accounting pumcements that require or permit fair value measargs. ASC 820
defines fair value as “the price that would be nese to sell an asset or paid to transfer a ligbiti an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement dasgr value is an exit price and that exit preteuld reflect all the
assumptions that market participants would useioing the asset or liability.
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ASC 820 recognizes three different valuation teghes; the market approach, income approach, acdgbr
approach. Valuation techniques used for fair vaheasurements are based upon observable and uvetdtiser
inputs. Observable inputs reflect market datainbthfrom independent sources, while unobservaigets reflect our
internal market assumptions. These two typesmitsicreate the following fair value hierarchy:

« Level 1 — Valuations are based on quoted priceglatical assets or liabilities in an active méarke

« Level 2-Valuations are based on quoted prices for simgaets or liabilities in active markets; quoted gsitor
identical or similar assets or liabilities in matkéhat are not active; and model-derived valuation which all
significant inputs are observable or can be comated by observable market de

« Level 3- Assets or liabilities whose significant inputs arebservable. Valuations are determined usingny
models and discounted cash flow models and inal@eagement judgment and estimation which may be
significant.

Our fair value measurements include the consideratf market risks that other market participanighiconsider in
pricing the particular asset or liability, speciily nor-performance risk and counterparty credit risk.n§lderation of the
non-performance risk and counterparty credit rigkwessed to establish the appropriate risk-adjudiszbunt rates used in
our fair value measurements.

The following section describes the valuation mdtiiogy used to measure our financial assets ahifliti@s that wer
accounted for at fair value.

Short-term InvestmentsOur short-term investments held at December 318 200 sisted of tax-exempt municipal
bonds. The market value of these investmentsssdapon their quoted market price in marketsahanot actively
traded. At December 31, 2009, we did not hold tstesm investments.

Derivatives. Our derivative contracts have included natues fprward financial purchase contracts, foreigmemncy
forward contracts, primary aluminum forward physidalivery and financial sales contracts, the Raweod powe
contract, primary aluminum put option contracts amidnary aluminum collar contracts (a combinatidnagput optiol
contract and a call option contract). We deteruhitiee fair value of the put and collar contractsxgisa BlackSchole
model with market data provided by an independentce. For our other contracts, we measure thievédiie of thes
contracts based on the quoted future market p(itevailable) at the reporting date in their respes principal marke
for all available periods. For contracts in excestvelve month we use discounted cash flows ftbase contracts usi
a risk-adjusted discount rate. Primary aluminum forwangtgical delivery contracts that are accounted foderivative
are marked-tonarket using the LME spot and forward market foimary aluminum and the U.S. Midw
Premium. Because there is no quoted futures markeg for the U.S. Midwest premium component af tharket pric
for primary aluminum, it is necessary for managenterestimate the U.S. Midwest premium based orhtb@rical U.S
Midwest premium. Prior to the termination of thenpary aluminum forward financial sales contragtsJuly 2008, th
term of one of these contracts extended beyondjtiked LME futures market. We estimated the falug of the
contract by making certain assumptions about futotagket prices of primary aluminum beyond the qddt®E marke
prices. These future market assumptions were fgignt to the fair value measurements. The Ravenswpowe
contract derivative is valued based in part onlthi= forward market. In September and October 2Q@9 entered int
primary aluminum put option and collar contractttbettle monthly from October 2009 through Decan204.0 based ¢
LME prices. We determine the fair value of the pptions and collar contracts using quoted marlkdties from a
independent source.

Fluctuations in the market prices for our primaiynanum forward financial sales contracts had aificant impact
on net gains and losses from forward contractsided in our financial statements until they werenieated in July
2008. Unrealized gains and losses for these pyigaminum forward financial sales contracts weduded in net loss
on forward contracts.
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Upon the transfer of our joint venture investmenGramercy in the third quarter of 2009, we discared cash flow
hedge treatment for our natural gas forward finamirchase contracts because the originally fetedanatural gas
transactions would not occur during the originalbecified time periods. We accounted for theséraots as derivative
instruments at the time it was determined the fasted transactions would not occur and markeddheacts to
market. In accordance with ASC 815, the changéisarfair value of these contracts were recordetierconsolidated
statements of operations in loss on forward cotgrac

Fair Value Measurements

The following table sets forth by level within tA&SC 820 fair value hierarchy our financial assetd Babilities that
are accounted for at fair value on a recurringsasis required by general accounting principleddo value
measurements and disclosures, financial assetisadiidies are classified in their entirety basauthe lowest level of
input that is significant to the fair value measneat. Our assessment of the significance of acpéat input to the fair
value measurement requires judgment, and may dffeataluation of fair value assets and liabilitesl the placement
within the fair value hierarchy levels.

Recurring Fair Value Measurements As of December 31, 200
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ASSETS:
Primary aluminum put option contra $ — 3 1,83¢ $ — 3 1,83¢
Power contract — — 101 101
TOTAL $ — $ 1,83¢ $ 101 $ 1,94(
LIABILITIES:
Derivative liabilities $ — 3 (1,767 $ 1,739 $ (3,49¢6)
Recurring Fair Value Measurements As of December 31, 200
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ASSETS:
Shor-term investment $ — 13,68¢ $ — $ 13,68¢
Power contract — — 2,20z 2,20z
TOTAL $ — 3 13,68t $ 2,20z $ 15,88¢
LIABILITIES:
Derivative liabilities $ (10,130 $ — (1,759 $ (11,889

Change in Level 3 Fair Value Measurements during tl years ended December 3

Derivative
liabilities/assets
2009 2008

Beginning balance January $ 443 $ (1,070,29)
Total loss (realized/unrealized) included in eagsi (4,717 (890,447
Settlements 2,64z 1,961,17!
Ending balance, December 31, $ (1,637 $ 443
Amount of total loss included in earnings attrithiéato the change in unrealized (gains) losses

relating to assets and liabilities held at Decenddg $ 1912 $ 774,53
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7. Derivative instruments and hedging
The following table provides the fair value andamade sheet classification of our derivatives:

Fair Value of Derivative Assets and Liabilities
December December

Balance sheet locatiot 31, 2009 31, 2008

ASSETS:

Primary aluminum put option contrac Due to affiliates $ 1,83¢ $ —

Power contract Prepaid and other assets 101 2,20z
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,94C $ 2,207
LIABILITIES:

Natural gas forward financial contras Accrued and other current liabilitic ~ $ — $ (10,130

Primary aluminum collar option contrac Accrued and other current liabiliti (1,769 —

Calcined petroleum coke contra Accrued and other current liabiliti (1,019 —

Aluminum sales premium contrac current portior Accrued and other current liabilitir (281) (1,256

Aluminum sales premium contracts — less curren

portion Other liabilities (433 (509
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ (3496 $ (11,889

The following table provides changes in our accwatad other comprehensive loss for our derivatikias qualified fo
cash flow hedge treatment:

Year ended December 31, 2009

Amount of
loss
recognized
in OCl on
derivative,
net of tax
(effective  Loss reclassified from OCI to income Loss recognized in income o
portion) on derivatives (effective portion) derivative (ineffective portion)
Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward Net loss on forward
contracts (1 $ (1,06¢)  Cost of goods sol $ (6,142) contracts $ 1,701

(1) We had no foreign currency forward contracts ofap outstanding at December 31, 2009 or Decembe2(®8. We settle
our foreign currency forward contract contract©ictober 2008.

Natural gas forward financial contracts

To mitigate the volatility of the natural gas maskave enter into fixed-price forward financial pboase contracts
which settle in cash in the period correspondinth&intended usage of natural gas. These fora@mttacts were
previously designated as cash flow hedges. Upetrémsfer of our joint venture investment in Gracyehe
originally forecasted transactions will not occyrtbe end of originally specified time periods sash, we
discontinued cash flow hedge treatment in Septe@@@® and account for these contracts as derivative
instruments. These contracts had maturities thrdNmvember 2009.
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Foreign currency forward contracts

As of December 31, 2009, we had no foreign curréanyard contracts outstanding. We are exposddraagn
currency risk due to fluctuations in the valuels# U.S. dollar as compared to the ISK, the eurd,the Chinese
yuan. The labor costs, maintenance costs and lotterservices at Grundartangi are denominaté8knand a
portion of its anode costs are denominated in eufssa result, an increase or decrease in thee\althose currencie
relative to the U.S. dollar would affect Grundagés operating margins. In addition, we expecincur additional
capital expenditures for the construction of a anynaluminum facility in Helguvik, Iceland (the “Hgivik project”),
although we are currently evaluating the Helguvigjgct’s cost, scope and schedule. A significamtipn of the
future capital expenditures for the Helguvik projace forecasted to be denominated in currenclesr ¢han the U.S.
dollar with a significant portion in ISK.

We manage our foreign currency exposure by enténiogforeign currency forward contracts when mamagnt
deems such transactions appropriate. We had fooeigency forward contracts to manage the curreisgy
associated with Grundartangi operating costs amdHeiguvik project capital expenditures. Thesdramts were
designated as cash flow hedges, qualified for hedgeunting under ASC 815 and had maturities tHrdegptember
2009. As of December 31, 2009, we had no foreigreacy forward contracts outstanding.

The realized gain or loss on our foreign currermwbrd contracts cash flow hedges for Grundartapgrating
costs was recognized in income as part of ourafogbods sold. The realized gain or loss for astcflow hedges for
the Helguvik project capital expenditures were atglated in other comprehensive income and willdmassified to
earnings when the project is completed as pahetiepreciation expense of the capital assets.

In October 2008, following the appreciable devaaravof the ISK versus the U.S. dollar, we reachedgreement
with our counterparties and settled the remainarg/érd contracts that extended through Septemi@3.20

We recognized losses of approximately $1,701, &lband $0 in the year ended December 31, 2009, 2008
2007, respectively, on the ineffective portionsha forward contracts for the forecasted Helguvidgct capital
expenditures. These losses are recorded in reebtoforward contracts in our consolidated statemeh
operations. The ineffective portion of these faveontracts represents forward contract positiorexcess of the
revised forecast schedule of Helguvik project am@kpenditures.

Power contracts

We are party to a power supply agreement at Ravarsthat contains LME-based pricing provisions dratan
embedded derivative. The embedded derivative doequalify for cash flow hedge treatment and isked to
market quarterly. Based on our expected powerausagr the remaining term of the contract which eeended in
2009, gains and losses associated with the embetia@tive are recorded in net loss on forwardi@mts in the
consolidated statements of operations. We hawrded a derivative asset of $101 and $2,202 foethkedded
derivative at December 31, 2009 and December 318,2@spectively.

Primary aluminum put option and collar contracts

In September and October 2009, we entered intogpyirmluminum put option contracts and collar carisa
(combination of a put and a call options) thatleettonthly from October 2009 through December 204€ed on LME
prices. The option contract volumes account f@aragmately 60% of Hawesvil's current production level through
2010 with a strike price around the facility’s cdmtsis break-even price. These options were psecht partially
mitigate the risk of a future decline in aluminuncps.
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Our counterparties include Glencore, a relatedypartd a non-related party. We paid a cash prenxuemter into
the put option contracts and recorded a short-geset in due from affiliates on the consolidatddrze sheets. The
collar contracts were entered into at no initiadtdo Century. We determined the fair value ofgbeand collar
contracts using a Black-Scholes model with mark ¢provided by an independent source and accouttid
contracts as derivative financial instruments widns and losses in the fair value of the contnaterded on the
consolidated statements of operations in net lossdésrward contracts.

Calcined petroleum coke contract

Amendments to our 2009 calcined petroleum cokeraonhtontain pricing provisions based on monthlgrage LME
prices. Because the average LME exceeded ceetafs| specified, we became obligated to pay artiaddl amount fo
each metric ton delivered in 2009. We expect taiirthis obligation in the first quarter of 2010.

Aluminum sales premium contracts

We had a physical delivery contract with Glencane50,000 mtpy of primary aluminum through DecentbEr
2009 with variable, LME-based pricing. We accodrta this agreement as a derivative instrumeneud®&C 815
(formerly SFAS No0.133). We did not designate tuatract as “normal” because it replaced and wasgbatitute for a
significant portion of a sales contract which dat gualify for this designation. Because this cacit was variably
priced, we did not expect significant variabilityits fair value, other than changes that mightltdsom the absenc
of the U.S. Midwest premium. Gains and lossesherderivative were based on, (1) the differencevéen a
contracted U.S. Midwest premium and the actual WiBlwest premium at settlement, and (2) the diffieeebetween a
contracted U.S. Midwest premium and a forecashefd.S. Midwest premium for future periods. Setdéats are
recorded in related party sales. Unrealized ggasses) based on forecasted U.S. Midwest premarmsecorded in
net loss on forward contracts on the consolidata@ents of operations.

The Glencore Metal Agreement is a physical delivamgtract for 20,400 mtpy of primary aluminum thgbu
December 31, 2013 with variable, LME-based pricikinder the Glencore Metal Agreement, pricing isdghon
market prices, adjusted by a negotiated U.S. Mitlywe=mium with a cap and a floor as applied todineent U.S.
Midwest premium. We account for the Glencore Maigdeement as a derivative instrument under ASC &3&ins
and losses on the derivative are based on thealiite between the contracted U.S. Midwest premmnaatual and
forecasted U.S. Midwest premiums. Settlementsearerded in related party sales. Unrealized géasses) based on
forecasted U.S. Midwest premiums are recorded ihass on forward contracts on the consolidatetéstants of
operations.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instrument:
Gain (loss) recognized in income from derivative
December December

Location 31, 2009 31, 2008

Power contrac Net loss on forward contrac $ (1,939 % 2,20z
Primary aluminum put option and coll

contracts Net loss on forward contrac (20,977 —
Natural gas forward contracts ( Net loss on forward contrac (1,42)) —
Calcined petroleum coke ( Cost of goods sol (1,019 —
Foreign currency forward contrac Net loss on forward contrac (1,70)) 15,75(
Aluminum sales premium contrac Related party sale 4,02¢ 3,36¢
Aluminum sales premium contrac Net loss on forward contrac (577 752
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(1) We used discontinued cash flow hedge treatmerdgdonatural gas forward contracts after the transf
our joint venture investments in Gramercy in thedtiquarter of 2009. Contract settlements pricthe
transfer were included in cost of goods sold; amttsettlements after the transfer were includetein
loss on forward contracts.

(2) Amendments to our 2009 calcined petroleum cokeraohtontain pricing provisions based on monthly
average LME prices. Because the average LME exckesttain levels specified, we became obligated
to pay an additional amount for each metric torivéedd in 2009. We expect to incur this obligation
the first quarter of 2010.

We had the following outstanding forward contrabtst were entered into that were not designatdobdging
instruments:

December December

31, 2009 31, 2008
Power contract (in megawatt hours (“MWH")) (1) 8,760 1,066,00(
Primary aluminum sales contract premium (metricjd@) 81,60C 152,00C
Primary aluminum put option contracts (metric tons) 90,000 —
Primary aluminum collar option contracts (metringp(3) 30,000 —

Calcined petroleum coke (4) — —

(1) We mark the Ravenswood power contract to marketcdan our expected usage during the remaining
term of the contract. In September 2009, the WeasfiMa Public Service Commission (“PSC”)
extended the term of this contract for an additigear.

(2) Represents the remaining physical deliveries unde2013 Glencore Metal Agreement.
(3) The collar contracts include 30,000 MT of put optanntracts and 30,000 MT of call option contracts.

(4) Amendments to our 2009 calcined petroleum cokeraonhtontain pricing provisions based on
monthly average LME prices. If the average LMEea®ds certain levels specified in the contract
amendment, we will be obligated to pay a premiunefch metric ton delivered in 2009. We expect
that the LME trigger prices will be reached in thist quarter of 2010.

Counterparty credit risk. The primary aluminum put option and collar coatsaare subject to counterparty credit
risk. However, we only enter into forward finar@antracts with counterparties we determine teieglitworthy at
the time of entering into the contract. If any otarparty failed to perform according to the tewhghe contract, the
impact would be limited to the difference betwele@ tontract price and the market price appliethéocbntract
volume on the date of settlement.

As of December 31, 2009, an accumulated other celnemsive loss of $4,809 is expected to be recledsid
earnings over the next 12-month period.
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8. Debt

December 31

2009 2008

Debt classified as current liabilitie

1.75% convertible senior notes due 2024, net of dslcount of $3,828 ar

$22,300, respectively, interest payable semiamn(H) $ 43,23¢ $ 152,70(

Hancock County industrial revenue bonds due 20#8rest payable quartel

(variable interest rates (not to exceed 12%), 7,81¢ 7,81¢
Debt classified as n-current liabilities:

8.0% senior secured notes payable due May 15, 20tbdest payable

semiannually, net of debt discount of $4,800 240,67¢ —

7.5% senior unsecured notes payable due Augu013, interest payable

semiannually (2 6,94¢ 250,00(

Revolving credit facility — 25,00(
Total debt $ 298,67¢ $ 435,51!

(1) The convertible notes are classified as currenalise they are convertible at any time by the holdée
IRBs are classified as current liabilities becailnsy are remarketed weekly and could be requirdgbto
repaid upon demand if there is a failed remarkefliige IRB interest rate at December 31, 2009 was
0.55%.

(2) See Note 26 Subsequent Events for information addditional debt for debt exchanges completed after
December 31, 2009.

Convertible debt for Equity exchanges — 1.75% Notes

During the third and fourth quarter of 2009, we pdeted equity for debt exchanges relating to odb% Notes ,
pursuant to which we issued an aggregate of appiadeiy 11.4 million shares of our common stock,yzdue $0.01 pe
share, in exchange for $127,933 aggregate prinaipalunt of our 1.75% Notes (the “1.75% Notes ExgeaDdffers”).
After completing the 1.75% Notes Exchange Offers have approximately $47,067 aggregate principaluaatnof 1.75%
Notes outstanding. Holders of the 1.75% Notes reguire us to purchase for cash all or part ofltii®% Notes the
outstanding at par on August 1, 2011. In additwa completed a consent solicitation to modify aarfaovisions of the
indenture governing the 1.75% Notes to exclude,rayather things, certain bankruptcy and insolvesegnts relating to
Century and our subsidiaries from constituting aen¢ of default there under. The issuance of comstock in
connection with the 1.75% Notes Exchange Offersmade by us pursuant to an exemption from the tregjisn
requirements of the Securities Act contained iniSe@(a)(9) of the Securities Act.

7.5% Notes Exchange Offer and Consent Solicitation

During the fourth quarter of 2009, we completecebtdor debt exchange offer and consent soliciatédating to
our 7.5% Notes (the “7.5% Notes Exchange OffePursuant to which, we issued $245,476 aggregateipal amount ¢
8.0% Notes in exchange for $243,052 of our 7.5%eblotAfter completing the 7.5% Notes Exchange Offer have
approximately $6,948 aggregate principal amounthef7.5% Notes outstanding. In addition, invespamricipating in th:
7.5% Notes Exchange Offer consented to certain dments and modifications to the indenture govertieg7.5% Note
to remove, among other things, most of the restdaovenants, in exchange for which we paid thegestors consent
fees totaling approximately $2,400.

-73-




Table of Content:

Revolving Credit Facility

General. In September 2005, we entered into a $100,00@i1ssecured revolving credit facility with a syndte of
banks and other lenders. Century Aluminum Comgard/certain of its subsidiaries are borrowers uttierevolving
credit facility. Available funds under the revaig credit facility may be used for the satisfactodrexisting debt, to issue
standby or commercial letters of credit, to finanegain capital expenditures, to finance ongoimmgkng capital needs
and for other general corporate purposes. Théadoiitly of funds under the revolving credit fatyliis limited by a
specified borrowing base consisting of (1) 85%lufilele accounts receivable not owed by Glencotes phe lesser of
(x) 85% of the net amount of eligible accounts irestele owed by Glencore and (y) $20 million and§2% of the value
of eligible inventory, determined on a first-insfi-out, lower of cost or market basis in accordandé generally accepte
accounting principles (“GAAP”)We measure our borrowing base at each month erehk&hed aluminum prices and
curtailment of our Ravenswood facility in Febru2809 and one potline at Hawesville in March 20Gilted in lower
eligible accounts receivable and inventory balameelsided in the borrowing base calculation anddoed the availability
of funds under the revolving credit facility. As@ecember 31, 2009, the borrowing base underahelving credit
facility was approximately $68,000 and availabikitas approximately $41,492 with no loans outstagdirnthat date.

As part of the funds available under the revolvangdit facility, we can obtain letters of creditan aggregate
amount not exceeding $25,000, and as of Decemh&0B® had approximately $11,500 issued but undtatters of
credit under the facility. Borrowings and lettefcredit are available subject to compliance witistomary borrowing
conditions, including the accuracy of all repreaéinhs and warranties in, and the absence of afapleinder, the
revolving credit facility.

Guaranty. Our obligations under the revolving credit fagiare unconditionally guaranteed by the domestic
subsidiaries of Century Aluminum Company (othent@ntury Aluminum Holdings, Inc., Century Louissannc., and
Nordural U.S. LLC) (thé‘Guarantors”) and secured by a first priority seétyunterest in certain deposit accounts and all
accounts receivable and inventory belonging to @gmiluminum Company and our subsidiary borrowers.

Interest Rates and FeesAmounts outstanding under our revolving creadility bear interest, at our option, at
either a floating LIBOR rate or bank base ratesguminus in each case an applicable margin. appécable interest
margin is determined monthly based on the averagg ausage of our revolving credit facility duritige immediately
preceding month. For amounts outstanding undereth@ving credit facility, the applicable interestirgin ranges fror
1.00% to 1.50% over the LIBOR rate and 0.25% umal€.00% over the bank base rate. In additionpayea
commitment fee ranging from 0.20% to 0.375% per p@aundrawn amounts.

For standby letters of credit, we are requiredayp @ fee on the face amount of such letters ofitcegdial to either
0.75% (if 100% supported by cash collateral) orapplicable margin for LIBOR loans (for all othéarsdby letters of
credit). For documentary letters of credit, we r@guired to pay a fee on the face amount of seitérs of credit equal to
the applicable margin for LIBOR loans less 0.50#¢e are also required to pay certain fronting arneiofees.

Maturity. The revolving credit facility will mature on Sephber 19, 2010. We anticipate entering into a meuti-
year facility before this time.

Prepayments We can make voluntary prepayments of amounttanding under the revolving credit facility, in
whole or in part without premium or penalty, subjiecstandard LIBOR breakage costs. We are rediaaepply the
proceeds from sales of accounts receivable or tovgrother than sales of inventory in the ordineoyrse of business,
repay amounts outstanding under the revolving tfedility and correspondingly reduce the committsehere under.

Covenants Under the terms of the revolving credit facilitye are subject to customary affirmative, negadine
financial covenants, including restrictions on: gegs and acquisitions, additional debt, affiliagasactions, liens,
dividends and distributions, capital expenditugdspositions of collateral, guarantees, redemptaingnior capital and
payments on junior capital and investme

Events of Default The revolving credit facility contains customayents of default including, without limitation,
nonpayment, misrepresentation, breach of covenssgs default, insolvency, bankruptcy, change otrod (as defined ii
the revolving credit facility), Employee Retireméntome Security Act violations and certain judgmsen
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1.75% Notes

General. In August 2004, we sold $175,000 of our 1.75%eNoin a private offering exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act.

Interest Rate The 1.75% Notes bear interest at 1.75% per annutheoprincipal amount, payable seamnually ir
arrears in cash on February 1 and August 1 of geah

Interest expense related to the 1.75% convertiblesior notes:

2009 2008 2007
Contractual interest coupt $ 258 $ 3,06 $ 3,068
Amortization of the debt discount on the liabildgmponent 6,96¢ 7,592 7,071
Total $ 955¢ ¢§ 10,658 $ 10,13«
Effective interest rate for the liability componéat the perioc 6.34% 6.0%% 5.7%

The estimated amortization expense for the debbdist for the 1.75% Notes through the remainingeetgd life
(August 2011) is as follows:

2010 2011
Estimated debt discount amortization expense $ 2244 $ 1,584

Seniority. The 1.75% Notes are senior unsecured obligatiodsauk, in right of payment, the same as all of our
existing and future senior unsecured debt, inclgidie 7.5% Notes.

Guaranty. We have entered into supplemental indenturégtioaide that any subsidiary of Century Aluminum
Company that guarantees the 7.5% Notes will alsoaqiee the 1.75% Notes for so long as the 7.5%d\are so
guaranteed.

Covenant, Redemptions Righée indenture governing the 1.75% Notes does nuagoany restrictive or financi
covenants, but requires us to repurchase our 1N&#s at the option of the holders upon the ocogeef certain events
constituting a “Fundamental Change,” which incletiange in control events and termination in tradihgur stock, at a
price equal to 100% of their principal amount, phgsrued interest and a m-whole premium payable based on the s
price for Century Aluminum Company common stockwath time. Century is also required to offer taurepase thi
1.75% Notes on August 1, 2011, 2014 and 2019 data pqual to 100% of their principal amount plasraed interest, if
any. The 1.75% Notes are redeemable at our optiarpace equal to 100% of their principal amouispaccrued intere:
if any, at any time on or after August 6, 2009.

ConversionThe 1.75% Notes are convertible at any time ahéial conversion rate of 32.7430 shares of our
common stock per one thousand dollars of 1.75%$\stgbject to adjustments for certain events. Ttial conversion
rate is equivalent to a conversion price of apprately $30.5409 per share of common stock. Uporeamsion of the
1.75% Notes, we would be required to pay cashspeet of the conversion obligation (determinechasnumber of shar
into which the note is convertible multiplied byra@iock price at such time) up to the principal antof the note. Any
excess conversion obligation can be paid at ouowjt cash, common stock, or a combination thereof

1.75% Notes Exchang8ee discussion above.
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7.5% Notes

General. In August 2004, we sold $250,000 of our 7.5% Natea private offering exempt from the registratio
requirements of the Securities Act.

Interest rate. The 7.5% Notes bear interest at 7.5% per annutheprincipal amount,payable semi-annually in
arrears in cash on February 15 and August 15 df egear.

Maturity. The 7.5% Notes mature on August 13014.

Seniority. The 7.5% Notes are senior unsecured obligatindgank, in right of payment, the same as all of our
existing and future senior unsecureatkbt, including the 1.75% Notes.

Guaranty. Our obligations underthe 7.5% Notes are guaranteed by all of our exjsiimd future domestic
restricted subsidiaries.

Redemption Rights.We may redeem the 7.5% Notes, in whole or in @émn initial redemption price equal to
103.75% of the principal amount, plus accrued ampaid interest. The redemption price will declameAugust 15, 201
and each year thereafter and witle 100% of the principal amount, plus accrued arghid interest, beginning on
August 15, 2012. Upon a “change of control” (araal in the indenture governing the 7.5% Notes,will be required
to make an offer to purchase the 7.5% Notes atehpse price equal to 101% of the outstanding rah@mount of the
7.5% Notes on the date of the purchase, plus atentierest to the date of purchase.

Covenants and Exchange Offem December 2009, the indenture governing the Maf¥es was modified in
connection with the 7.5% Notes Exchange Offer tbaee most of the restrictive covenants, see disoustove.

8.0% Notes

General. In December 2009, we issued $245,476 in exchiorgk242,940 of our 7.5% Notes in a private offgrin
exempt from the registration requirements of theusiges Act.

Interest rate. The 8.0% Notes bear interest at 8.0% per annutheprincipal amount,payable semi-annually in
arrears in cash on May 15 and November 15 of egefr.

Maturity. The 8.0% Notes mature on May 12014.

Seniority. The 8.0% Notes are senior secured obligatior@3eoftury, ranking equally in right of payment with a
existing and future senior indebtedness of Centuny gffectively senior to unsecured debt to thiemixof the value of the
collateral.

Guaranty. Our obligations underthe 8.0% Notes are guaranteed by all of our exjsiimd future domestic
restricted subsidiaries, except for foreign ownarkept companies (the “Guarantorsihich guaranty shall in each case
a senior secured obligation of such Guarantor&kimgrequally in right of payment with all existirggnd future senior
indebtedness of such Guarantor but effectivelymeniunsecured debt.
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Collateral. Our obligations under the 8.0% Notes and the guarsirobligations under the guarantees will be sedu
by a pledge of and lien on (subject to certain ptoas):

(i) all of our and the guarantors’ plant, propeatyd equipment;

(i) all equity interests in domestic subsidiargkgectly owned by us and the guarantors and 65%guaity interests in
foreign subsidiaries directly owned by us and thargntors;

(i) intercompany notes owed by any non-guaratdass or any guarantor, including an intercompaote from
Century Bermuda | Ltd. (which indirectly owns Gramtangi and Helguvik) to us; and

(iv) proceeds of the foregoing.
The liens securing the 8.0% Notes will not extemddsets other than those described above.

Under certain circumstances, the indenture angeharity documents governing the 8.0% Notes wilhpeus and th
guarantors to incur additional debt that also magdcured by liens on the collateral that are equal have priority over
the liens securing the 8.0% Notes. The collategeht for the 8.0% Notes will agree with the celtat agent for the other
debt holders and us under such circumstances o ietd an intercreditor agreement that will catieeliens securing the
8.0% Notes to be contractually subordinated tdidres securing such additional debt.

Redemption RightsOn or after May 15, 2011, we may redeem the 8.0%$Jan whole or in part, at an initial
redemption price equal to 104% of the principal ampplus accrued andinpaid interest. The redemption price will
decline to 102% on May 15, 2012 and witle 100% of the principal amount, plus accrued angiid interest, beginning
on May 15, 2013 and thereatfter.

Upon a change of control (as defined in the indengiwverning the 8.0% Notes), we will be requirediiake an
offer to purchase the 8.0% Notes at a purchase pgaal to 101% of the outstanding principal amaditihe 8.0% Notes
on the date of the purchase, plus accrued inteyése date of purchase.

Covenants. The indenture governing the 8.0% Notes limits ahitity, and the ability of certain of our subsides,
to: (i) incur additional debt; (ii) create liengj)(pay dividends or make distributions in respettapital stock;
(iv) purchase or redeem capital stock; (v) makegtments or certain other restricted paymentssell)assets; (vii) issue
or sell stock of certain subsidiaries; (viii) enteto transactions with shareholders or affiliatesg (ix) effect a
consolidation or merger.

Industrial Revenue Bonds

General. As part of the purchase price for our acquisitbthe Hawesville facility, we assumed industriedvenue
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $7.8aniwhich were issued in connection with the fioigng of certain soli
waste disposal facilities constructed at the Havlledacility.

Interest rate. The IRBs bear interest at a variable rate neixteed 12% per annum determined weekly based upo
prevailing rates for similar bonds in the indudtrevenue bond market. Interest on the industeeénue bonds is pa
quarterly. At December 31, 2009, the interest oat¢he industrial revenue bonds was 0.55%.

Maturity. The industrial revenue bonds mature on April 1,802

Security. The industrial revenue bonds are secured by a l&ftiredit issued under our revolving credit fagil
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Principal Payments on Long Term Debt
Principal payments on our long term debt in thet fier years and thereafter are as follows:

Total 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014  Thereafter

7.5% senior unsecured notes

due August 15, 2014 $ 6946 $ — % — % — % — $ 694 % —
8.0% senior secured notes du

May 15, 2014 245 .47¢ — — — —  245/47¢ —
Total $25242: $ — $ — $ — $ — $25242¢ $ —

9. Shareholders Equity

Common Stock

Under our Restated Certificate of Incorporatiorr, Board of Directors is authorized to issue up26,000,000 shares
of common stock.

The rights, preferences and privileges of holdéisuo common stock are subject to, and may be aseWernffected by
the rights of the holders of shares of any seri@gippreferred stock which are currently outstagdincluding our
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, or which wayrdesignate and issue in the future.

Preferred Stock

Under our Restated Certificate of Incorporatiorr, Board of Directors is authorized to issue up,@)B,000 shares of
preferred stock. Our Board of Directors may issteferred stock in one or more series and deterfoineach series tr
dividend rights, conversion rights, voting rightsdemption rights, liquidation preferences, sinkimgd terms and the
number of shares constituting that series, asagethe designation thereof. Depending upon tmesteff preferred stock
established by our Board of Directors, any or athe preferred stock could have preference owercttimmon stock with
respect to dividends and other distributions anahupe liquidation of Century. In addition, issuaraf any shares of
preferred stock with voting powers may dilute tloding power of the outstanding common stc

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

Shares Authorized and Outstandingn July 2008, we issued 160,000 shares of oueSér Convertible Preferred
Stock. All shares of Series A Convertible Prefér&ock are held by Glencore and were issued inedion with the
termination of the Financial Sales Contracts oy JuR008. We have issued additional shares ohoomstock when an
automatic conversion provision of the preferreaists triggered. The issuance of common stock undestock
incentive programs, debt exchange transactionaandtock offering that excludes Glencore partigguatriggers anti-
dilution provisions of the preferred stock agreetraad results in the automatic conversion of shaf&eries A
Convertible Preferred Stock into shares of comnmooks Our Series A Convertible Preferred Stockdasr value of
$0.01 per share. The following table shows Se&ki€onvertible Preferred Stock conversions durin@2and 2008:

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock: 2009 2008

Shares outstanding at Januar 155,78 —



Issuance — 160,00(
Automatic conversions during the year (72,33°) (4,219
Total shares outstanding at December 83,45 155,78
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Dividend Rights. So long as any shares of our Series A Converilbdééerred Stock are outstanding, we may not pay
or declare any dividend or make any distributionmupr in respect of our common stock or any otlagital stock rankin
on a parity with or junior to the Series A Convelei Preferred Stock in respect of dividends oritigtion preference,
unless we, at the same time, declare and pay dedhiglior distribution on the shares of Series A @aible Preferred
Stock (a) in an amount equal to the amount suatensliwould receive if they were the holders ofribeber of shares of
our common stock into which their shares of Sed€onvertible Preferred Stock are convertible athefrecord date
fixed for such dividend or distribution, or (b)time case of a dividend or distribution on otheritedystock ranking on a
parity with or junior to the Series A ConvertibleeRerred Stock in such amount and in such fornbas€d on th
determination of holders of a majority of the SeWeConvertible Preferred Stock) will preserve heitt dilution, the
economic position of the Series A Convertible Pireig Stock relative to such other capital stock.

Voting Rights. The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock hasatmg rights for the election of directors or ohert
matters where the shares of common stock havegvaghts. However, we may not change the poweefepences or
rights given to the Series A Convertible Prefer®adck, or authorize, create or issue any additishates of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock without the affirmatixate of the holders of a majority of the shareSefies A Convertible
Preferred Stock then outstanding (voting separa®ly class).

Liquidation Rights. Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up@entury, the holders of shares of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to receiyeeferential distribution of $0.01 per shareafuhe assets available
for distribution. In addition, upon any liquidatiodissolution or winding-up of Century, if our assare sufficient to
make any distribution to the holders of the comrmstmtk, then the holders of shares of Series A Quibne Preferred
Stock are also entitled to share ratably with tblelérs of common stock in the distribution of Cenptsiassets (as though
the holders of Series A Convertible Preferred Stweke holders of that number of shares of commocksnto which
their shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Ssse convertible). However, the amount of anyhsdistribution will be
reduced by the amount of the preferential distrdsuteceived by the holders of the Series A CorvierPreferred Stock.

Transfer Restrictions.Glencore is prohibited from transferring shareSeries A Convertible Preferred Stock to any
party other than an affiliate who agrees to becbmend by certain agreements associated with theses
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Automatic Conversion.The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock autaradyi converts, without any further act of
Century or any holders of Series A Convertible &mefd Stock, into shares of common stock, at aemmon ratio of
100 shares of common stock for each share of S&rf@snvertible Preferred Stock, upon the occurresfcany of the
following automatic conversion events:

« If we sell or issue shares of common stock or ghgrostock that votes generally with our commorlstor the
occurrence of any other event, including a satésdfer or other disposition of common stock by Gtea, as a result
of which the percentage of voting stock held byrétee decreases, an amount of Series A ConveRiletierred Stoc
will convert to common stock to restore Glencorég@revious ownership percenta

« If shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Staekteansferred to an entity that is not an afdiat Glencore, such
shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stockeuitivert to shares of our common stock, provided sbich transfe
may only be made pursuant to an effective registrattatement

» Upon a sale of Series A Convertible Preferred Stycikslencore in a Rule 144 transaction in whichghares o
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and our comstook issuable upon the conversion thereof ar@inetted to
any purchaser, such shares of Series A ConveRitdterred Stock sold will convert to shares of cwmmon
stock; anc

» Immediately prior to and conditioned upon the conswation of a merger, reorganization or consolidatmwhich we
are a party or a sale, abandonment, transfer,, lbesese, mortgage, exchange or other dispostfail or
substantially all of our property or assets, in ona series of transactions where, in any such, @lsof our common
stock would be converted into the right to recetregexchanged for, cash and/or securities, otlaar #my transaction
in which the Series A Convertible Preferred Stodk lve redeemec

Optional Conversion. Glencore has the option to convert the Series AvEdible Preferred Stock in a tender offe
exchange offer in which a majority of the outstaigdshares of our common stock have been tenderdeehylders
thereof and not duly withdrawn at the expirationdiof such tender or exchange offer, so long aSénes A Convertible
Preferred Stock is tendered or exchanged in sueh. of

Stock Combinations; Adjustmentdf, at any time while the Series A Convertibleferred Stock is outstanding,
Century combines outstanding common stock into @lsmnumber of shares, then the number of shdresmomon stock
issuable on conversion of each share of Seriesivé&tible Preferred Stock will be decreased in prapn to such
decrease in the aggregate number of shares of corstook outstanding.

Redemptions or Repurchases of Common Std¥k. may not redeem or repurchase our common sialelss we
redeem or repurchase, or otherwise make a paymeatro rata number of shares of the Series A €tible Preferred
Stock. These restrictions do not apply to our apanket repurchases or our repurchases pursuant engployee benefit
plans.
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Right of Redemption.The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock wilFbdeemed by Century if any of the following
events occur (at a redemption price based on dldenty price of our common stock prior to the anroament of such
event) and Glencore votes its shares of our conmstaok in opposition to such events:

* We propose a merger, reorganization or consolidasiale, abandonment, transfer, lease, licensegag®, exchange
or other disposition of all or substantially allair property or assets where any of our commaorkstmuld be
converted into the right to receive, or exchangeddssets other than cash and/or securities traedhational stock
exchange or that are otherwise readily marketail

» We propose to dissolve and wind up and assets titaercash and/or securities traded on a naticoek £xchange or
that are otherwise readily marketable are to bigilbliged to the holders of our common stc

Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock isshbi@ under the Tax Benefit Preservation Plan

In September 2009, we adopted the Tax Benefit Rrasen Plan (the “Tax Benefit Preservation Plan”an effort to
protect against a possible limitation on our apild use net operating loss¢“NOLS”), tax credits and other tax assets
“Tax Attributes”), to reduce potential future Uf8deral income tax obligations. In the past, weehaxperienced
substantial operating losses, and under the Int®eeenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Coded)rales
promulgated by the Internal Revenue Service, we caayy forward these losses in certain circumstahg®ffset future
earnings and thus reduce our federal income taxitig subject to certain requirements and resitits. To the extent
that the Tax Attributes do not otherwise becometéid) we believe that we might be able to use aifsggint amount of
the Tax Attributes, and therefore these Tax Attelsicould be a substantial asset to us.

As of December 31, 2009, we had Tax Attributeduidiog NOLSs, capital losses and tax credit carnyiands, of
approximately $1,700,000, after adjusting for lessarried back to previous tax years, which cotitskeod future taxable
income. If, however, we experience an “ownershignge,” as defined in Section 382 of the Code ability to use the
Tax Attributes will be substantially limited, anlakettiming of the usage of the Tax Attributes cduddsubstantially
delayed, which could significantly impair the valoiethe Tax Attributes. In general, an ownershiprae would occur if
our “Five—percent shareholders,” as defined unéetiSn 382 of the Code, collectively increase togmership in
Century by more than 50 percentage points ovelliagdhree—year period. Five—percent shareholdersot include
certain institutional holders, such as mutual fanthpanies, that hold our stock on behalf of sevacaVidual mutual
funds where no single fund owns five percent orevairCentury stock.

Under the Tax Benefit Preservation Plan, from dtet éhe record date of October 9, 2009, each shiamer common
stock will carry with it one preferred share purebaight (a “Right”) and each share of Series Ad?red Stock will carry
with it one hundred Rights, until the distributidate or earlier expiration of the Rights. EachiRigill allow its holder tc
purchase one o-hundredth of a share of Series B Junior Partisiga®referred Stock (“Series B Preferred Share”) fo
$80.00, subject to adjustment (the “Exercise P}iaarice the Rights become exercisable. This podfanSeries B
Preferred Share will give the stockholder approxetyathe same dividend, voting, and liquidatiorhtggas would one
share of common stock. Prior to exercise, the Riglkes not give its holder any dividend, votingliquidation rights.

Exercisability. The Rights will not be exercisable until 10 daytelathe public announcement that a person or group
has become an “Acquiring Person” by obtaining bierefownership, after September 29, 2009, of 4@%nore of our
outstanding common stock (or if already the bemedfmwner of at least 4.9% of our outstanding comratock, by
acquiring additional shares of our common stockeggnting one percent (1.0%) or more of the shafreemmon stock
then outstanding), unless exempted by the Board.
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We refer to the date when the Rights become exai@ss the “Distribution DateUntil that date or earlier expiratic
of the Rights, the common stock certificates wiloeevidence the Rights, and any transfer of shafreemmon stock will
constitute a transfer of Rights. After that déite, Rights will separate from the common stock lame@videnced by book-
entry credits or by Rights certificates that wel wikil to all eligible holders of common stock. ARyghts held by an
Acquiring Person are void and may not be exercised.

Consequences of a Person or Group Becoming an Akgurerson. If a person or group becomes an Acquiring
Person, all holders of Rights except the Acquifggson may, for payment of the Exercise Price,hase shares of our
common stock with a market value of twice the Exgr®rice, based on the market price of the comstmek as of the
acquisition that resulted in such person or groegnming an Acquiring Person.

ExchangeAfter a person or group becomes an Acquiring PersonBoard may extinguish the Rights by exchanging
one share of common stock or an equivalent sedanitgach Right, other than Rights held by the Aggg Person.

In general terms, the Rights will work to impossgignificant penalty upon any person or group wlachuires 4.9% «
more of our outstanding common stock after Septer®e2009, without the approval of our Board. tmiders who
own 4.9% or more of the outstanding common stoalf éise close of business on September 29, 200 etitrigger the
Rights so long as they do not (i) acquire additighares of common stock representing one per@ed) or more of the
shares of common stock then outstanding or (il)uiadler 4.9% ownership of common stock and theoqeise shares th
in the aggregate equal 4.9% or more of the comrtamksThe Board may, in its sole discretion, exeampt person or
group for purposes of the Plan if it determinesabeuisition by such person or group will not je@jige tax benefits or is
otherwise in our best interests. The Plan is rRpeeted to interfere with any merger or other bessncombination
approved by our Board.

Series B Preferred Share Provisiari8ach one one-hundredth of a Series B PreferradeSt issued:

« will not be redeemable.
« will entitle holders to dividends equal to the diends, if any, paid on one share of common stock.

« will entitle holders upon liquidation either to B#¢e $1 per share or an amount equal to the payment
made on one share of common stock, whichever eere

« will have the same voting power as one share ofncomstock.

« will entitle holders to a per share payment eqadhé payment made on one share of common stock, if
shares of our common stock are exchanged via meargesolidation, or a similar transaction.

The value of one onkundredth interest in a Series B Preferred Shagrgscted to approximate the value of one ¢
of common stock.

Expiration.The Rights will expire on the earliest of (i) Augds 2011, (ii) the time at which the Rights ardaemed,
(iii) the time at which the Rights are exchanged, the repeal of Section 382 or any successoutgabr any other
change, if the Board determines that this Plamiknger necessary for the preservation of tax fitsnpév) September 29,
2010 if approval of the Plan by a majority of otockholders has not been obtained prior to such, dat(vi) a
determination by the Board, prior to the time aByspn or group becomes an Acquiring Person, tleaPtan and the
Rights are no longer in the best interests of Ggrdand its stockholders.
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RedemptionOur Board may redeem the Rights for $0.001 per Righny time before any person or group becomes
an Acquiring Person. If our Board redeems any Righimust redeem all of the Rights. Once the Rigie redeemed, t
only right of the holders of Rights will be to réoethe redemption price of $0.001 per Right. Tésemption price will
be adjusted if we have a stock split or stock aials of our common stock.

Anti-Dilution Provisions Our Board may adjust the Exercise Price, the rrrobSeries B Preferred Shares issuable
and the number of outstanding Rights to preventidih that may occur from a stock dividend, a steght, or a
reclassification of the Series B Preferred Sharesmmon stock.

Amendmentshe terms of the Plan may be amended by our Bodlw the consent of the holders of the Rights.
After a person or group becomes an Acquiring Pesswhdoes not become an exempt person prior tDigtebution
Date, our Board may not amend the agreement inyalved adversely affects holders of the Rightséothan an
Acquiring Person or an Affiliate or Associate of Aoquiring Person).

10. Gramercy and St. Ann Bauxite transfer

On September 1, 2009, we completed the disposifiaur 50% ownership positions in Gramercy andA8n to
Noranda. At closing, we divested our entire intere these businesses and Noranda assumed 100&tstwmof
Gramercy and St. Ann. In connection with this saagtion, we made a $5,000 cash payment durindnittequarter of
2009 and an additional $5,000 cash payment indhelf quarter of 2009 to settle amounts owed tar@ray.

Hawesville received essentially all of its alumswpply from Gramercy until the closing of the tri@ns As part of the
transaction, the former alumina supply agreemetit Gramercy was terminated and we entered intoaah@mina
supply agreement. The new alumina supply agreeteemtis September 1, 2009 through December 2@1iing under
the new contract will be fixed, based on the mapkete of alumina at the date of the agreementihferfirst 125,000
metric tons (“MT”) delivered and LME-based for treanaining 65,500 MT (subject to certain conditiémsfloor

pricing).
Impact on our financial position, results of opeoats and cash flows

As a result of entering into an agreement to tematir joint venture investments, we recorded g Z34loss on
disposition in 2009, which consisted of the follagi

Loss on
disposition
of equity
iInvestments
Equity investments in Gramercy and St. Ann, eqgintthe earnings of Gramercy and St. Anr
and intercompany profit elimination, net of amoumtged to Gramercy and St. Al $ (74,78)
Pension and OPEB obligations for Gramercy and 8h A 1,54¢
Total $ (73,239

The loss on disposition was recorded on the cotesi@ld statements of operations in equity in eamflagses) of joint
ventures. On the consolidated balance sheetadjnstment to the carrying value of the equity stagents was recorded
in other assets where our equity investments warerded. The adjustments to the pension and OPEgatons of the
equity investments were recorded in accumulatedratbmprehensive loss. Amounts due to Gramercyrumgeprevious
alumina contract were recorded under due to a#gighrough August 30, 2009; subsequent to thatalabunts due unc
the new alumina contract are now recorded in adsqueyable.
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This transaction did not affect our obligation, par agreement reached in April 2009, to pay St £6,000 in
compensation for the reduced bauxite sales asedamth agreements to reduce the amount of baSkit&nn will supply
Glencore in 2009. Payments were made in montisiailments through December 2009. The $6,000 mpemsation to
St. Ann was due to the curtailment of the Ravensivarad one potline at Hawesville which created asrswpply of
alumina company-wide. Therefore, the $6,000 wesrrked in other operating income — net in our chdated
statements of operations. See Note 18 Contingeacié Commitments for additional information abibise payments
St. Ann.

11. Inventories

Inventories, at December 31, consist of the foltayvi

2009 2008
Raw materials $ 2569 $ 19,66«
Work-in-process 13,40( 16,13:
Finished good 11,15¢ 8,20:
Operating and other supplies 81,22 94,11
Inventories $ 131,47. $ 138,11:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etarksing the first-in, first-out method (“FIFO”"Pue to the
curtailment of our Ravenswood operations in Felyr@@09, approximately $18,023 of items that weessified as
inventory at December 31, 2008 are not expectée tronsumed within one year and have been classii®other assets.

At December 31, 2008 the market value of our inegntvas less than its FIFO value by $55,867.
12. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, at December 31 istofsthe following:

2009 2008

Land and improvemen $ 13,05: $ 13,05¢
Buildings and improvemen 315,15« 309,32
Machinery and equipme 1,375,83° 1,338,90.
Construction in progres 126,19! 141,57.
1,830,23! 1,802,85:

Less accumulated depreciati (531,94) (462,81)
Property, plant and equipment - net $1,298,28 $1,340,03

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 ar®] 2@0recorded depreciation expense of $63,855,1989
and $64,069, respectively.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the cost of propptint and equipment includes $171,709 and $168,46
respectively, and accumulated depreciation incl&®d4s972 and $85,006, respectively, representingiodivided
interest in the property, plant and equipment casimgy Mt. Holly.
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13. Composition of certain balance sheet accoun

The following represents the composition of certzatance sheet accounts at December 31, 2009 &&d 20

Components of Prepaid and other current ass
Contractual receivab- E.ON
Domestic income tax receivak
Prepaid and other current assets

Components of Other assets:
Investments in Mt. Holly and joint ventur
Non-current maintenance and operating supg
Cash surrender value of life insurance poli
Capitalized financing fees

Components of Accrued and other current liabilti
Other accrued and current liabiliti
Accrued curtailment expens
Accrued vacation pa
Accrued bond intere:
Derivative liability

Components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss:
Unrealized loss on financial instruments, net gf%and $784 tax benefi
Defined benefit plan liabilities, net of $26,7281826,534 tax benei
Equity in investee other comprehensive incomeph&0 and $0 tax (1

2009 2008

$ 5553, $ —

26,11¢ 76,52¢

12,27+ 23,33

$ 93927 § 99,86
2009 2008

$ 3361 $ 12413;

18,02: —

12,76 11,08(

3,731 5,84¢

68,13 $ 141,06
2009 2008

$ 22,86, $ 33,85

9,25( —

4,85¢ 6,437

1,631 8,35¢

— 10,13(

$ 3859 § 58,77
2009 2008

$ (1,069 $ (17,500

(64,635  (114,03)

(8,567 (5,670

$ (74,270 $ (137,209

(1) The 2009 amount includes our equity in the othenm@hensive income of Mt. Holly Aluminum
Company. The 2008 amount includes our equity enatmer comprehensive income of Gramercy
Alumina LLC, St. Ann Bauxite Ltd and Mt. Holly Alumum Company. The other comprehensive
income of these entities consists primarily of pemsnd other postretirement benefit obligations.
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14. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit:
Pension Benefits

We maintain noncontributory defined benefit pengtans for all of our domestic hourly and salaried
employees. For the domestic salaried employeas, gnefits are based primarily on years of semkaverage
compensation during the later years of employntemthourly employees at Ravenswood, plan benattbased
primarily on a formula that provides a specific efor each year of service. Our funding polisyto contribute
amounts based upon actuarial and economic assumsutésigned to achieve adequate funding of theqex benefit
obligations and to meet the minimum funding requieaets of ERISA. Plan assets consist principally &. and
international equity securities, growth funds améd income accounts. In addition, we provide sappntal
executive retirement benefits for certain curramd gormer executive officers (“SERB”). We accotmtthese plans
in accordance with ASC 715-30 (formerly, SFAS No, ‘®mployers’ Accounting for Pensions” and SFAS. 188,
“Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtagms of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Teatin
Benefits”). We use a measurement date of Decenmb#t®Bdetermine the pension and OPEB liabilities.

The hourly employees at Hawesville are part of &ddinSteel, Paper and Forestry, Rubber, Manufaxuri
Energy, Allied Industrial and Service Workers Imt@tional Union (“USWA”) sponsored multi-employeapl Our
contributions to the plan are determined at a fivedd per hour worked. During the years ended éee 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007, we contributed $1,352, $1,573 ant®1 respectively, to the plan, and had no oudstanliability at
year end.

Other Postretirement Benefits (OPEB)

In addition to providing pension benefits, we po®s/certain healthcare and life insurance benefitsdrtain
domestic retired employees. We account for themesph accordance with ASC 715-60 (formerly, SFAS N6,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefaigther Than Pensions”). ASC 715-60 requires congsaia
accrue the estimated cost of providing postretirgrbenefits during the working careers of those legges who
could become eligible for such benefits when tregiye. We fund these benefits as the retirees dublaims.

Ravenswood Retiree Medical Benefits changes

Century Aluminum of West Virginia, Inc. amendedpisst retirement medical benefit plan effectiveuzag 1, 2010
for all current and former salaried employees,rtiependents and all bargaining unit employees netied before June
1, 2006, and their dependents.

The principal changes to the plan are upon attammiage 65, all CAWYV provided retiree medical ets will ceas:
for retirees and dependents. In addition, bargginnit retirees under age 65 and dependents ageeB5 are now being
covered by the salary retiree medical plan whicjuires out-of pocket payments for premiums, co-@aydsdeductibles
by participants.

We recorded the impact of these changes for ouerctiand former salaried retirees and their depgsde the fourth
guarter of 2009. We have not recognized the impitttese changes for our bargaining unit retisrestheir dependents,
subject to pending litigation. The following taldleows the pro forma net periodic benefit cost@thér comprehensive
income amount if we had recognized the benefiheé changes for our bargaining unit retirees lagid dependents. S
Note 18 Commitments and Contingencies for additiorffarmation on this matter. All other tables peated do nc
reflect the impact the plan changes to the Raveadwetiree medical benefits for the bargaining ueiirees and their
dependents due to the pending litigation.
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Pro forma net periodic benefit cost:

Service cos

Interest cos

Expected return on plan ass
Amortization of net los
Amortization of prior service costs
Net periodic benefit co:
Curtailment cost

Total benefit cos

Pro forma amounts recognized in accumulated othe

comprehensive loss (pre-tax):

Net loss
Prior service benef

Total

Year Ended December 31, 200
OPEB

As Unrecognizec Pro

recorded plan changes forma
$ 354: % — $ 3,54-
11,00" (352)  10,65¢
(1,149 54 (1,090
2,48¢ (534 1,951
15,89( (832)  15,05¢
(14,97%) — (14,979

$ 01t $ (832) 83

Year Ended December 31, 200
As Unrecognizec Pro

recorded plan changes forma
$ 59,15¢ $ — $ 59,15¢
(9,540 (38,459 (47,999

$ 49,61¢ $ (38,459 ¢ 11,15]

There were no changes to the retiree medical lerfefisalaried retirees or retirees who retired asrgaining

unit employee from our Hawesville facility.

Obligations and Funded Status

The change in benefit obligations and change in pksets as of December 31 are as follows:

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of ye
Service cos

Interest cos

Plan change

Actuarial loss

Medicare Part [

Benefits paic

Curtailments

Benefit obligation at end of year

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \
Actual return on plan asse

Employer contribution

Benefits paic

Fair value of assets at end of year
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Pension OPEB

2009 2008 2009 2008
$ 111,51¢ $ 99,99 $ 227,34° $ 192,25
2,78¢ 4,347 3,54: 6,36
6,48 6,297 11,00" 11,95
412 — (8,25¢9) —
647 6,67¢ 1,45¢ 23,43
— — 36C —
(6,067) (5,65)) (8,277) (6,659
(1,597%) (149 (40,807 —
$ 114,18 $ 111,51¢ $ 186,38: $ 227,34
$ 60,230 $ 90,01t $ — $ —
14,19: (25,42)) — —
1,26¢ 1,28¢ 8,271 6,654
(6,067) (5,657 (8,277) (6,654)
$ 69,62t $§ 60,23 $ — $ =
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Funded status of plans:

Funded statu

Amounts Recognized in the Statement of Financi:
Position:

Non-current assel

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net amount recognize

Amounts Recognized in accumulated othe
comprehensive loss (pre-tax):

Net loss

Prior service cost (benefi

Total

Our pension plans’ projected benefit obligatiorguanulated benefit obligation, and fair value ofrpéssets as of

December 31 are as follows:

Projected Benefit

OPEB
2009 2008

Pension
2009 2008

$ (44559 $ (51,289 $ (186,38) $ (227,34)

— 9
(1,279 (1,279 (9,159  (7,80%
(43,280 (50,009 (177,23) (219,539

$ (44,559 $ (51,289 $ (186,389 $ (227,34)

— 3 — $

$ 40,86«
88:¢

$ 5458: $ 59,15¢ $ 86,82¢
2,40( (9,540 (3,247
$ 56,98 $ 4961t $ 8358

Accumulated Benefit Fair Value of Plan

Obligation Obligation assets
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Hourly pension plai $ 51,23: $ 51,08 $ 51,22( $ 50,58( $ 38,98. $ 34,03¢
Salaried pension ple 44,53« 43,41¢ 40,91: 36,36¢ 30,64 26,197
Supplemental executive
benefits pension plan
(“SERB") 18,41/ 17,01 17,66( 16,68¢ — —

Total $ 114,18 $ 111,51« $ 109,79 $ 103,63( $ 69,62¢ $ 60,23:

There are no plan assets in the SERB due to tlweenat the plan.

Components of Net periodic benefit cost and otheraunts recognized in other comprehensive income:

Net Periodic Benefit Cost:

Year Ended December 31

Pension OPEB
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

Service cos $ 2,78 $ 434. $ 4220 $ 354:. $ 6,36z $ 7,004
Interest cos 6,482 6,297 5,77( 11,00" 11,95« 11,64
Expected return on plan ass (4,33¢) (7,456 (6,947 — — —
Amortization of prior servici

costs 162 7127 127 (1,149 (2,167) (2,162)
Amortization of net los 2,10¢ 534 1,057 2,48¢ 2,851 5,13¢
Net periodic benefit co: $ 7197 $ 444 $ 4831 $ 1589 $ 19,008 $ 21,62«
Curtailment cos 2,57¢ 23¢ — (14,97%) — —
Total benefit cost $ 977 $ 468: & 4831 % 91t $ 19,00t $ 21,62«
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Other changes in Plan Assets and Benefit ObligatienRecognized in Other Comprehensive Income (p-

tax):
Year Ended December 31
Pension OPEB
2009 2008 2009 2008

Net loss (gain $ (9,208) $ 39,41( $ 145¢ $ 23,43:
Prior service cost (benefit) arising during theiqe 41z — (8,259 —
Amortization of net los (2,105 (534) (2,48¢) (2,85))
Amortization of prior service (cost) bene 19¢ (96€) 1,14¢ 2,162
Net loss (gain) due to curtailme (2,40%) — (26,639 —
Prior service cost (benefit) recognized due toaibment (2,127%) — 81z —
Total amount recognized in other comprehensivenre (15,23¢) 37,91( (33,969 22,74
Net periodic benefit co: 9,77: 4,68: 91t 19,00¢
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost atiter

comprehensive income $ (5467 $ 42590 $ (33,05) $ 41,74¢

The estimated net loss (gain) and prior service @@nefit) for our defined benefit pension plarpected to be
amortized from accumulated other comprehensivenrgcmto net periodic benefit cost during 2010 &@&@1 and $139,
respectively. The estimated net loss (gain) amat pervice cost for our OPEB plans expected tarbertized from
accumulated other comprehensive income into nébglierbenefit cost during 2010 is $2,914 and $(Q)0Bspectively.

Weighted average assumptions were used to detebairefit obligations at December 31:

Pension OPEB
2009 2008 2009 2008
Discount rate 5.75% 6.00% 5.89% 5.75%
Rate of compensation increase 2%/3%/4Y 4.00% 2%/3%/4Y 4.00%
Measurement dai 12/31/200! 12/31/200: 12/31/200' 12/31/200:

(1) Rate of compensation increase assumption is 22000, 3% for 2011 and 4% for 2012 and
thereafter.

Weighted average assumptions were used to detematrgeriodic benefit cost for the years ended Dvbes 31:

Pension OPEB

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
Measurement
date 12/31/200¢  12/31/2007 12/31/200€ 12/31/200€¢ 12/31/2007 12/31/200€
Fiscal year eni 12/31/200¢ 12/31/200¢ 12/31/2007 12/31/200¢ 12/31/200¢ 12/31/2007
Discount rate (1 6.54% 6.50% 5.75% 6.31% 6.50% 5.75%
Rate of
compensation
increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Expected return
on plan asset 8.00% 8.50% 8.50% — — —

(1) Discount rate assumption for the hourly pensiom plas 6.25% for 2008.
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Effect of Medicare Part D

Century’s prescription drug programs are assuméxe tactuarially equivalent and eligible for Mede&art D
subsidy as written into law on December 8, 200Be @pproach used to measure this impact is basedron
understanding of ASC 715-60 (formerly, FSP 106-Blisghed May 19, 2004). We recognized the impac¢hese
changes during 2004 on a prospective basis. Aeoémber 31, 2009, the effect of the Medicare Paubsidy
reduced the accumulated projected benefit obligasfoour OPEB plans by $22,117, which is an appnate 12%
decrease for our OPEB plans. We received MediareD subsidies totaling $360 during 2009.

For measurement purposes, medical cost inflationitially estimated to be 10%, declining to 5% pe& years an
thereafter.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a signifeffect on the amounts reported for the healtk benefit
obligations. A one-percentage-point change in §simed health care cost trend rates would havéheddllowing
effects in 2009:

1% 1%
Increase  Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest ¢ $ 2420 $ (1,979
Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit ohilge $ 26,168 $ (22,449

Century 401(k) Plans

We sponsor a tax-deferred savings plan under waligible domestic employees may elect to contrilsyecified
percentages of their compensation with Century. s&pended our company matching contributionseat@i (k)
plan for 2009. In 2008 and 2007, for our eligibfaployees, we matched 100% of the first 3% of gypants annue
compensation and 50% of the next 2% of their anoopensation contributed to the savings plar0®8 and 2007,
one half of our contribution was invested in thencoon stock of Century and the other half of ourtibation was
invested based on employee election. Our contobsitto the savings plan for the years ended Deeef3thh 2008 and
2007 were $915 and $1,017, respectively. Sharesrmamon stock of Century may be sold at any time.

Benefit Plan Assets
Pension Plan Investment Policy and Strategy

We have established the defined benefit pensiamsglae “Pension Plans”) as a retirement vehialeife plan
participant employees and as a funding vehicletuise promised benefits. The Pension F assets are invested in a
prudent manner for the exclusive purpose of proggdienefits to participants. Other objectives art

« Provide a total return that, over long term, pregidufficient assets to fund the pension planliiegs
subject to a level of risk, contributions and pensi

« Maximize the return on assets, over the long té&ymnvesting primarily in equities. The inclusioh o
additional asset classes with differing rates tfrre volatility and correlation are utilized toduece risk
by providing diversification relative to equities.

« Diversify investments within asset classes to redhe impact of losses in single investments.

The assets of the Pension Plans are invested iplmomoe with the Employee Retirement Income Seguxdt 1974
(“ERISA”) as amended, and any subsequent applicaglelations and laws.
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Performance

Our performance objective is to outperform thenmetn a weighted hypothetical portfolio return (thelicy
Portfolio”) after fees at a comparable level okri¥his investment objective is expected to beedtd over the long term
and is measured over rolling five-year periods.riekative performance comparisons will also bestdered especially
when performance deviates meaningfully from mank@exes. Investment objectives for each asset al@sscluded

below.

Portfolio Policy

Asset allocation policy is the principal method &mhieving the Plans and investment objectivegdtabove. The
Plans’ long-term strategic asset allocation polargets are as follows:

Pension Plans Asset Allocatiol
December 31, 200! December 31, 200:

Target Actual Target Actual
Equities:
U.S. equities 50% 50% 65% 65%
International equitie 15% 15% — —
Fixed income 35% 35% 35% 35%
10C% 10C% 10(% 10C%

U.S. and international equities are held for thag-term expected return premium over fixed income stiveents an
inflation. Fixed income is held for diversificatioalative to equities.

The strategic role of U.S. and international egsiis to:

« Provide higher expected returns of the major adasses.
« Maintain a diversified exposure within the U.S. amgrnational stock markets through the use oftimul
manager portfolio strategies.

« Achieve returns in excess of passive indexes thralig use of active investment managers and
strategies.

The strategic role of fixed income is to:

« Diversify the Pension Plans’ equity exposure byesting in fixed income securities that exhibit & lo
correlation to equities, thereby lowering the olleeturn volatility of the entire investment paotio.

« Maintain a diversified exposure within the U.S efikincome market through the use of multi-manager
portfolio strategies.

« Achieve returns in excess of passive indexes thralig use of active investment managers and
strategies.

The long-term strategic asset allocation policyeisewed regularly or whenever significant changesur to
Century’s or the Pension Plans financial positiod Babilities.

Expected rate-of-return assumption

In 2009, we used an 8.0% long-term rate of returplan assets for the development of the net pierimabt for the
defined benefit pension plans. The rate was salduy taking into account our expected asset mikisbased o



historical performance as well as expected futatesrof return on plan asse
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Fair Value Measurements of Pension Plan Assets

ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosur@srimerly, SFAS No. 157) defines fair value, esisdies a
framework for measuring fair value, and expandsldsires about fair value measurements. This procement applies
to a broad range of other existing accounting pumgements that require or permit fair value measargs. We
measured the fair value of our Pension Plans’ assetccordance with ASC 820. For additional infation about ASC

820, see Note 6 Fair Value Measurements.

Fair Value of Pension Plan’ assets by category as o

Equities:
U.S. equities
International equitie
Fixed income

Total

Decembel Decembel
31,2009 31, 2008

$ 3511 $ 39,03

10,49. —
24,01% 21,207

ASC 820 establishes a three-tier hierarchy to meparthe use of observable market data and minithzeise of
unobservable inputs and to establish classificadfdair value measurements for disclosure purpdsesits refer broadly
to the assumptions that market participants wosélin pricing the asset, including assumptions absk, for example,
the risk inherent in a particular valuation teclugiqused to measure fair value including a pricirmgleh and/or risk
inherent in the inputs to the valuation techniglrguts may be observable or unobservable. Obskeruahuts are inputs
that reflect the assumptions market participantslavase in pricing the asset or liability develofgraded on market data
obtained from sources independent of the repodmtgy. Unobservable inputs are inputs that refleetreporting entity’s
own assumptions about the assumptions market ypantics would use in pricing the asset or liabitigveloped based on
the best information available in the circumstancese three-tier hierarchy of inputs is summariicethe three broad

levels listed below.

« Level 1 — quoted prices in active markets for id@itinvestments.

« Level 2 — other significant observable inputs (Utihg quoted prices for similar investments, ingére

rates, prepayment speeds, etc.)

« Level 3 — significant unobservable inputs (incluglithe Trustee’s own assumptions in determining

the fair value of investments)

Inputs used in valuing the Pension Plans’ investmearried at fair value for the year ended Decertke2009 and

2008 were as follows:

Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Total
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Our Pension Plans’ assets are held in certain imerg fund trusts. The fair value of the fund tsuis based on the
fair value of the underlying securities as detepdias follows:

« U.S. listed equities; equity and fixed income ops$ioLast sale price; last bid price if no last saiee;

« U.S. over-the-counter equities: Official closingcpr last bid price if no closing price;

« Foreign equities: Official closing price, where #adle, or last sale price; last bid price if ndi@fl closing price;
« Municipal bonds, US bonds, Eurobonds/foreign boltsiluated bid price; broker quote if no evaludigtprice.

Our other postretirement benefit plans are unfuniéel fund these benefits as the retirees submihsla
Pension and OPEB Cash Flows
Contributions

We expect to make approximately $1,275 in benefyinpents for our unfunded SERB plan for 2010. Whde
mandatory pension plan contributions are requiteélis time, we may decide to make a voluntary gbation to the
plans during 2010. We expect to provide approxaiye9,153 for benefit payments for our other petgtement benefi
plans for the year ending December 31, 2I

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following table provides the estimated futueadfit payments for the pension and other postratint benefit
plans.

OPEB

Pension Benefits

Benefits (1)
2010 $ 6,99 $ 9,157
2011 6,932 10,15¢(
2012 6,96¢ 10,78:
2013 6,99¢ 11,427
2014 7,144 12,13
2015-2019 43,33¢ 68,30:

(1) This amount does not reflect the impact the plaangles to the Ravenswood retiree medical benefits
for the bargaining unit retirees and their depetsidoe to the pending litigation.

15. Share Based Compensatio

1996 Stock Incentive Plar- We award performance-based and serbased (time vested) share awards and
gualified incentive and nonqualified stock optiotts our salaried officers, noemployee directors, and other |
employees from our 1996 Stock Incentive Plan (t8®¢k Incentive Plan”)The Stock Incentive Plan has 10,000,
shares authorized for issuance with approximateh6,000 shares remaining at December 31, 200ant&t stoc
options have a term of 10 years and typically \wes-third on the grant date and additional tried on the first an
second anniversary dates of the grant. Beginmr&P0D8, our independent non-employee diresteeteived annual gral
of service-based share awards that vest followidgnbnths of service. In previous years, our eowployee directo
received an annual option grants that vestedfongh each calendar quarter. In addition to tluelstoptions, we gra
servicebased stock awards that typically vest over a pasfcdhree years from the date of grant provided the recipier
is still our employee at the time of vesting.
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As of December 31, 2009, options to purchase 665sb@res of common stock were outstanding and 681,2
service-based stock awards have been authorizediinve st if the employee recipients are employedthe requisite
service periods.

The Stock Incentive Plan provides for grants ofgrenance share units upon the attainment of cedstiablished
performance goals. The performance share unitesept the right to receive common stock, on ¢«for-one basis on
their vesting dates. As of December 31, 2009, @pprately 81,000 performance share units have bat#orized and
will vest upon the attainment of the performancalgo In 2008 we instituted changes to our perfoiceashare
program. Under the amended performance sharealaortion of the performance share award will ted in servic-
based share awards at the grant date. These shlies awarded to the plan participant if thetmapant is still an
employee on the award date and are included is@wice-based share awards for periods after 200B. Prior to the
performance share plan amendments, our-based performance share units were not consideradion stock
equivalents until it became probable that perforceagpals would be obtained.

In April 2008, we instituted changes to the eqaitynpensation program for our directors. Subsectoetiie change,
continuing independent directors receive annuailtgraf service-based share awards, rather thanrarahstock option
award. Newly elected directors will receive a d¢inge initial award of 1,000 service-based sharerdw¢hat vest 50%
following 12 months of service and 50% following @#¥nths of service. These awards are includedirservice-based
share awards for periods after April 2008.

Non-Employee Directors Stock Option PlanOur non-employee directors’ stock option planasonger an
active plan. As of December 31, 2009, this plan 28000 outstanding options. No new options welissued out of
this plan.

A summary of activity under our Stock IncentiverPénd the Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Fliaring
the year ended December 31, 2009 is presented below

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate

Exercise Term Intrinsic

Options Number Price (years) Value
Outstanding at January 1, 20 427,43¢ $  38.2¢

Grantec 303,14: 6.5¢

Exercisec — —

Forfeited (38,500 39.7¢
Outstanding and expected to vest at December 8B, -
@ 692,07' $ 24.2¢ 7.7¢ $ 2,997
Fully vested and exercisable at December 31, . 383,09¢ $ 37.97 6.4¢ $ 70

(1) We expect all of our outstanding options to veshashistorical forfeiture rates have been very.low

Service-based share awards (1

Outstanding at January 1, 20 79,07¢
Grantec 455,00¢
Vested (Awarded (32,87¢%)
Forfeited —

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 501,202

(1) All of our service-based stock awards require gepients to remain an employee for a certain plevio
time before the award vests. Recipients receivencon stock upon vesting.
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Weighted
Average
Fair

Non-vested stock options Number Value
Non-vested options at January 1, 2( 6158 $ 25.97
Grantec 303,14 4.92
Vested (51,257 26.7:2
Forfeited (4,500 26.11
Non-vested options at December 31, 2009 308,97¢ $ 5.1¢

Year ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Weighted average per share fair value
Stock options grant $ 49z $ 2061 $ 28.8C
Service-based share grar 6.41 69.6( 48.4:
Total intrinsic value of option exercis — 2,16¢ 2,61¢
Shar«based liabilities paid (1 694 3,692 2,281
Total fair value of stock options vested during plegiod 1,36¢ 3,27¢ 4,044

(1) Share based liabilities paid represent the famealf shares issued on the vesting date to cdatgin
employees under our performance share program.

Option Pricing Model -We estimate the fair value of each option and serbiased share award using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model on the date of graife used the following assumptions to estimatddhevalue of our
share awards for 2009 and 2008.

2009 2008

1.36%- 1.98%-
Risk-free interest rat 2.3% 2.92%
Expected dividend yiel 0.0C $ 0.0cC

102%- 47%-—
Expected volatility 12€% 52%
Expected forfeiture rat 0%-3% 0%-3%
Expected term (year: 3.0-5.C 3.0-5.C

Our expected term assumption was based on hidtesieecise data for fully vested awards. The figle interest
rate is based on the yield on the measuremenfalatero-coupon U.S. Treasury bond strips with gesamilar to the
expected life of the option. The dividend yielde&o, based on our current dividends policy. Etgekvolatility is
estimated using the historical volatility of thegerof our common stock over the expected ternmefaptions. The
expected forfeiture rate is based on our histofmdéiture rate by employee class.

The following table summarizes the compensation i@z0gnized for the year ended December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively, for all options, service-baslkedre and performance-based share awards. Nolshesd
compensation cost was capitalized during thesegerand there were no significant modificationamf share-based
awards in 2009, 2008 and 2007.
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Year ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Share-based compensation expense repol
Stock option grant $ 1,180 $ 2638 $ 447¢
Service-based stock awart 95¢€ 1,78 1,48¢
Performanc-based stock gran 6,45: 8,04t 2,94¢
Total shar-based compensation expense before incom 8,58¢ 12,46 8,90¢
Income tax benef — — (3,279

Total shar-based compensation expense, net of income taxib $ 858 $ 12467 $ 5,63/

As of December 31, 2009, we had unrecognized cosgtiem expense of $3,358 before taxes, relatedre n
vested stock options and service-based stock awdiis expense will be recognized over a weiglateztage period
of 0.75 years. The unrecognized compensation eegpsrexpected to be recognized over the followiegods:

2010 2011
Stock-based compensation expense -tax) $ 3,00¢ $ 34¢

During the year ended December 31, 2009, no stptkres were exercised; we did not receive any &ash
employees for the exercise of stock options; andenot recognize any tax benefit related to stmghon exercises.

It has been our policy to issue new shares tofgahie requirements of our share-based compensplams. We
do not expect to repurchase shares in the futusagport our share-based compensation plans.

16. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) amounts are aledilby dividing earnings available to common dhalders by
the average number of common shares outstandinigte® EPS amounts assume the issuance of comrmok fetr all
potentially dilutive common shares outstanding.ribg1 2009, 2008 and 2007, we reported net losseanyg dilutive
common shares would be antidilutive to EPS. THhiewang table shows the basic and diluted earnifhgss) per share
for these periods:

Shares
Net loss (000) Per-Share

Basic and Diluted EP¢

Year end December 31, 20 $ (205,98)) 75,347 $ (2.79)
Year end December 31, 20 $ (895,18) 44,75¢ $ (20.00
Year end December 31, 20 $ (105,58) 37,19¢ $ (2.89)

Impact of issuance of Series A Convertible PreteBtock on EPS

We issued 160,000 shares of Series A ConvertildéeRed Stock (convertible into 16,000,000 comnimgrss) as a
portion of the consideration for the Financial Sal®ntract termination transaction in 2008. Thefered stock he
similar characteristics of a “participating secyirias described by ASC 260-10-45 (Formerly, SFAS N8, “Earnings
Per Share” and EITF 03-6, “Participating Securitiad the Two-Class Method under SFAS No. 128”)adcordance
with the guidance in the ASC 260-10-45, we caladdiasic EPS using the Two-Class Method, allocatimdjstributed
income to our preferred shareholder consistent thighr participation rights, and diluted EPS usding If-Converted
Method when applicable.
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ASC 260-10-50 does not require the presentatidrasic and diluted EPS for securities other thanmsomstock and
the EPS amounts, as presented, only pertain toamon stock.

The Two-Class Method is an earnings allocation fdenthat determines earnings per share for comrhares and
participating securities according to dividendslaesd (or accumulated) and the participation rightsndistributec
earnings. Our preferred stock is a non-cumulgiemetual participating convertible preferred stadth no set dividend
preferences. The dividend rights of our prefesiedreholder are equal to our common shareholdeikitdneld the
number of common shares into which its sharesefepred stock are convertible into as of the reclai@. The
liquidation rights of the preferred stock mirroethdividend rights, in that the preferred stockksin parity to the
common stock in respect of liquidation preference would be entitled to share ratably with commimtls holders in the
distribution of assets in a liquidation (as thotlgh preferred stock holders held the number ofeshaf common stock
into which their shares of preferred stock wereveotible). See Note 9 Shareholders’ Equity foriaadal information
about the rights and features of the preferreckstoc

The holders of our convertible preferred stock dblrave a contractual obligation to share in tissés of
Century. Thus, in periods where we report netdsswe do not allocate the net losses to the cthleepreferred stock
for the computation of basic or diluted EPS.

For the calculation of basic and diluted EPS u#iegTwo-Class Method in 2009 and 2008, we did Hotate any of
our undistributed net loss to the convertible preig stock. During 2007, there was no preferredksbutstanding and tl
Two-Class Method was not applied for the comparpbhods in 2007.

Impact of the Tax Benefit Preservation Plan on EPS

In September 2009, we entered into a Tax Benedgétwation Plan whereby each common shareholdepraferred
shareholder of record on October 9, 2009 receikedights. These Rights would only be exercisaptn the
occurrence of certain triggering events. Each Righ allow its holder to purchase one ohandredth of a share of Sel
B Junior Participating Preferred Stock, once thgh& become exercisable. This portion of a S&iPseferred Share w
give the stockholder approximately the same divieoting, and liquidation rights as would one ghaircommon
stock. Prior to exercise, the Right does not gsé@older any dividend, voting, or liquidationtg. Upon the occurrence
of a triggering event, our Board of Directors magirgguish the Rights by exchanging common stocklierRights.

In accordance with generally accepted accountimgiples for the calculation of EPS, the Rights esasidered
contingently issuable shares but will not be ineldich the calculation of EPS until the necessanditmns for exercise ¢
exchange have been satisfied. Upon an issuare&eties B Junior Participating Preferred stockld/ibe participating
securities and we would calculate EPS in accordanitethe Two-Class Method described above. See Bo
Shareholders’ Equity for additional information abthe Tax Benefit Preservation Plan.

Calculation of EPS

For the period ended December 31, 2009, 692,076rspto purchase common stock and 501,203 sendseeb
share awards were outstanding, but all optionsjcebased awards and shares to be issued upasshened
conversion of our convertible debt were excludedfthe calculation of diluted EPS because of taeiidilutive
effect on earnings per share. The average priceuiocommon stock for the year ended Decembe?2@19 was
below the conversion price of our 1.75% Notes.

For the period ended December 31, 2008, 427,43drspto purchase common stock and 79,076 serviseeba
share awards were outstanding, but were excluded fine calculation of diluted earnings per shaabse of the
antidilutive effect. Based on the average prigeoior common stock for the year ended Decembe2@183, we would
have issued approximately 2,030,000 shares upassmmed conversion of our convertible debt. Thhaees were
also excluded from the calculation of diluted eagsi per share because of the antidilutive effect.
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For the period ended December 31, 2007, 484,7 i@rapto purchase common stock and 82,834 serviseeba
share awards were outstanding, but were excludadl tfine calculation of diluted earnings per shaabse of the

antidilutive effect. Based on the average prigeoir common stock for the year ended Decembe2@17, we would

have

iIssued approximately 2,566,000 shares up@assumed conversion of our convertible debt. Thhaees were

also excluded from the calculation of diluted eagsi per share because of the antidilutive effect.

17.

Income Taxes

The components of g-tax book loss consist of the followin
Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
U.S. $ (114,279 $ (600,06) $ (321,96
Foreign (35,87() (3,182) 84,41(
Total $ (150,14) $ (603,24%) $ (237,55)

Significant components of the income tax expenseght) consist of the following
Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Current:

U.S. federal current expense (bene $ (22,1660 $ (62,069 $ 24,47(

State current expense (bene (1,299 4,84¢ (3,205

Foreign current expense (bene (2,127) 8,381 (3,296)
Total current expense (bene (25,587 (48,83F) 17,96¢
Deferred:

U.S. federal expense (bene (3,029  335,15! (164,68)

State deferred expen 677 20,44 7,91¢

Foreign deferred tax expense 15,57 2,081 22,47
Total deferred expense (bene 13,22¢ 357,68:  (134,29)
Total income tax expense (bene $ (12,35) $ 308,84¢ $ (116,329

A reconciliation of the statutory U.S. Federal immtax rate to the effective income tax rate ororim
(loss) is as follows

2009 2008 2007

Federal Statutory Ra 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
Effect of:

Permanent difference (2.0 2.2 1.C

State taxes, net of Federal ben 7.€ 1.8 5.5

Foreign earnings taxed at different rates than 13.7 (5.9 16.7

Equity earnings in joint venture 1.7 (1.7) (2.3

Valuation allowanct (57.0 (85.9) (5.9

Changes in uncertain tax reserves 8.2 1.4 (1.2)
Effective tax rate 8.2% (51.9)% 49.(%
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemporary differences between the carrying anmohassets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes an@ tamounts used for income tax purposes. Significamponents of our
deferred tax assets and liabilities as of Decerihare as follows:

2009 2008
Deferred tax asset
Accrued postretirement benefit c $ 20,631 $ 46,85¢
Accrued liabilities 12,707 8,781
Sharebased compensatic 3,89 4,491
Derivative and hedging contrac — 560,41
Goodwill 22,79 —
Equity contre- other comprehensive lo 66,68 56,58
Capital losse 7,60z —
Net operating losse 669,55: 25,10(
Other 2,591 2,69¢
Total deferred tax asse 806,45¢ 704,92:
Valuation allowance (681,099 (550,204
Net deferred tax asse 125,36! 154,71¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Tax over financial statement depreciat (169,509 (132,49)
Pensior (3,727 (1,947)
Derivative and hedging contrac (20,450 —
Income from domestic partnerst (1,799 (3,537
Debt basis differenc — (7,80%)
Unrepatriated foreign earnin (17,759 (42,70%)
Foreign basis differences (3,755 (5,757)
Total deferred tax liabilitie (206,98)  (194,23)
Net deferred tax liabilit $ (81,627 $ (39,519

Our deferred tax liability of $81,622 at Decembgr 3009, is comprised of our foreign deferred inedax
liability. The net deferred tax liability of $39,5 at December 31, 2008, is net of a non-currefiercil foreign income
tax liability of $66,038 and includes $32,290 ofremt deferred tax assets and $5,767 of non-cudefetred tax
liabilities.

Under ASC 740 (formerly SFAS No0.109, “Accounting focome Taxes”), a valuation allowance must baldisthed
when it is more likely than not that all or a portiof a deferred tax asset will not be realizetle amount of valuation
allowance is based upon our best estimate of dlityatb realize the net deferred tax assets. Aughon allowance can
subsequently be reversed when we believe thatsfetsaare realizable on a more likely than notsbasie have a
valuation allowance of $651,489 against all of feuleral and state deferred tax assets as of Dece&hp2009, due to ol
belief that it is more likely than not that thessets will not be realized. We recorded a valunagitowance of $29,605
against a portion of our Icelandic and Hong KongLNi@ferred tax assets as of December 31, 2009%cdower belief that
it is more likely than not that these assets will Ibe realized. The valuation allowance incredse#i130,890, which is
primarily due to continuing U.S. and foreign opargtiosses that may not provide a future tax bér

At December 31, 2009, we had federal NOLs carrwéods of $1,728,491, state NOL carry forwards @8%405 and
Icelandic NOL carry forwards of $193,194. The fedd&lOL begin to expire in 2028; state NOL begiretpire in 2027;
and, Icelandic NOL begin to expire in 2016.

We have removed our election to permanently reinfeesign earnings for 2009 and 2008. We did fatnge the
election in place for years prior to December 3072 The cumulative amount of foreign undistrilouteet earnings for
which no deferred taxes have been provided was,880%t December 31, 2009. Management has no fatistribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amaeuwsftgross unrecognized tax benefits (excludingrext) is as
follows:

2009 2008 2007
Balance as of January 1] $ 21,60 $ 40,60 $ 18,10(
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 5,20( 1,80( 6,60(
Reductions based on tax positions related to threcuyear — (4,400 —
Additions based on tax positions of prior yei — — 16,20(
Reductions for tax positions of prior yee (4,600) (2,000 (300
Decreases due to lapse of applicable statute dhlimns (700 (4,200 —
Settlements (300 (11,200 —
Balance as of December 31, $ 21,20 $ 21,60 $ 40,60(

Included in the above $21,200 balance at Decenthe2®9 are $17,400 of tax positions whose taxatttarization is
highly certain but for which there is uncertainboat the timing of tax return inclusion. Becausehef impact of deferred
tax accounting, other than interest and penaliiestiming would not impact the annual effective tate but could
accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing aityttoran earlier period. The remaining amountiofecognized tax
benefits that would affect our effective tax rdteecognized is approximately $4,600 as of Decer3tie2009.

Included in the above $21,600 balance at Decenthe2®8 are $7,200 of tax positions whose tax ctaraation is
highly certain but for which there is uncertainboat the timing of tax return inclusion. Becausehaf impact of deferred
tax accounting, other than interest and penaliiestiming would not impact the annual effective tate but could
accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing aitgttoran earlier period.

Included in the above $40,600 balance at Decenthe2®7 are $21,600 of tax positions whose taxatttarization is
highly certain but for which there is uncertainboat the timing of tax return inclusion. Becausehaf impact of deferred
tax accounting, other than interest and penaliiestiming would not impact the annual effective tate but could
accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing aitjttoran earlier period. Included in the balant®acember 31, 2007,
are estimates of uncertain tax positions relatesfdte tax filings.

It is our policy to recognize potential accruecnesst and penalties related to unrecognized tagfitgeim income tax
expense. In 2009, 2008 and 2007, we recognized®g), $(4,900) and $1,800, respectively, in irdeaand penalties.

Century and its subsidiaries file income tax resumthe U.S. federal jurisdiction and variousestantd local
jurisdictions, and Iceland. In connection with amlih conducted by Internal Revenue Serv“IRS”) for the tax years
2000 through 2002, the IRS raised issues and peopas deficiencies. We filed an administrativeesd with the IRS
with respect to these examinations, and in Aprd&Qve received notification from the IRS Appeaféic@ that the Joint
Committee had approved the settlement of all isselased to these examinations. As a result ofsetttement of all
issues related to this examination, our unrecoghiae benefits were reduced by $20,100 which iresua reduction in
accrued interest of $3,300 and recognition of aeturtax payable of $16,800 of which $11,247 wad pathe third
guarter of 2008 and the remainder was paid indhetth quarter of 2008. The statute of limitatidmisthe federal and
some state income tax years closed September @8 v2@ich resulted in a decrease of $4,200 in @lnillty of
unrecognized tax benefits.

Our federal income tax returns beginning in 20@5sabject to examination and we have receivediaenof audit for
the tax years 2005 through 2008. Material statklacal income tax matters have been concludegdars through
2002. The majority of our other state returns beigig in 2003 are subject to examination. Ourdgodic tax returns are
subject to examination and income tax matters baes concluded for years through 2001.

We do not expect a significant change in the balaianrecognized tax benefits within the next iw@ahonths.
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18. Contingencies and Commitment:
Environmental Contingencies

We believe our current environmental liabilitiesroitt have, and are not likely to have, a matedakase effect on ol
financial condition, results of operations or lidily. However, there can be no assurance thatdugguirements or
conditions at currently or formerly owned or opetaproperties will not result in liabilities whichay have a material
adverse effect.

In July 2005, the Environmental Protection Ager®&HRA”) began an initiative to perform an oversigigpection
of all Secondary Maximum Achievable Control Teclogy (“MACT”) facilities which deal with casting faaces,
including Hawesville. Partial inspections wereoatenducted at co-located Primary MACT facilitiesigh deal with
potlines, including Hawesville. In April 2008, tlE#PA sent CAKY requests under the Clean Air Actdopies of
certain records dating back to 2000. In Noveml@&92the EPA sent CAKY a Notice of Violation (“NO)alleging
12 violations relating to the Clean Air Act inclagj, among other things, violations of the MACT esioss standards
and the prevention of significant deteriorationgyeon for unpermitted major modifications.

The matter is under investigation. An initial ieagrwith the EPA occurred in January 2010 at wiG&KY
agreed to provide the EPA with additional inforroatregarding the alleged violations. CAKY providaath
information in February 2010. We cannot reasonabtyimate the liabilities with respect to this ragtbut they are not
expected to be material. We expect to resolvertaeer in 2010.

Century Aluminum of West Virginia, Inc. continuesgerform remedial measures at Ravenswood pursoiamnt orde
issued by the Environmental Protection Agency (“EFA 1994 (the “3008(h) Order”). CAWYV also condadta RCRA
facility investigation (“RFI”) under the 3008(h) @er evaluating other areas at Ravenswood that @&y tontamination
requiring remediation. The RFI has been approveddpropriate agencies. CAWV has completed inteemeadiation
measures at two sites identified in the RFI, andeleeve no further remediation will be requiredCArrective Measures
Study, which will formally document the conclusiohthese activities, is being completed with theAEFEPA approval ¢
the Corrective Measures Study is anticipated irsgeond quarter of 2010. We believe a signifigamtion of the
contamination on the two sites identified in thd RFRattributable to the operations of third pastad is their financial
responsibility.

Prior to our purchase of Hawesville, the EPA issadithal Record of Decision (“ROD”) under the Compensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liatily By agreement, Southwire Company (“Southwirdfig former
owner and operator is to perform all obligationgemthe ROD. CAKY has agreed to operate and maitite ground
water treatment system required under the ROD balbef Southwire, and Southwire will reimburse C¥XHKor any
expense that exceeds $400 annually.

We are a party to an EPA Administrative Order om$&mt (the “Order”) pursuant to which other past present
owners of an alumina refining facility at St. CroWrgin Islands have agreed to carry out a Hydrboa Recovery Plan
remove and manage hydrocarbons floating on groutaiwaderlying the facility. Pursuant to the Hyclidoon Recovery
Plan, recovered hydrocarbons and groundwater direeckl to the adjacent petroleum refinery wheeytare received
and managed. In connection with the sale of thiithaby Lockheed Martin Corporation (“Lockheedtl one of our
affiliates, Virgin Islands Alumina Corporation (“&fico”), in 1989, Lockheed, Vialco and Century eeteinto the
Lockheed-Vialco Asset Purchase Agreement. Thenmmity provisions contained in the Lockheed-Vialcesat Purchase
Agreement allocate responsibility for certain eammental matters. Lockheed has tendered inderandydefense of the
above matter to Vialco. We have likewise tendened@émnity to Lockheed. Management does not belda&o’s
liability under the Order or its indemnity to Loakéd will require material payments. Through Decengi, 2009, we
have expended approximately $800 on the HydrocaRemovery Plan. We expect the future potentiahpayts under
this indemnification to comply with the Order wlle approximately $500, which may be offset in pgrsales of
recoverable hydrocarbons.
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In May 2005, we and Vialco were among several d#dats listed in a lawsuit filed by the Commissioakthe
Department of Planning and Natural Resources,dic&pacity as Trustee for Natural Resources dfithiteed States
Virgin Islands. The complaint alleges damagesatoiral resources caused by alleged releases fremdmina refinery
facility at St. Croix and the adjacent petroleuriinery. The primary cause of action is pursuarth®natural resource
damage provisions of the Comprehensive Environnh&gsgponse, Compensation, and Liability Act of 198@ various
ancillary Territorial law causes of action wereluted as well. We and Lockheed have each tendedethnity and
defense of the case to the other pursuant to thestef the Lockheed-Vialco Asset Purchase Agreem&he complaint
seeks unspecified monetary damages, costs andattf@es. On July 15, 2009, we and Vialco andralbéndants filed
motions for summary judgment on the issue of th@iegbility of the statute of limitations. The pias are currently
engaged in the discovery process.

In December 2006, Vialco and the two succeedingepgvof the alumina facility were named as deferglama
lawsuit filed by the Commissioner of the DepartmeiPlanning and Natural Resources of the UnitedeStVirgin
Islands. The complaint alleges the defendantsddi take certain actions specified in a CoastaleZmanagement perr
issued to Vialco in October 1994, and alleges Vimte of territorial water pollution control lawsidng the various
defendants’ periods of ownership. The complaieksestatutory and other unspecified monetary pesdibr the alleged
violations. Vialco filed its answer to the compiaasserting factual and affirmative defenses. Jdréies are currently
engaged in the discovery process.

We intend to defend both Vialco lawsuits vigoroushd to assert all applicable defenses. Pursadhetterms of the
asset purchase agreement between Vialco and thkegsar of the facility in 1995, the purchaser agsliresponsibility
for all costs and other liabilities associated vifta bauxite waste disposal facilities, includimg-plosure and postosure
liabilities. At this time, it not practicable taqict the ultimate outcome of these actions astimate a range of possible
damage awards.

In July 2006, we were named as a defendant, togeftte certain affiliates of Alcan Inc., in a lawisbrought by
Alcoa Inc. seeking to determine responsibility dertain environmental indemnity obligations relatedhe sale of a cast
aluminum plate manufacturing facility located inren, California, which we purchased from Alcoa.limcDecember
1998, and sold to Alcan Rolled Products-Ravenswddd (formerly Pechiney Rolled Products, LLC) inyudl999. The
complaint also seeks costs and attorney feeshigtitme, it is not practicable to predict the miite outcome of these
actions or to estimate a range of possible damageds.

It is our policy to accrue for costs associatedhweiivironmental assessments and remedial effos vetbecomes
probable that a liability has been incurred andcibsts can be reasonably estimated. The aggregat®nmente-related
accrued liabilities were $966 and $848 at DecerBthie009 and 2008, respectively. All accrued an®bave been
recorded without giving effect to any possible fetoecoveries. With respect to costs for ongoingrenmental
compliance, including maintenance and monitoringhscosts are expensed as incurred.

Because of the issues and uncertainties descriimaaand our inability to predict the requiremesftfuture
environmental laws, there can be no assurancédutuae capital expenditures and costs for enviramadecompliance wil
not have a material adverse effect on our futurarftial condition, results of operations, or ligyidBased upon all
available information, management does not belieaethe outcome of these environmental mattedshaile a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, resaftsperations, or liquidity.

Legal Contingencies

We have pending against us or may be subject tougatawsuits, claims and proceedings related priyni
employment, commercial, environmental, sharehokkgfety and health matters. Although it is not pnély possible to
determine the outcome of these matters, managdmeéates their ultimate disposition will not havenaterial adverse
effect on our financial condition, results of operas, or liquidity.
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In March 2009, four purported stockholder classastwere filed against us in the United Statedr@isCourt for the
Northern District of California. The actions argtided Petzschke v. Century Aluminum Co., et Abrams v. Century
Aluminum Co., et a, McClellan v. Century Aluminum Co., et andHilyard v. Century Aluminum Co., et al These
actions have been consolidated and a lead plaia#foeen confirmed. These cases allege that prep@rly accounted
for cash flows associated with the terminationert&in forward financial sales contracts which actmg allegedly
resulted in artificial inflation of our stock pri@nd investor losses. These actions seek restigbmur February 2009
common stock offering, unspecified compensatoryatges, including interest thereon, costs and exgearse counsel
fees. Management intends to vigorously defendetlaeions, but at the date of this report, it ispassible to predict the
ultimate outcome of these actions or to estimatnge of possible damage awards.

Ravenswood Retiree Medical Benefits changes

Century Aluminum of West Virginia, Inc. amendedpisst retirement medical benefit plan effectiveusag 1, 2010
for all current and former salaried employees,rtiependents and all bargaining unit employees netied before June
1, 2006, and their dependents.

The principal changes to the plan are upon attamimkage 65, all CAWYV provided retiree medical égts will ceas:
for retirees and dependents. In addition, bargginnit retirees under age 65 and dependents ageeB5 are covered by
the salary retiree medical plan which requiresafygocket payments for premiums, co-pays and déuastby
participants. See Note 14 Pension and Other Riostnent Benefits for additional information abolése benefi
changes.

In November 2009, CAWYV filed a class action compidor declaratory judgment against the USWA, tf&/NVA’s
local union, and four CAWV retirees, individuallpdias class representatives, seeking a decla@fti@AWV's rights to
modify/terminate retiree medical benefits as désdiabove. Later in November, the USWA and repteasiges of a
retiree class filed a separate suit against CAW&HtAry Aluminum Company, Century Aluminum Master [t&iee
Benefit Plan, and various John Does with respettiedoregoing. These actions, entitl@ewhurst, et al. v. Century
Aluminum Co., et &., and Century Aluminum of West Virginia, Inc. v. Unitaded, Paper and Forestry, Rubber
Manufacturing, Energy, Allied Industrial & Servivéorkers International Union, AF-CIO/CLC, et al. have been
consolidated and venue has been set in the Di§taatt for the Southern District of West Virginién January 2010, the
USWA filed a motion for preliminary injunction tagvent us from implementing the foregoing changksenhese
lawsuits are pending. The court has not yeedsuruling on the motion. We intend to vigoroyslysue our case in the
foregoing actions, but as of the date of this repbis not possible to predict the ultimate outeof these actions.

Power Commitments
Big Rivers Agreement

To secure a new, long-term power contract for thevébville facility, on July 16, 2009, CAKY, alongtiv E.ON anc
Big Rivers , agreed to an “unwinaf the former contractual arrangement between BigiR and E.ON and entered
Big Rivers Agreement to provide long-term cost-lbhgewer to CAKY. The term of the Big Rivers Agreemen
through 2023 and provides adequate power for Hallesvfull production capacity requirements (approxiehat48:
MW) with pricing based on the provider’s cost obguction. The Big Rivers Agreement is take-or-fayHawesvilles
energy requirements at full production. Undertdrens of the agreement, any power not required déyesville would b
available for sale and we would receive creditsdciual power sales up to our cost for that powiédre current mark
price of electrical power in this region is lesartBig River’ forecasted cost. See Note 3 Lamegm power contract f
Hawesville for additional information about theggeements.
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APCo Rate filing

APCo supplies all of Ravenswood’s power requirem@nder an agreement at prices set forth in pudalisariffs,
which are subject to change. Under the specialgantract, Ravenswood may be excused from or reggy the payment
of the increase in the tariff rate if aluminum gscas quoted on the LME fall below pre-determimeels. In March
2009, APCo filed a request for a rate increasetover unrecovered fuel costs and to cover theased cost of fuel and
purchased power as well as capital improvememtsSeptember 2009, the PSC agreed to extend theakgse contrac
terms of the existing agreement for one year amihated approximately $16 million of the unrecas@ifuel costs to
Ravenswood. This amount will be factored intogpecial rate provision which excuses or defers magsabove set
tariff rates depending on aluminum prices. Werawewing options to further extend the term of éixésting agreement
that establishes the LME-based cap on the tatékra

Labor Commitments

Approximately 75% of our U.S. based work forcegpnesented by the USWA. Our Ravenswood plant grepk
represented by the USWA are under a labor agreetin@inivas extended to August 31, 2010. The agreecaowers
hourly employees at the Ravenswood plant. Fortadai information about Ravenswood operationsiéete 4
Curtailment of Operations. Our Hawesville, Kentygilant employees represented by the USWA arenandellective
bargaining agreement that will expire on March&110. The agreement covers approximately 525 howtkers at the
Hawesville plant.

Approximately 84% of Grundartangi’'s work force épresented by five labor unions under an agreethahexpired
on December 31, 2009.

Other Commitments

Alumina Contract Amendment€On April 21, 2009, we agreed with Glencore to achevo alumina purchase
agreements, dated April 14, 2008 and April 26, 2088pectively (collectively, the “Amendments”)h&d Amendments
reduce the amount of alumina Glencore will supplZentury from 330,000 metric tons to 110,368 radtns in 2009
and from 290,000 metric tons to 229,632 metric 1arZ010, for an overall alumina supply reductidr280,000 metric
tons.

In conjunction with these alumina supply reductiddis Ann agreed to reduce the amount of bauxitalisupply
Glencore in 2009 by 775,000 dry metric tons, 650,06/ metric tons being cancelled and 125,000 deyrimtons being
deferred to 2010. As part of this transaction haee agreed to pay St. Ann $6,000 in compensatiothé reduced
bauxite sales. Payments were made in monthlylimg&ats through December 2009.

Gramercy and St. Ann transfein August 2009, we reached agreement to transfeingastments in Gramercy and
St. Ann. We made a $5,000 cash payment at cl@sidgan additional $5,000 cash payment in the fayutirter of 2009
to settle amounts owed to Gramercy.

The divesture of Gramercy and St. Ann in August2@id not affect our obligation to pay St. Ann $E)Q0in
compensation for the reduced bauxite sales assdodth agreements to reduce the amount of ba&kitdnn will supph
Glencore in 2009.

19. Forward Delivery Contracts and Financial Instruments

As a producer of primary aluminum, we are exposeftlictuating raw material and primary aluminumcps. We
enter into fixed and market priced contracts fa& ffale of primary aluminum and the purchase of maaterials in
future periods.
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Forward Physical Delivery Agreements

Primary Aluminum Sales Contracts

Contract Customer Volume Term Pricing
Glencore Metal Glencore 20,400 mtpy Through December Variable, based
Agreement (1) 31, 2013 on U.S.

Midwest
market
Glencore Sweep Glencore 24,000 mtpy minimum Through December Variable, based
Agreement (2) 31, 2010 on U.S.
Midwest
market
Southwire Metal Southwire 240 million pounds per  Through March 31, Variable, based
Agreement year (high conductivity 2011 on U.S.
molten aluminum) Midwest
market
Southwire Metal Southwire 60 million pounds per yei Through December Variable, based
Agreement (standard-grade molten 31, 2010 on U.S.
aluminum) Midwest
market

(1) We account for the Glencore Metal Agreement agiaate/e instrument in accordance with general
accounting principles for accounting for derivaivestruments and hedging activities. Under the
Glencore Metal Agreement, pricing is based on ttement market prices, adjusted by a negotiated U.S
Midwest premium with a cap and a floor as apple@the current U.S. Midwest premium.

(2) The Glencore Sweep Agreement is for all metal pcedwy Century in the U.S. in 2010, less existing
sales agreements and high-purity metal sales.térhreof the contract may be extended for one ypanu
mutual agreement.

Tolling Contracts

Contract Customer Volume Term Pricing
Billiton Tolling Agreement  BHP Billiton 130,000 mtpy Through December 31, 201 LME-based
(1)
Glencore Toll Agreement (. Glencore 90,000 mtpy Through July 31, 2016 LME-based
2

Glencore Toll Agreement (.  Glencore 40,000 mtpy Through December 31, 201 LME-based

1) Grundartangi’s tolling revenues include a premiwasdd on the European Union (“EU”) import duty for
primary aluminum. In May 2007, the EU members pedlithe EU import duty for primary aluminum
from six percent to three percent and agreed tewethe new duty after three years. This decreatiee
EU import duty for primary aluminum negatively ingtg Grundartangi’'s revenues and further decreases
would also have a negative impact on Grundartamgvenues , but it is not expected to have a nateri
effect on our financial position and results of igiens.

2) Glencore assigned 50% of its tolling rights undiés agreement to Hydro Aluminum through December
31, 2010.
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Apart from the Glencore Metal Agreement, the Gleaceweep Agreement and the Southwire Metal Agre&smere
had forward delivery contracts to sell 26,140 neetivhs and 84,047 metric tons of primary aluminar@@cember 31,
2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively. Of tf@serd delivery contracts, we had fixed price ocoiments to sell
1,559 metric tons and 330 metric tons of primagymahum at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 268@ectively, ¢
which none were with Glencore at December 31, 2009319 metric tons were with Glencore at DeceritheP008.

Financial Purchase and Sales Agreements

We are party to various forward financial and pbgbkdelivery contracts that are accounted for awalive
instruments. See Note 7 Derivative Instrumentstéadging for additional information about theserasents.

20. Asset Retirement Obligations “ARO”)

Our asset retirement obligations consist primarflgosts associated with the disposal of spentipet used in the
reduction cells of our domestic facilities.

The reconciliation of the changes in the assetartnt obligations is presented below:

Year ended Decembe

31,
2009 2008
Beginning balance, ARO liabilit $ 14337 $ 13,58¢
Additional ARO liability incurrec 89¢ 2,14(
ARO liabilities settlec (1,11€ (2,469
Accretion expense 1,11¢€ 1,07t
Ending balance, ARO liabilit $ 15231 $ 14,33]

Certain conditional AROs related to the disposatsof fixed assets at our primary aluminum faesithave not been
recorded because they have an indeterminate setitatate. These conditional AROs will be initialgcognized in the
period in which sufficient information exists tdtiesate their fair value

21. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Cash paid for

Interest $ 2838: $ 2324( $ 34,32

Income taxe: 5,00¢ 21,77 53,33¢
Cash received fron

Interest $ 2,05¢ $ 7,80¢ $ 9,87¢

Income tax refund 91,59: 224 —
Non-cash investing activitie:

Accrued capital cost $ 1057¢ $ (22,119 $% 3,59

Non-Cash Activities

Due to the curtailment of our Ravenswood operatinriebruary 2009, we reclassified certain inventtems into
other assets. During the year ended Decembel0B®, Zhere was an $18,023 non-cash decrease totamyalue to this
reclassification
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In 2009, 2008 and 2007, we issued shares of constoak to certain key employees to satisfy perforceasshare
liabilities of $694, $3,692 and $2,281, respectivak part of our performance share program.

During the years ended December 31, 2007, we tizpiianterest costs incurred in the constructibequipment
of $3,739.

In 2007, we recorded a $2,461 non-cash loss ongaighment of debt arising from the write-off ofeleed
financing costs for the Nordural senior term loaaility.

22. Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

Financial results by quarter for the years endecebder 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Net income
Gross profit  Netincome (loss) per
Net sales (loss) (loss) share

2009:
4th Quarter (1 $ 256,81: $ 14,27 $ (24,359 $  (0.2¢)
3rd Quarter (2 228,69¢ (2,357) 40,14: 0.4t
2nd Quarter (3 189,15! (5,227 (107,146 (1.4%)
1st Quarter (4 224,58 (72,367 (114,62 (2.77)
2008:
4th Quarter (5 $ 402,19¢ $ (62,57¢) $ (693,549 $ (14.19
3rd Quarter (6 552,23¢ 121,98 35,78¢ 0.5¢
2nd Quarter (7 545,19° 156,22 (3,49¢) (0.0¢)
1st Quarter (8 471,14. 95,99¢ (233,93) (5.70

(1) The fourth quarter of 2009 net income includesféardax expense $11,500 related to the fair value
adjustment for primary aluminum put option and @otiontracts and an after-tax benefit of $6,600
related to discrete income tax adjustments.

(2) The third quarter of 2009 net income includes afienf $55,599 primarily from realized and unreali
gains related to the termination of the existingi@ocontract and its replacement with a new power
contract at the Hawesville smelter and a $7,50b&mnefit related to the release of tax reserves no
longer required.

(3) The second quarter of 2009 net loss includes adeshsposition of equity investments of $73,23d an
charge of $9,166 related to ongoing costs assacvaith the production curtailments at the
Ravenswood and Hawesville primary aluminum smeltémgentory market value adjustments of
$26,868 favorably impacted the quarterly results.

(4) The first quarter of 2009 net loss includes $24 &32ted to employee separation expenses, supplier
payments and other costs resulting from produdatiotailments at the Ravenswood and Hawesville
primary aluminum smelters.

(5) The fourth quarter of 2008 net loss includes agharf $94,844 for goodwill impairment, a charge of
$55,867 for lower-cost-or market inventory adjusttseand a $515,090 charge for reserves on
deferred income tax assets.

(6) The third quarter of 2008 net income includes aghaf $50,440, net of tax, for loss on forward
contracts.

(7) The second quarter of 2008 net loss includes ayehafr$129,943, net of tax, for loss on forwardtcacts
and a benefit of $15,506 for tax benefits from gipally foreign corporate tax rate reductions.

(8) The first quarter of 2008 net loss includes a chaig$285,864, net of tax, for loss on forward cacts.
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23. Business Segment

We operate in one reportable business segmentaprialuminum. A reconciliation of our consolida&skets to
the total of primary aluminum segment assets isigeal below.

Segment assets (. 2009 2008 2007

Primary $1,815,58' $1,937,831 $2,547,43.

Corporate, unallocate 46,16 97,52¢ 19,37
Total asset $1,861,751 $2,035,35 $2,566,80!

(1) Segment assets include accounts receivable, doedifdiates, inventory, intangible assets, andpery,
plant and equipment-net; the remaining assetsraakogcated corporate assets, and deferred taxsasset

Geographic information

Included in the consolidated financial statemengstlae following amounts related to geographic tioce:

2009 2008 2007

Net sales

United State: $ 565,99¢ $1,428,94: $1,318,43!
Iceland 332,92° 535,76 473,03«
Other 327 6,06¢ 6,694
Long-lived assets:(1

United State: $ 436,79¢ $ 551,89 $ 560,28!
Iceland 899,85! 911,08: 932,33¢
Other 35,62¢ 58,24¢ 16,38:

(1) Includes long-lived assets other than financiakrumeents and deferred tax assets.

Major customer information

In 2009, we had three major customers whose salesiue exceeded 10% of our net sales. In 2008 @0 e
had four major customers whose sales revenue exddé¥o of our net sales. A loss of any of thestoeners could
have a material adverse effect on our results efaipns. The revenue and percentage of net fealdsese customers
are as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Sales Percent o Sales Percent o Sales Percent o
revenue net sale: revenue net sale: revenue net sale:
Southwire $ 234,53 26.1% $ 404,39: 20.5%0 $ 431,46( 24 .(%
Glencore 230,90¢ 25.7% 495,96 25.2% 348,41 19.4%
BHP Billiton 166,54¢ 18.5% 262,75: 13.2% 255,64t 14.2%
Alcan (1) — — 337,21t 17.1% 378,29 21.(%

(1) Sales revenue from Alcan during 2009 was less 11086 due to curtailment of operations at
Ravenswood.
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24. Related Party Transactions

The significant related party transactions occagrdaring the years ended December 31, 2009, 2002@0i7 are
described below.

One of the members of our board of directors iSthairman of the Board of Directors of Glencoreinational
AG.

Primary aluminum put options

In September and October 2009, we entered intogpyimluminum put option contracts that settle miynittom
October 2009 through December 2010 based on LMtegriOur counterparties include Glencore, a rlpéety, and
a non-related third party. We paid a cash prentmenter into these contracts and recorded a $kiont-asset in
prepaid and other current assets on the consdiidetiance sheets. We determined the fair valdieeoput option:
using a Black Scholes pricing model with inputsamid from an independent source and account éopuh options
as derivative financial instruments with gains &sses in the fair value of the contracts reco@ethe consolidated
statements of operations in net losses on forwamntiacts. See Note 7 Derivative and hedging aes/for additional
information about the put option contracts.

2008 Termination Transaction

In November 2004 and June 2005, we entered intogoyi aluminum forward financial sales contractw@encore
for the years 2006 through 2010 and 2008 throudt 2@spectively (the “Financial Sales ContractsW/hile these
Financial Sales Contracts were outstanding, they werked-to-market on a quarterly basis basett®@hME forward
market prices for primary aluminum. Gains or lasaere recognized in our Consolidated Statemen@pefations in net
loss on forward contracts and an asset or liabiig recognized on our consolidated balance shiketFinancial Sales
Contracts had a fixed volume that was net settleathsh monthly. As the contracts were in a liabpibsition, cash
payments were made to Glencore on a monthly basishweduced the associated contract liabi

On July 7, 2008, Century and Glencore agreed toiteate the Financial Sales Contracts upon the paybeCentury
to Glencore of $1,820,457 in cash ($1,315,259 paidediately and $505,198 financed through a defesettlement
agreement, which was repaid during 2008) and gheisce by Century to Glencore of 160,000 sharesmivoting
perpetual preferred stock, convertible into 16,000,shares of common stoclWe received $1,090,259 of cash as
consideration for the shares of Series A Convertitreferred Stock issued. We used the cash receiaettle a portion
of outstanding contract liabilities associated wite Financial Sales Contracts . See Note 14 Solaeis’ Equity for
additional information about the convertible prederstock.

On July 7, 2008, our Due to affiliates, current aot-current balances, included $1,832,056 oflligds associated
with the outstanding Financial Sales Contractdhwaihon-current portion of $1,529,178. The follogviable sets forth a
comparison of the consideration given and recebye@entury in the termination transaction:

Cash paic $ 1,315,25'
Series A Convertible Preferred Stc 929,48(
Deferred settlement amou 505,19¢

Total consideration give 2,749,93
Financial Sales Contracts liabili (1,832,051
Cash received (1,090,25)
Gain on settlemer $ (172,379

The value of the Series A Convertible PreferreciSteas based on the closing value of our commarksta the date
of the transaction with adjustments for certaing€a@ssociated with these instruments borne by holdie Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock. In 2008, we recora&d 61,976 gain ($172,378 gain, net of $10,40X#&eton costs) o



forward contracts relating to the terminated FinainSales Contracts in our Consolidated Statemean@perations ir
Net loss on forward contraci
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Cash payments for the settlements of the Finafekds Contracts with Glencore were based on thieeamn
shipment volume, contract price and the actual LiviEe for primary aluminum for the correspondingipe. In 2008
through the date of the termination transactiodulg 7, 2008, we settled 100,200 metric tons, wiimhsisted of the
original contract volume plus the additional voluthat was triggered when the LME exceeded certagsholds. Our
cash payments for the contract settlements in 20082007 are in the Summary table below.

Purchases from Glencore

We purchased alumina from Glencore on both a smbtang-term contract basis. We believe that athefalumina
purchased under these contracts was purchaseides phich approximated market. We have also psexhalumine
from Glencore on a spot basis. We determined th&eharice for the spot alumina we purchased basea survey of
suppliers at the time that had the ability to dalispot alumina on the specified terms. Basedhisrstirvey, we believe
that all of the spot alumina purchased from Gleaseas purchased at prices that approximate market.

In 2009, we purchased primary aluminum from Gleaamr a spot basis. We believe that the primamizum
purchased was purchased at prices which approxinmadeket.

Alumina contract and amendment$Ve signed a long-term agreement to buy alumio fGlencore in April 2008.
Glencore has agreed to supply us with 290,000 oiteinis of alumina in 2010, 365,000 metric tons04a 2, 450,000
metric tons in 2012, 450,000 metric tons in 201®] @30,000 metric tons in 2014. The alumina pridebe indexed to
the LME price of primary aluminum.

On April 21, 2009, we agreed with Glencore to amevalalumina purchase agreements, dated April @@8 2nd
April 26, 2006, respectively (collectively, the “Aandments”). The Amendments reduce the amounuafiab Glencore
will supply to Century from 330,000 metric tonsltb0,368 metric tons in 2009 and from 290,000 mébms to 229,632
metric tons in 2010, for an overall alumina sup@giuction of 280,000 metric tons.

Sales to Glencore

We sold primary aluminum and alumina to Glencorthlzospot and long-term contract basis. See NdRBUBiness
Segments for additional information about the petage of sales of primary aluminum to Glencore.

We sold primary aluminum under our long-term sal@stracts with Glencore at prices based on the pviée for
primary aluminum, as adjusted to reflect the Midiwemium (a premium typically added for deliveraésaluminum
within the U.S.). In addition, we received tollifggs from Glencore under tolling contracts thawte for delivery of
primary aluminum produced at Grundartangi. Thepiaie by Glencore under these tolling contractsaiseld on the LMI
price for primary aluminum, as adjusted to reflbet reduced European Union import duty paid oralogic primary
aluminum. We believe that all of the transactionih lencore under these contracts were at marketg

We have a long-term contract to sell Glencore 2D#@y of primary aluminum, at a variable pricedxasn the
LME, adjusted by a negotiated U.S. Midwest markethpum with a cap and floor as applied to the aurtéS. Midwest
Premium. In addition, we entered into a one-yeatract through December 31, 2010 to sell Glenadird.S. produced
primary aluminum, less existing sales agreemerdshagt-purity metal sales. Glencore has agreed to pseha
minimum of 24,000 metric tons under this agreemdifite term of the contract may be extended foryaa upon mutual
agreement.

Other Transactions with Glencore

We are party to separate ten-year and seven-ye&-haded alumina tolling agreements with Glencore9@000 an
40,000 metric tons of capacity per year, respelgtiat Grundartangi, which run through 2016 and£01
respectively. Glencore assigned 50% of its tollights under the teyear agreement to Hydro Aluminum AS for



period 2007 to 201(
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In connection with our February 2009 public stoffielong, Glencore purchased 13,242,250 sharesmofwon stock i
the February 2009 offering. As of December 31,20 believe that Glencore beneficially ownedotiyh its common
stock, approximately 39.1% of our issued and ontitey common stock and, through its ownership oflcmn and
preferred stock, an overall 44.1% economic ownerehiCentury

Summary

A summary of the aforementioned related party &atisns for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008
2007 is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007

Termination transaction $ — $1,659,67( $ —
Net sales to Glencore 230,90¢ 495,96! 348,41:
Cash premium to Glencore for put option contracts 7,22¢ — —
Purchases from Glencore 37,68: 146,36¢ 178,97
Cash settlement of financial sales contracts tbatal qualify for cas

flow hedge accounting — 115,01¢ 98,25¢
Glencore’s participation in common stock offerings 59,59( 115,31¢ 125,19¢

See Note 7 Derivatives and Hedging activities fdrsaussion of our fixed-price commitments and farv
financial contracts.

25. Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

Our 8.0% senior secured notes due 2014, 7.5% sengacured notes due 2014 and 1.75% convertiblersen
Notes due 2024 are guaranteed by each of our mlaéeisting and future domestic subsidiaries, ektmpNordural
US LLC. Each subsidiary guarantor is 100% owne@bwtury. All guarantees are full and unconditlpaad all
guarantees are joint and severdlhese notes are not guaranteed by our foreigndiabseis (such subsidiaries and
Nordural US LLC, collectively th“Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries”). We allocate corpemxpenses or income to our
subsidiaries and charge interest on certain intepamy balances.

The following summarized condensed consolidatirigrizse sheets as of December 31, 2009 and Decerhper 3
2008, condensed consolidating statements of opasator the years ended December 31, 2009, Dece3ib@008
and December 31, 2007 and the condensed consogdatitements of cash flows for the years ende@mber 31,
2009, December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007tresgarate results for Century, the guarantorigdisbs, the
non-guarantor subsidiaries, consolidating adjustsiand total consolidated amounts.

This summarized condensed consolidating finanofakmation may not necessarily be indicative ofibsults of

operations or financial position had Century, thargntor subsidiaries or the non-guarantor subsdiaperated as
independent entities.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 200

Combined
Combined Non- Reclassification:
Guarantor Guarantor The and
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries = Company Eliminations  Consolidated
Assets:
Cash $ — $ 109,79¢ $ 88,43t $ — $ 198,23
Restricted cas 8,87¢ — — — 8,87¢
Accounts receivabl— net 28,88¢ 8,822 — — 37,70¢
Due from affiliates 544,06¢ 7,04C 2,471,60! (3,003,45) 19,25t
Inventories 74,88 56,59 — — 131,47
Prepaid and other ass: 56,04¢ 10,29 27,58¢ — 93,92
Total current asse 712,75¢ 192,54; 2,587,62 (3,003,45) 489,46¢
Investment in subsidiarie 31,95¢ — (1,023,41) 991,45: —
Property, plant and equipme— net 396,41t  899,85: 2,08( (62) 1,298,28:
Due from affiliates— less curren
portion — 5,85¢ — — 5,85¢
Other asset 21,867 29,77( 16,49¢ — 68,13¢
Total $1,163,000 $1,128,021 $1,582,78 $ (2,012,06) $ 1,861,75!
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity:
Accounts payable, trac $ 3793¢$ 39,16« $ 19¢ $ —$ 77,30
Due to affiliates 2,076,14. 53,00: 178,60: (2,275,04) 32,70¢
Accrued and other current liabiliti 21,63¢ 4,64( 12,32( — 38,59¢
Accrued employee benefits costs —
current portior 11,63: — 1,365 — 12,99.
Convertible senior note — — 43,23¢ — 43,23¢
Industrial revenue bonc 7,81F — — — 7,81°F
Total current liabilities 2,155,16 96,80¢ 235,72t (2,275,04) 212,65t
Senior notes payab — — 247,62+ — 247,62:
Accrued pension benefit costs — less
current portior 22,04 — 21,23¢ — 43,28:
Accrued postretirement benefit costs -
less current portio 173,81¢ — 3,41¢ — 177,23:
Other liabilities/intercompany loe 52,547 700,47 7,052 (728,47)) 31,60¢
Deferred taxe— less current portio — 81,62: — — 81,62:
Total noncurrent liabilities 248,40" 782,10( 279,33( (728,472 581,36.
Shareholder¢ equity:
Preferred stoc — — 1 — 1
Common stocl 60 12 92t (72 92t
Additional paic-in capital 297,29¢ 144,38« 2,501,38! (441,68) 2,501,38
Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss (89,485 (1,06¢) (74,27() 90,55: (74,27()
Retained earnings (accumulated defic (1,448,44) 105,79: (1,360,31) 1,342,65 (1,360,31)
Total shareholde’ equity (1,240,57) 249,12( 1,067,73 991,45. 1,067,73
Total $ 1,163,000 $1,128,021 $1,582,78 $ (2,012,06) $ 1,861,75
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 200

Assets:

Cash

Restricted cas

Shor-term investment

Accounts receivabl— net

Due from affiliates

Inventories

Prepaid and other ass:

Deferred taxe— current portior
Total current asse

Investment in subsidiarie

Property, plant and equipme— net

Intangible asse— net

Due from affiliates — less current

portion

Other assets

Total asset

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity:

Accounts payable, trac

Due to affiliates

Accrued and other current liabiliti

Accrued employee benefits co—
current portior

Convertible senior note

Industrial revenue bonds

Total current liabilities

Senior unsecured notes paya

Revolving credit facility

Accrued pension benefit costs — less
current portior

Accrued postretirement benefit co—
less current portio

Other liabilities/intercompany loe

Deferred taxes — less current portion

Total noncurrent liabilitie:

Shareholder¢ equity:

Preferred stoc

Common stocl

Additional paic-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss

Combined
Combined Non- Reclassification:
Guarantor Guarantor The and

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries  Company Eliminations  Consolidated
$ — $ 7154+3% 5785 % — $ 129,40(
86& — — — 86&
— — 13,68¢ — 13,68¢
46,50¢ 14,35: — — 60,85¢
649,44( 4,87¢ 2,44250°  (3,057,76) 39,06
87,67: 50,43¢ — — 138,11
2,20¢ 18,47¢ 79,17 — 99,86:
32,29( — — — 32,29(
818,97¢ 159,69. 2,593,22 (3,057,76)) 514,13:
40,35¢ — (891,41)) 851,05¢ —
427,53. 911,08: 1,422 — 1,340,03
32,527 — — — 32,527
— 7,59¢ — — 7,59¢
62,16¢ 50,64¢ 16,92¢ 11,31¢ 141,06:

$ 1,381,56. $1,129,02.

$1,720,161 $ (2,195,39) $ 2,035,35!

Retained earnings (accumulated defic (1,314,99)

Total shareholde’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity

$ 61,09 $ 40,91 $ 13€ $ — $ 102,14
2,157,67.  50,86(  251,45¢  (2,389,03) 70,95
27,99 8,83¢ 21,95( — 58,77
10,74 — 1,32¢ — 12,07
— — 152,70 —  152,70(
7,81¢ — — — 7,81¢
226531  100,60¢  427,56¢  (2,389,03) 404 46;
— — 250,00 — 250,00

— — 25,00( — 25,00(
29,77: — 20,23 — 50,00
216,89! — 2,641 — 219,53
29,43 647,81, 13,63¢ (657,420 33,46
5767 66,03t — — 71,80
281,86  713,85( 31151 (657,420 649,81
— — 2 — 2

60 12 491 (72) 491
297,29 144,37 2,272,12i (441,663 2,272,12
(147,979  (5,837) (137,209 153,81¢ (137,209
176,01¢ (1,154,33)  1,138,97' (1,154,33)

(1,165,62) 314,56 981,08 851,05( 981,08

$1,381,56. $1,129,02 $1,720,161 $ (2,195,39) $ 2,035,35:
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the year ended December 31, 20(

Combined
Combined Non- Reclassification:
Guarantor  Guarantor The and
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Company Eliminations  Consolidatec
Net sales
Third-party customer $ 44509t $ 223,24¢( $ — $ — $ 668,34
Related partie 121,23( 109,67¢ — — 230,90¢
566,32t 332,92 — — 899,25!
Cost of goods sol 663,12: 302,41: — (61) 964,91t
Gross profit (loss (96,799 30,51« — 61¢ (65,66%)
Other operating incom- net (16,08¢) — — — (16,08¢)
Selling, general and admin
expenses 44 ,05: 3,82¢ — — 47,87¢
Operating income (los! (124,76 26,68¢ — 61¢ (97,456
Interest expens— third party (30,390 — — — (30,390()
Interest expens- affiliates 61,57¢ (61,57% — — —
Interest incom 714 58¢ — — 1,29;
Interest incom¢ affiliates — 572 — — 57z
Net loss on forward contrac (17,71 (1,70)) — — (19,41%)
Other expens- net (4,25%) (49€) — — (4,75))
Income (loss) before tax
and equity in earnings (loss)
of subsidiaries and joint
ventures (114,830) (35,93) — 61¢ (150,142
Income tax benefit
(expense) 26,75¢ (14,399 — — 12,35

Income (loss) before equity i

earnings (loss) of subsidiarie

and joint venture (88,079 (50,33) — 61¢ (137,78¢)
Equity earnings (loss) «

subsidiaries and joint

ventures (45,377) (19,89¢) (205,98)) 203,05¢ (68,19¢)
Net income (loss) $ (13345)% (70,227) $(205,98) $ 203,67¢ $  (205,98)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended December 31, 20C

Combined
Combined Non- Reclassification:
Guarantor  Guarantor The and
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Company Eliminations  Consolidatec
Net sales
Third-party customer $ 1,127,08 $ 347,73. % — $ — $ 1,474,811
Related parties 307,93: 188,02¢ — — 495,96
1,435,01 535,76( — — 1,970,771
Cost of goods sold 1,284,86. 373,70¢ — 58¢E 1,659,15
Gross profil 150,15! 162,05¢ — (58%) 311,62
Selling, general and
administrative expenst 44.,80¢ 3,41 — — 48,22:
Goodwill impairment — 94,84+ — — 94,84

Operating income (los: 105,34¢ 63,79: — (58%) 168,55



Interest expens- third party
Interest expens- affiliates
Interest income
Interest income affiliates
Net loss on forward contrac
Other income (expense) - net
Income (loss) before taxes a
equity in earnings (loss) of
subsidiaries and joint ventur
Income tax benefit
(expense)
Income (loss) before equity it
earnings (loss) of subsidiarie
and joint venture
Equity in earnings (loss) «
subsidiaries and joint venture
Net income (loss

(31,830) — — — (31,830)
54,75t (55,900) — — (1,145
5,34( 2,141 — — 7,481
— 31¢€ — — 31¢
(728,699 (15,750 — — (744,44
(4,399 2,21¢ — — (2,179
(599,479 (3,187 — (58F) (603,244
(315,979 6,887 — 247 (308,844
(915,457 3,70C — (342) (912,09))
12,97¢ 5,05/ (895,18 894,06: 16,90¢
$ (902,479 $ 8,75¢ $(895,18) $ 893,72: $  (895,18)
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended December 31, 20C

Combined

Combined

Non-

Guarantor  Guarantor
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Company Eliminations  Consolidatec

Reclassification:
The and

Net sales
Third-party customer $ 1,101,31. $ 348,43 $ — $ — $ 1,449,75
Related partie 223,81¢ 124,59! — — 348,41
1,325,12! 473,03 — — 1,798,16.
Cost of goods sol 1,115,67. 321,47 — (2,450 1,434,70!
Gross profil 209,45¢ 151,55 — 2,45( 363,46:
Selling, general an
administrative expenses 45,25( 14,67( — — 59,92(
Operating incom: 164,20t 136,88 — 2,45( 303,54:
Interest expens— third party (31,14) (8,570 — — (39,71)
Interest expens- affiliates 42,43¢ (42,43 — — —
Interest income 9,13¢ 1,65¢ — — 10,79(
Net loss on forward contrac (508,87Y — — — (508,87Y
Loss on early extinguishmen
of debt — (2,467) — — (2,467)
Other expense - net (17¢€) (66E) — — (841)
Income (loss) before taxes a
equity in earnings (loss) of
subsidiaries and joint ventur (324,41Y) 84,41( — 2,45( (237,559
Income tax (expense) bene 108,54 8,71¢ — (934) 116,32:
Net income (loss) before equity
earnings (loss) of subsidiaries
and joint venture (215,877) 93,12¢ — 1,51¢ (121,23)
Equity in earnings (loss) ¢
subsidiaries and joint
ventures 25,19; 2,747 (105,58 93,28 15,64¢
Net income (loss $ (190,679 % 95,87: $(105,580) $ 94,80 $  (105,58()
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 20(
Combined
Combined Non-
Guarantor  Guarantor The
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Company Consolidatec
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi ~ $ 78,47¢ $ (39,07) $ — $ 39,39¢
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipn (10,249 (5,389 (2,30%) (16,935
Nordural expansio — (21,987 — (21,987
Investments in and advances to joint vent — — (1,049 (1,044
Payments received on advances from joint
ventures — — 1,761 1,761
Restricted and other cash deposits (8,019 — — (8,019
Net cash used in investing activiti (18,255 (27,370 (58¢) (46,217




Financing activities

Repayment under revolving credit facil — — (25,000 (25,000

Financing fee: — — (2,429 (2,429

Intercompany transactiol (60,227 104,700 (44,479

Issuance of common sto— net — — 103,07 103,07
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (60,227) 104,70( 31,16¢ 75,64¢
Net change in cas — 38,25: 30,58: 68,83
Cash, beginning of the period — 71,54¢ 57,85¢ 129,40(
Cash, end of the peric $ — $ 109,79¢ $ 88,43t $ 198,23
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 20C

Combined
Combined Non-
Guarantor  Guarantor The
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Company Consolidatec
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi $ (712,329 $ 46,887 $ — $ (665,43
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipn (34,715 (9,00%) (81€) (44,536
Nordural expansio (80,319 — (80,319
Investments in and advances to joint vent — — (36,979 (36,979
Payments received on advances to joint veni 22k 1,52¢ 1,75¢
Proceeds from sale of prope 28¢€ 45 — 331
Restricted cash depos 8 — — 8
Net cash used in investing activiti (34,196 (89,274  (36,26)) (159,73))
Financing activities
Repayment of lor-term debr related party — — (505,199 (505,199
Borrowing on revolving credit facilit — — 35,00( 35,00(
Repayments on revolving credit facil — — (10,000 (20,000
Excess tax benefits from sh-basec
compensatiol — — 657 657
Intercompany transactiol 746,52: 102,80: (849,32 —
Issuance of preferred sto — — 929,48 929,48(
Issuance of common stock — — 443,66t 443,66¢
Net cash provided by financing activiti 746,52: 102,80 44,28 893,60
Net change in cas — 60,41" 8,021 68,43¢
Cash, beginning of the peri — 11,12¢ 49,83¢ 60,96
Cash, end of the peric $ — $ 7154t $ 57,858 % 129,40

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 20C

Combined
Combined Non-
Guarantor Guarantor The

Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Company  Consolidated

Net cash (used in) provided by operat
activities $ (136,449 $ 130,69( $ — $ (5,755
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant a

equipmen (18,779) (5,289 (189 (24,240

Nordural expansio — (88,764 — (88,764

Proceeds from sale of property, pl

and equipmer 3 692 — 69t

Restricted and other cash depo 3,73¢ — — 3,73¢
Net cash used in investing activiti (15,037) (93,35%) (184) (108,57:)

Financing activities

Borrowings of lon-term debr — 30,00( — 30,00(

Repayment of lor-term debr — (369,430 — (369,43

Excess tax benefits from share-bas:

compensatiol — — 58¢ 58¢

Intercompany transactiol 151,47 301,36 (452,84() —

Issuance of common sto — — 417,77: 417,77:

Net cash provided by (used in) financ



activities 151,47 (38,079) (34,48) 78,92:

Net change in cas — (73€) (34,66%) (35,409
Cash, beginning of the ye — 11,86¢ 84,49¢ 96,36¢
Cash, end of yes $ — $ 11,12¢ $ 49,83 $ 60,96
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26. Subsequent Events (Unaudited
We have evaluated all subsequent events througtietieethe financial statements were issued.
Additional 7.5% Notes Exchanges in January and Mar2010

We completed debt for debt exchanges in Januaryvimndh 2010. Investors received $950 worth of 80étes for
every $1,000 principal amount tendered of 7.5% Blbtnds and did not receive a cash consent feaddition, these
investors received the accrued interest for thé&®¥e/Notes, net of interest that has accrued o .08 notes since the
original issuance date. From January 1, 2010 tirdvarch 16, 2010, $4,345 of 7.5% Notes were exgbdrior $4,128
of 8.0% Notes. As of March 16, 2010, we had $2 808 $249,604 of aggregate principal amount outiétgrof the 7.59
Notes and 8.0% Notes, respective
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Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants gkccounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedure:

As of December 31, 2009, we carried out an evalnatinder the supervision and with the participatbour
management, including our Chief Executive Officed ghe Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveaed our
disclosure controls and procedures. Based uparetaduation, our management, including the Chiefdtitive
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, concludbat our disclosure controls and procedures wdeetife.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing an adequate system of internal controls buancial
reporting for the company. This system is desigoqarovide reasonable assurance regarding trebrdly of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaatepted
accounting principles. Because of its inherenttétions, a system of internal controls over finahoeporting can provic
only reasonable assurance and may not preventectdeisstatements. Further, because of changamuofitions,
effectiveness of internal controls over financepaorting may vary over time. Our system of intéguantrols contains
self-monitoring mechanisms, and actions are ta@eotrect deficiencies as they are identified.

As required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxldy lanagement conducted an evaluation of the eféretss
of the system of internal controls over financgporting for the year ended December 31, 2009. agament’s
evaluation was based on the frameworknternal Control - Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway @@sion. Based on this evaluation, managementwded
that our system of internal controls over financeglorting was effective as of December 31, 20D8e effectiveness
of our internal control over financial reportingshiaeen audited by Deloitte and Touche LLP, an iaddpnt registered
public accounting firm

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportm

During the quarter ended December 31, 2009, theere hot been any changes in our internal contras o
financial reporting that have materially affectedare reasonably likely to materially affect, auternal control over
financial reporting.

Item 9B . Other Information

None.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govenance

This Item is incorporated by reference to our defie proxy statement on Schedule 14A, which wélfiled by
April 30, 2010, or if our proxy statement is ndefl by that date, will be included in an amendnterthis Report on
Form 10-K, which will be filed by April 30, 2010nformation regarding the Executive Officers of RRegistrant is
included in Part | of this Form 10-K.

Iltem 11. Executive Compensatior

This Item is incorporated by reference to our defie proxy statement on Schedule 14A, which wélfiled by
April 30, 2010, or if our proxy statement is ndéedl by that date, will be included in an amendnterthis Report on
Form 10-K, which will be filed by April 30, 2010.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownersand Management and Related Stockholder Matter

This Item is incorporated by reference to our dgfie proxy statement on Schedule 14A, which wdlfiled by
April 30, 2010, or if our proxy statement is ndefl by that date, will be included in an amendnterthis Report on
Form 10-K, which will be filed by April 30, 2010.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactionsral Director Independence

This Item is incorporated by reference to our defie proxy statement on Schedule 14A, which wélfiled by
April 30, 2010, or if our proxy statement is ndefl by that date, will be included in an amendnterthis Report on
Form 10-K, which will be filed by April 30, 2010.

Item 14 . Principal Accountant Fees and Service

This Item is incorporated by reference to our dafie proxy statement on Schedule 14A, which wdlfiled by

April 30, 2010, or if our proxy statement is ndéedl by that date, will be included in an amendnterthis Report on
Form 10-K, which will be filed by April 30, 2010.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibit and Financial Statement Schedule
(a8)(1) List of Financial Statements

The following Consolidated Financial StatementCehtury Aluminum Company and the Independent Auslito
Report are included in Part II, Item 8 of this FatfK.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimg.
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&@02008
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equityhferyears ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yaaied December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(a)(2) List of Financial Statement Schedule:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfging.
Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts foe years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.
(a)(3) List of Exhibits

Exhibit Index
Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit Filed
Number Description of Exhibit Form File No. Filing Date  Herewith
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of 10-Q 000-2791¢& August 10, 200¢
Incorporation of Century Aluminum
Company

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Centun  8-K  000-2791¢ August 16, 200=
Aluminum Company

4.1  Form of Stock Certificate S-1 33-95486 August 8, 1995
4.2  Indenture for Century Aluminum Company 8-K  000-2791& September 1,
7.5% Senior Notes, dated as of August 26 2004

2004, among Century Aluminum Compan
as issuer, the guarantors party thereto anc
Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee

4.3  Supplemental Indenture No. 1 for Century 10-Q 000-2791& August 9, 2005
Aluminum Company's 7.5% Senior Notes,
dated as of July 27, 2005, among Century
Aluminum Company, as issuer, Century
Kentucky, LLC, as a guarantor, and
Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee

4.4  Supplemental Indenture No. 2 for Century 10-K  000-2791¢ March 16, 2006
Aluminum Company’s 7.5% Senior Notes,
dated as of December 29, 2006 among



Century Aluminum Company, as Issuer,
NSA General Partnership, as a Guarantor
Wilmington Trust Company, as Trustee
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Exhibit Index
Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit Filed
Number Description of Exhibit Form File No. Filing Date Herewith
4.5  Supplemental Indenture No. 3 for Century 10-K 00027918 March 1, 2007

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

412

Aluminum Company’s 7.5% Senior Notes
dated as of December 21, 2006 among
Century Aluminum Company, as Issuer,
Century California LLC, as a Guarantor ar
Wilmington Trust Company, as Trustee

Supplemental Indenture No. 4 for Century
Aluminum Company’s 7.5% Senior Notes
dated as of April 20, 2007, among Centun
Aluminum Company as Issuer, Century

Aluminum Development LLC as Guaranto
and Wilmington Trust Company as Truste

Supplemental Indenture No. 5 for Century
Aluminum Company’s 7.5% Senior Notes
dated as of December 9, 2009, among
Century Aluminum Company as Issuer, at
Wilmington Trust Company as Trustee

Indenture for Century Aluminum Compan
1.75% Convertible Senior Notes, dated as
August 9, 2004, between Century Alumint
Company, as issuer, and Wilmington Trus
Company, as trustee

Supplemental Indenture No. 1 for Century
Aluminum Company's 1.75% Convertible
Senior Notes, dated as of October 26, 20(
among Century Aluminum Company, as
issuer, and Wilmington Trust Company, a:
trustee

Supplemental Indenture No. 2 for Century
Aluminum Company's 1.75% Convertible
Senior Notes, dated as of October 26, 20(
among Century Aluminum Company, as
issuer, the guarantors party thereto and
Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee

Supplemental Indenture No. 3 for Century
Aluminum Company's 1.75% Convertible
Senior Notes, dated as of July 27, 2005,
among Century Aluminum Company, as
issuer, Century Kentucky, LLC, as a
guarantor, and Wilmington Trust Compan'
as trustee

Supplemental Indenture No. 4 for Century
Aluminum Company's 1.75% Convertible
Senior Notes, dated as of December 29,

2005, among Century Aluminum Compan
as issuer, NSA General Partnership, as a
Guarantor, and Wilmington Trust Compan

10-Q

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

10-Q

10-K

00027918

00134474

00027918

00027918

00027918

00027918

00027918

August 9, 2007

December 10,
2009

November 1,
2004

November 1,

2004

November 1,
2004

August 9, 2005

March 16, 2006



4.13

414

4.15

as trustee

Supplemental Indenture No. 5 for Century
Aluminum Company's 1.75% Convertible
Senior Notes, dated as of December 21,
2006, among Century Aluminum Compan
as issuer, Century California LLC, as a
Guarantor, and Wilmington Trust Compan
as trustee

Supplemental Indenture No. 6 for Century
Aluminum Company’s 1.75% Convertible
Senior Notes, dated as of April 20, 2007,
among Century Aluminum Company as
Issuer, Century Aluminum Development
LLC as Guarantor and Wilmington Trust
Company as Trustee

Supplemental Indenture No. 7 for Century
Aluminum Company’s 1.75% Convertible
Senior Notes, dated as of November 17,
2009, among Century Aluminum Compan
as issuer, and Wilmington Trust Company
as trustee
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibit

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File No.

Filing Date

Filed
Herewith

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

Indenture for Century Aluminum Compan
8.0% Senior Secured Notes, dated as of
December 10, 2009, between Century
Aluminum Company, as issuer, and
Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee an
Noteholder Collateral Agent

Form of Note for the Indenture for Century
Aluminum Company's 8.0% Senior Securt
Notes, dated as of December 10, 2009,
between Century Aluminum Company, as
issuer, and Wilmington Trust Company, a:
trustee and Noteholder Collateral Agent

Certificate of Designation, Preferences an
Rights of Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock of Century Aluminum Company, da
July 7, 2008

Form of Certificate of Designations of Ser|
B Junior Participating Preferred Stock of
Century Aluminum Company (Attached as
Exhibit A to the Tax Benefit Preservation
Plan filed as Exhibit 4.20)

Tax Benefit Preservation Plan, dated as o
September 29, 2009, between Century
Aluminum Company and Computershare
Trust Company, N.A.

Employment Agreement, dated as of
December 13, 2005, by and between Cen
Aluminum Company and Logan W.
Kruger*

Amendment No. 1 to Employment
Agreement dated as of March 19, 2007 by
and between Century Aluminum Compan
and Logan W. Kruger*

Amendment No. 2 to Employment
Agreement dated as of August 30, 2007, |
and between Century Aluminum Compan
and Logan W. Kruger*

Amendment No. 3 to Employment
Agreement dated as of December 1, 200¢
and between Century Aluminum Compan
and Logan W. Kruger*

Amendment No. 4 to Employment
Agreement dated as of December 30, 20(C
by and Between Century Aluminum
Company and Logan W. Kruger

Amended and Restated Severance Protec
Agreement, dated March 19, 2007, by anc

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

10-K

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-K

00134474

00134474

00027918

00027918

00027918

00027918

00027918

00027918

00027918

00027918

December 10,
2009

December 10,
2009

July 8, 2008

September 29,
2009

September 29,
2009

March 16, 2006

March 2, 2009

November 9,

2007

March 2, 2009

February 29,
2008



10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

between Century Aluminum Company ant
Logan W. Kruger*

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Resta
Severance Protection Agreement dated

December 1, 2008, by and between Centl
Aluminum Company and Logan W. Kruge

Employment Agreement, dated as of Mar«
1, 2007, by and between Century Alumint
Company and Wayne R. Hale*

Amendment No. 1 to Employment
Agreement dated as of August 30, 2007, |
and between Century Aluminum Compan
and Wayne R. Hale*

Amendment No. 2 to Employment
Agreement dated as of December 1, 200¢
and between Century Aluminum Compan:
and Wayne R. Hale*
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibit

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File No. Filing Date

Filed
Herewith

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

Severance Protection Agreement, dated ¢
March 1, 2007, by and between Century
Aluminum Company and Wayne R. Hale*

Amendment No. 1 to Severance Protectio
Agreement dated December 1, 2008, by &
between Century Aluminum Company ant
Wayne R. Hale*

Employment Agreement, dated as of Jant
23, 2006, by and between Century
Aluminum Company and Michael A. Bless

Amendment No. 1 to Employment
Agreement dated as of March 19, 2007, b
and between Century Aluminum Compan
and Michael A. Bless*

Amendment No. 2 to Employment
Agreement dated as of August 30, 2007, |
and between Century Aluminum Compan!
and Michael A. Bless*

Amendment No. 3 to Employment
Agreement dated as of December 1, 200¢
and between Century Aluminum Compan
and Michael A. Bless*

Amended and Restated Severance Protec
Agreement, dated March 19, 2007, by anc
between Century Aluminum Company ant
Michael A. Bless*

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Resta
Severance Protection Agreement dated

December 1, 2008, by and between Centl
Aluminum Company and Michael A. Bless

Employment Agreement, dated as of May
2006, by and between Century Aluminum
Company and Robert R. Nielsen*

Amendment No. 1 to Employment
Agreement dated as of March 19, 2007, b
and between Century Aluminum Compan
and Robert R. Nielsen*

Amendment No. 2 to Employment
Agreement dated as of August 30, 2007, |
and between Century Aluminum Compan!
and Robert R. Nielsen*

Amendment No. 3 to Employment
Agreement dated as of December 1, 200¢
and between Century Aluminum Compan
and Robert R. Nielsen*

10-Q

10-K

8-K

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-K

10-K

8-K

10-K

10-Q

10-K

00027918 May 10, 2007

00027918 March 2, 2009

00027918 January 25, 200

00027918 February 29,
2008

00027918 November 9,
2007

00027918 March 2, 2009

00027918 February 29,
2008

00027918 March 2, 2009

00027918 May 4, 2006

00027918 February 29,
2008

00027918 November 9,
2007

00027918 March 2, 2009



10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

Letter Agreement dated December 30, 20
between Century Aluminum Company ant
Robert R. Nielsen*

Amended and Restated Severance Protec
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2007, t
and between Century Aluminum Compan
and Robert R. Nielsen*

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Resta
Severance Protection Agreement dated a:
December 1, 2008, by and between Centt
Aluminum Company and Robert R. Nielse

Employment Agreement, dated as of
December 30, 2009, by and between Cen
Aluminum Company and William J.
Leatherberry*
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibit

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File No. Filing Date

Filed
Herewith

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39
10.40

10.41

Amended and Restated Severance Prote«
Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2008,
and between Century Aluminum Compan:
and William J. Leatherberry*

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Resta
Severance Protection Agreement dated a:
December 1, 2008, by and between Centt
Aluminum Company and William J.
Leatherberry*

Amended and Restated Severance Prote(
Agreement, dated as of March 20, 2007, t
and between Century Aluminum Compan!
and Steve Schneider*

Amendment No. 1 to Severance Agreeme
dated as of December 1, 2008, by and
between Century Aluminum Company anc
Steve Schneider*

Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Ple

Century Aluminum Company Incentive
Compensation Plan (Amended and Resta
Effective June 9, 2006)*

Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Incen
Plan*

Form of Stock Option Agreement —
Employee*

Form of Stock Option Agreement — Non-
Employee Director*

Century Aluminum Company Amended ar
Restated 1996 Stock Incentive Plan

Implementation Guidelines For Performan
Share Awards (as amended June 8, 2006

Century Aluminum Company Amended ar
Restated Supplemental Retirement Incom
Benefit Plan*

First Amendment of the Century Aluminur
Company Amended and Restated
Supplemental Retirement Income Benefit
Plan*

Long-Term Incentive Plan*

2009-2011 Long-Term Transformational
Incentive Plan*

Form of Long-Term Incentive Plan (Time-
Vesting Performance Share Unit Award
Agreement)*

S-1
8-K
10-Q
10-K
10-K

8-K

10-Q

8-K
10-Q

8-K

33-95486 March 28, 1996
00027918 June 14, 2006
00027918 August 10, 200¢
00027918 March 16, 2006
00027918 March 16, 2006

00027918 June 14, 2006

000- August 10,
27918 2009

00027918 April 11, 2008

00134474 November 11,
2009

00027918 April 11, 2008

X



10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

Form of Long-Term Incentive Plan
(Performance Unit Award Agreement)*

Form of Independent Non-Employee
Director Annual Retainer Fee Payment
Time-Vesting Performance Share Unit
Award Agreement*

Form of Independent Non-Employee
Director Annual Equity-Grant Time-Vestin
Performance Share Unit Award Agreemer

Amended and Restated Century Aluminur
Company Executive Severance Protectior
Plan, adopted November 1, 2009

Amended and Restated Asset Purchase
Agreement, dated as of December 13, 19
by and between Kaiser Aluminum &
Chemical Corporation and Ravenswood
Acquisition Corporation
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibit

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File No. Filing Date

Filed
Herewith

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50
10.51
10.52

10.53

10.54

10.55

10.56

10.57

10.58

10.59

Acquisition Agreement, dated as of July 1
1995, by and between Virgin Islands
Alumina Corporation and St. Croix Alumin
L.L.C.

Ravenswood Environmental Services
Agreement, dated as of February 7, 1989,
and between Kaiser Aluminum & Chemicz
Corporation and Ravenswood Aluminum
Corporation

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of
March 31, 2000, by and between Xstrata
Aluminum Corporation and Berkeley
Aluminum, Inc.

Form of Tax Sharing Agreement
Form of Disaffiliation Agreement

Amended and Restated Owners
Agreement, dated as of January 26, 199¢
and between Alumax of South Carolina, Ir
Berkeley Aluminum, Inc. and Glencore
Primary Aluminum Company LLC

Alumina Supply Contract, dated as of Apr
26, 2006, by and between Century
Aluminum of West Virginia and Glencore
AG.

Alumina Supply Contract, dated as of Apr
14, 2008, by and between Century
Aluminum Company and Glencore AG***

Amendment to Alumina Purchase
Agreement, dated April 21, 2009, by and
among Century Aluminum Company and
Glencore AG****

Amendment to Alumina Purchase
Agreement, dated April 21, 2009, by and
among Century Aluminum of West Virginii
Inc. and Glencore AG.****

Amended and Restated Toll Conversion
Agreement, dated as of February 10, 200!
by and between Nordural ehf and Glencot
AG

Toll Conversion Agreement 2, dated as of
April 30, 2007 by and between Nordural e
and Glencore AG.***

Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 17
2004, among Kaiser Aluminum & Chemici
Corporation, Kaiser Bauxite Company,

S-1

S-1

S-1

S-1

8-K

10-Q

8-K

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

33-95486 March 28, 1996

33-95486 March 28, 1996

00027918 April 20, 2000

33-95486 March 28, 1996
33-95486 March 28, 1996
33-95486 March 28, 1996

00027918 May 11, 2006

00027918 August 11, 200¢

00027918 April 27, 2009

00027918 April 27, 2009

00027918 August 9, 2005

00027918 August 9, 2007

00027918 November 9,
2004



10.60

10.61

10.62

Gramercy Alumina LLC and St. Ann
Bauxite Limited**

General Bond, dated as of February 10, S-4/A 333- February 11,
2005, by and between Nordural ehf. and 121729 2005
Kaupthing Bank hf., as security trustee

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as o 10-Q 00027918 November 9,
September 19, 2005, by and among Bank 2005
America, N.A., Century Aluminum

Company, Berkeley Aluminum, Inc.,

Century Aluminum of West Virginia, Inc.,

Century Kentucky, Inc., and NSA LTD

Amendment No. 1 to Loan and Security 10-K 00027918 March 2, 2009
Agreement, dated as of February 22, 200

by and among Bank of America, N.A.,

Century Aluminum Company, Berkeley

Aluminum, Inc., Century Aluminum of We:

Virginia, Inc., Century Kentucky, Inc., and

NSALTD
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Exhibit Index
Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit Filed
Number Description of Exhibit Form File No. Filing Date Herewith
10.63 Second Lien Pledge and Security Agreem  8-K  001-34474 December 10,
dated as of December 10, 2009, between 2009
Century Aluminum Company and
Wilmington Trust Company, as Collateral
Agent for the Trustee and Holders of the ¢
Senior Secured Notes
10.64 Termination Agreement, dated as of July = 8-K 00027918 July 8, 2008
2008, by and between Century Aluminum
Company and Glencore, Ltd.
10.65 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of J 8-K 00027918 July 8, 2008
7, 2008, by and between Century Alumint
Company and Glencore Investment Pty Lt
10.66 Standstill and Governance Agreement, da 8-K 00027918 July 8, 2008
as of July 7, 2008, by and between Centu
Aluminum Company and Glencore AG
10.67 Amendment to Standstill and Governance X
Agreement, dated as of January 27, 2009
and between Century Aluminum Compan
and Glencore AG
10.68 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as« 8-K 00027918 July 8, 2008
July 7, 2008, by and between Century
Aluminum Company and Glencore
Investment Pty Ltd
10.69 Support Agreement, dated as of May 4, 8-K 00027918 May 4, 2009
2009, by and between Glencore AG and
Century Aluminum Company
21.1 List of Subsidiaries X
23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP X
24.1 Powers of Attorney X
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification — X
Chief Executive Officer
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification — X
Chief Financial Officer
32.1 Section 1350 Certifications X

**

*k*k

*kkk

Management contract or compensatory plan.
Schedules and exhibits are omitted and will beifined to the Securities and

Exchange Commission upon request.

Confidential information was omitted from this elztipursuant to a request for
confidential treatment and filed separately with 8ecurities and Exchange

Commission.

Written description of these amendments are ingatpd by reference to the
disclosure under Item 1.01 of the Century AluminQompany Current Report on

Form 8-K dated April 21, 2009.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regydthas duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf byutidersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Century Aluminum Company

By: /s/ MICHAEL A. BLESS
Michael A. Bless
Executive Vice-President and Chief Financial Office

Dated: March 16, 2010

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bdipvhe
following persons on behalf of the Registrant amthe capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ LOGAN W. KRUGER Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive March 16, 2010
Officer)
Logan W. Kruger
/sl MICHAEL A. BLESS i i i ief Fi i
. Executive Vice Pre_5|den_t and _Chlef Financial March 16, 2010
Michael A. Bless Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ STEVE SCHNEIDER Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting
Officer and Controller (Principal Accounting March 16, 2010
Steve Schneider Officer)
*
- Chairman March 16, 2010
John P. O’'Brien
*
Director March 16, 2010
Jarl Berntzen
- Director March 16, 2010
Robert E. Fishman
- Director March 16, 2010
John C. Fontaine
Director March 16, 2010
Peter C. Jones
- - Director March 16, 2010
Catherine Z. Manning
- Director March 16, 2010
Willy R. Strothotte
*
Director March 16, 2010

Jack E. Thompson



*By: /s/ WILLIAM J.
LEATHERBERRY

William J. Leatherberry, as
Attorney-in-fact
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Ggrdluminum Company:

We have audited the consolidated financial statésn&nCentury Aluminum Company and subsidiaries (fiompany")
as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and for eadiedhtee years in the period ended December 38, 200 the
Company's internal control over financial reportagyof December 31, 2009, and have issued ourtsegh@reon dated
March 16, 2010; such consolidated financial statémand reports are included elsewhere in this Ad+K. Our audits
also included the consolidated financial statersehedule of the Company listed in Item 15. Thissodidated financial
statement schedule is the responsibility of the Gamy's management. Our responsibility is to expaesopinion based
on our audits. In our opinion, such consolidatedricial statement schedule, when considered atioel to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a wpobsents fairly, in all material respects, th@infation set forth therei

/s/ Deloitte and Touche LLP

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
March 16, 2010
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY

SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Charged
Balance at To Cost Balance
Beginninc and at End ol

of Period  Expense Deductions Period
(Dollars in thousands)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007: Allowance fc

doubtful trade accounts receivable $ 1,00C $ — $ — $ 1,00C

Deferred tax asset - valuation allowance $ — $ 13,881 % — $ 13,881
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008: Allowance fc

doubtful trade accounts receivable $ 1,00C $ — $ — $ 1,00C

Deferred tax asset - valuation allowance $ 13,881 $536,32: $ — $550,20¢

Inventory — lower of cost or market reserve $ — $ 55,861 $ — $ 55,867
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009: Allowance fc

doubtful trade accounts receivable $ 1,00C $ — $ (266) $ 734

Deferred tax asset - valuation allowance $ 550,20« $130,89( $ — $681,09¢

Inventory — lower of cost or market reserve $ 55,867 $ — $ (47,152) $ 8,71t
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EXHIBIT 10.5

AMENDMENT No. 4 to EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT No. 4 to EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (thiSAmendment No. 4”) is made as of
December 30, 2009 (the “Effective Date”), by and between @enAluminum Company, a Delaware corporation (the
“Company”), and Logan W. Kruger (the “Executive”).

RECITALS

A. The Company and the Executive are parties tBraployment Agreement, made as of December 13,
2005 and amended as of March 19, 2007, August@®¥, and December 1, 2008, pursuant to which agnegme so
amended, the parties agreed that the Company veoutdoy Executive as President and Chief Executiffie€
(collectively, the “Employment Agreement”).

B. The Company and the Executive desire to amea&mployment Agreement.

THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. Agreement with regard to Fees and ExpensesA new Section 16 of the Agreement is hereby add
its entirety as follows:
“16. Fees and Expenses
€)) This Section 16(a) shall be appliealdr any and all costs and expenses (including

attorneys’ fees) incurred by Executive in seekilng enforce the Company’s obligations under this
Agreement. Unless prohibited by law, the Compamgllspay and be solely responsible for any and all
costs and expenses (including attorneys' feesynedlby Executive in seeking to enforce the Comfsany
obligations under this Agreement unless and tcettient a court of competent jurisdiction determitied

the Company was relieved of those obligations b&eafil) the Company terminated Executive “for
cause” (as determined under Section 7(c) heref)Executive voluntarily terminated his employment
other than for “Good Reason” (as defined in the BA (iii) Executive materially and willfully breded

his obligations under this Agreement and such bref@ctly caused substantial and demonstrable gama
to the Company. The Company shall pay directlyedmburse Executive for any and all such costs and
expenses within 60 (sixty) calendar days followthg presentation by Executive or by counsel salecte
from time to time by Executive of a statement atesnents prepared by Executive or by such couriskeéo
amount of such costs and expenses. If and toxtentea court of competent jurisdiction rendersnalf
binding judgment determining that the Company we®eved of its obligations for any of the reasoat s
forth in clauses (i), (ii), or (iii) above, Execudi shall repay, within 60 (sixty) calendar dayddwing such
judgment, the amount of such payments or reimbuesésnto the Company. The Company shall also pay
to Executive interest (calculated at the Base Ruaim time to time in effect at Bank of America,
compounded monthly) on any payments or benefitisateapaid or provided to Executive later thandhte

on which due under the terms of this Agreement.




(b) In order to comply with Section 4094, in no event will the payments by the Company
under Section 16 of this Agreement be made lat@n the end of the calendar year next following the
calendar year in which such fees and expenses ineuwered; the Executive shall be required to sulanit
invoice for such fees and expenses at least 10 loefgse the end of the calendar year next followtime
calendar year in which such fees and expenses imewered; (i) the amount of such legal fees and
expenses that the Company is obligated to payyngaren calendar year will not affect the legaldemd
expenses that the Company is obligated to payyro#irer calendar year; (iii) the Company’s obligatto
pay the Executive’s legal fees will terminate ore tfourth anniversary of the termination of this
Agreement; provided, however that with respectrip Supplemental Retirement Benefit, the Company’s
obligation to pay the Executive’s legal fees wdtrhinate on the second anniversary of the date laohw
the Company fully satisfies its obligations in respof the Supplemental Retirement Benefit; an}l ttie
Executive’s right to have the Company pay such lldgas and expenses may not be liquidated or
exchanged for any other benefit.”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment No. 4 has bealy dxecuted as of the Effective Date.

For CENTURY ALUMINUM
COMPANY

By:

/s/ Peter C. Jones

Peter C. Jones

Chairman of the
Compensation
Committee

EXECUTIVE

/sl Logan W. Kruger

Logan W. Kruger

President and Chief
Executive Officer







EXHIBIT 10.23

December 30, 2009

Robert R. Nielsen, Esq.

Executive Vice President, Secretary,
Century Aluminum Company

2511 Garden Road

Monterey, CA 93940

Dear Bob:

| am writing this letter agreement further to tlomeersations last week among you, Bill Leatherbang me, and our
agreement as follows:

You have indicated to me that you would like taregtbut will delay until April 1, 2010 your retingent from the
Company and will remain with the Company until tHate to provide continuing support to the Board i
Committees for such meetings as may be called glthia first quarter of 201l

Effective January 1, 2010, your title will be Ex&ea Vice President and Assistant Secretary, atidudl become
the Company’s Corporate Secretary (in additioniscskbrving as the Company’s General Counsel). witdu
continue to report to me and work with Bill. Ydase compensation and your benefits will remairhanged

Likewise, we will provide you with administrativeigport for your work at a level comparable to thatvided in
2009 although the personnel made available to goaudch support may chang

You will be in the office on an -needed basis, subject to paid leave on the follgwates: January- 8, 11- 12,
26— 29; February - 3; March 2- 5.

Your incentive compensation will be as follows:

0 2009 AIP: $295,000, payable during the First Quast&010, in lieu of any other payments you may
entitled to under the 2009 All

0 2007-2009 LTIP: at approved award level pursuant toGbepensation Committ’s administration o
the Plan; payable at the time such award, if anpaid to the other participants of the 2-2009 LTIP;

0 2008 — 2010 LTIP: at approved award level purstatiie Compensation Committee’s administration of
the Plan; payable at the time such award, if anpaid to the other participants of the 2-2010 LTIP;

0 A special on-time payment of $130,000, payable upon terminatifoyour employment with th
Company;




« You agree to execute a release, in a form to beafiytagreed, that will release the Company fronthier
obligation for incentive compensation or salarydo&y that specified in this lette

« To the extent that the foregoing amends your ctieeployment agreement with the Company, such aggaeis
hereby deemed to be amended accordir

« This letter agreement is subject to approval byGbmpensation Committee, which will be asked praynpt gran
such approva

If you are in agreement with the foregoing, kindbuntersign and return to me the enclosed copligidtter agreement.

With best regards,

/sl Logan W. Kruger

Logan W. Kruger

President and Chief Executive
Officer

Accepted and agreed to
December 30, 2009

/s/ Robert R. Nielsen
Robert R. Nielsen







EXHIBIT 10.26

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Employment Agreement is made as of Decembge2@0 (this “ Agreemert), between Century Aluminum
Company, a Delaware corporation (the “ Compgrand William J. Leatherberry (the " Executite

In consideration of the mutual covenants and carditset forth herein, the Company and the Exeewtree as
follows:

1. Employment Subject to the terms and conditions of this &gnent, the Company hereby agrees to
continue to employ the Executive, and the Execuimeby agrees to continue to be employed witiCibvapany.

2. Duties and Reporting Relationshiga) The Executive shall be employed in the capat Senior Vice
President, General Counsel and Assistant Secretaine Company. In such capacity, the Executial ¢ie responsible
for all legal and corporate relations matters, ai as the day to day corporate-level administeaéffairs of the
Company. During the Term (as defined below), tkedative shall, on a full-time basis and consisteitit the needs of
the Company, devote the Executive’s full business tskill, attention and efforts in carrying obetExecutive’s duties
and promoting the interests of the Company. Thechktive shall perform such activities and dutiessistent with the
Executive’s position, as the Chief Executive Officef the Company shall from time to time reasonabkycify and
direct. The Executive shall also serve as a direaxtd/or officer of one or more of the Companyibsdiaries as may be
requested from time to time by the Board of Direstof the Company (the “ Boafl During the Term, the Executive
shall not perform any consulting services for, mgage in any other business enterprises with, ld@ny parties without th
express written consent of the Chief Executive @ffiof the Company, other than passive investments.

(a) The Executive shall generally perform the Execusivities and conduct the Executive’s business a
the principal offices of the Company in Monterewli@rnia.

(b) The Executive shall report solely to the Chief Exae Officer of the Company.

3. Term. (a) The term of this Agreement shall commencdamuary 1, 2010 and end on December 31,
2011 (the “ Initial Ternt); provided, however, that unless earlier termaakin accordance with the terms of this
Agreement, and subject, however, to terminatiopragided in Section 6, commencing on January 1228td on every
other anniversary thereafter, the Initial TermtogtAgreement shall automatically be extendedvar years (each then-
extended year of this Agreement being an “ Exteniteydn”). The Initial Term as may be extended by eacteRded
Term is hereinafter referred to the “ Tetm




(@) Termination of Renewal Either party may give effective written noticethe other party of such
notifying party’s intention not to renew this Agreent beyond the then-current term of this AgreenfeNbtice of Non
Renewal’), provided that such notice is given by the notif party no later than September 30 of the last pf the then-
current term of this Agreement (or such shortentas may be agreed to by the Company and the Execatwriting). If
a party delivers a Notice of Non-Renewal, the tefrthis Agreement will end as of the last day & theneurrent term o
this Agreement, or as may otherwise be agreed tadZompany and the Executive in writing. By vadyllustration, on
January 1, 2012, the Term of this Agreement wilekended to December 31, 2013 unless either pavtyides a Notice
of Non-Renewal on or prior to September 30, 20h#l; @ January 1, 2014, the Term of this Agreeméhbe further
extended to December 31, 2015 unless either pestyides a Notice of Non-Renewal on or prior to $epher 30, 2013.

4. Compensation

(a) Base Salary During the Term, the Executive shall be paicanual base salary of $310,000 which
may be subject to increase from time to time bypmemendation of the Chief Executive Officer of thengpany to, and
approval by, the Compensation Committee (the * Gemsption Committed of the Board (such amount, as increasec
“ Base Salary). All amounts paid to the Executive under thigréement shall be in U.S. dollars.

(b) Bonuses During the Term, the Executive shall be eligitdean annual performance bonus based
upon the Executive’s individual performance andi@gtment by the Company of overall objectives dsrd@ned by the
Compensation Committee. The target bonus oppaytémi the Executive’s annual performance bonus bela
percentage of the Execut’s Base Salary, as determined by the Compensatiom@ttee, based on the recommendation
of and in consultation with the Chief Executive iCéf, and based on terms and conditions that atessdavorable than
those provided to similarly situated executives.adldition to the annual performance bonus, thelkee shall also be
eligible to participate in the Company’s long-teimoentive compensation arrangements on terms amditans generally
no less favorable than the terms and conditionsrgdlg applicable to other executive officers af tiompany.

(c) Withholding. All compensation paid to the Executive hereursted! be paid in accordance with the
Company’s normal payroll practice with respectdtased employees and shall be subject to any fHamd withholding
deductions required by applicable law.

5. Additional Compensation; Expenses and Benefits

(8) Expenses During the Term, the Company shall reimburseBkecutive for all reasonable and
necessary business expenses incurred and advanteel Bxecutive in carrying out the Executive’sidsitunder this
Agreement. The Executive shall present to the Gom@n itemized account of all expenses in suah &8 may be
required by the Company from time to time.




(b) Incentive Plans During the Term, the Executive shall be eligitdgarticipate in any incentive ple
and programs generally offered to executive offiadrthe Company, including the Company’s Amendwdl Restated
1996 Stock Incentive Plan. Incentives may be siltjethe Executive’s individual performance antistaction of
objectives established by the Board or the Comgems@€ommittee. Incentives may be paid in the fafieash, stock
options, restricted stock, restricted stock unitstber securities of the Company.

(c) Pension Benefits The Executive shall be eligible to receive egtient benefits as follows:

() Qualified Plan Benefits The Executive shall be eligible to participatehe
Company's Employees' Retirement Plan (the " QedliRlan’) in accordance with the terms of the QualifiedrPI

(i)  Supplemental Executive Retirement Benefits addition to payments that the
Executive is eligible to receive under the Quatifilan, the Executive also shall be eligible tenee
supplemental executive retirement benefits ases#t in this Agreement and in the Company’s Suppletal
Retirement Income Benefit Plan (the * SERB Plarwhich benefits are an amount equal to the diffezdretweel
the amount the Executive would receive under thelifped Plan and the amount the Executive woul@bigled tc
receive had the Executive’s benefit under the @edliPlan not been subject to the limitations ondfgs and
contributions set forth in Sections 401(a)(17) 448 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as atiarg/
amended, and the regulations thereunder (the “ Qddlee “ Supplemental Retirement Benefi}s

(i)  Vesting. The Qualified Plan Benefits and SupplementairBetent Benefits
described in this Section 5(c) shall be fully vests of the fifth anniversary of the commenceméthe
Executive’s employment by the Company on Januar®Q05; i.e., shall be fully vested on January2111,0.

(iv)  Prohibition on Assignment Other than pursuant to the laws of descent and
distribution, the Executive's right to benefit pagmts under this Section 5(c) is not subject inrmayner to
anticipation, alienation, sale, transfer, assigni@edge, encumbrance, attachment or garnishmeortdalitors of
the Executive or the Executive's beneficiary.




(v)  Source of PaymentsSubject to Section 10 of the SERB Plan, all Genender
Section 5(c)(ii) shall be paid in cash from theg@hfunds of the Company, and, except as set balibw, no
special or separate fund shall be establishedher segregation of assets made to assure such paympevided,
however, that the Company may establish a bookkgepiserve to meet its obligations hereunders the
intention of the parties that the arrangementsrifended for tax purposes and for purposes of Tibethe
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 thie event of a potential Change in Control, asfdte a
Change in Control occurs, the Company shall coutiilbo the Trust described in Section 10 of the BEPRn, anc
in the manner described therein, those amountssaneto cause the present value of the Trustsasbe no less
than the present value of the future benefits playatder the SERB Plan. For purposes of this Agers, “
Change in Contrdl shall have the meaning set forth in the ExectsgiBeverance Protection Agreement with the
Company, if any (any such Severance Protection &gent, as may be restated and amended from titmadp
the “ Severance Protection Agreem®niand if no such Severance Protection Agreemeists if the Executive is
an Eligible Employee (as such term is defined em@ompany’s Executive Severance Plan (as may badede
and restated from time to time, the “ Executivee&auce Plafl)) under the Executive Severance Plan, “Change ir
Control” shall have the meaning set forth in the&ixive Severance Plan; providdabwever, if the Executive is
neither party to a Severance Protection Agreemanan Eligible Employee (as such term is definethe
Executive Severance Plan) under the Executive 8aeerPlan, “Change in Control” shall have the magaset
forth in the Amended and Restated 1996 Stock IngeRtlan, as may be amended and restated frontdinmae.

(vi)  Executive's Status The Executive shall have the status of a gengrs¢cured
creditor of the Company, and the SERB Plan shalstitute a mere promise to make benefit paymenttsan
future.

(vii)  Survival of Benefit The Supplemental Retirement Benefits describatis Sectio
5(c) shall not be reduced during the term of thgge®ment or thereafter, and the Executive's rigftts respect to
these benefits shall survive any termination (ar renewal) of this Agreement, including, withoumiiation, a
termination pursuant to Section 6(a), or any amesdrar termination of the SERB Plan, to the fullezmt
necessary to protect the interests of the Executiaer this Agreement and under the terms of tHeESElan.

(d) Other Benefits During the Term, the Executive shall be eligitdgarticipate in any other benefit
plans, programs, policies and fringe benefits winiety be made available from time to time to thecakiee officers of
the Company generally, including, without limitatjadisability, medical, dental and life insurancel &enefits under the
Company’s 401(k) savings plan, subject in each ta#ige terms and requirements of each such ptagram, policy or
benefit.




6. Termination. The date upon which the Executw&mployment with the Company under this Agreer
is deemed to be terminated in accordance with &ttyeoprovisions of this Section 6 is referred &vdin as the “
Termination Date” A termination of employment shall not be deen@thave occurred for purposes of any provision of
this Agreement providing for the payment of any ants or benefits upon or following a terminatioreafiployment
unless such termination also constitutes a “sejpariom service” within the meaning of Section 408 Section 409A
") of the Code (a “ Separation from Servigeand notwithstanding anything contained hereithte contrary, the date on
which a Separation from Service takes place sleathb Termination Date.

(@8 The Company shall have the right and may eletgriminate this Agreement and the Executive’s
employment for Cause at any time. For purposékisfAgreement, “ Causemeans the occurrence or existence of ai
the following:

(i) the continued failure by the Executive to perfohm Executive’s duties at a
satisfactory level of performance (other than amhdailure resulting from the Executive’s incappcue to
physical or mental fithess), which failure cannetdured or is not cured within ten (10) businessddter written
notice from the Chief Executive Officer identifyitige manner in which the Company believes the Bikexbhas
failed to perform the Executive’s duties;

(i)  the engaging by the Executive in conduct which @demally injurious to the
Company, monetarily or otherwise, which condudngury cannot be cured or is not cured within t&f)(busines
days after written notice from the Chief Execut®icer identifying the manner in which the injuogcurred; or

(i)  a material breach by the Executive of the termthigfAgreement, which breach
cannot be cured or is not cured within ten (10)ress days after written notice from the Chief Exee Officer
identifying the manner in which the breach occurred




Notwithstanding the foregoing, no termination fauSe shall exist unless and until there shall heen
delivered to the Executive a copy of a resolutialy ddopted by the members of the Board, at a mgetlled and held
for the purpose (after reasonable notice to thetxee and an opportunity for him, together wits bounsel, to be heard
before the Board), finding that in the good faighroon of the Board that the Executive was guiltyonduct set forth in
clauses 6(a)(i), (i) and/or (iii) above and spgcif) the particulars thereof in detail. Notwithsdarg the foregoing, the
Company must notify the Executive of any event ttutsng Cause within 45 days following the Comparniynowledge ¢
its existence or such event will not constitute €&aunder this Agreement. For purposes of thigéaent, no act or
failure to act, on the part of the Executive, Wil considered “willful” unless it is done, or oreittto be done, by the
Executive in bad faith or without reasonable beteit the Executive's action or omission was inttbst interests of the
Company. The Executive’s employment will in no mviee considered to have been terminated by thep@oynfor
Cause if the act or failure to act upon which sigchination is based is an act or failure to acespect of which the
Executive meets the applicable standard of conphascribed for indemnification or reimbursemenpayment of
expenses under the By-laws of the Company or the & the state of its incorporation or the direstand officers’
liability insurance of the Company, in each casmaefect at the time of such act or failure td. ac

(b) This Agreement and the Executive’s employment gkathinate upon the death of the Executive.

(c) The Company shall have the right and may ele@nminate this Agreement and the Executive’s
employment upon the Disability of the Executiveor purposes of this Agreement, “ Disabilityneans, in the opinion of
the Compensation Committee (or a person appointeddbCompensation Committee), a physical or mehsalbility of
the Executive that has continued or is expectaxitdinue for 180 consecutive calendar days andrasudt thereof, the
Executive will be unable to continue the properff@anance of the Executive’s duties. For purpodetetermining
Disability, the Executive agrees to submit to sphigsical and mental examinations, if any, as then@msation
Committee (or a person appointed by the Compems@ammittee) may request and hereby authorizebgetextent
permitted by law, the examining person to disclusdindings to the Compensation Committee (org@eson appointe
by the Compensation Committee).

(d) The Executive shall have the right to terminate #hgreement and the Executive’s employment at
any time with or without Good Reason (as definddwe Should the Executive wish to resign from Exeecutive’s
position with the Company during the Term, for ottitan Good Reason, the Executive shall give st lipérty (30)
business days prior written notice to the Compahyis Agreement shall terminate on the effectivie dd the resignation
set forth in the notice of resignation, howevee, @ompany may, at its sole discretion, instruct tha Executive perform
no job responsibilities and cease the Executivetiv@ employment immediately upon receipt of th&éceofrom the
Executive.




(e) The Company shall have the right to terminate Alggeement and the Executive’s employment
without Cause at any time. This Agreement shathiieate one day following receipt of such noticetlwy Executive,
however, the Company may, at its sole discretiostriict that the Executive cease active employmedtperform no
more job duties immediately upon provision of sactice to the Executive.

(H  Should the Executive wish to resign from the Exizels position with the Company for Good
Reason during the Term, the Executive shall giveast thirty (30) business days prior written oetio the
Company. This Agreement shall terminate on the dpécified in such notice, however, the Company, @iits sole
discretion, instruct that the Executive cease aatwmployment and perform no more job duties imnteljiaipon receipt
of such notice from the Executive.

For purposes of this Agreement, “ Good Redssimall mean the occurrence of any of the followawgnts
(without the Executive’s prior written consent):

() a material adverse change in the Executive’s sthtles position or responsibilities
(including reporting responsibilities) with the Cpany or any subsidiary thereof;

(i)  a material reduction in the Executive’s annualryata target annual bonus
opportunity; provided, however, that a reductiomtgre than 15% in the Executigeannual salary or target bor
opportunity shall be considered a material reductiw purposes of this Section 6(f)(ii);

(i)  arelocation of the Executive’s principal placesaiployment that causes the
Executive’s commute from the Executive’s princigegidence to the new work location to increase®ynges or
more;

(iv) any material breach by the Company of this Agreg¢men

(v) the failure of the Company to obtain an agreensatisfactory to the Executive, from
any successors to assume and agree to perforliigheement, as contemplated in Section 15 of thiseAment; ¢

(vi)  The Company’s delivery of a Notice of Non-Renewveeiite Executive pursuant to
Section 3(b) of this Agreement; provided, howeifan connection with the Company’s delivery of atite of
Non-Renewal to the Executive pursuant to Sectit 8{ this Agreement, the Company presents the lkex
with an agreement containing terms and conditiers. (severance benefits/term of contract) thaharess
favorable than those provided to similarly situagedcutives, then such delivery of a Notice of NRenewal shall
not constitute “Good Reason” for purposes of thasten 6(f)(vi). For the avoidance of doubt, theeEutive shall
have the right to terminate the Executive’s emplegitrupon the occurrence of any of the events list&kctions
6(f)(i) through 6(f)(v) following the delivery of Botice of Non-Renewal.




Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Secti@(f)(i) through (vi), above, the Executive shall provide
written notice to the Company of any actual or pesed occurrence of any of the foregoing eventctvicbuld give rise
to a “Good Reason” termination by the Executivel tie Company shall have twenty (20) business ffays the date of
such notice to cure any alleged deficiency to ttterd curable.

7. Effect of Termination of Employment

(@) If the Executive’'s employment is terminated by @@mpany for Cause, by the Executive other than
for Good Reason or due to death or Disability,Elecutive shall, in lieu of any future payment$enefits under this
Agreement, be entitled to (i) any earned but unpaise Salary and any business expenses incurresbbrgimbursed, in
each case, prior to the Termination Date and if§) @her vested benefits under any other benefitgpbr programs in
accordance with the terms of such plans and progfaoilectively, the “ Accrued Payments and Beséjit

(b) If the Executive’'s employment is terminated du®tsability:
(i) the Company shall pay to the Executive the AcciRagiments and Benefits;

(i)  the Company shall pay to the Executive an amoumnleq the sum of: (A) the
annual cash performance bonus that the Executivédive earned on the last day of the Compangtsfiyear,
based on the actual level of the individual and @any performance goals achieved through the Tetrom®ate
multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of whichthe number of days elapsed in the fiscal yeautnahe
Termination Date and the denominator of which iS5 86d (B) except as otherwise provided for in ta@ p
documents underlying a long-term cash incentivepmmation award (in which case, such plan documents
underlying such long-term cash incentive compeasaivard shall govern), an amount equal to the clusach
long-term cash incentive award, calculated as ¢b sach award by multiplying the award that thedtiwe
would have earned on the last day of the performgeciod, based on the actual level of the indiaidund
Company performance goals achieved through the ifation Date, by a fraction, the numerator of whikhe
number of days elapsed in the performance peri@iligih the Termination Date and the denominatortotivis
the total number of days contained in such perfocaaeriod. The foregoing bonus and award paymiatsy,
will be paid at the same time as the Company pagis bonuses and awards to similarly situated enggi®yut in
no event later than March ¥%of the year following the year of the Executivessnination of employment;




(i) all options held by the Executive pursuant to tleenpany’s incentive plans and
program which have not vested as of the Terminddate will accelerate and vest immediately as ef th
Termination Date, and the Executive or the Exeelgivepresentative may exercise all unexerciseidmmptvithin
three years after such Disability or the expiratdthe option, whichever is sooner; and

(iv)  all service-based and performance-based sharesledvirr the Executive pursuant to
the Company’s incentive plans and programs shatiediately vest; provided, however, that any pertoroe-
based shares shall be valued and awarded at teg &nd in the manner awarded to other plan paatitspursual
to the terms of the agreements or plans governinly awards.

(c) Ifthe Executive’s employment is terminated dueé¢ath:
(i) the Company shall pay to the Executive’s estatéAtteeued Payments and Benefits;

(i)  the Company shall pay to the Executive’s estateraount equal to the sum of: (A)
the Executives target annual bonus on the Termination Date,ipfiell by a fraction, the numerator of which is
number of days elapsed in the fiscal year throbghlermination Date and the denominator of whicB6is and
(B) except as otherwise provided for in the planutnents underlying a long-term cash incentive carsgon
award (in which case, such plan documents underlyirch long-term cash incentive compensation aslaad
govern), an amount equal to the sum of each lomg-tash incentive award, calculated as to each @weind by
multiplying the award that the Executive would haaened on the last day of the performance peassliming
achievement at target level of the individual antporate performance goals established with regpesich
award, by a fraction, the numerator of which isrthenber of days elapsed in the performance pehiaiigh the
Termination Date and the denominator of which esttital number of days contained in such perforrmanc
period. The foregoing bonus and award paymen#s)yif will be paid within sixty (60) calendar ddgdowing the
Executive’s death;

(i) all options held by the Executive pursuant to tleenPany’s incentive plans and
program which have not vested as of the Terminddate will accelerate and vest immediately as ef th
Termination Date, and the Executive’s represergatiay exercise all unexercised options within tiyesas after
such death or the expiration of the option, whigras sooner; and

(iv)  all service-based and performance-based sharesledvir the Executive pursuant to
the Company’s incentive plans and programs shatiediately vest; provided, however, that any pertoroe-
based shares shall be valued assuming achievetrtanget level of the individual and corporate periance
goals established with respect to such performéased shares and shall be awarded no later tharthM&# of
the year following the year of the Executive’s teat




(d) If the Company terminates the Executive’s employiméthout Cause (unless such termination is
due to the Executive’s death or Disability) or Brxeecutive terminates the Executive’s employmentdood Reason, then
the Executive shall be entitled to the following/peents and benefits:

(i)  Accrued Payment and BenefitsThe Company shall pay to the Executive the Aedru
Payments and Benefits;

(i)  Severance Payments The Company shall pay to the Executive a lump sash
amount equal to the sum of (A) two and one-hale8Base Salary, (B) two and one-half tim€arget Annual
Bonus, and (C) Pro Rata Bonus. For purposes sfAgreement, “ Target Annual Bonuismeans an amount equal
to the greater of (1) the Executive’s target aninaalus on the Termination Date, or (2) the Exeelsivarget
annual bonus for the most recently completed figeal. For purposes of this Agreement, “ Pro Bataus”
means the sum of (1) an amount equal to the Exexsitiarget annual bonus multiplied by a fractithre,
numerator of which is the number of calendar ddgssed in the fiscal year through the Terminati@teDand the
denominator of which is 365 and (2) except as ettser provided for in the plan documents underhangrget
long-term cash incentive compensation award (irctvisase, such plan documents underlying such temggt
term cash incentive compensation award shall ggyamamount equal to the sum of each of Execgitagget
long-term cash incentive compensation awards foln @acompleted performance period on the Terminddate,
calculated as to each such award by multiplyingativard that the Executive would have earned otefteday of
the performance period, assuming achievementgettével of the individual and corporate perforceagoals
established with respect to such award, by a tracthe numerator of which is the number of calenidgs
elapsed in the performance period through the Traatitin Date and the denominator of which is thal teumber
of calendar days contained in such performanceggeri

(i)  Health and Welfare Benefit ContinuatiorCommencing on the date immediately
following the Executive’s Termination Date and doning for two and one-half years (the “ Benefitrfiauation
Period”), the Company shall arrange to provide the Exgeutnd the Executive’s eligible dependents, at no
greater cost to the Executive than the cost te&ttexutive immediately prior to the Termination Ddtealth and
welfare benefits, including, but not limited tontpterm disability, medical, dental, life insurarere pre-tax
insurance premiums (the “ Health and Welfare Beés#fi no less favorable than those provided to thedtxive
and the Executive’s eligible dependents immedigpeiyr to the Termination Date, but only to theemtt(A)
permitted under each of the applicable Health ardifake Benefits plans or policies as in effect lom Executive’s
Termination Date and (B) that the Executive makpayanent to the Company in an amount equal to tbetinhy
premium payments (as in effect immediately priothi® Termination Date) (both the employee and eygplo
portion)
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required to maintain such coverage on the firstafagach calendar month commencing with the fiad¢icdar
month following the Termination Date and the Compsahall reimburse the Executive on an after-taxsofas the
amount of such premiums, if any, in excess of angleyee contributions necessary to maintain suelerege for
the Benefit Continuation Period (such excess pramjuhe “ Additional Premium3 and such reimbursement
shall comply with the rules for reimbursements juted in Section21(b). Benefits otherwise receivable by the
Executive pursuant to this Sectiat{d)(iii) shall be reduced to the extent beneditthe same type are received by
or made available to the Executive during the Bie@zintinuation Period (and any such benefits ety or
made available to the Executive shall be repoxdté Company by the Executive). For the avoidaric®oubt,
reimbursements on an after-tax basis are limitéslysto the Additional Premiums;

(iv)  Pension Benefits The Company shall credit the Executive for pemgurposes wit
service during the Benefit Continuation Period ahdll pay to the Executive in a single paymentranunt in
cash equal to the excess of (A) the RecalculateéideResnt Benefit (as provided in this Secti@(d)(iv)) had (1)
the Executive remained employed by the Companthieduration of the Benefit Continuation Period, t{&
Executive’s annual compensation during such pdreeh equal to the Base Salary and the Target ArBarals,
(3) the benefit accrual formulas of each retirempah remained no less advantageous to the Exedian those
in effect immediately preceding the Termination@®and the Company made employer contributions¢h ea
defined contribution plan in which the Executivessaparticipant at the Termination Date in an arhegonal to
the amount of such contribution for the plan yeamediately preceding the Termination Date, andh{g)
Executive been fully (100%) vested in the Execusileenefit under each retirement plan in whichExecutive
was a participant, over (B) the lump sum actuatplivalent of the aggregate retirement benefiGkecutive is
actually entitled to receive under such retirenmans. For purposes of this Secti@fd)(iv), the “ Recalculated
Retirement Benefit shall mean the lump sum actuarial equivalent oftligregate retirement benefit the Exect
would have been entitled to receive under the Caryipaqualified and non-qualified retirement plarisor
purposes of this subsectiof(d)(iv), the “ actuarial equivalefitshall be determined in accordance with the
actuarial assumptions used for the calculationeoielits under the applicable retirement plan asiegprior to the
Termination Date in accordance with such plan’s peactices;
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(v)  Equity Awards. (A) All options held by the Executive pursuamthe Company’s
incentive plans and program which have not vesseaf ¢he Termination Date will accelerate and weshediately
as of such date. The Executive may exercise akentised options within 180 calendar dagfter the
Executive’s Termination Date or the expiration daitéhe option, whichever is sooner; and (B) Alhdce-based
and performance-based shares awarded to the Bx@qutisuant to the Company’s incentive plans angrnams
shall immediately vest; provided, however, that pagformance-based shares shall be valued and esvatdhe
times and in the manner awarded to other planqgiaatits pursuant to the terms of the agreemeritaos
governing such awards; and

(vi)  Outplacement ServicesThe Company shall provide the Executive withhdiparty
outplacement services suitable to the Execuipesition for the period following the TerminatiDate and endir
on December 31 of the second year following theniieation Date or, if earlier, until the first ac¢apce by the
Executive of an offer of employment, provided, hoes that in no case shall the Company be requaedy in
excess of $20,000 over such period in providinglagement services and that all reimbursementaihdez shall
be paid to the Executive within thirty (30) calendays following the date on which the Executivbraiis the
invoice but no later than December 31 of the thatbndar year following the year of the Terminatizate.

(vi)  Release Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company’sgditions under Section 7
(d) shall be conditioned upon the Executive exagptdelivering and not revoking (within the sevéhday
revocation period) a Separation Agreement providethe Company which contains a general releastaohs in
favor of the Company. Such release and waiveltanins must be signed within 45 calendar days (ohdonger
period as mandated by applicable employment lagi)ing the Executive’s Termination Date. The Guany
shall have no obligations under Section 7(d) ifExecutive fails to deliver the executed Separafigreement to
the Company within the specified period of time.

(viii)  Time of Payments Subject to Sectior21 hereof, all payments required to be made
hereunder to the Executive shall be made (in tse chany lump sum payments) or shall commencéen t
thirtieth (30th) calendar day following the Exewefs Termination Date, or, if later, on the eigl@th) calendar
day following the expiration of the release consadien period required by applicable law (the “ &ede Effective
Date”); provided, however, that in each case (A) tHease contemplated by Secti@itd)(vii) has been executed
and has become non-revocable prior to any paynereuhder, and (B) if the maximum period in whicé th
Release may be revoked ends in the year followiag/éar in which the Executive incurs a Separdtiom
Service, then the Release Effective Date shalldaendd to be the later of (i) the first businessiddiie year
following the year in which the Executive incurg tBeparation from Service or (ii) the Release Hffedate
(without regard to this proviso).
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(e) Six-Month Delay. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreementhe contrary, if the
Executive is a “ specified employ&éwithin the meaning of Section 409A and determinespant to policies adopted
the Company) at the time of the Executive’s Separdtom Service and if any portion of the paymemtbenefits to be
received by the Executive upon Separation fromiSemvould be considered deferred compensation uddetion 409A
(“ Nonqgualified Deferred Compensatiyy amounts that would otherwise be payable purstathis Agreement during
the six-month period immediately following the Enége’s Separation from Service that constitute NongealiDeferre(
Compensation and benefits that would otherwiserbeigled pursuant to this Agreement during the soath period
immediately following the Executive’s Separatioarfr Service that constitute Nonqualified Deferrednpensation will
instead be paid or made available on the earlié) dife first business day of the seventh montlodang the date of the
Executive’s Separation from Service and (ii) the&xive’s death.

8. Effect of a Change in Control(a) If there is a Change in Control, then ali@ps and performance sha
that have not vested will accelerate and vest imatelg. Performance shares awarded to the Exexshall be valued at
100 percent as though the Company had achievéatrgst for each relevant plan period. The Exeeusivall be entitled
to receive one share of the Company’s common sipok the vesting of each performance share. Ugdimaage in
Control, the Executive shall have the right to iegjthe Company to purchase, for cash, and atfarket value, any
shares of stock purchased upon exercise of angroptireceived upon the vesting of any Perform&icee.

(@) No Duplication of Benefits Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreememthe contrary, if the
Executive’s employment is terminated for any reagono event shall the Executive be eligible feverance payments
and/or benefits under both (i) Section 7 of thisgament and (ii) a Severance Protection AgreenrathteoExecutive
Severance Plan. In the event that the Executigepesrty to a Severance Protection Agreementam iSligible Employee
(as defined in the Executive Severance Plan) uth@eExecutive Severance Plan that, in either cageld entitle the
Executive to severance payments and/or benefitsriswth Severance Protection Agreement or the Execteverance
Plan, as applicable, the Executive shall be paitt severance payments and/or benefits in accordaititeghe Severance
Protection Agreement or the Executive Severance, BRapplicable, and the Executive shall not bideshto any
payments and/or benefits pursuant to Section AigfAgreement. For the avoidance of doubt, ngthierein is intende
to provide a duplication of payments under thiségment and any plan documents underlying a lomg-¢@ash incentive
compensation award in respect of the long-termntice pro rata bonus award.
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9. Confidentiality and Related Covenant3 he Executive acknowledges and agrees:

(@) Confidential Information Except as specifically permitted by this SecBga), and except as
required in the course of the Executive’s employmath the Company, while in the employ of the Canp or
thereafter, the Executive will not communicate mutlye to or use for the benefit of the Executiveany other person,
firm, association, or corporation without the pnwatitten consent of the Company, any Confidentiébtmation (as
hereinafter defined) owned, or used by the Commarany of its Affiliates that may be communicateddcquired by or
learned of by the Executive in the course of, oa assult of, the Executive’s employment with thentpany or any of its
Affiliates. All Confidential Information relatingotthe business of the Company or any of its Ati@gawhich the Executiy
shall use or prepare or come into contact withl gfelome and remain the sole property of the Compaiits
Affiliates. For purposes of this Agreement, “ Aieite ” shall mean any company controlled by, controlliagunder
common control with, the Company.

The Executive may disclose Confidential Informatiorthe extent it (i) becomes part of the publionéin
otherwise than as a result of the Executive’s brémsreof or (ii) is required to be disclosed by .laithe Executive is
required by applicable law or regulation or by lgg@cess to disclose any Confidential Informatithre, Executive will
provide the Company with prompt notice thereof séoaenable the Company to seek an appropriategtinag order

Upon request by the Company, the Executive agredsliver to the Company at the termination of the
Executives employment, or at such other times as the Compeyyrequest, all memoranda, notes, plans, recapsyts
and other documents (and all copies thereof) comigiConfidential Information that the Executiveyrthen possess or
have under the Executive’s control.

For purposes of this Agreement, " Confidential tnfation” means information not generally known about the
Company and its Affiliates, services and produetsether written or not, including information rekag to research,
development, purchasing, marketing plans, commgafware or programs, any copyrightable mateniatjeé secrets and
proprietary information, including, but not limitéd, customer lists

(b) Assignment of Patents and Copyright¥he Executive shall assign to the Company akitions
and improvements within the existing or contemplageope of the Company's business made by the &Exeevhile in
the Company's employ, together with any such patentopyrights as may be obtained thereon, batiedtc and
foreign. Upon request by the Company and at thafgamy's expense, the Executive will at any timenguthe
Executive’s employment with the Company and aiemination regardless of the reason therefore,.ggeadl proper
papers for use in applying for, obtaining and namng such domestic and foreign patents and/oyrogipts as the
Company may desire, and will execute and delivigoraper assignments therefore.
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(c) Covenant Not to Solicit Other than in connection with the performancéhefExecutive’s duties,
for the remainder of the Executive’s term of empheyt with the Company and for the remainder ofBhaefit
Continuation Period thereafter, the Executive shall(i) solicit any employees of the Company &vkethe Company’s
employ to work for any company with which the Exeéegl is employed or (ii) employ any employee wheisployed by
the Company.

(d) Covenant Not to DisparageThe Executive agrees that the Executive willmake any statements,
whether oral, written, telephonic, electronic, grds in any other method or in any other formaattin any way disparac
damage, or undermine the character or reputatitimeo€Company or any of its Affiliates, or any membf management
thereof; provided, however, that the Executive mmake such statements as are necessary to complyewit The
Company agrees that the Company, including the @oiyip senior officers in their capacity as senifficers of the
Company, will not issue any press release or affigiatements that in any way disparage, damagedermine the
character or reputation of the Executive; providemyever, that the Company may make such staterasrage necessary
to comply with law. Either party may resort toaud of equity to enforce this Sectid®(d) by injunctive relief. The
parties agree that the Company and the Executiyeemi@rce this Sectio 9(d) without posting a bond and without giv
notice to the maximum extent permitted by law

(e) Survival. Notwithstanding any contrary provision contaimedein, any obligations of the Executive
under this Section 9 shall survive any terminatbthis Agreement and any termination of the Eximetd employment
with the Company. With respect to the Executivs;, lareach or threatened breach of the covenaritssirsection 9 shall
constitute a basis for the Company to suspend xkeelEive’s right to receive any payments or besettwhich the
Executive is otherwise entitled under this Agreetnen

10. Remedies The Executive and the Company agree that danfagbseach of any of the covenants
under Section 9 will be difficult to determine anddequate to remedy the harm which may be cabhszdly, and
therefore consent that these covenants may becedfftay temporary or permanent injunction withowet tiecessity of
bond. The Executive believes, as of the dateisfAyreement, that the provisions of this Agreenaptreasonable and
that the Executive is capable of gainful employmeitihout breaching this Agreement. However, shang court or
arbitrator decline to enforce any provision of 8&t0 of this Agreement, this Agreement shall ite ¢xtent applicable in
the circumstances before such court or arbitré@ijeemed to be modified to restrict the Execusie@mpetition with th:
Company to the maximum extent of time, scope amgiggohy which the court or arbitrator shall findeneable, and
such provisions shall be so enforced.

11. Indemnification. The Executive shall be entitled to indemnifioatbn terms and conditions that are no
less favorable than those provided to directorsadficers of the Company at any time during theriter
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12. Entire Agreement The provisions contained herein constitute tht@eagreement between the parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof and sgpler any and all prior agreements, understandimys@mmunications
between the parties, oral or written, with respecuch subject matter, but excluding any equitgravagreements
between the Executive and the Company.

13. Maodification. Any waiver, alteration, amendment or modificataf any provisions of this Agreement
shall not be valid unless in writing and signedobyh the Executive and the Company.

14. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be @eet to be invalid orunenforceable, in
whole or in part, such invalidity or unenforcealyikhall not affect the remaining provisions heredfich shall remain in
full force and effect.

15. Assignment The Executive may not assign any of the Exeetgivights or delegate any of the
Executive’s duties hereunder without the prior t@ntconsent of the Company. The Company may msag@sny of its
rights or delegate any of its obligations hereundénout the prior written consent of the Executiegcept that any
successor to the Company by merger or purchadéafsubstantially all of the Company’s assetdlissssume this
Agreement.

16. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inarthé benefit of the successors in
interest of the Executive and the Company.

17. Notices. All notices and other communications requiregp@mitted hereunder shall be made in wri
and shall be deemed effective when delivered patgoor transmitted by facsimile transmission, dnsiness day after
deposit with a nationally recognized overnight ¢@uwith next day delivery specified) and five mess days after
mailing by registered or certified mail:

if to the Company:

Century Aluminum
Company

2511 Garden Road -
Building A, Suite 200
Monterey, CA 93940
Attention: Chief Executive
Officer

if to the Executive:

To the Executive's address
on file at the offices of the
Company
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or to such other person or address as either phaty furnish in writing to the other party fronmie to time.

18. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and condtiu@ccordance with the laws of the
State of California applicable to contracts made tanbe performed entirely within the State of @ahia.

19. Non-Mitigation. The Executive shall not be required to mitigddenages or seek other employment in
order to receive compensation or benefits undeti@e€(d) of this Agreement; nor shall the amouramy benefit or
payment provided for under Section 7(d) of thisé@gmnent be reduced by any compensation earned IBxdwtive a:
the result of employment by another employer.

20. Arbitration. (a) The Executive and the Company agree treati§pute arises concerning or relating to
the Executive’s employment with the Company, ortdrenination of the Executive’s employment, suctpdie shall be
submitted to binding arbitration under the ruleshaf American Arbitration Association regardingalesion of
employment disputes in effect at the time suchuisarises. The arbitration shall take place imMcey, California,
before a single experienced arbitrator licenseataatice law in California and selected in accoogawith the American
Arbitration Association rules and procedures. pt@s provided below, the Executive and the Compeaynge that this
arbitration procedure will be the exclusive meahiedress for any disputes relating to or arisirgrf the Executive’s
employment with the Company or the Executive’s taation, including disputes over rights providedfbgleral, state, or
local statutes, regulations, ordinances, and commwnincluding all laws that prohibit discriminati based on any
protected classification The parties expressly waive the right to a jury tral, and agree that the arbitrator’s award
shall be final and binding on both parties, and shidnot be appealable. The arbitrator shall have discretion to award
monetary and other damages, and any other reléthie arbitrator deems appropriate and is allomeldw. The
arbitrator shall have the discretion to award trevailing party reasonable costs and attornéses incurred in bringing
defending an action, and shall award such costdesmito the Executive in the event the Executre¥ails on the merits
of any action brought hereunder.

(@8 The Company shall pay the cost of any arbitrati@teedings under this Agreement if the Executive
prevails in such arbitration on at least one suttista issue

(b) The Company and the Executive agree that the sspeite that is excepted from Section 20(a) is an
action seeking injunctive relief from a court ohgpetent jurisdiction regarding enforcement and iappbn of Sections 9
or 10 of this Agreement, which action may be brdugladdition to, or in place of, an arbitratioropeeding in accordan
with Section 20(a).
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21. Compliance with Section 409A(a) To the extent applicable, it is intended tha compensation
arrangements under this Agreement be in full coamgke with Section 409A (it being understood thatace
compensation arrangements under this Agreememtareded not to be subject to Section 409A). TlyeeRment shall
be construed, to the maximum extent permitted,nmaaner to give effect to such intention. Notwigimgling anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, distributions upemnination of the Executive’s employment may dodéymade upon a
Separation from Service. Neither the Company ngrdi its Affiliates shall have any obligation tedemnify or
otherwise hold the Executive harmless from anyll@sueh taxes, interest or penalties, or liabifity any damages related
thereto. The Executive acknowledges that the BiRerhas been advised to obtain independent l&gpabr other counst
in connection with Section 409A.

(& With respect to any amount of expenses eligibledonbursement under this Agreement, such
expenses will be reimbursed by the Company withiirtyt (30) calendar days following the date on vhilbe Company
receives the applicable invoice from the Execuiivaccordance with the Company’s expense reimbwaepolicies, but
in no event later than the last day of the Exeetgivaxable year following the taxable year in vihibe Executive incurs
the related expenses. In no event will the reisdonents or in-kind benefits to be provided by tbenBany in one
taxable year affect the amount of reimbursemenis-kind benefits to be provided in any other tdeajgear, nor will the
Executive’s right to reimbursement or in-kind betselbe subject to liquidation or exchange for arotenefit.

(b) Each payment under this Agreement shall be regaaded‘separate payment” and not of a series of
payments for purposes of Section 40

22. Counterparts This Agreement may be executed in counterpalftef which shall be considered one
and the same agreement, and shall become effedtige one or more counterparts have been signeddyd the partie
and delivered to the other party.

23. Executiveés Representation The Executive hereby represents and warrar@®topany that the
Executive is not now under any contractual or oti#igation that is inconsistent with or in confligith this Agreement
or that would prevent, limit, or impair the Exematis performance of the Executive’s obligations emithis Agreement.

24. Survivorship. Upon the expiration or other termination of tAgreement or the Executive’s
employment with the Company, the respective riginis obligations of the parties hereto shall surtivthe extent
necessary to carry out the intentions of the paueler this Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exettlis Agreement as of the date first above written

CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY

By: /s/ Logan W. Kruger

Logan W. Kruger
President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ William J. Leatherberry

William J. Leatherberry
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EXHIBIT 10.27

AMENDED AND RESTATED SEVERANCE PROTECTION AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made as of January 1, 2008, bylzetdveen the Company (as hereinafter defined) and
William J. Leatherberry (the “Executive”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “ Bogrdecognizes that the possibility of a Chanc
Control (as hereinafter defined) exists and thattkineat or the occurrence of a Change in Con&mwolresult in significal
distractions of its key management personnel becalhe uncertainties inherent in such a situation

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is essential andhé best interest of the Company anc
stockholders to retain the services of the Exeeutivhe event of a threat or the occurrence ohan@e in Control and
ensure his continued dedication and efforts in ®w&nt without undue concern for his personal forelirand employme
security; and

WHEREAS, the Executive was elected to the position of VicesRlent by the the Board effective January 1,
and continues in the positions of Assistant Sepretad Assistant General Counsel of the Companyimodder to induc
the Executive to remain in the employ of the Conypaarticularly in the event of a threat or the wrtence of a Chani
in Control, the Company desires to enter into higeement with the Executive to provide the Exativith certail
benefits if his employment is terminated as a tesulor in connection with, a Change in Contraida

WHEREAS , the Company and Executive previously entered anfeverance Protection Agreement on Ap
2007 which the parties now wish to amend and restats entirty;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective agreements efpdirties contained herein, it is her
agreed as follows:

1. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall be effective as of Januar20D8, and shall continue
effect until December 31, 2009; provided, howetteast commencing on January 1, 2010, and on eacladat thereafte
the term of this Agreement shall automatically kieeded for one year, subject however, to termomagis provided in tt
last sentence of this Section 1; and provided &irthowever, that the term of this Agreement shallexpire prior to tr
later of (i) the expiration of 36 months after thecurrence of a Change in Control during the tefrthis Agreement, ¢
(ii) until such time as all benefits to be provided hereunder have been provided in full. Excapbotherwise provide
herein, this Agreement and the rights and obligatiof each party hereunder shall terminate if thechtive or th
Company terminates the Executive’s employment giddhe occurrence of a Change in Control.




2. Definitions

2.1 Accrued Compensation. For purposes of this Agreement, “ Accrued Compensdt shal
mean any and all amounts or rights earned, acouedsted through the Termination Date (as hergnakefined) but ni
paid as of the Termination Date, including (i) basdary, (ii) reimbursement for reasonable and s&ay expens
incurred by the Executive on behalf of the Compdusing the period ending on the Termination Daig,acation pay
(iv) bonuses, incentive compensation (other thanRio Rata Bonus (as hereinafter defined)), ant stlter benefits
may be provided in Executive’s employment agreemaitt the Company.

2.2. Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, a termination opleyment is for “ Causé if the
Executive (a) has disregarded a direct, mater@moof the Board, the substance of which order) ia proper duty of tr
Executive under the terms of his employment agre¢meii) permitted by law, and (iii) otherwise permittédy his
employment agreement, which disregard continues &8 daysopportunity and failure to cure, or (b) has beemvoec
of a felony or any crime involving moral turpitude.

2.3. Change in Control. For purposes of this Agreement, a “ Change in @bitshall mean ar
of the following events:

(@) An acquisition (other than directhprh the Company) of any voting securities of thempany
(the “ Voting Securities) by any “ Persor’ (as the term person is used for purposes of Sed®ga) or 14(d) of th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934) immediately aftbich such Person has * Beneficial Ownersh{within the meanin
of Rule 13d3 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Ad98#) of 20% or more of the combined voting powk
the Companys then outstanding Voting Securities or, in theeca$ Glencore International AG and its affilie
(collectively, “ Glencor€’), Beneficial Ownership of 50% or more of such Votfagcurities; provided, however, tha
determining whether a Change in Control has ocduns®ting Securities which are acquired by any &ersther tha
Glencore in a NorGGontrol Acquisition (as hereinafter defined) shadt constitute an acquisition which would cau
Change in Control A * Non-Control Acquisition” shall mean an acquisition by (1) an employee bepkfn (or a trus
forming a part thereof) maintained by (x) the Compar (y) any corporation or other Person of whéchajority of it
voting power or its equity securities or equityeirgst is owned directly or indirectly by the Compda “ Subsidiary’),
(2) the Company or any Subsidiary, or (3) any Rerisoconnection with a No@ontrol Transaction (as hereina
defined);




(b) The individuals who, as of the daéedof, are members of the Board (the “ Incumberdargd),
cease for any reason to constitute at leastthirds of the Board; provided, however, that if tlection, or nomination fi
election by the Company’s stockholders, of any rdivector was approved by a vote of at least thiocds of the
Incumbent Board, such new director shall, for psg®oof this Agreement, be considered a membereotritumber
Board; provided further, however, that no individshall be considered a member of the Incumbentrdafasuct
individual initially assumed office as a resultether an actual or threatened “ Election Contdsts described in RL
14ai11 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Ad984) or other actual or threatened solicitatibrproxies o
consents by or on behalf of a Person other tharBtieed (a “_Proxy Contes) including by reason of any agreen
intended to avoid or settle any Election Conte®Rmmxy Contest; or

(c) Approval by stockholders of the Compaf:
(2) A merger, consolidation or reorgatiainvolving the Company, unless

(1) the stockholders of the Company, indiately before such merger, consolidatio
reorganization, own, directly or indirectly immetly following such merger, consolidation
reorganization, at least 70% of the combined vofiogver of the outstanding voting securities of
corporation resulting from such merger or consaiteor reorganization (the * Surviving Corporatignn
substantially the same proportion as their ownersifi the Voting Securities immediately before <
merger, consolidation or reorganization,

(i) the individuals who were memberstbé Incumbent Board immediately priot
the execution of the agreement providing for suengar, consolidation or reorganization constititeas
two-thirds of the members of the board of directafrthe Surviving Corporation, and

(i) no Person (other than the Compaany Subsidiary, any employee benefit plar
any trust forming a part thereof) maintained by @@nmpany, the Surviving Corporation or any Subsid
or any Person who, immediately prior to such mergensolidation or reorganization, had Benef
Ownership of 15% or more of the then outstandingingoSecurities) has Beneficial Ownership of 15¢
more of the combined voting power of the Survivi@grporations then outstanding voting securitie:
transaction described in clauses (i) through @ijove shall herein be referred to as a “ fGmmtro
Transactiori);




(2) A complete liquidation or dissolutiohthe Company; or

3) An agreement for the sale or othepdsition of all or substantially all of the assetshe
Company to any Person (other than a transfer wbai@iary).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Consgtwll not be deemed to occur solely because arsoPéthe “
Subject Persof) acquired Beneficial Ownership of more than the piéeish amount of the outstanding Voting Secur
as a result of the acquisition of Voting Securitigsthe Company which, by reducing the number ofing Securitie
outstanding, increases the proportional numberhafes Beneficially Owned by the Subject Personyideal that if :
Change in Control would occur (but for the opemaiid this sentence) as a result of the acquisiovioting Securities kt
the Company, and after such share acquisition &yCibmpany, the Subject Person becomes the Benédaiaer of an'
additional Voting Securities which increases thecpetage of the then outstanding Voting Securltieseficially owne
by the Subject Person, then a Change in Contrdil abaur.

(d) Notwithstanding anything contained tims Agreement to the contrary, if the Executive’
employment is terminated prior to a Change in Gorand the Executive reasonably demonstrates tizdit termination (
was at the request of a third party who had indda@n intention or taken steps reasonably calaltateffect a Change
Control and who effectuates a Change in Contrdl Taird Party”) or (ii) otherwise occurred in connection with, a
anticipation of, a Change in Control which actuabcurs, then for all purposes of this Agreemerd,date of a Change
Control with respect to the Executive shall meaa tlate immediately prior to the date of such teatiom of the
Executive’s employment.

2.4. Company . For purposes of this Agreement, the “ Compéarshall mean Century Aluminu
Company, a Delaware corporation, and shall incital&uccessors and Assigns (as hereinafter defines§ used in thi
Agreement, the term “affiliatesshall include any company controlled by, contrgjlior under common control with, f
Company.

2.5. Disability . For purposes of this Agreement, “ Disabilityshall mean a physical or mer
infirmity which impairs the Executive’ability to substantially perform his duties witte Company for a period of 1
consecutive days, and the Executive has not redumais full time employment prior to the Termiiogt Date as stated
the Notice of Termination (as hereinafter defined).




2.6. Good Reason

@) For purposes of this Agreement, “ G&easori shall mean the occurrence after a Chan
Control of any of the events or conditions desailesubsections (1) through (9) hereof:

(1) a change in the Executiwestatus, title, position or responsibilities (umihg reportin
responsibilities) which, in the Executigefeasonable judgment, represents an adverse chrangéis status, titl
position or responsibilities as in effect at anydiwithin one year preceding the date of a Chandeontrol or &
any time thereafter; the assignment to the Exeeutifvany duties or responsibilities which, in theeEutives
reasonable judgment, are inconsistent with hisistditle, position or responsibilities as in effatany time withi
one year preceding the date of a Change in Cootrat any time thereafter; or any removal of thedttive fron
or failure to reappoint or reelect him to any o€lswffices or positions, except in connection vitte terminatio
of his employment for Disability, Cause, as a restihis death or by the Executive other than foo® Reason;

(2) a reduction in the Executigebase salary or the failure of the Company t@4y to thi
Executive an annual bonus in cash at least equidet@nnual bonus paid to the Executive for thetmasentl
completed fiscal year prior to the Change in Cdnsuach bonus to be paid no later than the entdethird mont
of the fiscal year next following the fiscal year fwhich the annual bonus is awarded, unless tleElEke sha
elect to defer the receipt of such annual bongsn@irease the Executiv@base salary, annual bonus and any
incentive compensation, including performance sharel options, consistent with the Companyactice prior t
the Change in Control or, if greater, as the sarag Ibe increased from time to time for other keyceti@e officers
of the Company and its affiliated companies, ay fiay to the Executive any compensation or besiéditwhich h
is entitled within five days of the date due;

3 the Company’s requiring the Executivebe based at any place outside arBi@- radiu:
from the Companyg offices where he was based prior to the Chandeointrol, except for reasonably requi
travel on the Compang’business which is not materially greater tharm stavel requirements prior to the Cha
in Control;




(4) the failure by the Company to (A) tinoe in effect (without reduction in benefit le
and/or reward opportunities) any material compeosadr employee benefit plan (including, withounitation
long-term disability, medical, dental, life insucan flexible spending account, p@e< insurance premiun
vacation pay, pension and praofitaring) in which the Executive was participatingaay time within one ye
preceding the date of a Change in Control or attemg thereafter, unless such plans are replacddpans the
provide substantially equivalent compensation onefies to the Executive, (B) provide the Executmth
compensation and benefits, in the aggregate, st é&zpual (in terms of benefit levels and/or rewapgortunities
to those provided for under each other employeefiigplan, program and practice in which the Exa@iwvas
participating at any time within one year preceding date of a Change in Control or at any timeethier, or (C
permit the Executive to participate in any or atentive, savings, retirement plans and benefibgldringe
benefits, practices, policies and programs appkcagenerally to other key executives of the Compang it:
affiliated companies;

(5) the insolvency or the filing (by amarty, including the Company) of a petition
bankruptcy of the Company, which petition is nanissed within 60 days;

(6) any material breach by the Compangrmyf provision of this Agreement;

(7) any purported termination of the Exee’'s employment for Cause by the Comg
which does not comply with the terms of Sectiorn 2.2

(8) the disposition of all, or substaltjiall, of the assets of the Company; or

(9) the failure of the Company to obtamagreement, satisfactory to the Executive, frag

Successors and Assigns to assume and agree tonpéinie Agreement, as contemplated in Section édfer

(b) Any event or condition described ecton 2.6(a) (1) through (9) above which occuisrpio ¢
Change in Control but which the Executive reasonal@monstrates (1) was at the request of a ThimtyPar (2]
otherwise arose in connection with, or in antidaif, a Change in Control which actually occwtsall constitute Goc
Reason for purposes of this Agreement notwithstaqthat it occurred prior to the Change in Control.
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2.7. Highest Annual Bonus. For purposes of this Agreement, “ Highest AnnuahB®” shal
mean an amount equal to the highest bonus or bsm#sd or payable to the Executive in any of tlve fnost recent
completed fiscal years prior to the Change in Garfor such shorter period that the Executive feenlemployed).

2.8. Highest Base Salary For purposes of this Agreement, “ Highest Baser§alahall mean tr
Executive’s annual base salary at the highestiratffect during the fiverear period (or such shorter period that
Executive has been employed) prior to the Chang€antrol, and shall include all amounts of his baakary that ai
deferred under the qualified and ngualified employee benefit plans of the Companyaay other agreement
arrangement.

2.9. Notice of Termination . For purposes of this Agreement, following a Chamg€ontrol, “
Notice of Terminatior” shall mean a written notice of termination frohetCompany of the Executiseemploymer
which indicates the specific termination provisiarthis Agreement relied upon and which sets fantheasonable det:
the facts and circumstances claimed to providesssldar termination of the Executiveeemployment under the provis
so indicated The Notice of Termination shall also specify thievant Termination Date.

2.10. Pro Rata Bonus. For purposes of this Agreement, “ Pro Rata Bdnsisall mean an amot
equal to the Highest Annual Bonus multiplied byracfion, the numerator of which is the number ofsdelapsed in tf
fiscal year through the Termination Date and theod&nator of which is 365.

2.11. Successors and Assigns For purposes of this Agreement, “ Successors asipAs” shal
mean a corporation or other entity acquiring alsobstantially all the assets and business of tiragany (including th
Agreement) whether by operation of law or otherwise

2.12. Termination Date . For purposes of this Agreement, “ Termination Daghall mean in tF
case of the Executive’s death, his date of deatthe case of the Executigefesignation for any reason, the last day ¢
employment, and in all other cases, the date spdcih the Notice of Termination; provided, howevérat if the
Executives employment is terminated by the Company for Caustue to Disability, the date specified in thetik® of
Termination shall be at least 30 days after the tteg Notice of Termination is given to the Exeegitiprovided, that in tt
case of Disability the Executive shall not haveineéd to the fultime performance of his duties during such peribét
least 30 days.




3. Termination of Employment

3.1 If, during the term of this Agreemerite tExecutives employment with the Company shall
terminated within 36 months following a Change on@ol, the Executive shall be entitled to thedaling compensatic
and benefits:

(@) If the Executive’employment with the Company shall be termina®dby the Company fi
Cause or Disability, (2) by reason of the Execusvdeath, or (3) by the Executive other than for ©G&eason, tt
Company shall pay to the Executive the Accrued Gamption and, if such termination is other thanheyCompany fc
Cause, a Pro Rata Bonus.

(b) If the Executive’s employment wittet@ompany shall be terminated by reason of the lExecs
death or disability, the Executive, or his benafil@s or personal representatives, as the casebemaghall be entitled
receive the greater of those amounts describe@dtidh 3.1(a) above or such other compensatiorbandfits as may |
provided for in his employment and other agreemgattermination of employment under similar circstances

(c) If the Executive’employment with the Company shall be terminatecahy reason other than
specified in Section 3.1(a), the Executive shalébgtled to the following:
(1) the Company shall pay the ExecutileAecrued Compensation and a Pro F
Bonus;
(i) the Company shall pay the Executaseseverance pay and in lieu of any fui

compensation for periods subsequent to the Termm&late, in a single payment an amount in caslal
to two times the sum of (A) the Highest Base Sakamg (B) the Highest Annual Bonus, in each
calculated to include amounts deferred under thegamy’s qualified and non-qualified plans;

(iii) for a period of 24 months after thermination Date (the * Continuation Peritd
the Company shall, at its expense, provide to tlkective and his dependents and benefici
comparable employee benefits provided (x) to theckive at any time during the one year periodrpgo
the Change in Control or at any time thereaftefypto other similarly situated executives who couné ir
the employ of the Company during the Continuatiaerid®l, including, but not limited to, longrm
disability, medical, dental, life insurance, and+x insurance premiums.
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The coverage and benefits (including deductibled @sts) provided in this Section 3.1(c)(iii) dithe
Continuation Period shall be no less favorablehto Executive and his dependents and beneficidna
the most favorable of such coverage and benefiimglany of the periods referred to in clausesafx) (y
above. The Companys obligation hereunder with respect to the foregdienefits shall be limited to t
extent that the Executive obtains any such benpfitsuant to a subsequent employdsenefit plans,
which case the Company may reduce the coverageyobanefits it is required to provide the Exect
hereunder as long as the aggregate coverage agrtitb@i the combined benefit plans is no less faltz
to the Executive than the coverage and benefitgined) to be provided hereunderThis subsection (ii
shall not be interpreted so as to limit any beadifit which the Executive, his dependents or beiagibs
may be entitled under any of the Compangimployee benefit plans, programs or practicdevimig the
Executives termination of employment, including, without iiation, retiree medical and life insural
benefits;

(iv) the Company shall credit the Exeeaitfor pension purposes with two year:
service beyond the Termination Date and shall paypé Executive in a single payment an amount &fr
equal to the excess of (A) the Recalculated RegrgrBenefit (as provided in this Section 3.1(c)(ikgc
(w) the Executive remained employed by the Compdanythe additional two complete years of crec
service, (x) his annual compensation during suatiiogebeen equal to the Highest Base Salary an
Highest Annual Bonus, (y) the benefit accrual folasuof each retirement plan remained no
advantageous to the Executive than those in eiffiectediately preceding the date on which a Chan
Control occurred and the Company made employeribomibns to each defined contribution plan in wi
the Executive was a participant at the Terminatizate in an amount equal to the amount of
contribution for the plan year immediately precedthe Termination Date, and (z) he been fully (1§
vested in his benefit under each retirement planhiich the Executive was a participant, over (B) lilmg
sum actuarial equivalent of the aggregate retirénbenefit the Executive is actually entitled to eme
under such retirement plansFor purposes of this subsection (iv), the * Redakewd Retirement Benefit
shall mean the lump sum actuarial equivalent ofalpgregate retirement benefit the Executive woalzk
been entitled to receive under the Company’s gadliind non-qualified retirement plansFor purpose
of this subsection (iv), the “actuarial equivalemstiall be determined in accordance with the actl
assumptions used for the calculation of benefitdeuthe applicable retirement plan as applied gaodhe
Termination Date in accordance with such plan’s peactices; and
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(V) (A) the restrictions on any outstarglincentive awards (including restricted st
and performance share units) granted to the Execuwinder the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, as ame
from time to time, or under any other incentiverpta arrangement shall lapse and such incentiveds
shall become 100% vested and all stock optionstgdato the Executive shall become immedie
exercisable and shall become 100% vested (andctesis on any stock issued upon exercise of ¢
options shall lapse), and Section 6.B of the 1996ckS Incentive Plan Implementation Guideli
notwithstanding, all performance shares awardetddexecutive pursuant to the Guidelines shallddaec
at 100% as though the Company had achieved itettdog each respective Plan Period, and an
number of shares of common stock shall be awar¢ldet Executive, and (B) the Executive shall hédne
right to require the Company to purchase, for casly, shares of unrestricted stock or shares pusc
upon exercise of any options or received pursuaat performance share award at a price equal téatt
market value of such shares on the date of purdhatiee Company.

(d) The amounts provided for in Secti@B(a), 3.1(c)(i), 3.1(c)(ii) and 3.1(c)(iv) shalke paid in
single lump sum cash payment within five days afterExecutives Termination Date (or earlier, if required by apgible
law). Notwithstanding the foregoing, all paymemtade to the Executive shall be paid in conformanmitie Section 409,
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amentied' (€ode’)

(e) The Executive shall not be requirednitigate the amount of any payment provided fothig
Agreement by seeking other employment or othernars# no such payment shall be offset or reducechéyamount ¢
any compensation or benefits provided to the Exeeuh any subsequent employment except as provimé&kction 3.1
(c)(ii) . Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive agréeed during the Continuation Period, he shall mosolicit
any employees of the Company to leave the Compaaryiploy to work for any company with which the Extéve i<
employed, or (ii) employ any employee who is emplbyy the Company at any time during the ContiomaBeriod. A
breach of either of the foregoing covenants wslulein the Executive forfeiting any further bengtfio which he is entitle
pursuant to Section 3.1(c)(iii), although the Exa@ishall not be required to return any paymeatthe Company th
have been made to the Executive prior to the dadaah breach.

3.2. a) Except as otherwise provided in i8acd.1(b), the severance pay and benefits provioieoh

this Section 3 shall be in lieu of any other semeeaor termination pay to which the Executive mayehtitled under at
employment agreement or any Company severancensinggion plan, program, practice or arrangement.
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(b) The Executive’entitlement to any other compensation benefadl le determined in accordal
with the Company’s employee benefit plans and cdippticable programs, policies and practices thesffiect.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the camyrin this Agreement, if the Executive is termathby th
Company after the occurrence of a Change in Coatidlis subsequently rehired by the Company atiarg/ thereafte
the Executive shall not be entitled to any furthenefits under Section 3.1(c)(iii) of this Agreemetthough th
Executive shall not be required to return any paysheo the Company which have been made to theufixeqorior to th
date the Executive is rehired.

4. Notice of Termination . Following a Change in Control, any purported tereion of the Executive’
employment by the Company shall be communicatedNbice of Termination to the Executive. For puref thi:
Agreement, no such purported termination shallffectve without such Notice of Termination.

5. Excise Tax Payments

(a) If any payment or benefit (within tiieaning of Section 280G(b)(2) of the Code) toERecutive
or for his benefit paid or payable or distributaddestributable pursuant to the terms of this Agneat or otherwise
connection with, or arising out of, his employmaiith the Company or a change in ownership or effeatontrol of thi
Company or of a substantial portion of its asse¢elf a “ Paymeritand collectively, the “ Payment$, would be subje:
to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of thdeCar any interest or penalties are incurred byBkecutive witl
respect to such excise tax (such excise tax, tegetfith any such interest and penalties, are heftein collectivel
referred to as the “ Excise Tdy then the Executive will be entitled to receiga additional payment (a “ Grosip
Payment’), such that the net amount retained by the Execuifter deduction and/or payment of any Excise Taxtha
Payments and the Gross-Up Payment and any fed&td, and local income tax on the GrogsPayment (including ai
interest or penalties, other than interest andIfesaamposed by reason of the Executs/&ilure to file timely a tax retu
or pay taxes shown due on his return, imposed regpect to such taxes), shall be equal to the Patgme
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(b) An initial determination as to whetlaeGrossJJp Payment is required pursuant to this Agreel
and the amount of such Gross-Up Payment shall loke raathe Compang’expense by an accounting firm selected b
Company and reasonably acceptable to the Exeowtiieh is designated as one of the four largest@atinag firms in thi
United States (the “ Accounting Firfi. The Accounting Firm shall provide its determiion (the “ Determinatior),
together with detailed supporting calculations dadumentation to the Company and the Executiveinvithie days of th
Termination Date if applicable, or such other tiae requested by the Executive (provided the Exezutasonab
believes that any of the Payments may be subjebiet&xcise Tax) and if the Accounting Firm deteres that no Exci
Tax is payable by the Executive as provided in iBecb(a) above, it shall furnish the Executive wdh opiniol
reasonably acceptable to the Executive to suclhctefi@ithin ten days of the delivery of the Detemation to th
Executive, the Executive shall have the right tepdie the Determination (the “ Dispufe The GrossJdp Payment,
any, as determined pursuant to this Paragraphsbid) be paid by the Company to the Executive wifive days of th
receipt of the Accounting Firm’s determination. eTéxistence of the Dispute shall not in any wagdafthe Executives
right to receive the Groddp Payment in accordance with the Determinatioporthe final resolution of a Dispute,
Company shall promptly pay to the Executive anyitamthl amount required by such resolution. Ifrhés no Disputt
the Determination shall be binding, final and colscle upon the Company and the Executive subjeittet@pplication ¢
Section 5(c) below.

(c) As a result of the uncertainty in thgplication of Sections 4999 and 280G of the Catdes
possible that a Gro-Up Payment (or a portion thereof) will be paid @hhishould not have been paid (arEXces:
Payment”) or a Gross-Up Payment (or a portion thereof) ckhshould have been paid will not have been paid“(a
Underpayment’). An Underpayment shall be deemed to have occurfedp@n notice (formal or informal) to t
Executive from any governmental taxing authoritgttthe Executive’s tax liability (whether in respe€ the Executives
current taxable year or in respect of any prioakd& year) may be increased by reason of the impo%f the Excise Te
on a Payment or Payments with respect to whiclCtirapany has failed to make a sufficient GrogsPayment, (ii) upc
a determination by a court, (iii) by reason of @&edmination by the Company (which shall include gusition taken k
the Company, together with its consolidated graup,ts federal income tax return) or (iv) upon tesolution of th
Dispute to the Executive’satisfaction. If an Underpayment occurs, thecktree shall promptly notify the Company ¢
the Company shall promptly, but in any event, asidive days prior to the date on which the aplie governme!
taxing authority has requested payment, pay tEterutive an additional Gros$p Payment equal to the amount of
Underpayment plus any interest and penalties (dthem interest and penalties imposed by reasomefExecutives
failure to file timely a tax return or pay taxesm due on the Executive’s return) imposed on thddgpayment.
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An Excess Payment shall be deemed to have occup@nl a Final Determination (as hereinafter defirtbdj the Excis
Tax shall not be imposed upon a Payment or Paymentportion thereof) with respect to which the Extve ha
previously received a Grc-Up Payment. A “ Final Determinatidnshall be deemed to have occurred when the Exe:
has received from the applicable government taauority a refund of taxes or other reductionha Executives ta
liability by reason of the Excess Payment and ueitimer (x) the date a determination is made byaroragreement
entered into with, the applicable governmentalrngxauthority which finally and conclusively bindset Executive ar
such taxing authority, or if a claim is brought dxef a court of competent jurisdiction, the date rupchich a fina
determination has been made by such court andreithappeals have been taken and finally resotwethe time for a
appeals has expired or (y) the statute of limitegtiith respect to the Executigeapplicable tax return has expired. |
Excess Payment is determined to have been madamnbeant of the Excess Payment shall be treatedleanaby th
Company to the Executive and the Executive shalltpathe Company on demand (but not less than 8 déer th
determination of such Excess Payment and writtditexdnas been delivered to the Executive) the amofithe Exces
Payment plus interest at an annual rate equaletdgplicable Federal Rate provided for in Secti@74(d) of the Coc
from the date the Groddp Payment (to which the Excess Payment relates)pa#d to the Executive until the date
repayment to the Company.

(d) Notwithstanding anything contained timis Agreement to the contrary, if, according te
Determination, an Excise Tax will be imposed on &ayment or Payments, the Company shall pay tappdicabl
government taxing authorities as Excise Tax witthng, the amount of the Excise Tax that the Compaay actuall
withheld from the Payment or Payments.

6. Successdar8inding Agreement.

€)) This Agreement shall be binding upmmd shall inure to the benefit of the Company
Successors and Assigns and the Company shall eegoy Successors and Assigns to expressly assudnagaee t
perform this Agreement in the same manner andgsdime extent that the Company would be requirgerorm it if nc
such succession or assignment had taken place.

(b) Neither this Agreement nor any rightinterest hereunder shall be assignable or tazslie b
the Executive, his beneficiaries or legal represtargs, except by will or by the laws of descend aimstribution. Thi
Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be exdable by the Executive’s legal personal repredimet
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7. Fees and Expenses The Company shall pay all legal fees and relatguebeses (including the costs
experts, evidence and counsel) incurred by the likecas they become due as a result of (a) theUuExe’s terminatiol
of employment (including all such fees and expengemny, incurred in contesting or disputing amcls termination ¢
employment), and (b) the Executive seeking to obt@ enforce any right or benefit provided by tiigreemer
(including, but not limited to, any such fees amxgenses incurred in connection with the Dispute amg other matt
arising under Section 5, including the existencd amount of any Excess Payment or Underpaymentissugs witl
respect to the Groddp Payment, whether as a result of any applicableignment taxing authority proceeding, aud
otherwise, or by any other plan or arrangement tagead by the Company under which the Executiverisnay bi
entitled to receive benefits); provided, howevkattany such action by the Executive is commeneagbod faith and fc
good reason; provided, however, that the circuncgtsrset forth in clauses (a) and (b) (other thama assult of th
Executives termination of employment under circumstancesrileed in Section 2.3(d)) occurred on or after a@je ir
Control and that no such amounts shall be due apdie by the Company after December 31 of thergkecalendar ye
following the calendar year in which the Executs/grmination of employment occurred.

8. Notices. For the purposes of this Agreement, notices andth#r communications provided for in
Agreement (including the Notice of Termination) kHee in writing and shall be deemed to have begly diven whei
personally delivered or sent by certified mail,uret receipt requested, postage prepaid, addresseldet respecti
addresses for the parties set forth on Exhibitefeto or to any other addresses as the respgeaities may designate
notice delivered pursuant to this Section 8; presithat all notices to the Company shall be digetdethe attention of tl
Board with a copy to the Secretary of the Compangll notices and communications shall be deemedaweehbee
received on the date of delivery thereof or ontthiel business day after the mailing thereof, extleat notice of chang
of address shall be effective only upon receipt.

9. Non-Exclusivity of Rights . Except as otherwise provided in Section 3.2(a)hingtin this Agreeme!
shall prevent or limit the Executiv@’continuing or future participation in any benefibnus, incentive or other plan
program provided by the Company and for which tkedttive may qualify, nor shall anything hereinitior reduce suc
rights as the Executive may have under any othexeagents with the Company Amounts which are vested benefit:
which the Executive is otherwise entitled to reeeiwnder any plan or program of the Company shalpdgable i
accordance with such plan or program, except ascéipmodified by this Agreement.
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10. Settlement of Claims. The Companys obligation to make the payments provided for his
Agreement and otherwise to perform its obligatitreseunder shall not be affected by any circumstniceluding
without limitation, any sewbff, counterclaim, recoupment, defense or othdrtrighich the Company may have agains
Executive or others.

11. Modification, Waiver and Miscellaneous. No provision of this Agreement may be modified, vea
or discharged unless such waiver, modification isclthrge is agreed to in writing and signed byHERecutive and tr
Company. No waiver by either party hereto at any time of &ngach by the other party hereto of, or complianith,
any condition or provision of this Agreement tofeformed by such other party shall be deemed aewaif similar o
dissimilar provisions or conditions at the sameioany prior or subsequent timeNo agreement or representations,
or otherwise, express or implied, with respecthi® subject matter hereof have been made by eitrgy which are n¢
expressly set forth in this Agreement.

12. Governing Law and Jurisdiction . This Agreement shall be governed by and constraeddeaforce
in accordance with the laws of the State of Delanaithout giving effect to the conflict of laws pdiples thereof. Ar
claims arising under or related to this Agreemdmdllsbe settled by binding arbitration pursuantthe rules of th
American Arbitration Association or such other subes to which the parties may agree. The arlotraghall take place
San Francisco, California, within 30 days followisgrvice of notice of such dispute by one partytlos other. Th
arbitration shall be conducted before a panel @elarbitrators, one to be selected by each gbdhies and the third to
selected by the other two. The panel of arbiteasdrall have no authority to order a modificatisramendment of th
Agreement. The parties agree to abide by all asvegddered in such proceedings. Such awardstshéithal and bindin
on all parties, and may be filed with the clerkomie or more courts, state or federal, having jicigdh over the pari
against whom such award is rendered or such gaptgperty as a basis of judgment and of the issuahexecution fc
its collection.

13. Severability . The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemedrsble and the invalidity
unenforceability of any provision shall not afféloe validity or enforceability of the other provass hereof.

14. Entire Agreement . Except as otherwise provided below, this Agreemmonistitutes the enti
agreement between the parties hereto and super@égesr agreements, if any, understandings anahgements, oral
written, between the parties hereto with respetihéosubject matter hereofIf the Executive and the Company have
entered into an employment agreement, and thene iisconsistency between the terms of this Agreeiuet the terms !
such employment agreement, then the Agreement vinmhdes terms most favorable to the Executivél gloaern.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to be exebytis duly authorized offic
and the Executive has executed this Agreement teeafay and year first above written.

CENTURY ALUMINUM  EXECUTIVE

COMPANY
/s/ Robert R. /s/ William J.
By: Nielsen By: Leatherberry

William J.
Name:Robert R. Nielsen Name: Leatherberry

Executive Vice
Title: President
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EXHIBIT A

If to the Company:
at its principal executive offices
If to the Executive:

Their then designated personal address on file théHCompany
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EXHIBIT 10.28

AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO AMENDED AND RESTATED SEVERANC E PROTECTION AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 to AMENDED AND RESTATED SEERANCE PROTECTION AGREEMENT (th
“Amendment”)is made as of December 1, 2008, by and betweeruyeAtuminum Company, a Delaware corpora
(the “Company”), and William J. Leatherberry (tHextcutive”).

RECITALS

A. The Company and the Executive are parties t®\aended and Restated Severance Protection Agre
made as of January 1, 2008 (the “Agreement”).

B. The Company and the Executive desire to ancenthin provisions of the Agreement to comply wictior
409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as aedneffective as of the effective date of the Agrest (the Effective

Date”).

THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1.

Amendment with regard to Section 2.3(a) Section 2.3(a) of the Agreement is deleted ireitsrety an
replaced as follows

“2.3. Change in Control. For purposes of this Agreement, a “Change int@thshall mean any of tl
following events:

(a) An acquisition of any voting secw#iof the Company (the “Voting Securitie§§ any
“Person” @s the term person is used for purposes of Set8¢a) or 14(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934) immediately after which such Person hasri@icial Ownership” Within the meaning of Ru
13d-3 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Ad934) of 20% or more of the combined vo
power of the Companyg’then outstanding Voting Securities or, in theecasGlencore International A
and its affiliates (collectively, “GlencoreBeneficial Ownership of 50% or more of such VotBecurities
provided, however, that in determining whether a@fe in Control has occurred, Voting Securitiesch
are acquired by any Person other than GlencoreNareControl Acquisition (as hereinafter defined) s
not constitute an acquisition which would causehar@e in Control. A “Non-Control Acquisitiorshal
mean an acquisition by (1) an employee benefit (dam trust forming a part thereof) maintained)ythe
Company or (y) any corporation or other Person bfctv a majority of its voting power or its eqt
securities or equity interest is owned directly indirectly by the Company (a “Subsidiary”)2)( the
Company or any Subsidiary, or (3) any Person imeotion with a NorControl Transaction (as hereina
defined);”




2. Amendment with regard to Confidential Information . A new section 3.1(f) of the Agreement is he!
added in its entirety as follow

“() Protection of Confidential Informat .

0] The Executive acknowledges that hagkwfor the Company will give him acces:
highly confidential information not available toethpublic or competitors, including, withe
limitation, information relating to research andvel®pment, marketing plans, copyrighte
material, trade secrets and other proprietary oategic information, which it would |
impracticable for the Company to effectively pratand preserve in the absence of this Section 3
() and the disclosure or misappropriation of whicbuld materially adversely affect -
Company. Accordingly, the Executive hereby agrees:

(A) Except as specifically permitted tyst Section 3.1(f), the Executive v
not communicate or divulge to or use for the bengfihimself or any other person, fir
association, or corporation, without the prior temt consent of the Company,
Confidential Information (as defined herein) thaayrbe communicated to, acquired b
learned of by the Executive in the course of, oaassult of, the Executive's employmr
with the Company or any of its affiliates. As udeztein, " Confidential Informatiohshall
mean information not generally known about the Canypand its affiliates, services ¢
products, whether written or not, including, withdimitation, information relating 1
research, development, purchasing, marketing plemsiputer software or programs,
copyrightable material, trade secrets and propsiatdormation, including, but not limite
to, customer lists.

(B) All Confidential Information which isommunicated to, acquired by
learned of by the Executive shall remain the sobperty of the Company or its affiliates.

(i) The confidentiality obligations ihis Section 3.1(f) shall not apply to Confider
Information which is or becomes generally availabl¢he public other than as a result of disclo
by the Executive. If the Executive is requiredniake disclosure of information subject to
Section 3.1(f) under any court order, subpoenattoer judicial process, then, except as prohil
by law, the Executive will promptly notify the Comupy thereof, take all reasonable steps requ
by the Company to defend against the compulsorgiatiare and permit the Company to cor
with counsel of its choice any proceeding relatm¢he compulsory disclosure.




(i) Upon request by the Company, thee€&ixtive agrees to deliver promptly to
Company at the termination of the Executive's emplent, or at such other times as the Com
may request, all memoranda, notes, plans, recoeg®rts and other documents (and all cc
thereof) containing Confidential Information whitte Executive may then possess or have 1
his control.”

Section 409A. The Agreement is amended to add the following r&setion 15 at the end there
effective on the Effective Dat

“15., Section 409A

(a) To the fullest extent applicable, ams and other benefits payable under this Agre¢
are intended to be exempt from the definition adriqualified deferred compensatiomider Section 409
of the Code in accordance with one or more of tkengtions available under the Treasury regula
promulgated under Section 409A. In this regardhesuch payment that is made in a series of sche
installments shall be deemed a separate paymeptifppses of Section 409A.

(b) To the extent that any amounts orefiesipayable under this Agreement are or bec
subject to Section 409A due to a failure to qualdy an exemption from the definition of nonquadd
deferred compensation under Section 409A, this &gent is intended to comply with the applici
requirements of Section 409A with respect to suamounts or benefits. This Agreement shall
interpreted and administered to the extent possibke manner consistent with the foregoing stateré
intent.

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreent or elsewhere to the contrary, if the Exee
is a “ Specified Employe&(within the meaning of Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) betCode, as determined
the Companys Compensation Committee) on the date of his textin of employment, and the Comp
reasonably determines that any amount or otherfibgrayable under this Agreement on account o
Executives separation from service, within the meaning ottisa 409A(a)(2)(A)()) of the Cod
constitutes nonqualified deferred compensation Withtviolate the requirements of Section 409A(3){t
paid or provided at the time specified in the Agneet, then the payment or provision thereof she
postponed to the first business day of the severathth following the date of termination or, if ear] the
date of the Executive’s death (the “Delayed Paynisie”), and the remaining amounts or benefits she
paid at the times otherwise provided under the Agrent. The Company and the Executive may ag!
take other actions to avoid a violation of Secl@9A at such time and in such manner as permitheie
Section 409A. If this Section 15(c) requires aagledf any payment, such payment shall be accund
and paid in a single lump sum on the Delayed Paymate together with interest for the period ofaye
compounded monthly, equal to the prime rate afosit in the Eastern edition of the Wall Streetridal or
the date of termination.




If a benefit subject to the delayed payment ruliethis Section 15(c) is to be provided other thantle
payment of money to the Executive, then the prowisif such benefit prior to the Delayed PaymeneDls
conditioned on prepayment by the Executive to the Company of the tatbble value of the benefit ¢
following the Delayed Payment Date, the Companyi sepay the Executive for the payments made b
Executive pursuant to the terms of this sentencetwtvould otherwise not have been required of
Executive.

(d) Notwithstanding any provision of ttAgreement to the contrary, the time of paymei
any performance shares that are subject to Se4@i8A as “nonqualified deferred compensatiamt tha
vest pursuant to this Agreement shall not be acateld unless such acceleration complies witt
requirements of Section 409A of the Code, as detewin pursuant to applicable guidance is:
thereunder. If the payment of vested performameges cannot be accelerated pursuant to this ooy
payment shall include interest for the period dagecompounded monthly, equal to the prime ratee
forth in the Eastern edition of the Wall Streetrdal on the date when payment of the vested pednce
shares would otherwise have been made.

(e) The Executive'date of termination for purposes of determinimg date that any paym:
or benefit that is treated as nonqualified defeechpensation under Code Section 409A is to be @
provided (or in determining whether an exemptionstch treatment applies), and for purpose
determining whether the Executive is a “Specifiedpioyee”on the date of termination, shall be the
on which the Executive has incurred a “separattomfservice” within the meaning of Section 409A23)(
(A)(i) and applicable guidance thereunder.

() To the extent the Company is requipetlsuant to this Agreement to reimburse expe
incurred by the Executive, and such reimbursembhgation is subject to Section 409A of the Code
Company shall reimburse any such eligible expebsgethe end of the calendar year next following
calendar year in which the expense was incurreldjestito any earlier required deadline for payr
otherwise applicable under this Agreement; providemvever, that the following sentence shall apgp
any tax gross-up payment (if applicable) to theeekisubject to Section 409A. Any such tax grogss-
payment will be made by the end of the calendar yext following the calendar year in which
Executive remits the related taxes, and any reduigenbursement of expenses incurred due to audit
or litigation addressing the existence or amouna ¢éx liability will be made by the end of the eada
year next following the calendar year in which thges that are the subject of the audit or litmyatare
remitted to the taxing authority, or where as alltesf such audit or litigation no taxes are regdttthe en
of the calendar year next following the calendarya which such audit is completed or there igalfanc
nonappealable settlement or other resolution oflitigation, in each case subject to any earligurneec
deadline for payment otherwise applicable undes #hgreement, In addition, to the extent subjer
Section 409A, the right to reimbursement okind benefits under this Agreement shall not begesikic
liquidation or exchange for another benefit, ndtsianding any contrary provision of this Agreement.
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(9) To the extent the Company is requipedsuant to this Agreement to provide contir
employee benefits following termination of employmehe provision of such benefits shall be strred
in a manner that complies with Section 409A. Aiffiget of the Companyg’ obligation to provide benef
under this Agreement as a result of the provisibbemefits pursuant to a subsequent emplsybenefi
plans, and any offset of the Compasygbligation to provide severance or terminatioy pader othe
agreements or arrangements as a result of thespyovef pay and benefits under this Agreement,| ¢J&
structured in a manner that does not result inangé in the time or form of payment of ngualifiec
deferred compensation that violates Section 409A.”

Incorporation of Amendment and Agreem. Except as explicitly set forth in this Amendmehte partie
do not intend to modify the terms and conditionshef Agreement, those terms and conditions shal&ir
in full force and effect, and they shall be incarded into this Amendment by this referer

Miscellaneou:s.

This Amendment may be executed in any number ohtewparts and by different parties heret
separate counterparts, each of which when so ee@d¢eutd delivered shall be deemed to be an or
and all of which counterparts taken together stwtistitute but one and the same instrurr

Wherever possible, each provision of this Amendnsdall be interpreted in such manner as t
effective and valid under applicable law, but iff/grovision of this Amendment shall be prohibite¢
or invalid under applicable law, such provisionlsha ineffective only to the extent of such pratidn
or invalidity, without invalidating the remaindef such provision or the remaining provisions ofs
Amendment

This Amendment shall be interpreted and construeddcordance with the laws of the Statt
California. Each of the Company and Executive eatsto the jurisdiction of any state or federairt
sitting in California, in any action or proceediagsing out of or relating to this Amendme
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been executed effective asedEtfective Date.

CENTURY ALUMINUM  EXECUTIVE

COMPANY
/s/ Robert R. /sl William J.
By: Nielsen By: Leatherberry

William J.
Name:Robert R. Nielsen Name: Leatherberry

Executive Vice
Title: President







EXHIBIT 10.29

AMENDED AND RESTATED SEVERANCE PROTECTION AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made as of March 20, 2007, by aatiMeen the Company (as hereinafter defined) anteSte
Schneider (the “Executive”) restates that Sever&rogction Agreement between the Parties madéAasgust 1, 2005,
and includes amendments approved by the Compengasimmittee of the Board of Directors of the Compas of
February 21, 2007.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “ Bogrdecognizes that the possibility of a Chanc
Control (as hereinafter defined) exists and thattkineat or the occurrence of a Change in Con&mlresult in significal
distractions of its key management personnel becalhe uncertainties inherent in such a situation

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is essential andhé best interest of the Company anc
stockholders to retain the services of the Exeeutivthe event of a threat or the occurrence ohan@e in Control and
ensure his continued dedication and efforts in ®w&nt without undue concern for his personal fonrand employme
security; and

WHEREAS, the Executive is the Senior Vice President, Colgra@nd Chief Accounting Officer of the Compi
and in order to induce the Executive to remairhim émploy of the Company, particularly in the eveina threat or tr
occurrence of a Change in Control, the Companyrele$o enter into this Agreement with the Executiverovide th
Executive with certain benefits if his employmenterminated as a result of, or in connection vatihange in Control;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective agreements @fpdirties contained herein, it is her
agreed as follows:

1. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall be effective as of March 2072 and shall continue
effect until December 31, 2008; provided, howetteat commencing on January 1, 2009, and on eacladat thereafte
the term of this Agreement shall automatically kieeded for one year, subject however, to termomagis provided in tt
last sentence of this Section 1; and provided &uirthowever, that the term of this Agreement shallexpire prior to tr
later of (i) the expiration of 36 months after thecurrence of a Change in Control during the tefrthis Agreement, «
(i) until such time as all benefits to be provided hereunder have been provided in full. Exapbotherwise provide
herein, this Agreement and the rights and obligatiof each party hereunder shall terminate if thkeckHtive or th
Company terminates the Executive’s employment gadhe occurrence of a Change in Control.




2. Definitions

2.1 Accrued Compensation. For purposes of this Agreement, “ Accrued Compensdt shal
mean any and all amounts or rights earned, acouedsted through the Termination Date (as hergnakefined) but ni
paid as of the Termination Date, including (i) basdary, (ii) reimbursement for reasonable and s&ay expens
incurred by the Executive on behalf of the Compdusing the period ending on the Termination Daig,acation pay
(iv) bonuses, incentive compensation (other thanRio Rata Bonus (as hereinafter defineal)ly such other benefits
may be provided in Executive’s employment agreemaitt the Company.

2.2. Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, a termination opleyment is for “ Causé if the
Executive (a) has disregarded a direct, mater@moof the Board, the substance of which order) ia proper duty of tr
Executive under the terms of his employment agre¢meii) permitted by law, and (iii) otherwise permittédy his
employment agreement, which disregard continues &8 daysopportunity and failure to cure, or (b) has beemvoec
of a felony or any crime involving moral turpitude.

2.3. Change in Control. For purposes of this Agreement, a “ Change in @bitshall mean ar
of the following events:

(@) An acquisition (other than directhprh the Company) of any voting securities of thempany
(the “ Voting Securities) by any “ Persor’ (as the term person is used for purposes of Sed®ga) or 14(d) of th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934) immediately aftbich such Person has * Beneficial Ownersh{within the meanin
of Rule 13d3 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Ad98#) of 20% or more of the combined voting powk
the Companys then outstanding Voting Securities or, in theeca$ Glencore International AG and its affilie
(collectively, “ Glencor€’), Beneficial Ownership of 50% or more of such Votfagcurities; provided, however, tha
determining whether a Change in Control has ocduns®ting Securities which are acquired by any &ersther tha
Glencore in a NorGGontrol Acquisition (as hereinafter defined) shadt constitute an acquisition which would cau
Change in Control A * Non-Control Acquisition” shall mean an acquisition by (1) an employee bepkfn (or a trus
forming a part thereof) maintained by (x) the Compar (y) any corporation or other Person of whéchajority of it
voting power or its equity securities or equityeirgst is owned directly or indirectly by the Compda “ Subsidiary’),
(2) the Company or any Subsidiary, or (3) any Rerisoconnection with a No@ontrol Transaction (as hereina
defined);




(b) The individuals who, as of the daéedof, are members of the Board (the “ Incumberdargd),
cease for any reason to constitute at leastthirds of the Board; provided, however, that if tlection, or nomination fi
election by the Company’s stockholders, of any rdivector was approved by a vote of at least thiocds of the
Incumbent Board, such new director shall, for psg®oof this Agreement, be considered a membereotritumber
Board; provided further, however, that no individshall be considered a member of the Incumbentrdafasuct
individual initially assumed office as a resultether an actual or threatened “ Election Contdsts described in RL
14ai11 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Ad984) or other actual or threatened solicitatibrproxies o
consents by or on behalf of a Person other tharBtieed (a “_Proxy Contes) including by reason of any agreen
intended to avoid or settle any Election Conte®Rmmxy Contest; or

(c) Approval by stockholders of the Compaf:
(2) A merger, consolidation or reorgatiainvolving the Company, unless

(1) the stockholders of the Company, indiately before such merger, consolidatio
reorganization, own, directly or indirectly immetly following such merger, consolidation
reorganization, at least 70% of the combined vofiogver of the outstanding voting securities of
corporation resulting from such merger or consaiteor reorganization (the * Surviving Corporatignn
substantially the same proportion as their ownersifi the Voting Securities immediately before <
merger, consolidation or reorganization,

(i) the individuals who were memberstbé Incumbent Board immediately priot
the execution of the agreement providing for suengar, consolidation or reorganization constititeas
two-thirds of the members of the board of directafrthe Surviving Corporation, and

(i) no Person (other than the Compaany Subsidiary, any employee benefit plar
any trust forming a part thereof) maintained by @@nmpany, the Surviving Corporation or any Subsid
or any Person who, immediately prior to such mergensolidation or reorganization, had Benef
Ownership of 15% or more of the then outstandingingoSecurities) has Beneficial Ownership of 15¢
more of the combined voting power of the Survivi@grporations then outstanding voting securitie:
transaction described in clauses (i) through @ijove shall herein be referred to as a “ fGmmtro
Transactiori);




(2) A complete liquidation or dissolutiohthe Company; or

3) An agreement for the sale or othepdsition of all or substantially all of the assetshe
Company to any Person (other than a transfer wbai@iary).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Consgtwll not be deemed to occur solely because arsoPéthe “
Subject Persof) acquired Beneficial Ownership of more than the piéeish amount of the outstanding Voting Secur
as a result of the acquisition of Voting Securitigsthe Company which, by reducing the number ofing Securitie
outstanding, increases the proportional numberhafes Beneficially Owned by the Subject Personyideal that if :
Change in Control would occur (but for the opemaiid this sentence) as a result of the acquisiovioting Securities kt
the Company, and after such share acquisition &yCibmpany, the Subject Person becomes the Benédaiaer of an'
additional Voting Securities which increases thecpetage of the then outstanding Voting Securltieseficially owne
by the Subject Person, then a Change in Contrdil abaur.

(d) Notwithstanding anything contained tims Agreement to the contrary, if the Executive’
employment is terminated prior to a Change in Gorand the Executive reasonably demonstrates tizdit termination (
was at the request of a third party who had indda@n intention or taken steps reasonably calaltateffect a Change
Control and who effectuates a Change in Contrdl Taird Party”) or (ii) otherwise occurred in connection with, a
anticipation of, a Change in Control which actuabcurs, then for all purposes of this Agreemerd,date of a Change
Control with respect to the Executive shall meaa tlate immediately prior to the date of such teatiom of the
Executive’s employment.

2.4. Company . For purposes of this Agreement, the “ Compéarshall mean Century Aluminu
Company, a Delaware corporation, and shall incital&uccessors and Assigns (as hereinafter defines§ used in thi
Agreement, the term “affiliatesshall include any company controlled by, contrgjlior under common control with, f
Company.

2.5. Disability . For purposes of this Agreement, “ Disabilityshall mean a physical or mer
infirmity which impairs the Executive’ability to substantially perform his duties witte Company for a period of 1
consecutive days, and the Executive has not redumais full time employment prior to the Termiiogt Date as stated
the Notice of Termination (as hereinafter defined).




2.6. Good Reason

@) For purposes of this Agreement, “ G&easori shall mean the occurrence after a Chan
Control of any of the events or conditions desailesubsections (1) through (9) hereof:

(1) a change in the Executiwestatus, title, position or responsibilities (umihg reportin
responsibilities) which, in the Executigefeasonable judgment, represents an adverse chrangéis status, titl
position or responsibilities as in effect at anydiwithin one year preceding the date of a Chandeontrol or &
any time thereafter; the assignment to the Exeeutifvany duties or responsibilities which, in theeEutives
reasonable judgment, are inconsistent with hisistditle, position or responsibilities as in effatany time withi
one year preceding the date of a Change in Cootrat any time thereafter; or any removal of thedttive fron
or failure to reappoint or reelect him to any o€lswffices or positions, except in connection vitte terminatio
of his employment for Disability, Cause, as a restihis death or by the Executive other than foo® Reason;

(2) a reduction in the Executigebase salary or the failure of the Company t@4y to thi
Executive an annual bonus in cash at least equidet@nnual bonus paid to the Executive for thetmasentl
completed fiscal year prior to the Change in Cdnsuach bonus to be paid no later than the entdethird mont
of the fiscal year next following the fiscal year fwhich the annual bonus is awarded, unless tleElEke sha
elect to defer the receipt of such annual bongsn@irease the Executiv@base salary, annual bonus and any
incentive compensation, including performance sharel options, consistent with the Companyactice prior t
the Change in Control or, if greater, as the sarag Ibe increased from time to time for other keyceti@e officer:
of the Company and its affiliated companies, ay fiay to the Executive any compensation or besiéditwhich h
is entitled within five days of the date due;

3 the Company’s requiring the Executivebe based at any place outside arBi@- radiu:
from the Companyg offices where he was based prior to the Chandeointrol, except for reasonably requi
travel on the Compang’business which is not materially greater tharm stavel requirements prior to the Cha
in Control;




(4) the failure by the Company to (A) tinoe in effect (without reduction in benefit le
and/or reward opportunities) any material compeosadr employee benefit plan (including, withounitation
long-term disability, medical, dental, life insucan flexible spending account, p@e< insurance premiun
vacation pay, pension and praofitaring) in which the Executive was participatingaay time within one ye
preceding the date of a Change in Control or attemg thereafter, unless such plans are replacddpans the
provide substantially equivalent compensation onefies to the Executive, (B) provide the Executmth
compensation and benefits, in the aggregate, st é&zpual (in terms of benefit levels and/or rewapgortunities
to those provided for under each other employeefiigplan, program and practice in which the Exa@iwvas
participating at any time within one year preceding date of a Change in Control or at any timeethier, or (C
permit the Executive to participate in any or atentive, savings, retirement plans and benefibgldringe
benefits, practices, policies and programs appkcagenerally to other key executives of the Compang it:
affiliated companies;

(5) the insolvency or the filing (by amarty, including the Company) of a petition
bankruptcy of the Company, which petition is nanissed within 60 days;

(6) any material breach by the Compangrmyf provision of this Agreement;

(7) any purported termination of the Exee’'s employment for Cause by the Comg
which does not comply with the terms of Sectiorn 2.2

(8) the disposition of all, or substaltjiall, of the assets of the Company; or

(9) the failure of the Company to obtamagreement, satisfactory to the Executive, frag

Successors and Assigns to assume and agree tonpéinie Agreement, as contemplated in Section édfer

(b) Any event or condition described ecton 2.6(a) (1) through (9) above which occuisrpio ¢
Change in Control but which the Executive reasonal@monstrates (1) was at the request of a ThimtyPar (2]
otherwise arose in connection with, or in antidaif, a Change in Control which actually occwtsall constitute Goc
Reason for purposes of this Agreement notwithstaqthat it occurred prior to the Change in Control.
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2.7. Highest Annual Bonus. For purposes of this Agreement, “ Highest AnnuahB®” shal
mean an amount equal to the highest bonus or bsm#sd or payable to the Executive in any of tlve fnost recent
completed fiscal years prior to the Change in Garfor such shorter period that the Executive feenlemployed).

2.8. Highest Base Salary For purposes of this Agreement, “ Highest Baser§alahall mean tr
Executive’s annual base salary at the highestiratffect during the fiverear period (or such shorter period that
Executive has been employed) prior to the Chang€antrol, and shall include all amounts of his baakary that ai
deferred under the qualified and ngualified employee benefit plans of the Companyaay other agreement
arrangement.

2.9. Notice of Termination . For purposes of this Agreement, following a Chamg€ontrol, “
Notice of Terminatior” shall mean a written notice of termination frohetCompany of the Executiseemploymer
which indicates the specific termination provisiarthis Agreement relied upon and which sets fantheasonable det:
the facts and circumstances claimed to providesssldar termination of the Executiveeemployment under the provis
so indicated The Notice of Termination shall also specify thievant Termination Date.

2.10. Pro Rata Bonus. For purposes of this Agreement, “ Pro Rata Bdnsisall mean an amot
equal to the Highest Annual Bonus multiplied byracfion, the numerator of which is the number ofsdelapsed in tf
fiscal year through the Termination Date and theod&nator of which is 365.

2.11. Successors and Assigns For purposes of this Agreement, “ Successors asipAs” shal
mean a corporation or other entity acquiring alsobstantially all the assets and business of tiragany (including th
Agreement) whether by operation of law or otherwise

2.12. Termination Date . For purposes of this Agreement, “ Termination Daghall mean in tF
case of the Executive’s death, his date of deatthe case of the Executigefesignation for any reason, the last day ¢
employment, and in all other cases, the date spdcih the Notice of Termination; provided, howevérat if the
Executives employment is terminated by the Company for Caustue to Disability, the date specified in thetik® of
Termination shall be at least 30 days after the tteg Notice of Termination is given to the Exeegitiprovided, that in tt
case of Disability the Executive shall not haveineéd to the fultime performance of his duties during such peribét
least 30 days.




3. Termination of Employment

3.1 If, during the term of this Agreemerite tExecutives employment with the Company shall
terminated within 36 months following a Change on@ol, the Executive shall be entitled to thedaling compensatic
and benefits:

(@) If the Executive’employment with the Company shall be termina®dby the Company fi
Cause or Disability, (2) by reason of the Execusvdeath, or (3) by the Executive other than for ©G&eason, tt
Company shall pay to the Executive the Accrued Gamption and, if such termination is other thanheyCompany fc
Cause, a Pro Rata Bonus.

(b) If the Executive’s employment wittet@ompany shall be terminated by reason of the lExecs
death or disability, the Executive, or his benafil@s or personal representatives, as the casebemaghall be entitled
receive the greater of those amounts describe@dtidh 3.1(a) above or such other compensatiorbandfits as may |
provided for in his employment and other agreemgattermination of employment under similar circstances

(c) If the Executive’employment with the Company shall be terminatecahy reason other than
specified in Section 3.1(a), the Executive shalébgtled to the following:
(1) the Company shall pay the ExecutileAecrued Compensation and a Pro F
Bonus;
(i) the Company shall pay the Executaseseverance pay and in lieu of any fui

compensation for periods subsequent to the Termm&late, in a single payment an amount in caslal
to two times the sum of (A) the Highest Base Sakamg (B) the Highest Annual Bonus, in each
calculated to include amounts deferred under thegamy’s qualified and non-qualified plans;

(iii) for a period of 24 months after thermination Date (the * Continuation Peritd
the Company shall, at its expense, provide to tlkective and his dependents and benefici
comparable employee benefits provided (x) to theckive at any time during the one year periodrpgo
the Change in Control or at any time thereaftefypto other similarly situated executives who couné ir
the employ of the Company during the Continuatiaerid®l, including, but not limited to, longrm
disability, medical, dental, life insurance, and+x insurance premiums.
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The coverage and benefits (including deductibled @sts) provided in this Section 3.1(c)(iii) dithe
Continuation Period shall be no less favorablehto Executive and his dependents and beneficidna
the most favorable of such coverage and benefiimglany of the periods referred to in clausesafx) (y
above. The Companys obligation hereunder with respect to the foregdienefits shall be limited to t
extent that the Executive obtains any such benpfitsuant to a subsequent employdsenefit plans,
which case the Company may reduce the coverageyobanefits it is required to provide the Exect
hereunder as long as the aggregate coverage agrtitb@i the combined benefit plans is no less faltz
to the Executive than the coverage and benefitgined) to be provided hereunderThis subsection (ii
shall not be interpreted so as to limit any beadifit which the Executive, his dependents or beiagibs
may be entitled under any of the Compangimployee benefit plans, programs or practicdevimig the
Executives termination of employment, including, without iiation, retiree medical and life insural
benefits;

(iv) the Company shall credit the Exeeaitfor pension purposes with two year:
service beyond the Termination Date and shall paypé Executive in a single payment an amount &fr
equal to the excess of (A) the Recalculated RegrgrBenefit (as provided in this Section 3.1(c)(ikgc
(w) the Executive remained employed by the Compdanythe additional two complete years of crec
service, (x) his annual compensation during suatiiogebeen equal to the Highest Base Salary an
Highest Annual Bonus, (y) the benefit accrual folasuof each retirement plan remained no
advantageous to the Executive than those in eiffiectediately preceding the date on which a Chan
Control occurred and the Company made employeribomibns to each defined contribution plan in wi
the Executive was a participant at the Terminatizate in an amount equal to the amount of
contribution for the plan year immediately precedthe Termination Date, and (z) he been fully (1§
vested in his benefit under each retirement planhiich the Executive was a participant, over (B) lilmg
sum actuarial equivalent of the aggregate retirénbenefit the Executive is actually entitled to eme
under such retirement plansFor purposes of this subsection (iv), the * Redakewd Retirement Benefit
shall mean the lump sum actuarial equivalent ofalpgregate retirement benefit the Executive woalzk
been entitled to receive under the Company’s gadliind non-qualified retirement plansFor purpose
of this subsection (iv), the “actuarial equivalemstiall be determined in accordance with the actl
assumptions used for the calculation of benefitdeuthe applicable retirement plan as applied gaodhe
Termination Date in accordance with such plan’s peactices; and
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(V) (A) the restrictions on any outstarglincentive awards (including restricted st
and performance share units) granted to the Executnder the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, as ame
from time to time, or under any other incentiverpta arrangement shall lapse and such incentiveds
shall become 100% vested and all stock optionstgdato the Executive shall become immedie
exercisable and shall become 100% vested (andctasis on any stock issued upon exercise of ¢
options shall lapse), and Section 6.B of the 19%6ckS Incentive Plan Implementation Guidel
notwithstanding, all performance shares awardetdddExecutive pursuant to the Guidelines shallddaec
at 100% as though the Company had achieved itettdog each respective Plan Period, and an
number of shares of common stock shall be awara¢det Executive, and (B) the Executive shall hédne
right to require the Company to purchase, for casly, shares of unrestricted stock or shares pusc
upon exercise of any options or received pursuaat performance share award at a price equal téait
market value of such shares on the date of purdhattee Company.

(d) The amounts provided for in Secti@B(a), 3.1(c)(i), 3.1(c)(ii) and 3.1(c)(iv) sh&lke paid in
single lump sum cash payment within five days afterExecutives Termination Date (or earlier, if required by apgible
law). Notwithstanding the foregoing, all paymemtade to the Executive shall be paid in conformamitie Section 409,
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendtied’ €Code”)

(e) The Executive shall not be requirednitigate the amount of any payment provided fothis
Agreement by seeking other employment or othenars#® no such payment shall be offset or reducedchéyamount ¢
any compensation or benefits provided to the Exeeuh any subsequent employment except as proviad&kction 3.1
(c)(iii) . Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive agrimes during the Continuation Period, he shall (mosolicit
any employees of the Company to leave the Compaayiploy to work for any company with which the Extave i<
employed, or (ii) employ any employee who is emphbypy the Company at any time during the Contioumaferiod. A
breach of either of the foregoing covenants wslulein the Executive forfeiting any further bengtfio which he is entitle
pursuant to Section 3.1(c)(iii), although the Exa@ishall not be required to return any paymeatthe Company th
have been made to the Executive prior to the dataah breach.

3.2. a) Except as otherwise provided in i8ec3.1(b), the severance pay and benefits providenh
this Section 3 shall be in lieu of any other semeeaor termination pay to which the Executive mayehtitled under at
employment agreement or any Company severancenoinggion plan, program, practice or arrangement.
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(b) The Executive’entitlement to any other compensation benefadl le determined in accordal
with the Company’s employee benefit plans and cdippticable programs, policies and practices thesffiect.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the camyrin this Agreement, if the Executive is termathby th
Company after the occurrence of a Change in Coatidlis subsequently rehired by the Company atiarg/ thereafte
the Executive shall not be entitled to any furthenefits under Section 3.1(c)(iii) of this Agreemetthough th
Executive shall not be required to return any paysheo the Company which have been made to theufixeqorior to th
date the Executive is rehired.

4. Notice of Termination . Following a Change in Control, any purported tereion of the Executive’
employment by the Company shall be communicatedNbice of Termination to the Executive. For puref thi:
Agreement, no such purported termination shallffectve without such Notice of Termination.

5. Excise Tax Payments

(a) If any payment or benefit (within tiieaning of Section 280G(b)(2) of the Code) toERecutive
or for his benefit paid or payable or distributaddestributable pursuant to the terms of this Agneat or otherwise
connection with, or arising out of, his employmaiith the Company or a change in ownership or effeatontrol of thi
Company or of a substantial portion of its asse¢elf a “ Paymeritand collectively, the “ Payment$, would be subje:
to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of thdeCar any interest or penalties are incurred byBkecutive witl
respect to such excise tax (such excise tax, tegetfith any such interest and penalties, are heftein collectivel
referred to as the “ Excise Tdy then the Executive will be entitled to receiga additional payment (a “ Grosip
Payment’), such that the net amount retained by the Execuifter deduction and/or payment of any Excise Taxtha
Payments and the Gross-Up Payment and any fed&td, and local income tax on the GrogsPayment (including ai
interest or penalties, other than interest andIfesaamposed by reason of the Executs/&ilure to file timely a tax retu
or pay taxes shown due on his return, imposed regpect to such taxes), shall be equal to the Patgme
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(b) An initial determination as to whetlaeGrossJJp Payment is required pursuant to this Agreel
and the amount of such Gross-Up Payment shall loke raathe Compang’expense by an accounting firm selected b
Company and reasonably acceptable to the Exeowtiieh is designated as one of the four largest@atinag firms in thi
United States (the “ Accounting Firfi. The Accounting Firm shall provide its determiion (the “ Determinatior),
together with detailed supporting calculations dadumentation to the Company and the Executiveinvithie days of th
Termination Date if applicable, or such other tiae requested by the Executive (provided the Exezutasonab
believes that any of the Payments may be subjebiet&xcise Tax) and if the Accounting Firm deteres that no Exci
Tax is payable by the Executive as provided in iBecb(a) above, it shall furnish the Executive wdh opiniol
reasonably acceptable to the Executive to suclhctefi@ithin ten days of the delivery of the Detemation to th
Executive, the Executive shall have the right tepdie the Determination (the “ Dispufe The GrossJdp Payment,
any, as determined pursuant to this Paragraphsbid) be paid by the Company to the Executive wifive days of th
receipt of the Accounting Firm’s determination. eTéxistence of the Dispute shall not in any wagdafthe Executives
right to receive the Groddp Payment in accordance with the Determinatioporthe final resolution of a Dispute,
Company shall promptly pay to the Executive anyitamthl amount required by such resolution. Ifrhés no Disputt
the Determination shall be binding, final and colscle upon the Company and the Executive subjeittet@pplication ¢
Section 5(c) below.

(c) As a result of the uncertainty in thgplication of Sections 4999 and 280G of the Catdes
possible that a Gro-Up Payment (or a portion thereof) will be paid @hhishould not have been paid (arEXces:
Payment”) or a Gross-Up Payment (or a portion thereof) ckhshould have been paid will not have been paid“(a
Underpayment’). An Underpayment shall be deemed to have occurfedp@n notice (formal or informal) to t
Executive from any governmental taxing authoritgttthe Executive’s tax liability (whether in respe€ the Executives
current taxable year or in respect of any prioakd& year) may be increased by reason of the impo%f the Excise Te
on a Payment or Payments with respect to whiclCtirapany has failed to make a sufficient GrogsPayment, (ii) upc
a determination by a court, (iii) by reason of @&edmination by the Company (which shall include gusition taken k
the Company, together with its consolidated graup,ts federal income tax return) or (iv) upon tesolution of th
Dispute to the Executive’satisfaction. If an Underpayment occurs, thecktree shall promptly notify the Company ¢
the Company shall promptly, but in any event, asidive days prior to the date on which the aplie governme!
taxing authority has requested payment, pay tEterutive an additional Gros$p Payment equal to the amount of
Underpayment plus any interest and penalties (dthem interest and penalties imposed by reasomefExecutives
failure to file timely a tax return or pay taxesm due on the Executive’s return) imposed on thddgpayment.
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An Excess Payment shall be deemed to have occup@nl a Final Determination (as hereinafter defirtbdj the Excis
Tax shall not be imposed upon a Payment or Paymentportion thereof) with respect to which the Extve ha
previously received a Grc-Up Payment. A “ Final Determinatidnshall be deemed to have occurred when the Exe:
has received from the applicable government taauority a refund of taxes or other reductionha Executives ta
liability by reason of the Excess Payment and ueitimer (x) the date a determination is made byaroragreement
entered into with, the applicable governmentalrngxauthority which finally and conclusively bindset Executive ar
such taxing authority, or if a claim is brought dxef a court of competent jurisdiction, the date rupchich a fina
determination has been made by such court andreithappeals have been taken and finally resotwethe time for a
appeals has expired or (y) the statute of limitegtiith respect to the Executigeapplicable tax return has expired. |
Excess Payment is determined to have been madamnbeant of the Excess Payment shall be treatedleanaby th
Company to the Executive and the Executive shalltpathe Company on demand (but not less than 8 déer th
determination of such Excess Payment and writtditexdnas been delivered to the Executive) the amofithe Exces
Payment plus interest at an annual rate equaletdgplicable Federal Rate provided for in Secti@74(d) of the Coc
from the date the Groddp Payment (to which the Excess Payment relates)pa#d to the Executive until the date
repayment to the Company.

(d) Notwithstanding anything contained timis Agreement to the contrary, if, according te
Determination, an Excise Tax will be imposed on &ayment or Payments, the Company shall pay tappdicabl
government taxing authorities as Excise Tax witthng, the amount of the Excise Tax that the Compaay actuall
withheld from the Payment or Payments.

6. Successdar8inding Agreement.

€)) This Agreement shall be binding upmmd shall inure to the benefit of the Company
Successors and Assigns and the Company shall eegoy Successors and Assigns to expressly assudnagaee t
perform this Agreement in the same manner andgsdime extent that the Company would be requirgerorm it if nc
such succession or assignment had taken place.

(b) Neither this Agreement nor any rightinterest hereunder shall be assignable or tazslie b
the Executive, his beneficiaries or legal represtargs, except by will or by the laws of descend aimstribution. Thi
Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be exdable by the Executive’s legal personal repredimet
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7. Fees and Expenses The Company shall pay all legal fees and relatguebeses (including the costs
experts, evidence and counsel) incurred by the likecas they become due as a result of (a) theUuExe’s terminatiol
of employment (including all such fees and expengemny, incurred in contesting or disputing amcls termination ¢
employment), and (b) the Executive seeking to obt@ enforce any right or benefit provided by tiigreemer
(including, but not limited to, any such fees amxgenses incurred in connection with the Dispute amg other matt
arising under Section 5, including the existencd amount of any Excess Payment or Underpaymentissugs witl
respect to the Groddp Payment, whether as a result of any applicableignment taxing authority proceeding, aud
otherwise, or by any other plan or arrangement tagead by the Company under which the Executiverisnay bi
entitled to receive benefits); provided, howevkattany such action by the Executive is commeneagbod faith and fc
good reason; provided, however, that the circuncgtsrset forth in clauses (a) and (b) (other thama assult of th
Executives termination of employment under circumstancesrileed in Section 2.3(d)) occurred on or after a@je ir
Control and that no such amounts shall be due apdie by the Company after December 31 of thergkecalendar ye
following the calendar year in which the Executs/grmination of employment occurred.

8. Notices. For the purposes of this Agreement, notices andth#r communications provided for in
Agreement (including the Notice of Termination) kHee in writing and shall be deemed to have begly diven whei
personally delivered or sent by certified mail,uret receipt requested, postage prepaid, addresseldet respecti
addresses for the parties set forth on Exhibitefeto or to any other addresses as the respgeaities may designate
notice delivered pursuant to this Section 8; presithat all notices to the Company shall be digetdethe attention of tl
Board with a copy to the Secretary of the Compangll notices and communications shall be deemedaweehbee
received on the date of delivery thereof or ontthiel business day after the mailing thereof, extleat notice of chang
of address shall be effective only upon receipt.

9. Non-Exclusivity of Rights . Except as otherwise provided in Section 3.2(a)hingtin this Agreeme!
shall prevent or limit the Executiv@’continuing or future participation in any benefibnus, incentive or other plan
program provided by the Company and for which tkedttive may qualify, nor shall anything hereinitior reduce suc
rights as the Executive may have under any othexeagents with the Company Amounts which are vested benefit:
which the Executive is otherwise entitled to reeeiwnder any plan or program of the Company shalpdgable i
accordance with such plan or program, except ascéipmodified by this Agreement.
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10. Settlement of Claims. The Companys obligation to make the payments provided for his
Agreement and otherwise to perform its obligatitreseunder shall not be affected by any circumstniceluding
without limitation, any sewbff, counterclaim, recoupment, defense or othdrtrighich the Company may have agains
Executive or others.

11. Modification, Waiver and Miscellaneous. No provision of this Agreement may be modified, vea
or discharged unless such waiver, modification isclthrge is agreed to in writing and signed byHERecutive and tr
Company. No waiver by either party hereto at any time of &ngach by the other party hereto of, or complianith,
any condition or provision of this Agreement tofeformed by such other party shall be deemed aewaif similar o
dissimilar provisions or conditions at the sameioany prior or subsequent timeNo agreement or representations,
or otherwise, express or implied, with respecthi® subject matter hereof have been made by eitrgy which are n¢
expressly set forth in this Agreement.

12. Governing Law and Jurisdiction . This Agreement shall be governed by and constraeddeaforce
in accordance with the laws of the State of Delanaithout giving effect to the conflict of laws pdiples thereof. Ar
claims arising under or related to this Agreemdmdllsbe settled by binding arbitration pursuantthe rules of th
American Arbitration Association or such other subes to which the parties may agree. The arlotraghall take place
San Francisco, California, within 30 days followisgrvice of notice of such dispute by one partytlos other. Th
arbitration shall be conducted before a panel @elarbitrators, one to be selected by each gbdhies and the third to
selected by the other two. The panel of arbiteasdrall have no authority to order a modificatisramendment of th
Agreement. The parties agree to abide by all asvegddered in such proceedings. Such awardstshéithal and bindin
on all parties, and may be filed with the clerkomie or more courts, state or federal, having jicigdh over the pari
against whom such award is rendered or such gaptgperty as a basis of judgment and of the issuahexecution fc
its collection.

13. Severability . The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemedrsble and the invalidity
unenforceability of any provision shall not afféloe validity or enforceability of the other provass hereof.

14. Entire Agreement . Except as otherwise provided below, this Agreemmonistitutes the enti
agreement between the parties hereto and super@égesr agreements, if any, understandings anahgements, oral
written, between the parties hereto with respetihéosubject matter hereofIf the Executive and the Company have
entered into an employment agreement, and thene iisconsistency between the terms of this Agreeiuet the terms !
such employment agreement, then the Agreement vinmhdes terms most favorable to the Executivél gloaern.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to be exebutiés duly authorized offic
and the Executive has executed this Agreement teeafay and year first above written.

CENTURY ALUMINUM  EXECUTIVE
COMPANY

By: /s/Logan W. KrugemBy: /sl Steve Schneider

Name:Logan W. Kruger Name: Steve Schneider

Chief Executive
Title: Officer
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EXHIBIT A

If to the Company:
at its principal executive offices
If to the Executive:

Their then designated personal address on file théHCompany
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EXHIBIT 10.30

AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO AMENDED AND RESTATED SEVERANC E PROTECTION AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 to AMENDED AND RESTATED SEERANCE PROTECTION AGREEMENT (th
“Amendment”)is made as of December 1, 2008, by and betweerufyeAtuminum Company, a Delaware corpora
(the “Company”), and Steve Schneider (the “Exe@ijiv

RECITALS

A. The Company and the Executive are parties t®\aended and Restated Severance Protection Agre
made as of March 20, 2007 (the “Agreement”).

B. The Company and the Executive desire to ancenthin provisions of the Agreement to comply wictior
409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as aedneffective as of the effective date of the Agrest (the Effective

Date”).

THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1.

Amendment with regard to Section 2.3(a) Section 2.3(a) of the Agreement is deleted ireitsrety an
replaced as follows

“ 2.3. Change in Control. For purposes of this Agreement, a “Change int@tnshall mean any of tl
following events:

(a) An acquisition of any voting secw#iof the Company (the “Voting Securitie§§ any
“Person” @s the term person is used for purposes of Set8¢) or 14(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934) immediately after which such Person hasri@icial Ownership” Within the meaning of Ru
13d-3 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Ad934) of 20% or more of the combined vo
power of the Companyg’then outstanding Voting Securities or, in theecasGlencore International A
and its affiliates (collectively, “GlencoreBeneficial Ownership of 50% or more of such Vot®Becurities
provided, however, that in determining whether a@fe in Control has occurred, Voting Securitiesch
are acquired by any Person other than GlencoreNareControl Acquisition (as hereinafter defined) s
not constitute an acquisition which would causehar@e in Control. A “Non-Control Acquisitiorshal
mean an acquisition by (1) an employee benefit (dam trust forming a part thereof) maintainedythe
Company or (y) any corporation or other Person bfctv a majority of its voting power or its eqt
securities or equity interest is owned directly indirectly by the Company (a “Subsidiary”)2)( the
Company or any Subsidiary, or (3) any Person imeotion with a Norzontrol Transaction (as hereina
defined);”

Amendment with regard to Confidential Information . A new section 3.1(f) of the Agreement is he!
added in its entirety as follow




“(f) Protection of Confidential Informat .

(1) The Executive acknowledges that hagkafor the Company will give him acces:
highly confidential information not available toethpublic or competitors, including, withe
limitation, information relating to research andve®pment, marketing plans, copyrighte
material, trade secrets and other proprietary oategic information, which it would |
impracticable for the Company to effectively pratand preserve in the absence of this Section 3
() and the disclosure or misappropriation of whicbuld materially adversely affect -
Company. Accordingly, the Executive hereby agrees:

(A) Except as specifically permitted tyst Section 3.1(f), the Executive v
not communicate or divulge to or use for the berafihimself or any other person, fir
association, or corporation, without the prior vemt consent of the Company,
Confidential Information (as defined herein) thaayrbe communicated to, acquired b
learned of by the Executive in the course of, oaassult of, the Executive's employmr
with the Company or any of its affiliates. As udestein, " Confidential Informatiohshall
mean information not generally known about the Canypand its affiliates, services ¢
products, whether written or not, including, withdimitation, information relating 1
research, development, purchasing, marketing plemsputer software or programs,
copyrightable material, trade secrets and propsiatdormation, including, but not limite
to, customer lists.

(B) All Confidential Information which isommunicated to, acquired by
learned of by the Executive shall remain the sobperty of the Company or its affiliates.

(i) The confidentiality obligations ihis Section 3.1(f) shall not apply to Confider
Information which is or becomes generally availabl¢he public other than as a result of disclo
by the Executive. If the Executive is requiredniake disclosure of information subject to
Section 3.1(f) under any court order, subpoenatioer judicial process, then, except as prohil
by law, the Executive will promptly notify the Comupy thereof, take all reasonable steps requ
by the Company to defend against the compulsorgiatisre and permit the Company to cor
with counsel of its choice any proceeding relatmghe compulsory disclosure.

(i) Upon request by the Company, thee€&ixtive agrees to deliver promptly to
Company at the termination of the Executive's emplent, or at such other times as the Com
may request, all memoranda, notes, plans, recoeg®rts and other documents (and all cc
thereof) containing Confidential Information whitte Executive may then possess or have 1
his control.”




Section 409A. The Agreement is amended to add the following r8=etion 15 at the end there
effective on the Effective Dat

“15. Section 409A

(a) To the fullest extent applicable, amts and other benefits payable under this Agre¢
are intended to be exempt from the definition afrfqualified deferred compensatiomider Section 409
of the Code in accordance with one or more of tkenmgptions available under the Treasury regula
promulgated under Section 409A. In this regarg¢hesuch payment that is made in a series of scie
installments shall be deemed a separate paymeptifposes of Section 409A.

(b) To the extent that any amounts orefies payable under this Agreement are or bec
subject to Section 409A due to a failure to quafdy an exemption from the definition of nonquadd
deferred compensation under Section 409A, this &gent is intended to comply with the applici
requirements of Section 409A with respect to suamounts or benefits. This Agreement shall
interpreted and administered to the extent possibke manner consistent with the foregoing statené
intent.

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreent or elsewhere to the contrary, if the Exee
is a “ Specified Employe&(within the meaning of Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) tketCode, as determined
the Companys Compensation Committee) on the date of his textiwn of employment, and the Comp
reasonably determines that any amount or otherfibgrayable under this Agreement on account o
Executives separation from service, within the meaning otti®a 409A(a)(2)(A)(i) of the Cod
constitutes nonqualified deferred compensation Wiktviolate the requirements of Section 409A(39)(t
paid or provided at the time specified in the Agneet, then the payment or provision thereof she
postponed to the first business day of the severathth following the date of termination or, if aar| the
date of the Executive’s death (the “Delayed Payndaie”), and the remaining amounts or benefits she
paid at the times otherwise provided under the Agrent. The Company and the Executive may ag!
take other actions to avoid a violation of Secl@®9A at such time and in such manner as permitheie
Section 409A. If this Section 15(c) requires aagledf any payment, such payment shall be accund
and paid in a single lump sum on the Delayed Paymate together with interest for the period ofaye
compounded monthly, equal to the prime rate afosit in the Eastern edition of the Wall Streetrial or
the date of termination. If a benefit subject e delayed payment rules tifis Section 15(c) is to |
provided other than by the payment of money toERkecutive, then the provision of such benefit pta
the Delayed Payment Date is conditioned onpgagment by the Executive to the Company of the
taxable value of the benefit and following the Deld Payment Date, the Company shall repay
Executive for the payments made by the Executivesyant to the terms of this sentence which w
otherwise not have been required of the Executive.
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(d) Notwithstanding any provision of thdAggreement to the contrary, the time
payment of any performance shares that are suliecBection 409A as nfonqualified deferre
compensation’and that vest pursuant to this Agreement shallbeoaiccelerated unless such acceler
complies with the requirements of Section 409Ahaf Code, as determined pursuant to applicable gcg
issued thereunder. If the payment of vested pmidioce shares cannot be accelerated pursuant
provision, payment shall include interest for tlezipd of delay, compounded monthly, equal to theng
rate as set forth in the Eastern edition of thel\8&keet Journal on the date when payment of tistet
performance shares would otherwise have been made.

(e) The Executive'date of termination for purposes of determinimg date that any paym:
or benefit that is treated as nonqualified defeethpensation under Code Section 409A is to be @
provided (or in determining whether an exemptionstch treatment applies), and for purpose
determining whether the Executive is a “Specifiedpioyee”on the date of termination, shall be the
on which the Executive has incurred a “separattomfservice” within the meaning of Section 409A23)(
(A)(i) and applicable guidance thereunder.

() To the extent the Company is requipetlsuant to this Agreement to reimburse expe
incurred by the Executive, and such reimbursembhgation is subject to Section 409A of the Code
Company shall reimburse any such eligible expebhgethe end of the calendar year next following
calendar year in which the expense was incurreldjestito any earlier required deadline for payr
otherwise applicable under this Agreement; providemvever, that the following sentence shall apgp
any tax gross-up payment (if applicable) to theeekisubject to Section 409A. Any such tax grogss-
payment will be made by the end of the calendar yext following the calendar year in which
Executive remits the related taxes, and any requigenbursement of expenses incurred due to aud
or litigation addressing the existence or amouna ¢éx liability will be made by the end of the exadla
year next following the calendar year in which thges that are the subject of the audit or litmyatare
remitted to the taxing authority, or where as alltasf such audit or litigation no taxes are regdttthe en
of the calendar year next following the calendarya which such audit is completed or there igalfanc
nonappealable settlement or other resolution oflittgation, in each case subject to any earliguneec
deadline for payment otherwise applicable undes #hgreement, In addition, to the extent subjes
Section 409A, the right to reimbursement okind benefits under this Agreement shall not begesikic
liquidation or exchange for another benefit, ndtsianding any contrary provision of this Agreement.
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(9) To the extent the Company is requipedsuant to this Agreement to provide contir
employee benefits following termination of employmehe provision of such benefits shall be strred
in a manner that complies with Section 409A. Aiffiget of the Companyg’ obligation to provide benef
under this Agreement as a result of the provisibbemefits pursuant to a subsequent emplsybenefi
plans, and any offset of the Compasygbligation to provide severance or terminatioy pader othe
agreements or arrangements as a result of thespyovef pay and benefits under this Agreement,| ¢J&
structured in a manner that does not result inangé in the time or form of payment of ngualifiec
deferred compensation that violates Section 409A.

(h) The Executive consents to be boundhkyterms of the Supplemental Retirement Inc
Benefit Plan as amended by the Company for purpafs8sction 409A.”

Incorporation of Amendment and AgreemerExcept as explicitly set forth in this Amendmehe partie
do not intend to modify the terms and conditionshef Agreement, those terms and conditions shalir
in full force and effect, and they shall be incagted into this Amendment by this referer

Miscellaneous.

This Amendment may be executed in any number ohtesparts and by different parties heret
separate counterparts, each of which when so ee@¢eutd delivered shall be deemed to be an or
and all of which counterparts taken together stwiistitute but one and the same instrurr

Wherever possible, each provision of this Amendnsdall be interpreted in such manner as t
effective and valid under applicable law, but ify/grovision of this Amendment shall be prohibitet
or invalid under applicable law, such provisionlsha ineffective only to the extent of such pratidn
or invalidity, without invalidating the remaindef such provision or the remaining provisions ofs
Amendment

This Amendment shall be interpreted and construeddcordance with the laws of the Statt
California. Each of the Company and Executive eatssto the jurisdiction of any state or federalrt
sitting in California, in any action or proceediagsing out of or relating to this Amendme




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been executed effective asedEffective Date.

CENTURY  ALUMINUM EXECUTIVE
COMPANY

By: /s/ Logan Kruger By: /s/ Steve Schneider

Name:Logan Kruger Name: Steve Schneider

Title: President and Chi
Executive Officer







EXHIBIT 10.38

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE
CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY AMENDED AND RESTATED
SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT INCOME BENEFIT PLAN
(As Amended and Restated Effective June 22, 2009)

WHEREAS, Century Aluminum Company (the “Companydppated and maintains the Century Aluminum
Company Amended and Restated Supplemental Retitdmeame Benefit Plan, as amended and restatedtieielune
22, 2009 (the "Plan™); and

WHEREAS, the Company, with the approval of the Cengation Committee of the Company, is authorized to
amend the Plan under Section 13(a) of the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Company, with the approval of the Cengation Committee desires to clarify that cashrdsva
under a long term incentive plan are excluded encddculation of a participant’s enhanced retirenbemefit under the
Plan;

NOW, THEREFORE, effective as of the date herea,Rlan shall be amended as follows:

1. The first sentence of Section 5(b) &mded Retirement BenefitERB") shall read in full as follows:

At the time an executive is designated as a Ppaintj the Compensation Committee shall, if appleadlso
specify in writing the percentage to be used byGbepany to estimate the Participant’s Targeted&eént
Income and, using the percentage specified withewtso the Participant, the Company shall estintteeexcess
(A) over (B) based on the Participant’s currentuaibase pay plus his most recent cash bonus (Brgleash
awards under a long term incentive plan), assud#gnnual increases in such pay until Target Regrg Age,
where:

(A) is the Participant’s Targeted Retirement Incah&arget Retirement Age; and
(B) is the Participant’s Nonenhanced Pension Rlaorhe at Target Retirement Age.

2. Subparagraph (i) of Section 5(b) EmeanRetirement Benefit ERB") shall read in full as follows:

(i) Increased to the extent the ParticiparERB would be higher if his Targeted Retiremenbme had been bas
on actual pay (base pay and cash bonuses, exclodgigawards under a long term incentive planndueiny thre
calendar years out of his last ten calendar ydaamployment with the Company that produces théésg averac
annual pay; and




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, an authorized officer of thengmany has caused this Amendment No. 1 to the Blan t
be executed this 22nd day of February, 2010.

CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
RETIREMENT COMMITTEE

By: /s/ William J. Leatherberry

Title: William J. Leatherberry, Chairman







EXHIBIT 10.43

CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
AMENDED AND RESTATED 1996 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

INDEPENDENT NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR
ANNUAL RETAINER FEE PAYMENT
TIME-VESTING PERFORMANCE SHARE UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT

This Annual Retainer Fee Payment Time-Vesting Perémce Share Unit Award Agreement (this “Agreemkeist’mad:
as of (the “Award Date”), by and between Century Alumin@Qompany (the “Company”) and_(“Participant”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Company has adopted the Century AlumitCompany Amended and Restated 1996 Stock In@
Plan (the “Plan”) authorizing the grant of awardsTame-Vesting Performance Share Units (“TVPSU8#3) eligible
individuals in connection with the performance efvices for the Company and its Subsidiaries (dsek in the Plan
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Participant’s election to reedVPSUSs in lieu of a cash retainer for Participa service to tr
Company as a Non-Employee Independent Directonefompany for the twelvaonth period beginning on the Awi
Date (“Annual Service Period"jhe Company has approved the grant to ParticipatiteoTVPSUs provided for in tr
Agreement, subject to the conditions set forth inere

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoingrises, and the mutual covenants herein contafPedicipan
and the Company hereby agree as follows:

1. Time-Vesting Performance Share Ur.

(@ Award . The Company hereby awards to ParticipamvPSUs (“Participant TVPSUs”pursuant to, ar
subject to all of the terms and conditions of, Rten.

(b)  Vesting and Paymer

i. Said Participant TVPSUs shall ve

(a) in four quarterly installments, (i.e., upon the getion of each consecutive th-month period of service a:
member of the Board of Directors of the Companynie@ncing on the Award Date);




(b) if earlier, upon (1) a Change in Control, as hefter provided, or (2) the termination
Participant’'s service as a Director of the Compdng to the expiration of Participastterm o
service as a Director of the Company, or due tdi¢aant’s death or Disability, or (3) Participanait’
reaching age 65, and, as of such age, Participgng @ member of the Board of Directors of
Company;

provided, however, that any provisions of this Beaph 1(b)i to the contrary notwithstanding, angnth
unvested TVPSUs shall vest on the date of the megitlar annual meeting of the Company's stockhs

following the Award Date, if said regular annualetiag occurs prior to the Ii2onth anniversary of tl

Award Date and Participant is a member of the Bazrdirectors of the Company as of said an

meeting date.

ii. Participant shall forfeit all opportunity to be wed in any the-unvested Participant TVPSUs upon Partici’s
termination of service as a member of the Boardiéctors of the Company for any reason other t{igne
Change in Control, as hereinafter provided, ortli2) conclusion of Participastterm of service as a Director,
(3) Participant’s death or Disability; it being werdtood and agreed that any thenwvested Participant TVPS
shall in any event vest upon Participanaching age 65; provided that, as of such ag#icipant is a member
the Board of Directors of the Compal

iii. All vested Participant TVPSUs shall be settledaisingle distribution, for an equivalent numbesbére
of common stock of the Company, as soon as prédéicaut no later than 2/2 months, after the date
Participants termination of service as a member of the Bodrdioectors of the Company and
Subsidiaries for any reason, including by reasodesith or Disability

iv. For purposes of this Agreement, “Disability” meg@esmanent and total disability as defined in Secfa
(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, asnai®e (the*Code”).

v. Participant shall have only the rights of a generadecured creditor of the Company with respecry
Participant TVPSUs deferred pursuant to this Agresn
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Change of Contra. Any provision of this Agreement to the contramgtwithstanding, but subject to the follow
sentence, upon a Change in Control of the Compdrile Warticipant is a member of the Board of Dioestof the
Company, Participard’ Participant TVPSUs shall vest pursuant to theipians of the Plan and shall be settle
soon as practicable but not later that/2-months after such Change in Control (or withiich other time period
may be required under Section 409A of the Code)twiMhstanding the preceding sentence, settlemeadt Bot be
accelerated unless the Change in Control satigfeesequirements for a change in the ownershigdfectve contro
of the Company, or a change in the ownership aflstantial portion of the assets of the Compangeurbectio
409A of the Code, as determined pursuant to TrgaRegulations or other applicable guidance issusdku sai
Section 409A

Change in Common Stock or Corporate Structukgpon any stock dividend, stock split, combinatay exchange
shares of common stock, recapitalization or othesinge in the capital structure of the Company, @ate
separation or division (including, but not limiteml split-up, spimeff or distribution to Company stockholders of
than a normal cash dividend), sale by the Compéaml or a substantial portion of its assets, rigbifering, merge
consolidation, reorganization or partial or comgliquidation, or any other corporate transactioe\ent having
effect similar to any of the foregoing, the numbéParticipant TVPSUs granted hereunder shall hetaoly anc
appropriately adjusted, and the securities sulifeaid Participant TVPSUs shall be equitably apdrapriatel
substituted for new securities or other considematias determined by the Committee (i.e., the CGansatiol
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Compaag/defined in the Plan) in accordance with theipions of th
Plan. Any such adjustment made by the Committed bl conclusive and binding upon Participant, @wmpan
and all other interested perso

Designation of Beneficiaries On a form provided to the Company, Participant rdasignate a beneficiary
beneficiaries to receive, in the event of Partictfgdeath, all or part of any amounts to be disteub Participal
under this Agreemen

Stock Certificate.. Upon the settlement of the Participant TVPSUWsG@ompany shall cause a stock certificate -
delivered or book entry to be made covering the@mmte number of shares registered on the Compaimpks il
the name of Participant. All Participant TVPSUsiehhare issued under this Agreement shall be fdligd and non-
assessablt




Voting, Dividends. Participant shall have no rights as a stockhdlideluding no rights to vote or receive divide
or distributions) with respect to any ParticipartPISUs until Participant becomes a stockholder ef @ompan
upon the settlement of such Participant TVPSUsctoalance with the terms and provisions of thise&gnent an
the Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Partinipaill be entitled to receive dividend equivalemigh respect t
the Participant TVPSUs as provided in this SecBorlJpon an ordinary cash dividend on the sharesoaimor
stock of the Company, the record date of whickrisro the settlement or forfeiture of any Papamt TVPSUs, tr
Company shall allocate for Participant an amouniaétp the amount of such ordinary cash dividendtiplied by
the number of such Participant TVPSUs, and the Gomwyshall pay immediately to Participant any suctoant:
upon the vesting and settlement of the correspgnBarticipant TVPSUSs; provided that any rights éoeive suc
amounts shall be forfeited upon any forfeiturehw# €orresponding Participant TVPSI

Data Privacy. Participant hereby acknowledges that to perfiisnobligations under the Plan, the Company ar
Subsidiaries may process sensitive personal datat &articipant. Such data may include but ardinoted to the
information provided above, and any changes theestd other appropriate personal and financial détta respec
to Participant. Participant hereby gives explicihsent to the Company to process any such ddta.lefal persol
for whom such personal data are processed are dhgp&hy and any of its Subsidiaries, and any reptasees
including stock brokers, stock record keepers beotonsultants. Participant has been informedsshér right o
access and correction to his/her personal datgblyiag to the Company's director of human resasi

Service Rights. Participant may not assign or transfer his orrigirts under this Agreement, except as expr
provided under the Plan. This Agreement does redte a contract of employment between Participauat the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries, and does ne¢ glarticipant the right to be retained in the wenof the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries; nor does itlynge confer any other employment or service rigbtsconfer an
ownership, security or other rights to Company tss€he grant provided herein is solely within thscretion o
the Company, and no inference shall be drawn ongeed that the grant herein suggests that Paatntivill receive
any subsequent grants. If any subsequent grantfeect made, it shall be in the sole discretionhaf Company, ar
the Company is under no obligation to make anyréggrant or to consider making any future grarte Value ¢
the Participant TVPSUs awarded under this Agreertatiter on the Award Date or at the time of vegtishall no
be included as compensation or earnings for thpgs@s of any other benefit plan offered by the Camgg
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10.

11.

12.

Delaware Law. This Agreement and all related matters shall beeghed by, and construed and enforce

accordance with, the laws of the State of Delawend,any applicable federal la

Section 409A. Participant acknowledges that Participamgceipt of certain benefits under this Agreenmeay bt
subject to Section 409A of the Code. If the Conypaetermines that Participant has becomespetifiec
employee” &s defined under Section 409A) at the time of teatmon of service as a Director of the Comp
payment shall be delayed until six months and oag fdllowing such termination of service if the Coamy
determines that such delayed payment is requiredtdar to avoid a prohibited distribution under {8et 409A(a)
(2) of the Code. In addition, to the extent thartReipants benefits under this Agreement are payable ug
termination of service and are subject to SectiO8A4 a “termination of serviceShall be interpreted to mea
“separation from serviceivhich qualifies as a permitted payment event uiGbation 409A of the Internal Revel
Code.

Taxes. The Company is not responsible for any tax comseces to Participant relating to
Agreement. Participant alone is responsible fes¢htax obligations, and hereby agrees to indentim&yCompan
from any loss or liability that the Company mayfseufor incur as a result of any failure by Partaipto pay suc
tax obligations

Entire Agreement; Interpretation; Amendme The Plan and this Agreement constitute the erdgeeemel
between the Company and Participant pertainingectibject matter hereof, supersede all prior ntezoporaneot
written or verbal agreements and understandingsdest the parties in connection therewith, and shatl be
modified or amended except by written instrumenily diigned by the parties. No waiver by either paot any
default under this Agreement shall be deemed a ewvadf any later default. The various provisions tbis
Agreement are severable in their entirety. Anyedaination of invalidity or unenforceability of arprovision o
this Agreement shall have no effect on the contigdorce and effect of the remaining provisionssoér The Plar
including the definition of terms therein, is inporated in this Agreement by reference and madariahgreof. |
the event of any conflict between the provisionshef Plan and any related documents and thosesoAgreemen
the provisions of the Plan and any related docusnetmall prevail; provided, however, that the Contemitshall hav
the sole and complete authority and discretiongcidke any questions concerning the applicatiomrpmétation ¢
scope of any of the terms and conditions of thiseggient, and any decisions of the Committee inrégdrd sha
be binding and conclusive upon all interested partiThis Agreement shall be binding upon and itoitbe benef
of the successors, assigns and heirs of the resp@etrties

5




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have dulgcexed this Agreement as of the date first abovenr In s
executing this Agreement, Participant hereby ackedges receipt of a copy of the Plan.

Participan’s Signature

Participan’s Printed Name

ACCEPTED:
CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
By:

Name:

Title:

Date:







EXHIBIT 10.44

CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
AMENDED AND RESTATED 1996 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

INDEPENDENT NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR
ANNUAL EQUITY-GRANT TIME-VESTING PERFORMANCE SHARE UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made as of _ (the “Award Date”), by and between Century Alnam Company (the “Company”
and (“Participant”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Company has adopted the Century AlumitCompany Amended and Restated 1996 Stock In@
Plan (the “Plan”) authorizing the grant of awardsTame-Vesting Performance Share Units (“TVPSUSJ) eligible
individuals in connection with the performance efvices for the Company and its Subsidiaries (dsek in the Plan
and

WHEREAS, the Company has approved the grant ofTMMBSUs provided for in this Agreement to Participdor
Participant’s service to the Company as an Indepeindlon-Employee Director of the Company for thelte-montt
period beginning on the Award DarAnnual Service Period”) subject to the terms andditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoingrises, and the mutual covenants herein contafPedicipan
and the Company hereby agree as follows:

1. Time-Vesting Performance Share Ur.

(@ Award. The Company hereby awards to Participant __ TVPSUs (“Participant TVPSUspursuant tc
and subject to all of the terms and conditionghd, Plan

(b)  Vesting and Paymer

I. Said Participant TVPSUs shall ve

€) in full on the 12-month anniversafyttee Award Date; or




()

(b) if earlier, upon (1) a Change in Control, as hefteér provided, or (2) the termination
Participant’s service as a Director of the Compdng to the expiration of Participastierm o
service as a Director of the Company, or due tdi¢aant’s death or Disability, or (3) Participanait’
reaching age 65, and, as of such age, Participgng @ member of the Board of Directors of
Company;

provided, however, that any provisions of this Beaph 1(b)i to the contrary notwithstanding, angnth
unvested TVPSUs shall vest on the date of the megtlar annual meeting of the Company's stockhs

following the Award Date, if said regular annualetieg occurs prior to the Iidonth anniversary of tl

Award Date and Participant is a member of the Bazrdirectors of the Company as of said an

meeting date.

Participant shall forfeit all opportunity to be wed in any themunvested Participant TVPSUs uj
Participants termination of service as a member of the Bo&fdiectors of the Company for any rea
other than (1) a Change in Control, as hereingitevided, or (2) the conclusion of Participantérm o
service as a Director, or (3) Participant’s deatidability; it being understood and agreed that then-
unvested Participant TVPSUs shall in any event upeh Participans reaching age 65; provided that, €
such age, Participant is a member of the Boardirgcibrs of the Compan

Unless Participant has made a timely deferral ieleéh accordance with the provisions of this Agneat
the vested Timeesting Performance Share Units will be settle@ isingle distribution for an equivals
number of shares of common stock of the Compargoas as practicable but no later thath/2-month
after the date of vestin

For purposes of this Agreeme*Disability” means permanent and total disability as defineBeiction 2.
(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, asnal®e (the“Code”).

Deferral Elections Participant may elect to defer settlement ati€ipant’s Participant TVPSUs that v

pursuant to this Agreement, as follows, and in etaace with any rules and procedures that may ferds
adopted by the Company. Unless otherwise provigettie Company in accordance with the requiremet
Section 409A of the Code, said deferral electionstn




I. be in writing in form prescribed by the Compa

ii. be received by the Company at its headquarterbacame irrevocable before the year in which the i
Date occurs; an

iii. provide for deferral of settlement of said Par@ip TVPSUs until the date of Particip’s termination ¢
service as a member of the Board of Directors ef@ompany and its Subsidiaries, including terman
by reason of death or Disability (or as soon asGbmpany determines is practicable but not more tha
1/2 months thereafter). Participant shall havey ahle rights of a general unsecured creditor of
Company with respect to amounts deferred pursweahis Agreemen:

Change in Contrc. Any provision of this Agreement to the contramptwithstanding, but subject to the follow
sentence, upon a Change in Control of the CompRastjcipants Participant TVPSUs shall vest pursuant tc
provisions of the Plan and shall be settled as ssopracticable but not later tha-1/2 months after the Change
Control (or within such other time period as mayréguired under Section 409A of the Code). Notstdahding th
preceding sentence, if Participant has electecterdhe settlement of Particip’s Participant TVPSUs pursuan
this Agreement, or if Participast’ Participant TVPSUs are otherwise subject to 8ecd09A of the Cod
settlement shall not be accelerated unless the géhan Control satisfies the requirements for a gleam the
ownership or effective control of the Company, ahange in the ownership of a substantial portibthe assets
the Company, under Section 409A of the Code, asrmdgted pursuant to Treasury Regulations or otpplicable
guidance issued under said Section 4(

Change in Common Stock or Corporate Struc. Upon any stock dividend, stock split, combinatéy exchange
shares of common stock, recapitalization or othesinge in the capital structure of the Company, aate
separation or division (including, but not limitea split-up, spimeff or distribution to Company stockholders oi
than a normal cash dividend), sale by the Comp&ayl or a substantial portion of its assets, rggbifering, merge
consolidation, reorganization or partial or comgliguidation, or any other corporate transactioeeent having ¢
effect similar to any of the foregoing, the numbérParticipant TVPSUs granted hereunder shall hetaoly anc
appropriately adjusted, and the securities sulifecaid Participant TVPSUs shall be equitably apdrapriatel
substituted for new securities or other considematias determined by the Committee (i.e., the Corsgu@r
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Compaag/defined in the Plan) in accordance with theipions of th
Plan. Any such adjustment made by the Committed ble conclusive and binding upon Participant, @wmpan'
and all other interested perso




Designation of Beneficiaries On a form provided to the Company, Participanty rdasignate a beneficiary
beneficiaries to receive, in the event of Partictfgdeath, all or part of any amounts to be distadub Participal
under this Agreemen

Stock Certificates. Upon settlement of Participis Participant TVPSUs, the Company shall cause ak
certificate to be delivered or book entry to be madvering the appropriate number of shares registen th
Company's books in the name of Participant. AltiBi@ant TVPSUs which are issued under this Agreeirshal
be fully paid and nc-assessablt

Voting, Dividends. Participant shall have no rights as a stockhdlideluding no rights to vote or receive divide
or distributions) with respect to any ParticipaMPISUs until Participant becomes a stockholder upersettlemel
of such Participant TVPSUs in accordance with tleems and conditions of this Agreement and
Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Participaiit e entitled to receive dividend equivalentsiwiespect to tt
Participant TVPSUs as provided in this SectiorJpon an ordinary cash dividend on the shares ofhcomstock c
the Company the record date of which is prior te settlement or forfeiture of any Participant TVRSlthe
Company shall allocate for Participant an amountaétp the amount of such ordinary cash dividendtiplied by
the number of Participant TVPSUs, and the Comp&yl pay immediately to Participant any such amsuwpyor
the vesting and settlement of the correspondindidf@ant TVPSUs; provided that any rights to reeeisucl
amounts shall be forfeited upon the forfeiturehaf torresponding Participant TVPSI

Data Privacy. Participant hereby acknowledges that to perfisnobligations under the Plan, the Company ar
Subsidiaries may process sensitive personal datat &articipant. Such data may include but arelinoted to the
information provided above, and any changes theestd other appropriate personal and financial datta respec
to Participant. Participant hereby gives explichsent to the Company to process any such déta.legal persot
for whom such personal data are processed by thgp@uy and any of its Subsidiaries and represesgtincludin
stock brokers, stock record keepers or other ctargsl Participant has been informed of his/hdrtraj access ai
correction to his/her personal data by applyintheoCompany's director of human resour
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10.

11.

Service Rights Participant may not assign or transfer his or rfigdits under this Agreement except as expr
provided under the Plan. This Agreement does redte a contract of employment between Participauat the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries, and does ne¢ dlarticipant the right to be retained in the wenof the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries; nor does itlynge confer any other employment or service rigbtsconfer an
ownership, security or other rights to Company tss€he grant provided herein is solely within thscretion o
the Company, and no inference should be drawn oniied that the grant herein suggests that Ppaiti will
receive any subsequent grants. If any subsequant g8 in fact made, it shall be in the sole disore of the
Company, and the Company is under no obligatioméke any future grant or to consider making anyré
grant. The value of the Participant TVPSUs awangieder the Agreement (either on the Award Datet dhe time
of vesting) shall not be included as compensatioaasnings for purposes of any other benefit pifiared by th:
Company

Delaware Law. This Agreement and all related matters shall beeghed by, and construed and enforce

accordance with, the laws of the State of Delawamnd,any applicable federal la

Section 409A Participant acknowledges that Particif' s receipt of certain benefits under this Agreenmeay b
subject to Section 409A of the Code. If the Conypaetermines that Participant has becomespetifiec
employee” &s defined under Section 409A) at the time of teatmon of service as a Director of the Comp
payment shall be delayed until six months and anefdllowing termination of service if the Compadgtermine
that such delayed payment is required in ordervtmdaa prohibited distribution under Section 40942 of the
Code. In addition, to the extent that Participafténefits under this Agreement are payable up@nnaination o
service and are subject to Section 409A, a “tertronaof service” shall be interpreted to meansaparation froi
service’ which qualifies as a permitted payment event uisdstion 409A of the Cod

Taxes. The Company is not responsible for any tax comseges to Participant relating to
Agreement. Participant alone is responsible fes¢htax obligations, and hereby agrees to indentimeéyCompan
from any loss or liability that the Company mayfeubr incur as a result of the failure by Partaipto pay such t:
obligations.




12. Entire Agreement; Interpretation; Amendme The Plan and this Agreement constitute the erdgesemel
between the Company and Participant pertainingactibject matter hereof, supersede all prior ntezoporaneot
written or verbal agreements and understandingadagt the parties in connection therewith, and shatl be
modified or amended except by written instrumenly diigned by the parties. No waiver by either paot any
default under the Agreement shall be deemed a wah@ny later default. The various provisiongloed Agreemet
are severable in their entirety. Any determinatdbimvalidity or unenforceability of any one preion shall have r
effect on the continuing force and effect of thenagning provisions hereof. The Plan, including twgdinition o
terms therein, is incorporated in this Agreementdference and made a part hereof. In the eveahyfconflic
between the provisions of the Plan and any reldtediments and those of this Agreement, the pravssud the Pla
and any related documents shall prevail; providexyever, that the Committee shall have the solecamdplet
authority and discretion to decide any questionsceming the application, interpretation or scopemy of the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, and anysaets of the Committee shall be binding and cosigkiupon a
interested parties. This Agreement shall be bipdipon and inure to the benefit of the successssgns and he
of the respective partie




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have dulgcexed this Agreement as of the date first abovenr In s
executing this Agreement, Participant also herefiynawledges receipt of a copy of the Plan.

Participan’s Signature

Participan’s Printed Name

ACCEPTED:
CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
By:

Name:

Title:

Date:







EXHIBIT 10.45

AMENDED AND RESTATED

CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY

EXECUTIVE SEVERANCE PLAN

This is an amendment and restatement, effectivember 7, 20090f the Century Aluminum Company Execut
Severance Plan adopted November 1, 2009 the benefit of certain employees of the Compang its Subsidiaries,
the terms and conditions hereinafter stated. Fiem may be adopted by any Subsidiary. Upon suidptaon, thi
Subsidiary will become a patrticipating employerttie Plan, the provisions of the Plan will be fudlpplicable to th
Eligible Employees of that Subsidiary, and that Sdiary will be responsible for providing the beitefto which it:
employees (who are designated as Eligible Emplgyeeay become entitled hereunder. The Company s
unconditionally to guarantee the performance by, @ligation of, each Subsidiary under this Plan.

The Plan, as set forth herein, is intended to hetfgin qualified employees, maintain a stable wemkironmer
and provide economic security to eligible employeethe event of certain terminations of employmenihe Plan, as
“severance pay arrangementithin the meaning of Section 3(2)(B)(i) of ERISA, intended to be excepted from
definitions of “employee pension benefit plan” dipgnsion plan’set forth under section 3(2) of ERISA, and is inten
to meet the descriptive requirements of a plan titoting a “severance pay plawithin the meaning of regulatio
published by the Secretary of Labor at Title 29d€of Federal Regulations § 251-2(b).

1. DEFINITIONS.

As hereinafter used:
1.1 “ Affiliate ” shall mean any company controlled by, controlloigunder common control with, the Compa

1.2 “ Base Salary with respect to each Eligible Employee, meansEhgible Employees annual base salary on s
Eligible Employe’s Severance Dat

1.3 “ Board” means the Board of Directors of the Comp:
1.4 * Cause” means
(A)  For purposes of a termination of employment (othan during the Change in Control Protection Peri

(1) the failure by the Eligible Employee to substamiglerform the Eligible Employ¢'s duties (othe
than any such failure resulting from the Eligiblenjiloyees incapacity due to physical or mel
illness),




(B)

(2) the continued failure by the Eligible Employee terform his duties at a satisfactory leve
performance after written notification from histeer manager or supervisor of such failure and
having been provided with a reasonable opportupityure such failure, ¢

(3) the engaging by the Eligible Employee in conducicivhis materially injurious to the Company
its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, monetarily beatise; anc

For purposes of a termination during the Chandeantrol Protection Perio(

(1) the willful and continued failure by the Eligiblentployee to substantially perform the Eligi
Employee’s duties (other than any such failure ltesgufrom the Eligible Employes’ incapacit
due to physical or mental illness),

(2)  the willful engaging by the Eligible Employee innmuct which is materially injurious to t
Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, taolyeor otherwise

For purposes of clause (B) above, no act, or faitaract, on the Eligible Employeepart shall be deem
“willful” unless done, or omitted to be done, by the Eligibeployee not in good faith or withc
reasonable belief that the Eligible Employeatt, or failure to act, was in the best interebthe Compan'
and any Subsidiary, as applicable.

1.5 A Change in Contrc’ shall mean any of the following even

(A)

An acquisition of any voting securities of the Canp (the “ Voting Securitie§ by any “ Persori (as the
term person is used for purposes of Section 13(d)4¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 193/
amended (the “ Exchange AtY) immediately after which such Person hasBéneficial Ownershi
" (within the meaning of Rule 138-promulgated under the Exchange Act) of 20% orenadithe combine
voting power of the Company’then outstanding Voting Securities or, in theecalsGlencore Internatior
AG and its affiliates (collectively, “ Glencor®, Beneficial Ownership of 50% or more of such Vo
Securities; provided, however, that in determinimigether a Change in Control has occurred, Vi
Securities which are acquired by any Person othan tGlencore in a No@entrol Acquisition (a
hereinafter defined) shall not constitute an aatjors which would cause a Change in Control. A 6rN
Control Acquisition” shall mean an acquisition by (1) an employee bep&in (or a trust forming a p.
thereof) maintained by (x) the Company or (y) anfp$diary, (2) the Company or any Subsidiary, (3)
Person in connection with a N@&wpntrol Transaction (as hereinafter defined), grafdy Person of not mc
than 25% of the Votin




(B)

(©

Securities that is entitled to and does report sBeheficial Ownership on Schedule 13G under
Exchange Act (a “ 13G File), provided, however, that this clause (4) shall cease to apply whBeraol
who is a Schedule 13G Filer becomes required ¢oafiSchedule 13D under the Exchange Act with re
to Beneficial Ownership of 20% or more of the ocansting Voting Securities;

The individuals who, as of the date hereof, are e of the Board (the “ Incumbent Bodjdcease fc
any reason to constitute at least tthods of the Board; provided, however, that if tekection, o
nomination for election by the Companystockholders, of any new director was approved bgte of ¢
least twothirds of the Incumbent Board, such new directoallsior purposes of this Agreement,
considered a member of the Incumbent Board; proviflgther, however, that no individual shall
considered a member of the Incumbent Board if sndividual initially assumed office as a resultesthe!
an actual or threatened “ Election Conte&is described in Rule 14H promulgated under the Excha
Act) or other actual or threatened solicitatiorpadxies or consents by or on behalf of a Persoardtiar
the Board (a “ Proxy Conte$} including by reason of any agreement intended widaer settle an
Election Contest or Proxy Contest;

Approval by stockholders of the Company
(1) A merger, consolidation or reorganization involvihg Company, unle:

(@) the stockholders of the Company, immediately befsueh merger, consolidation
reorganization, own, directly or indirectly immetdily following such merger, consolidat
or reorganization, at least 70% of the combinedngopower of the outstanding voti
securities of the corporation resulting from sucérger or consolidation or reorganiza
(the “ Surviving Corporatiori) in substantially the same proportion as their oshigr of the
Voting Securities immediately before such mergensolidation or reorganizatio

(b)  the individuals who were members of the Incumbeontr immediately prior to tl
execution of the agreement providing for such mergensolidation or reorganizati
constitute at least twthirds of the members of the board of directorstie Surviving
Corporation, ant




1.6

1.7

(c) no Person (other than the Company, any Subsiday employee benefit plan (or any ti
forming a part thereof) maintained by the Compatimg Surviving Corporation or a
Subsidiary, or any Person who, immediately prior slach merger, consolidation
reorganization, had Beneficial Ownership of 15%nwre of the then outstanding Vot
Securities) has Beneficial Ownership of 15% or mafréhe combined voting power of |
Surviving Corporatiors then outstanding voting securities (a transaa&scribed in claus
(a) through (c) above shall herein be referredsta” Non-Control Transactio”);

(2) A complete liquidation or dissolution of the Compgaar

(3)  An agreement for the sale or other dispositionllodrasubstantially all of the assets of the Comy
to any Person (other than a transfer to a Subgid

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Congtwll not be deemed to occur solely because arsoPé¢the “
Subject Persori) acquired Beneficial Ownership of more than the piech amount of the outstanding Vot
Securities as a result of the acquisition of VotBecurities by the Company which, by reducing tbelber o
Voting Securities outstanding, increases the ptaptal number of shares Beneficially Owned by thej8c
Person; provided that if a Change in Control waaddur (but for the operation of this sentence) assalt of th
acquisition of Voting Securities by the Companyd after such share acquisition by the Company,Siigjec
Person becomes the Beneficial Owner of any additidoting Securities which increases the percentzgene
then outstanding Voting Securities beneficially @drby the Subject Person, then a Change in Casttedl occur.

(D) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreeméa the contrary, if an Eligible Employ's
employment is terminated prior to a Change in Gongnd such Eligible Employee reason:
demonstrates that such termination (i) was at ¢ég@est of a third party who had indicated an inbenor
taken steps reasonably calculated to effect a GhemGontrol (a “ Third Party)) or (ii) otherwise occurre
in connection with, or in anticipation of, a CharnigeControl (whether or not a Change in Controlws{
then for all purposes of this Agreement, the ddta @hange in Control with respect to such Elic
Employee shall mean the date immediately priohédate of such termination of such Eligible Emplgy
employment

“ Change in Control Protection Peri” shall mean the period commencing on the date agehgnControl occul
and ending on the 2nd anniversary of such ¢

“ COBRA” means the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconcitigkt of 1985, as from time to time amend




1.8 “ Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as itbeagmended from time to time, including any r
and regulations promulgated thereunder, along Wi#lasury and Internal Revenue Service interpretatibereof

1.9 “ Company” means Century Aluminum Company or any successerstth

1.10 * Compensation Committe’ means the Compensation Committee of the Board refcirs of the Compan

1.11 " Confidential Informatior" means information not generally known about tleen@any and its Affiliates, servic
and products, whether written or not, includingomfiation relating to research, development, puiokg:
marketing plans, computer software or programs, eapyrightable material, trade secrets and promny
information, including, but not limited to, customiests.

1.12 *“ Disability ” means, in the opinion of the Plan Administratorpheysical or mental disability of an Eligit
Employee that has continued or is expected to woatifor 180 consecutive days and as a result thesaof
Eligible Employee will be unable to continue theger performance of his duties. For purposes tdraening
Disability, each Eligible Employee agrees to subimisuch physical and mental examinations, if @sythe Pla
Administrator may request and hereby authorizes ex@mining person to disclose his findings to thHan
Administrator.

1.13 * Eligible Employee” means an employee of the Company, or a Subsidatyas adopted the Plan, wh
designated as an Eligible Employee by the Compmms&ommittee

1.14 “ Employer” means with respect to an Eligible Employee, the @amy, or, if the Eligible Employee is 1
employed by the Company, then the Subsidiary wairabloys the Eligible Employee, and has adoptedPthe.

1.15 *“ ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security At9d4, as amende
1.16 *“ Good Reaso” means
(A)  For purposes of a termination of employment (othan during the Change in Control Protection P@ri

(2) a material adverse alteration in the nature oustaf the Eligible Employ¢'s responsibilities wit
the Employer

(2) a material reduction in the Eligible Employeednnual salary or target annual bonus opportt
provided, however, that a reduction by more tha% 1% the Eligible Employe’'s annual salary
target bonus opportunity shall be considered a mahteduction for purposes of this Section 1.1€
(A)(2), or




(B)

3)

a relocation of the Eligible Employeeprincipal place of employment that causes suaditie
Employees commute from his or her principal residence tortbw work location to increase by
miles or more

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Secsioh.16(A)(1) and (2) above, an Eligi
Employee shall provide a written notice to the PRaministrator of any actual or percei\
occurrence of any of the foregoing events whichdgive rise to a “Good Reasotérmination b
such Eligible Employee, and the Employer shall hiawenty (20) business days from the date
such notice to cure any alleged deficiency to ttterd curable.

For purposes of a termination of employment durthg Change in Control Protection Period,
occurrence, during the Change in Control Protedtieriod, of any of the events or conditions desttily
subsection: (1) through (7) hereo

(1)

(2)

(3)

a material adverse change in the Eligible Empl’s status, title, position or responsibili
(including reporting responsibilities) as in effettany time within one year preceding the date
Change in Control or at any time thereafter; tregmsnent to the Eligible Employee of any dutie
responsibilities which are inconsistent with hiatgs, title, position or responsibilities as ineetfa
any time within one year preceding the date of ar@e in Control or at any time thereafter; or
removal of the Eligible Employee from or failurereappoint or reelect him to any of such office
positions, except in connection with the terminataf his employment for Disability, Cause, ¢
result of his death or by the Eligible Employeeevtthan for Good Reasac

a material reduction in the Eligible Emplo’s annual salary or target annual bonus opportwas
in effect at any time within one year preceding tfe#ge of a Change in Control or at any |
thereafter

the Employ€’s requiring the Eligible Employee to be based at place outside a -mile radiut
from the Employes offices where he was based prior to the Chang€antrol, except fc
reasonably required travel on the Emplogebusiness which is not materially greater tharh
travel requirements prior to the Change in Con




(4) the failure by the Employer to (a) provide the HEig Employee with compensation and benefit
the aggregate, at least equal (in terms of beleefs and/or reward opportunities) to those preg
for under a material employee benefit plan, progeard practice in which the Eligible Emplo
was participating at any time within one year pddsg the date of a Change in Control or at
time thereafter, or (b) permit the Eligible Empley® participate in any or all incentive, savil
retirement plans and benefit plans, fringe benefitsictices, policies and programs applic
generally to other similarly situated employeesttd Company and the Employer and affilic
companies of the Company and the Employer (inclydiny successors to the Company ant
Employer and affiliated companies of the Company thie Employer)

(5) any material breach by the Employer of any provisibthis Plan and/or any material breach by
Employer of the Eligible Employ’s Severance Protection Agreement with the Emplafyany,

(6) any purported termination of the Eligible Employeemployment for Cause by the Employer w
does not comply with the terms of Sect 1.4, or

(7 the failure of the Company to obtain an agreenmsatisfactory to the Eligible Employee, from .
successors and to assume and agree to perforilamsas contemplated in Sect 8.1 hereof

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Secsidn16(B)(1) through (7), above, an Eligible Emele
shall provide written notice to the Plan Administraof any actual or perceived occurrence of anyhe
foregoing events which could give rise to a “GoahBon"termination by such Eligible Employee, and
Employer shall have twenty (20) business days ftleendate of such notice to cure any alleged defay
to the extent curable.

Any event or condition described in Sections 1.36(Bthrough (7) above which occurs prior to a Cha
in Control but which the Eligible Employee reasdgatemonstrates (A) was at the request of a thandiyy
or (B) otherwise arose in connection with, or iti@pation of, a Change in Control (in each casetiva
or not a change in control occurs), shall congi@bod Reason for purposes of this Plan notwitkstg
that it occurred prior to the Change in Control.

1.17 * Persor” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.5

1.18 “ Plan” means this Century Aluminum Company Executive Saweg Plan, as set forth herein, as it ma
amended from time to tim




1.19

1.20

“ Plan Administrator’ means the person or persons appointed from tinieneoby the Compensation Commit

which appointment may be revoked at any time byGbmpensation Committe

A “ Potential Change in Contr” shall be deemed to have occurred if the eventa¢h in any one of tt
following paragraphs shall have occurr

(A)

(B)

©)

(D)

(E)

The Company enters into a definitive agreementctmsummation of which would result in the occuce
of a Change in Contro

Any Person (other than the Company or any Subgidiesmmences (within the meaning of Regule
14D promulgated under the Exchange Act or any sstraegulation) a tender or exchange offer whifi
consummated, would result in a Change in Con

Any Person (other than the Company or any Subgidides with the Securities and Exchange Commis
a preliminary or definitive proxy statement relgtito an election contest with respect to the edacti
removal of directors of the Company which soli¢gat if successful, would result in a Change in Caln

The acquisition by any Person (other than Glencof@n aggregate Beneficial Ownership of 15% ora
of either (A) the then-outstanding shares of commstmtk of the Company (the Outstanding Compal
Common StocK’) or (B) the combined voting power of the theatstanding voting securities of -
Company (the “_Outstanding Company Voting Secwitle provided, however, that, with respect
Glencore, the acquisition by Glencore of an aggee@eneficial Ownership of 45%of the Outstandir
Company Voting Securities will be deemed to coasdita Potential Change in Control; provided, fur,
that for purposes of this Section 1.20, the follagvacquisitions shall not constitute a Potentiaht@je it
Control: (i) any acquisition by the Company or &ubsidiary, (ii) any acquisition by any employeaédfé
plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintainethbyCompany or any Subsidiary; or (iii) any acgiosi by
a Person that is permitted to, and actually dagsort its beneficial ownership on Schedule 13Gajny
successor schedule); provided that, if such Pesstisequently becomes required to or does repe
beneficial ownership on Schedule 13D (or any swsmreschedule), and at the time has beneficial ostrig
of 15% or more of either the Outstanding Companyn@on Stock or the combined voting power of
Outstanding Company Voting Securities, then a Ratie@hange in Control shall be deemed to occ
such time; o

The Compensation Committee adopts a resolutiorheoeffect that a Potential Change in Control
occurred




1.21

1.22

1.23
1.24

1.25

1.26

1.27
1.28

1.29

“ Pro Rata Bonu$ means the sum of (A) an amount equal to the BEligEmployees target annual cash bonus
the Severance Date multiplied by a fraction, thenexator of which is the number of days elapsetiéfiscal yee
through the Severance Date and the denominatothadhws 365 and (B) except as otherwise providedrfdhe
plan documents underlying a Target L-Term Bonus (in which case, such plan documents riyidg suct
Target Long-Term Bonus shall govern), an amoungktputhe sum of each Target Loiigrm Bonus, calculat
as to each such award by multiplying the awardttha€Eligible Employee would have earned on thedag of th
performance period, assuming achievement at tdeyei of the individual and corporate performanazalg
established with respect to such award, by a tracthe numerator of which is the number of dagpstd in th
performance period through the Severance Datelenddnominator of which is the total number of daystaine:
in such performance perio

“ Severancé means (A) the involuntary termination of an Etitg Employees employment by the Employer ot
than for Cause, death or Disability, or (B) a vaéug termination of an Eligible Employeeémployment for Goc
Reason; provided, however, that a Severance sbalbetur by reason of the divestiture of a faciliale of .
business or business unit, or the outsourcinglafsaness activity with which the Eligible Employiseaffiliated ii
the Eligible Employee is offered comparable emplegimby the entity which acquires such facility, ibess o
business unit or which succeeds to such outsolrgsitiess activity

“ Severance Dal” means the date on which an Eligible Employee inausgverance

“ Subsidiary” means any corporation or other Person of which jantaof its voting power or its equity securit
or equity interest is owned directly or indirectly the Company

“ Target Annual Bonu” means an amount equal to the greater of (A) thgitiidi Employe’s target annual ca
bonus on the Severance Date, or (B) the Eligiblepléyee’s target annual cash bonus for the most rec
completed fiscal yea

“ Target Lon-Term Bonus” means an amount equal to the Eligible Empl’s target lon-term cash incenti
compensation award for uncompleted performancegs) on the Severance De

“ Tier | Employee” means an Eligible Employee designated by the Cosgtiem Committee as a Tier | Employ

“ Tier 1l Employee” means an Eligible Employee designated by the Cosgiem Committee as a Tier
Employee

“ Tier 1l Employee” means an Eligible Employee designated by the Cosgtiem Committee as a Tier
Employee




1.30

1.31

2.
2.1

2.2

2.3

“ Weekly Pay” with respect to each Eligible Employee means theusrhof base salary to which such Elig
Employee is entitled to receive for one ordinarykuty week.

“ Years of Service” shall mean an Eligible Employ's number of continuous years of employment witt
Employer since the Employeemost recent hire date. In computing Years of iSepa period between six f
months of employment and one year shall be deeméeé bne full year, and a period of less than @lixnhonth
shall be deemed to be zero years. For example ye@rs and six months will be deemed to be tensrebBervic
while nine years and anything less than six fulhthe will be deemed to be nine Years of Sen

SEVERANCE BENEFITS .

General. Each Eligible Employee shall be entitled to saxmee benefits pursuant to the applicable provssial
this Section 2 if they incur a Severance; providbdwever, notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the cant,
(A) upon an Eligible Employee becoming a participan this Plan, such Eligible Employee shall ceas
participate in any other severance plan, prograrar@angement maintained by the Company or any 8ialpy
(other than a Severance Protection Agreement)(Bhdo payments under this Plan shall be made t&lgible
Employee if (1) such Eligible Employee is partyat&everance Protection Agreement with the Emplayet,suc
Severance Protection is in effect on the Sever®ate, and (2) the Employer makes all payments ¢b &ligible
Employee required to be made under such Severanteckon Agreement in the event of a Change int@bias
defined in the Severance Protection Agreem:

Tier | Employees. Each Tier | Employee who incurs a Severance dfalentitled to a single lump sum c
payment in an amount equal to the surr

(A) Two (2) times Base Salar
(B) Two (2) times Target Annual Bonus; a
(C) Pro Rata Bonus

Tier Il Employees. Each Tier Il Employee who incurs a Severancdl sigaentitled to a single lump sum c
payment in an amount equal to the surr

(A) Base Salary
(B) Target Annual Bonus; ar

(C) Pro Rata Bonus

10




2.4

2.5

Tier 1l Employees. Each Tier Ill Employee who incurs a Severancaldie entitled to a single lump sum c
payment in an amount equal to the sunr

(A)  Two (2) Times Weekly Pay for each Year of Servimgt, with a minimum of thirteen (13) Years of See
and a maximum of twen-six (26) Years of Service

(B) Target Annual Bonus; ar
(C) Pro Rata Bonus

Health & Welfare Benefit Continuatio. In the case of each Eligible Employee who iscar Severanc
commencing on the date immediately following sudigiBle Employees Severance Date and continuing for
period set forth below (th* Benefit Continuation Period), the Employer shall arrange to provide such Eli
Employee and his eligible dependents, at no greatstrto such Eligible Employee than the cost hdiligible
Employee immediately prior to the Severance Datalth and welfare benefits, including, but not tedito, long-
term disability, medical, dental, life insurancedgre-tax insurance premiums (théléalth and Welfare Benef
"), no less favorable than those provided to such lEégemployee and his eligible dependents immedigigbr
to the Severance Date, but only to the extent (&)mitted under each of the applicable Health andfaig
Benefits plans or policies as in effect on the iBlgy Employees Termination Date and (B) that the Elig
Employee makes a payment to the Employer in an atmegual to the monthly premium payments (as iec
immediately prior to the Severance Date) (both éhgployee and employer portion) required to maintaiot
coverage on the first day of each calendar montmneencing with the first calendar month followinge
Severance Date and the Employer shall reimburde Eligible Employee on an aftéax basis for the amount
such premiums, if any, in excess of any employedributions necessary to maintain such coverageémBenefi
Continuation Period (such excess premiums, the dittahal Premiums) and such reimbursement shall con
with the rules for reimbursements provided in SmttB.4. Benefits otherwise receivable by such iEk
Employee pursuant to this Sectidgh5 shall be reduced to the extent benefits ofstmae type are received by
made available to such Eligible Employee duringBlemefit Continuation Period (and any such beneéitgivel
by or made available to such Eligible Employeeldb@akeported to the Employer by such Eligible Eoyplk). Th
Benefit Continuation Period shall be (A) tweriogr (24) months for each Tier | Employee who irecu
Severance, (B) twelve (12) months for each TidEriployee who incurs a Severance, and (C) for eaehlll
Employee who incurs a Severance, a number of wegkal to two times Years of Service, but with aimum of
thirteen (13) Years of Service and a maximum ofntyeix (26) Years of Service. For the avoidance afild,
reimbursements on an al-tax basis are limited solely to the Additional Prems.

11




2.6

2.7

Pension Benefits In the case of each Eligible Employee who in@iiSeverance, the Employer shall credit -
Eligible Employee for pension purposes with sendoeing the Benefit Continuation Period and shay po eac
such Eligible Employee in a single payment an arhonncash equal to the excess of (A) the Recalec
Retirement Benefit (as provided in this Sectich6 below) had (1) the employee remained employedhk
Employer for the duration of the Benefit ContinoatiPeriod, (2) his annual compensation during geriod bee
equal to the Base Salary and the Target Annual 80(8) the benefit accrual formulas of each retestrplai
remained no less advantageous to the employedtibaa in effect immediately preceding the Severdaie an
the Employer made employer contributions to eacfinee contribution plan in which the employee we
participant at the Severance Date in an amountlegughe amount of such contribution for the plaeal
immediately preceding the Severance Date, andh@)etnployee been fully (100%) vested in his beneide
each retirement plan in which the employee wasracgeant, over (B) the lump sum actuarial equivilef the
aggregate retirement benefit the employee is dgteatitled to receive under such retirement plaRsr purpose
of this Section 2.6, the “ Recalculated RetiremBeanefit” shall mean the lump sum actuarial equivalent o
aggregate retirement benefit the employee woulde haeen entitled to receive under the Compar(gr i
applicable, the Employer’s) qualified and ngualified retirement plans. For purposes of thissection 2.6, tf
“actuarial equivalent’shall be determined in accordance with the actuassumptions used for the calculatiol
benefits under the applicable retirement plan gdieg prior to the Severance Date in accordanck such plare
past practices

Equity Awards. In the case of each Eligible Employee who in@uB&everance

(A)  All options held by such Eligible Employee pursuamthe Compar’s incentive plans and program wt
have not vested as of the Severance Date will aatel and vest immediately as of such date. Tiggh
Employee may exercise all unexercised options wif days after such Eligible EmployseSeveranc
Date or the expiration date of the option, whichiegesooner; an

(B)  All service-based and performanibased shares awarded to such Eligible Employeeupnotsto th

Company’s incentive plans and programs shall imatedi vest; provided, however, that any performance

based shares shall be valued and awarded at the &#ind in the manner awarded to other plan paatits
pursuant to the terms of the agreements or plamsrgmg such award

12




2.8  Outplacement Serviceslin the case of each Eligible Employee who ineu&everance, the Employer shall pro
such Eligible Employee with third-party outplacersearvices suitable to the Eligible Employg@osition for th
period following the Severance Date and ending endinber 31 of the second year following the Sewer&rat
or, if earlier, until the first acceptance by thiggble Employee of an offer of employment, prouiiéowever, th:
in no case shall the Employer be required to pagxitess of $20,000 over such period in providingplacemer
services and that all reimbursements hereundel Isdéglaid to the Eligible Employee within thirtyQ)Bcalende
days following the date on which the Eligible Emygle submits the invoice but no later than Decertienf the
third calendar year following the year of the Sevee Date

2.9 Release Notwithstanding the foregoing, as a conditiortlie receipt of any payment pursuant to the appke
provision of this Section 2, each Eligible Employst®ll be required to execute and not revoke (withe seve
(7) day revocation period) a Separation Agreemeoniged by the Employer which contains a generidase ¢
claims in favor of the Company and its Affiliat&uch release and waiver of claims must be signgdmiwenty-
one (21) days (or such longer period as mandatediplicable employment laws) following the Eligi
Employefs Severance Dat

2.10 Time of Payments. Subject to Section 9 hereof, all payments regui@ be made hereunder to an Elig
Employee shall be made or shall commence on th#iethi (30th) day following the Eligible Employee’
Severance Date, or, if later, on the eighth (8ty thllowing the expiration of the release considi@n perio
required by applicable law (the “ Release Effecidate”); provided, however, that in each case (A) the re
contemplated by Section 2.9 has been executedanbdtome norevocable prior to any payment hereunder,
(B) if the maximum period in which the Release rayrevoked ends in the year following the year imch the
Eligible Employee incurs a separation from senwéhin the meaning of Section 409A of the Coddégrt th
Release Effective Date shall be deemed to be the ¢ (i) the first business day in the year foliog the year i
which the Eligible Employee incurs the separatiamf service or (ii) the Release Effective Date Ifwiit regard t
this proviso).

3. EXCISE TAX .

3.1 Tier | Employees. Notwithstanding any provision of this Plan te #tontrary, with respect to a Tier | Employe
any amount or benefit to be paid or provided untiés Plan or otherwise would be aiExXcess Paracht
Payment,”within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code,any successor provision thereto, but for
application of this sentence, then the paymentshemefits to be paid or provided to such Tier | Eoype unde
this Plan may be eithe
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(a) paid in full, or

(b) reduced to the minimum extent necessary (buioirevent to less than zero) so that no portioany
such payment or benefit, as so reduced, constitutésxcess Parachute Payment,

whichever of the foregoing amounts, taking intocact applicable federal, state and local incomeeangloymer
taxes and the taxes imposed by Section 4999 ofdue (or any successor provision thereto) by readreing
considered “contingent on a change in ownershigoatrol” of the Company, within the meaning of Section 2
of the Code (or any successor provision theretad @ny similar tax imposed by state or local lawany intere:
or penalties with respect to such tax (such taaxes, together with any such interest and pesabieing hereaft
collectively referred to as the “ Excise Tgxresults in the receipt by such Tier | Employeean aftettax basis, ¢
the greatest amount of payments and benefits utierPlan, notwithstanding that all or some portanthe
payments and benefits may be subject to the Extase Whether requested by the Tier | Employeehe
Company, the determination of whether any redudtiosuch payments or benefits to be provided utitsrPlar
or otherwise is required pursuant to the precedemgtence will be made at the expense of the Combwrine
Company’s independent accountants. The fact tiafTier | Employees right to payments or benefits may
reduced by reason of the limitations containecdia Section 3 will not of itself limit or otherwisafect any othe
rights of the Tier | Employee other than pursuanthis Plan. With respect to a Tier | Employeethia event thi
any payment or benefit intended to be provided otitie Plan or otherwise is required to be redysecsuant t
this Section 3, the Company will reduce such TiEnmiployees payment and/or benefits, to the extent require
the following order (but, in each case, only theatipa thereof, if any, which has been determined thg
Company’s independent accountants to be a “ParadPaymentwithin the meaning of Section 280G of
Code): (i) the lump sum payment described in $ach.2 (multiple of base salary and bonus); (i§ gaymer
described in Section 2.6 (pension benefit), (hi¢ benefits described in Section 2.8 (outplacementices), (iv
the benefits described in Section 2.5 (health aelfane benefit continuation), (v) the benefits désd in Sectio
2.7(A) (accelerated vesting of stock options), anylthe benefits described in Section 2.7(B) (d@ded vestin
of service-based and performance-based shares).
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3.2

4.2

4.3

Tier Il Employees and Tier 1ll Employec. If any payment or benefit received or to be neme by a Tier |
Employee or Tier lll Employee (including any payrmem benefit received pursuant to the Plan or otiss,
would be (in whole or part) subject to the exciag tlescribed in Section 4999 of Code, then, toekien
necessary to make such payments and benefits b@csuo such excise tax, payments and benefitgigec
hereunder shall be reduced by the Plan Administiatthe following order: (i) the lump sum paymel@scribe
in Section 2.3 or Section 2.4, as applicable (mpldtiof base salary and bonus); (ii) the paymentritesd ir
Section 2.6 (pension benefit), (iii) the benefissdribed in Section 2.8 (outplacement servicesg),tlie benefit
described in Section 2.5 (health and welfare béemeintinuation), (v) the benefits described in ®ect2.7(A
(accelerated vesting of stock options), and (v@ Henefits described in Section 2.7(B) (acceleratesting o
service-based and performar-based shares

PLAN ADMINISTRATION.

The Plan Administrator shall administer the Plad aray interpret the Plan, prescribe, amend andne:sales an
regulations under the Plan and make all other detations necessary or advisable for the admitistraf the
Plan, subject to all of the provisions of the P

The Plan Administrator may delegate any of itseBitiereunder to such person or persons from tirtienéoas i
may designate

The Plan Administrator is empowered, on behalfhef Plan, to engage accountants, legal counselwtdathe
personnel as it deems necessary or advisable st #ss1 the performance of its duties under tHanP The
functions of any such persons engaged by the Ptmidistrator shall be limited to the specified seeg ani
duties for which they are engaged, and such perdwalshave no other duties, obligations or resjittees unde
the Plan. Such persons shall exercise no discegiaauthority or discretionary control respecting thanageme
of the Plan. All reasonable expenses thereof dleatiorne by the Compar

COMPETITION, CONFIDENTIALITY AND RELATED COVENANTS

By accepting payments and other benefits purswethig Plan, each Eligible Employee acknowledgekamgrees:
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5.1

5.2

Covenant Not to CompeteThat the Eligible Employee shall not at any timisile employed by the Company
any of its Affiliates, or within the Benefit Contiation Period following such Eligible Employes’termination ¢
employment with the Company or any of its Affiliatavithout the prior consent of the Compensatiom@ittee
knowingly acquire any financial interests, direathyindirectly, in or perform any services for ar behalf of an
business, person or enterprise which undertakesasiyess in substantial competition with the bessnof th
Company and its Affiliates or sells to or buys framn otherwise transacts business with the Compauay ita
Affiliates; provided that the Eligible Employee magquire and own a de minimus amount of the outétg
capital stock of any public corporation which seltsbuys from or otherwise transacts business thighCompan
and its Affiliates.

Confidential Informatior. Except as specifically permitted by this Sec&o®, and except as required in the co
of his employment with the Company or any of itdilkdtes, while in the employ of the Company or awfyits
Affiliates or thereafter, the Eligible Employee ot communicate or divulge to or use for the iigreé himsell
or any other person, firm, association, or corponatvithout the prior written consent of the Compaany
Confidential Information owned, or used by the Camp or any of its Affiliates that may be communeézito
acquired by or learned of by the Eligible Employeehe course of, or as a result of, the Eligiblafoyees
employment with the Company or any of its AffiliatAll Confidential Information relating to the bness of th
Company or any of its Affiliates which the Eligiblemployee shall use or prepare or come into comtébt shal
become and remain the sole property of the Compaitg Affiliates.

The Eligible Employee may disclose Confidentiabimhation to the extent it (a) becomes part of thiglip domair
otherwise than as a result of the Eligible Emplogd®each hereof or (b) is required to be discldsetaw. If the
Eligible Employee is required by applicable lawregulation or by legal process to disclose any (@entia
Information, the Eligible Employee will provide tt@ompany with prompt notice thereof so as to enain
Company to seek an appropriate protective order.

Upon request by the Company, the Eligible Emploggeses to deliver to the Company at the terminatiotine
Eligible Employees employment, or at such other times as the Compayyrequest, all memoranda, notes, p
records, reports and other documents (and all sdpereof) containing Confidential Information thla¢ Eligible
Employee may then possess or have under his control
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5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

Assignment of Patents and Copyright3he Eligible Employee shall assign to the Conypalh inventions an
improvements within the existing or contemplateopscof the Company's business made by the Eligibiployet
while in the Company's or any of its Affiliatesmploy, together with any such patents or copysigig may k
obtained thereon, both domestic and foreign. Ugemjuest by the Company and at the Company's exptre
Eligible Employee will at any time during his empioent with the Company or any of its Affiliates aattel
termination regardless of the reason thereforecidreall proper papers for use in applying for,aobihg an
maintaining such domestic and foreign patents ara/pyrights as the Company may desire, and wékeate an
deliver all proper assignments therefc

Covenant Not to Solicit Other than in connection with the performance¢hefEligible Employee duties, for th
remainder of the Eligible Employeeterm of employment with the Company or any ofAffliates and for th
remainder of the Benefit Continuation Peridereafter, the Eligible Employee shall not (A)isiblany employee
of the Company or any of its Affiliates to leavestBompanys employ to work for any company with which
Eligible Employee is employed, or (B) employ anyptoyee who is employed by the Company or any ¢
Affiliates.

Covenant Not to Disparag. The Eligible Employee agrees that the Eligiblmptoyee will not make ar
statements, whether oral, written, telephonic,ted&dc, or by or in any other method or in any otfgmat, that i
any way disparage, damage, or undermine the cleamacteputation of the Company or any of its Adfiés, or an
member of management thereof; provided, howevat,ttie Eligible Employee may make such statementse
necessary to comply with law. The Company agreatsthe Company, including the Compangenior officers i
their capacity as senior officers of the Company, mot issue any press release or official statetmehat in an
way disparage, damage, or undermine the charactepotation of the Eligible Employee; providedwever, the
the Company may make such statements as are ngcessamply with law. Either party may resortaaourt o
equity to enforce this Sectiorb.5 by injunctive relief. The parties agree thag¢ Company and the Eligit
Employee may enforce this Sectidn5 without posting a bond and without giving netio the maximum exte
permitted by law

Survival. Notwithstanding any contrary provision contaitneslein, any obligations of an Eligible Employeelen
this Section 5 shall survive any termination of Han and any termination of an Eligible Employeemploymer
with the Company or any of its Affiliates. Withsggect to each Eligible Employee, any breach omateresd breac
of the covenants in this Section 5 shall constituteasis for the Company to suspend such Eligibhpl&yees
right to receive any payments or benefits to wisicbh Eligible Employee is otherwise entitled unither Plan
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7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

PLAN MODIFICATION OR TERMINATION.

The term of the Plan shall be for two (2) years ahdll extend thereafter daily on a daydsy basis unle
canceled by the Company. Notwithstanding the psEmtence, the Plan may be amended or terminatete
Compensation Committee at any time with respedny or all Eligible Employees; providedhowever, tha
during the pendency of a Potential Change in Comaind during the two (2) year period following a&dige it
Control, the Plan may not be terminated nor mayPla@ be amended during such period of pendencyar twe
(2) year period, if such amendment would be advirskee interests of any Eligible Employee, withtha consel
of such Eligible Employee.

GENERAL PROVISIONS.

If the Company or any Subsidiary is obligated by t& by contract to pay severance pay, a terminatidemnity
notice pay, or the like, or if the Company or anybSidiary is obligated by law to provide advanceia®oof
separation (“_Notice Perio), then any severance pay hereunder shall be reducedebamount of any su
severance pay, termination indemnity, notice patherlike, as applicable, and by the amount of @mpensatio
received during any Notice Peric

Neither the establishment of the Plan, nor any fieadion thereof, nor the creation of any fund stror accoun
nor the payment of any benefits shall be constagdiving any Eligible Employee, or any person whoavetr
the right to be retained in the service of the Canypor any Subsidiary, and all Eligible Employekallsremait
subject to discharge to the same extent as if ldne ffad never been adopt:

If any provision of this Plan shall be held invabd unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforcagbighall no
affect any other provisions hereof, and this Plaailde construed and enforced as if such provssitad not bee
included.

The headings and captions herein are providedeference and convenience only, shall not be coresideart o
the Plan, and shall not be employed in the construof the Plan. Similarly, the use of the maswigender wit
respect to pronouns herein is for purposes of auewee and includes either sex who may be an H
Employee. Unless otherwise specified, all Seateéfarences are to the Pl:

The Plan shall not be funded. No Eligible Emplowtall have any right to, or interest in, any assétshe
Company (or any of its Affiliates) which may be &pg by the Company (or any of its Affiliates) toet paymer
of benefits or other rights under this Plan. Noghcontained in the Plan, and no action taken puntsto the Pla
shall create or be construed to create a trushykand, or a fiduciary relationship, between thengpany (or an
of its Affiliates) and any Eligible Employee or amgher person. The rights of each Eligible Empéoye eac
Eligible Employees estate to benefits under the Plan shall be sthelse of an unsecured creditor of the Elic
Employe¢ s Employer (or to the extent applicable, shalldlelg those of an unsecured creditor of the Compz
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7.6

7.7

7.8

8.2

8.3

Any notice or other communication required or pétaoi pursuant to the terms hereof shall have begngiver
when delivered or mailed by United States Maiktficlass, postage prepaid, addressed to the irtgrdgient &
his, her or its last known addre

This Plan shall be construed and enforced accorttingge laws of the State of California, withouference t
principles of conflicts of laws

All benefits hereunder shall be reduced by appleabthholding and shall be subject to applicalabe teporting
as determined by the Plan Administra

SUCCESSORS; BINDING AGREEMENT.

Successors of the Compa. The Company shall require any successor (anpaitent, if applicable) who sh
purchase all or substantially all of the businesd/@r assets of the Company (whether direct orréatli by
purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) fwressly assume and agree in writing to maintainPae in th
same manner and to the same extent that the Conwauyg be required to maintain it, provided that swt
agreement shall be required if the successor (Engarent, if applicable) shall be or remain soigatted b
operation of law. As used herein, the “Compasyiall mean the Company as hereinbefore definedasmy
successor to its business and/or assets as atbrebkich assumes and agrees to maintain the Plamhaoh
otherwise becomes bound by all the terms and pomsshereof by operation of la

Eligible Employe’s Heirs, etc. This Plan shall inure to the benefit of and Inforceable by each Eligik

Employees personal or legal representatives, executors,inggtrators, heirs, distributees, devisees
legatees. If an Eligible Employee should die whity amounts would still be payable to him or henelander as
such Eligible Employee had continued to live, altls amounts, unless otherwise provided herein| bbgbaid it
accordance with the terms hereof to such Eligiblgplbyees designee or, if there be no such designee, tor
her estate. When a payment is due under thistBlarsevered Eligible Employee who is unable t@ ¢ar his o
her affairs, payment may be made directly to hikesrlegal guardian or personal representa

Non-alienation. Except by will or intestacy as set forth in $@ct8.2 hereof, no right, benefit or interest of/

Eligible Employee hereunder, shall be subject tticgation, alienation, sale, assignment, encumtgacharge
pledge, hypothecation, or -off in respect of any claim, debt or obligation, torexecution, attachment, levy
similar process, or assignment by operation of l&mny attempt, voluntary or involuntary, to effeahy actiol
specified in the immediately preceding sentencdl,dloathe full extent permitted by law, be nullpid and of ni
effect.
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9.1

9.2

9.3

CONDITIONS TO PAYMENT AND ACCELERATION; SECTION 409 A OF THE CODE.

General. The intent of the parties is that payments antefies under this Plan comply with Section 409Atiud
Code to the extent subject thereto, and, acconginglthe maximum extent permitted, this Plan shalinterprete
and administered to be in compliance therev

Separation from Servic. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to¢batrary, to the extent required in or
to avoid accelerated taxation and/or tax penaltreter Section 409A of the Code, the Eligible Empghall nc
be considered to have terminated employment wighBimployer for purposes of this Plan and no paysshal
be due to the Eligible Employee under this Plail soth Eligible Employee would be considered tweénancurre:
a‘“separation from servi” from the Employer within the meaning of Section AQ# the Code

Delay for Specified Employee. Notwithstanding any provision of this Plan tcetleontrary, if an Eligibl
Employee is a “specified employee” (within the miegnof Reg. 1.409AL() and determined pursuant
procedures adopted by the Company) at the timeidi &ligible Employe’s separation from service, and if .
portion of the payments or benefits to be receibgduch Eligible Employee under the Plan upon dtlagible
Employees separation from service would be considered nalifaqad deferred compensation under Section 4
then the following provisions shall apply to théekant portion

(A)  Each portion of such payments and benefits thatldvotherwise be payable during the smonth perio
immediately following such Eligible Employee’s seqi@on from service (the “ Delayed Peridy shal
instead be paid or made available on the earli€) die first business day of the seventh montlo¥ang
the date the Eligible Employee incurs a separdtiom service, or (ii) the Eligible Employeedeath (th
applicable date, th* Permissible Payment Dg"); and

(B) The Employer shall reimburse the Eligible Employee the reasonable af-tax cost of any benef
contemplated by this Plan incurred by the EligiBElmployee in independently obtaining such ben
during the Delayed Period, with such reimbursenterite paid to the Eligible Employee by the Empli
on the Permissible Payment D¢
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9.4

9.5

10.
10.1

10.2

Reimbursements With respect to any amount of expenses eligfblereimbursement that is required to

included in an Eligible Employe®’gross income for federal income tax purposesh sxpenses shall
reimbursed by the Employer within sixty (60) calendays (or, if applicable, on the Permissible PaynbDate
following the date on which the Employer receivies &pplicable invoice from the applicable Eligildeployet
(and approves such invoice) but in no event ldtantDecember 31 of the year following the year mclv sucl
Eligible Employee incurs the related expensesndnevent shall the reimbursements oikimd benefits to b
provided by the Employer in one taxable year affbet amount of reimbursements o-kind benefits to b
provided in any other taxable year, nor shall agiile Employe’s right to reimbursement or ikind benefits b
subject to liquidation or exchange for another fier

Separate Paymer. Each payment under the Plan shall be conside"separate payme” and not one of a ser
of payments for purposes of Section 40

CLAIMS, INQUIRIES, APPEALS.

Applications for Benefits and InquiriesAny application for benefits, inquiries about tR&n or inquiries abo
present or future rights under the Plan must bengtdd to the Plan Administrator in writing, asl@bs:

Plan Administrator

c/o Century Aluminum Company

at its principal executive offices

Denial of Claims. In the event that any application for benefitdesied in whole or in part, the Plan Administr
must notify the applicant, in writing, of the dein@t the application, and of the applicantight to review th
denial. The written notice of denial will be settfoin a manner designed to be understood by thaogme, an
will include specific reasons for the denial, sfiedieferences to the Plan provision upon whichdbaial is base
a description of any information or materihlat the Plan Administrator needs to complete #heew, and a
explanation of the PI¢s review procedure

This written notice will be given to the employe&hin ninety (90) days after the Plan Administrateceives the
application, unless special circumstances requirexéension of time, in which case, the Plan Adstmtor has up
to an additional ninety (90) days for processirgapplication. If an extension of time for procagss required,
written notice of the extension will be furnishecdthe applicant before the end of the initial yn@0)-day period.
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10.3

10.4

10.5

This notice of extension will describe the speciatumstances necessitating the additional timetheddate b
which the Plan Administrator is to render his or Hecision on the application. If written notice dénial of th:
application for benefits is not furnished withiretepecified time, the application shall be deemodaketdenied. TF
applicant will then be permitted to appeal the deim accordance with the review procedure desdrhzdow.

Request for a Revie. Any person (or that pers’s authorized representative) for whom an appliodio benefit
is denied (or deemed denied), in whole or in pagly appeal the denial by submitting a request i@vaew to th
Plan Administrator within 60 days after the apgima is denied (or deemed denied). The Plan Adriatisr will
give the applicant (or his or her representativedpportunity to review pertinent documents in grémy a reque
for a review and submit written comments, documergsords and other information relating to theinslaA
request for a review shall be in writing and shalladdressed t

The Company:
at its principal executive offices

A request for review must set forth all of the grds on which it is based, all facts in supporthef tequest and a
other matters that the applicant feels are pertinBme Plan Administrator may require the applicemssubmi
additional facts, documents or other material agrhehe may find necessary or appropriate in makisgr he
review.

Decision on Reviev. The Plan Administrator will act on each requestréview within sixty (60) days after rece
of the request, unless special circumstances e@uirextension of time (not to exceed an additiehdl (60
days), for processing the request for a revievanlextension for review is required, written notée¢he extensic
will be furnished to the applicant within the iaitisixty (60)day period. The Plan Administrator will give pron
written notice of his or her decision to the apgtit In the event that the Plan Administrator aoné the denial
the application for benefits in whole or in pathe tnotice will outline, in a manner calculated sounderstood
the applicant, the specific Plan provisions uponictvhthe decision is based. If written notice of tR&r
Administrator’s decision is not given to the applicant within timee prescribed in this Section 10.4 the applan
will be deemed denied on revie

Rules and Procedur«. The Plan Administrator may establish rules amatedures, consistent with the Plan
with ERISA, as necessary and appropriate in cagrgiat his or her responsibilities in reviewing bEnelaims.
The Plan Administrator may require an applicant whshes to submit additional information in connectwith
an appeal from the denial (or deemed denial) oéfisnto do so at the applici's own expense
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10.6 Exhaustion of Remedie. No legal action for benefits under the Plan maybbought until the claimant (A) F
submitted a written application for benefits in @xtance with the procedures described by Sectioh dlfove, (B
has been notified by the Plan Administrator thatapplication is denied (or the application is dedrdenied dt
to the Plan Administratos’failure to act on it within the established tipexiod), (C) has filed a written request
a review of the application in accordance with éippeal procedure described in Section 10.3 abogd@nha:
been notified in writing that the Plan Administnat@s denied the appeal (or the appeal is deemieel denied du
to the Plan Administratos’ failure to take any action on the claim withire tme prescribed by Section 1
above).
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SCHEDULE A
SEPARATION AGREEMENT
WAIVER AND RELEASE OF CLAIMS

(“Employee”) gnd (the “Employer”) hereby enter this Waiver and

Release Agreement (“Agreement”) and acknowleddelkmsvs:

1. The parties understand that by sigtimgAgreement, the parties are agreeing to ahefprovisions
stated in the Agreement, and have read and unddrstach provision.

2. Employee understands that this Agrednsea release and waiver contract and that isichent is
legally binding.

3. This Agreement applies only to claintsch accrue or have accrued prior to the datetthsitAgreement
is signed.

4. In exchange for the Employee’s promisethis Agreement, the Employer agrees to tetalBmployee

the severance benefits (the “Severance BenefissSpaforth in Section 2 of the EmployeExecutive Severance Plan (
“Plan”).

5. Employee agrees that the executidhisfAgreement is a condition to Employee’s receiphe
Severance Benefits and that the Severance Betefdered under the Plan constitute fair and adequoatsideration for
the execution of this Agreement, and the severbroefits are in addition to payments and benedditgtich the
Employee is otherwise entitled.

6. Employee is hereby advised in writinygthis Agreement to consult with an attorney befsigning.

7. The parties understand that: (i) Emeéshall have 21 (twenty-one) days following tmeptoyee’s
termination of employment with the Employer to ades this Agreement before signing; (ii) Employ&alshave 7
(seven) days in which to revoke this Agreement aigning; (iii) this Agreement shall not be effigetuntil the expiratiol
of 7 (seven) days after signing; and, (iv) all amtsypayable hereunder shall be paid in accordaitbeSgction 2.10 of tr
Plan.

8. The waiver and release provision$isf Agreement shall apply to any and all claims aglts of any
kind that Employee may have, whether ndmown or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, ingidiut not limited to,
arising out of or in any way connected with Emplkgeemployment with Employer as of the date this Agreement is
executed. These claims and rights released inchideare not limited to, claims under Title VIl thie Civil Rights Act of
1964, 42 U.S.C. § 1981, the Equal Pay Act, the Acaas With Disabilities Act, the Age Discrimination in Employment
Act, Sections 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation #fct973, Family Medical Leave Act, Employee Retient Income
Security Act, the Occupational Safety and Health &e Older Workers’ Benefit Protection Act, theokikers’
Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act, as amed, state, civil or statutory lawsncluding any and all
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human rights laws and laws against discriminatamy, other federal,state or local fair employment statute, code or
ordinance, common law, contract law, tort, inclggibut not limited to, fraudulent inducement toegnito this contract,
and any and all claims for attorneys’ fees. Emetyepresents that Employee knows of no claimBEhgiloyee has that
has not been released by this paragraph. Nothittgs Agreement prevents or precludes Employem ftballenging or
seeking determination in good faith of the validifythis waiver under the ADEA, nor does it impasg condition
precedent, penalties or costs for doing so, urdpssifically authorized by federal law. This releaoes not extend
claims which as a matter of law cannot be waived.

9. Employee expressly waives all rightder Section 1542 of the Civil Code of the Stat€alifornia,
which reads as follows:

“A general release does not extend to claims whi¢he creditor does not know or suspect to exist in
his or her favor at the time of executing the relese, which if known by him or her must have
materially affected his or her settlement with thedebtor.”

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1542, tordhe purpose of implementing a full and completlease an
discharge of each and all of the Releasees, Empleypressly acknowledges that this Agreement énded to include
and does include in its effect, without limitati@ll, claims which Employee does not know or suspeeixist in
Employees favor at the time Employee signed this Agreermaentthat this Agreement contemplates the extingugsit o
all such claims.

10. The waiver and release provisionthisf Agreement shall also apply to all state oefatlcommon law
claims, whether known or unknown, including but lwiited to, claims for wages, benefits, stock op8, profit sharing,
wrongful discharge, breach of contract, breachngfienplied covenants, defamation, or any othemelaihich relates to «
arises out of the employment relationship.

11. California law, and federal law whapplicable, shall govern the enforcement and pnétation of this
Agreement.
12. If any term of this Agreement shaldetermined unconscionable or unenforceable gifnaining

provisions will remain effective and legally bindir

13. This Agreement contains the entineagent between the parties with respect to thesulmatter
hereof, and supersedes all negotiations, agreepreptesentations, warranties, commitments, whetheriting or oral
prior to the date herec

14. The Employee agrees to not make cagjrgg or otherwise negative comments about Employés
Affiliates (as such term is defined in the PlanEonployer’s (or any of Employer’s Affiliates’ (as@h term is defined in
the Plan)) employees, members of management cerngaig to any employee of Employer or those outsfdemployer’s
employment.
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15. Employee confirms and agrees to Eygats continuing obligations under Section 5 (Cotitipa,
Confidentiality and Related Covenants) of the Rtdlowing termination of Employee’s employment withe Employer.

16. Based upon the above statementsddratanding between the parties, the Employeegbalbof
Employee, Employee’descendants, dependents, heirs, executors, athaiiois, assigns, and successors, fully, finalty
forever releases and discharges Employer, itsgrmakpresent parents, Subsidiaries and Affiliates(&h terms are
defined in the Plan), and their respective pastpaadent predecessors, successors, assigns, reptess, officers,
directors, stockholders, agents and Employeese(@olkly, the "Releasees"), from any and all clagmnd rights of any
kind that Employee may have, whether now knownnknown, suspected or unsuspected, including, biuimded to,
arising out of or in any way connected with Emplkgeemployment with Employer as of the date this Agreement is
executed. These claims and rights released inchudeare not limited to, claims under Title VIl #ie Civil Rights Act of
1964, 42 U.S.C. § 1981, the Equal Pay Act, the Acaas With Disabilities Act, the Age Discrimination in Employment
Act, Sections 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation #fct973, Family Medical Leave Act, Employee Retient Income
Security Act, the Occupational Safety and Health &e Older Workers’ Benefit Protection Act, theokikers’
Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act, as amed, state, civil or statutory lawdncluding any and all human rights
laws and laws against discrimination, any otheefal] state or local fair employment statute, code omarace,
common law, contract law, tort, including, but hotited to, fraudulent inducement to enter intcstbontract, and any ai
all claims for attorneys’ fees. Employee represéimat Employee knows of no claim that Employeethashas not been
released by this paragraph. Nothing in this Agreinprevents or precludes Employee from challengmggeking
determination in good faith of the validity of tisiver under the ADEA, nor does it impose any doowl precedent,
penalties or costs for doing so, unless specificalithorized by federal law. This release doesrt#nd to claims whic
as a matter of law cannot be waived.

17. This Agreement was provided to Emp#ofor consideration on
EMPLOYER
Date:
Date: BY:
ITS:
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EXHIBIT 10.67

AGREEMENT TO AMEND CERTAIN PROVISIONS
OF STANDSTILL AND GOVERNANCE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered inte af January 27, 2009, by and between Century Aumi
Company, a corporation organized and existing utigefaws of the State of Delaware (the “Comparyi) Glencore
AG, a company organized and existing under the t@Ev&witzerland (“Glencore”).

WHEREAS , the Company proposes to offer newly-issued shénes'Qffered Shares”) of the Company’s common
stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “Common S}pfikr sale to the public by means of a firm commitinemderwritter
public offering (including any sale of Common Stgaksuant to an underwrit¢ over-allotment, the “Offering”);

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that a portion of the Offered &sawill be purchased in the Offering by Glencarnd/ar one
or more of its Affiliates (the “Glencore Shares”);

WHEREAS, the Company and Glencore are parties to that cegi@ndstill and Governance Agreement dated aglyf J
7, 2008 (the “SAGA”") (all capitalized terms usediarot defined herein shall have the meaning sét farthe SAGA);

WHEREAS , the Company and Glencore have agreed to ametaircprovisions of the SAGA so that Glencore may
increase its current Ownership Percentage of appedgly 30.16% by the purchase of the Glencore&hand that
Glencore and its Affiliates may exercise votinghtgywith respect to a number of shares of CompamyirGon Stock
equivalent to the Glencore Shares; and

WHEREAS, the Independent Directors of the Board of Directifirtfhie Company and the Board of Directors of the
Company have approved this Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE , in order to provide for Glencore’s and its Affiles’ purchase of the Glencore Shares in the
Offering, the Company and Glencore do hereby aasdellows:

l. Notwithstanding the definition of Permitted OwnepsRercentage in Section 1.1 of the SAGA, Gleneor its
Affiliates shall be permitted to increase its catr®wnership Percentage of approximately 30.16%uWghasing
the Glencore Shares in the Offeril




VI.

VII.

After the purchase of the Glencore Shares in ther{df), Glencore’s Permitted Ownership Percentag# April
7, 2009 shall be the greater of (x) 28.5% andhg)duotient, expressed as a percentage, of: (&utheof (i) the
number of shares of Common Stock that equals 28f5¥e Companys outstanding Common Shares immedie
prior to the Offering, and (ii) the number of Glencorefs; divided by (b) the number of outstanding Camnyp
Common Shares immediatefollowing the Offering;

Following April 7, 2009, Glenco’s Permitted Ownership Percentage shall be as ¢lyrsat forth in the SAGA

For the avoidance of doubt, it is acknowledged @Glanhcore and its Affiliates shall be entitled i@ecise all
voting rights with respect to a number of share€@inpany Common Stock equivalent to the Glencoereshand
such Shares shall not be subject to Section 20f ftle SAGA; provided that Section 2.1(c) shall thauwe to apply
with respect to any increase in Glencore’s Ownergl@rcentage beyond the Permitted Ownership Page(as
increased hereby) which is not otherwise permitiethe terms of the SAG/

Except for such terms of the SAGA as shall be nmedihereby, the SAGA shall continue in full foracedaeffect;

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws ofState of New York (without regard to its choicda# rules);
and

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreemehe amendments to the SAGA provided for hesall
become effective if and only if the Offering consuated and Glencore and/or its Affiliates purchage@lencore
Shares thereir

[ Signature page followls




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executedAlgieement as of the date first above written.

CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY

By: /s/ Michael A. Bless

Name Michael A. Bless
Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

GLENCORE AG

By: /s/ A. Hubmann

NameA. Hubmann
Title: Director

By: L. Grenacher Hagmann

NameL. Grenacher Hagmann
Title: Director







EXHIBIT 21.1
CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGIST RANT

STATE OR OTHER
JURISDICTION OF
INCORPORATION
OR NAME UNDER BUSINESS IS

COMPANY NAME ORGANIZATION CONDUCTED

Berkeley Aluminum, Inc. Delaware Berkeley Aluminum, Inc.

Century Aluminum of West Delaware Century Aluminum of West Virginia, Inc.
Virginia, Inc.

Century California, LLC Delaware Century California, LLC

Century Kentucky, Inc. Delaware Century Kentucky, Inc.

Century Bermuda | Limited Bermuda Century Bermuda | Limited

Century Aluminum Holdings, Inc. Delaware Century Aluminum Holdings, Inc.
Metalsco LLC Georgia Metalsco LLC

Skyliner LLC Delaware Skyliner LLC

NSA General Partnership Kentucky NSA GP

Century Aluminum of Kentucky Kentucky Century Aluminum of Kentucky, GP
General Partnership

Hancock Aluminum LLC Delaware Hancock Aluminum, LLC

Century Aluminum of Kentucky Delaware Century Aluminum of Kentucky LLC
LLC

Century Bermuda Il Limited Bermuda Century Bermuda Il Limited
Nordural U.S. LLC Delaware Nordural U.S. LLC

Nordural Helguvik ehf Iceland Nordural Helguvik ehf

Nordural ehf Iceland Nordural ehf.

Century Louisiana, Inc. Delaware Century Louisiana, Inc.

Century Aluminum Development Delaware Century Aluminum Development LLC

LLC
Century Aluminum Congo, S.A.

Republic of Congo

Century Aluminum Congo, S.A.

Nordural Grundartangi ehf . Iceland Nordural Grundartangi ehf.

Century Aluminum Asia Holdings Hong Kong Century Aluminum Asia Holdings Limited
Limited

Century Mincenco Holdings St. Lucia Century Mincenco Holdings Limited
Limited

Century Aluminum Cooperatief Netherlands Century Aluminum Cooperatief U.A.

U.A.

Century Aluminum B.V. Netherlands Century Aluminum B.V.



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statements No. 333-15689, No. 333-4254,333-65924,
and No. 333-129698 for the Century Aluminum Compa8i96 Stock Incentive Plan, Registration Staterhent333-
15671 for the Century Aluminum Company Non-Emplofp#ectors Stock Option Plan, Registration Statenim 333-
129699 for the Century Aluminum 401(k) Plan, Ragisbn Statement No. 333-07239 for the Century Ahum
Company of West Virginia, Inc. Salaried Employedibed Contribution Retirement Plan, Registratioat&ments No.
333-129697 and No. 333-28827 for the Century AlumirCompany of West Virginia, Inc. United Steelwaskef
America Savings Plan (all on Forms S-8) and Pofgedfife Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statememt 383-143315
(on Form S-3) of our reports dated March 16, 20&kating to the financial statements and finansiatement schedule of
Century Aluminum Company and subsidiaries, anceffectiveness of Century Aluminum Company and siibgies’
internal control over financial reporting, all ajgpi&g in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Centéddyminum
Company for the year ended December 31, 2009.

/s/ Deloitte and Touche LLP

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
March 16, 2010



EXHIBIT 24.1

POWER OF ATTORNEY

| hereby constitute and appoint William J. Leatleerp as my true and lawful attorney-in-fact andragerith full
power of substitution, for me and in my name, ig and all capacities, to sign on my behalf the AaifReport on Forr
10-K of Century Aluminum Company for the fiscal yemded December 31, 2009, and any amendment plesagnt
thereto; and to file such Annual Report on FornKl@nd any such amendment or supplement, with goaiiBies and
Exchange Commission and any other appropriate ggairsuant to applicable laws and regulations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hang 18th day of February, 2010.

/s/ John P. O'Brien

Name John P. O’'Brien
Title: Director
Century Aluminum Company




POWER OF ATTORNEY

| hereby constitute and appoint William J. Leatleerp as my true and lawful attorney-in-fact andragerith full
power of substitution, for me and in my name, ig and all capacities, to sign on my behalf the AairiReport on Forr
10-K of Century Aluminum Company for the fiscal yesmded December 31, 2009, and any amendment plesopnt
thereto; and to file such Annual Report on FormKl@nd any such amendment or supplement, with éoeiiBies and
Exchange Commission and any other appropriate ggairsuant to applicable laws and regulations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hansd 23rd day of February, 2010.

/sl Catherine Z. Manning

Name Catherine Z. Manning
Title: Director
Century Aluminum Company




POWER OF ATTORNEY

| hereby constitute and appoint William J. Leatleerp as my true and lawful attorney-in-fact andragerith full
power of substitution, for me and in my name, ig and all capacities, to sign on my behalf the AairiReport on Forr
10-K of Century Aluminum Company for the fiscal yesmded December 31, 2009, and any amendment plesopnt
thereto; and to file such Annual Report on FormKl@nd any such amendment or supplement, with éoeiiBies and
Exchange Commission and any other appropriate ggairsuant to applicable laws and regulations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hans #l§ith day of February, 2010.

/sl Jack E. Thompson

Name Jack E. Thompson
Title: Director
Century Aluminum Company




POWER OF ATTORNEY

| hereby constitute and appoint William J. Leatleerp as my true and lawful attorney-in-fact andragerith full
power of substitution, for me and in my name, ig and all capacities, to sign on my behalf the AairiReport on Forr
10-K of Century Aluminum Company for the fiscal yesmded December 31, 2009, and any amendment plesopnt
thereto; and to file such Annual Report on FormKl@nd any such amendment or supplement, with éoeiiBies and
Exchange Commission and any other appropriate ggairsuant to applicable laws and regulations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hansd #2nd day of February, 2010.

/s/ Jarl Berntzen

Name Jarl Berntzen
Title: Director
Century Aluminum Company




POWER OF ATTORNEY

| hereby constitute and appoint William J. Leatleerp as my true and lawful attorney-in-fact andragerith full
power of substitution, for me and in my name, ig and all capacities, to sign on my behalf the AairiReport on Forr
10-K of Century Aluminum Company for the fiscal yesmded December 31, 2009, and any amendment plesopnt
thereto; and to file such Annual Report on FormKl@nd any such amendment or supplement, with éoeiiBies and
Exchange Commission and any other appropriate ggairsuant to applicable laws and regulations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hansg 24ith day of February, 2010.

/s/ Peter C. Jones

Name Peter C. Jones
Title: Director
Century Aluminum Company




POWER OF ATTORNEY

| hereby constitute and appoint William J. Leatleerp as my true and lawful attorney-in-fact andragerith full
power of substitution, for me and in my name, ig and all capacities, to sign on my behalf the AairiReport on Forr
10-K of Century Aluminum Company for the fiscal yesmded December 31, 2009, and any amendment plesopnt
thereto; and to file such Annual Report on FormKl@nd any such amendment or supplement, with éoeiiBies and
Exchange Commission and any other appropriate ggairsuant to applicable laws and regulations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hangd #ist day of February, 2010.

/s/ John C. Fontaine

Name John C. Fontaine
Title: Director
Century Aluminum Company




POWER OF ATTORNEY

| hereby constitute and appoint William J. Leatleerp as my true and lawful attorney-in-fact andragerith full
power of substitution, for me and in my name, ig and all capacities, to sign on my behalf the AairiReport on Forr
10-K of Century Aluminum Company for the fiscal yesmded December 31, 2009, and any amendment plesopnt
thereto; and to file such Annual Report on FormKl@nd any such amendment or supplement, with éoeiiBies and
Exchange Commission and any other appropriate ggairsuant to applicable laws and regulations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hans i day of March, 2010.

/s/ Robert E. Fishman

Name Robert E. Fishman
Title: Director
Century Aluminum Company




POWER OF ATTORNEY

| hereby constitute and appoint William J. Leatleerp as my true and lawful attorney-in-fact andragerith full
power of substitution, for me and in my name, ig and all capacities, to sign on my behalf the AairiReport on Forr
10-K of Century Aluminum Company for the fiscal yesmded December 31, 2009, and any amendment plesopnt
thereto; and to file such Annual Report on FormKl@nd any such amendment or supplement, with éoeiiBies and
Exchange Commission and any other appropriate ggairsuant to applicable laws and regulations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hansd #2nd day of February, 2010.

/s/ Willy R. Strothotte

Name Willy R. Strothotte
Title: Director
Century Aluminum Company







EXHIBIT 31.1: CERTIFICATION OF DISCLOSURE IN CENTU RY ALUMINUM COMPANY'S ANNUAL
REPORT FILED ON FORM 10-K

I, Logan W. Kruger, certify that:
1) | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Century Aluminum Compan)

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not cordain untrue statement of a material fact or omistete .
material fact necessary to make the statements ,nmadight of the circumstances under which suciteshent
were made, not misleading with respect to the peravered by this repol

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdairly
present in all material respects the financial oo results of operations and cash flows of tbgistrant as ¢
and for, the periods presented in this ref

4) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure contro
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rulas158e) and 15d5(e)) and internal control over financ
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurbe
designed under our supervision, to ensure thatrrahteformation relating to the registrant, inclog its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during therioc
in which this report is being prepare

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over final
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopréwide reasonable assurance regarding the retyabf
financial reporting and the preparation of finah@ttements for external purposes in accordande
generally accepted accounting principl

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslassire controls and procedures and presentedsimepor
the Companys conclusions about the effectiveness of the disceocontrols and procedures, as of the
of the period covered by this report based on sweluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regtsanternal control over financial reporting thoeicurre:
during the registrant's most recent fiscal qudtte registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the cakan annuz
report) that has materially affected, or is reabbndikely to materially affect, the registrant'atérna
control over financial reporting; ar

5) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on the Com| s most recent evaluation
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant's auditors and the audit committee ofdgestrant's boa
of directors (or persons performing the equivafanttions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controkr
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant's ability to re¢gmibces:
summarize and report financial information; ¢

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a signi
role in the registrant's internal control over fin&l reporting

Date: March 16,
2010

/sl LOGAN W. KRUGER
Name: Logan W. Kruger

Title: President and Chief Executive
Officer







EXHIBIT 31.2: CERTIFICATION OF DISCLOSURE IN CENTU RY ALUMINUM COMPANY’S ANNUAL REPORT FILED ON
FORM 10-K

I, Michael A. Bless, certify that:
1) | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Century Aluminum Company

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omitadie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunegts under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, aher financial information included in this repdfairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe periods presented in this rep

4) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainirggldsure controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act R
13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedureg filesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidatibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregsh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reipgr, or caused such internal control over finahoiporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable asseraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in at@oce with generally accepted accounting princj

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slassire controls and procedures and presentedisnréport the Company’
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosontrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this repc
based on such evaluation; €

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control over financial reporting theeticurred during the registrat
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repogj ttas materially affected, or
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportingpe

5) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) antdve disclosed, based on the Companybst recent evaluation of internal control «
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditorsl dhe audit committee of the registrant's boardlicéctors (or persons performing
equivalent functions)

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the riegig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information; ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdatin the registran
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March /s/ MICHAEL A. BLESS
16, 2010

Name: Michael A. Bless
Title: Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

Certification of
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offcer
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf @002
(18 U.S.C. 1350)

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fkCentury Aluminum Company (the “Companyfgr the year ended December 31, 2!
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissin the date hereof (the “Reporthpgan W. Kruger, as Chief Executive Officer of
Company, and Michael A. Bless, as Chief Financiiicer of the Company, each hereby certifies, parguo Section 906 of the Sarbar@sley
Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

1. This report fully complies with the requirementsS#fction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchafzgieof 1934; anc

2. The information contained in this report fairly peats, in all material respects, the financial dord and results of operations of

Company
/sl Logan W. Kruger /sl Michael A. Bless
By: Logan W. Kruger By: Michael A. Bless
Title: Chief Executive Officer Title: Chief Rancial Officer

Date: March 16, 2010 Date: March 16, 2010



